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Directors & OffICers........cuvvvvmnicniinsrrssccsssensns 6 ® Williams plans to invest the largest portion of its growtiz capital during
FOTM 10Kttt 7 the next three vears to rapidly increase production of its reserves in Colorado’

Piceance Basin. The compuny plans in 2006 to drill more than 450 Piceance
wells, about 10 percent of which will be in the newer Highlands area.

Forward-Looking Statements ® Williams is expanding capacity — through the addition of pipe and

o o compressor stations like this one in Charlottesville, Va. — at strategic
ertain matters discussed in this report, except historical informatian, include oints on its interstate gas pipelines to serve growing market demand.
Cert tters d d in th rt t hist | inf t lud p gas pipel gr ket d (A
farward-looking statements. Although Williams believes such statements The company expects to benefit, starting in 2007, from new rates on is

wholly owned pipelines, Transco and Northwest Pipeline.

are based on reasonable assumptions, no assurance can be given that every . ' o o
objective will be achieved. For more detail, see page 23 of the Form 10-K in the ® Williams controls strategically located in-city generation in the Los Angeles
back of this report Basin. In 2005, the company resold certain of its tolling rights for that pouwer.
ac port. The sales agreements serve to reduce the fiture volatility assoctated with the
tolling contracts through 2010,

o Williams is identifying strategic hubs in the deepwater Guif of Mexico and
building key infrastructure to reliably bring producers’ oil and gas onshore.
The company’s capabilities include constructing sub-sea oil and gas export
pipelines and floating productions systems like Devils Tower, pictured here.

Financial Highlights

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

{Millions, except per-share amounts)
Revenues! $12,583.6 $12,461.3 $16,651.0 $3,4345 $4,899.5
Income (loss) from continuing operations? 374 93.2 (57.5) (618.4) 640.5
Income (loss) from discontinued operations® (2.1) 70.5 326.6 (136.3) (1,118.2)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles® (1.7) — {761.3) — —
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations .53 18 (17 (1.37) 1.28

Income (loss) from discontinued operations — 13 63 (.26) (2.23)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles —_ — (1.47) — —
Total assets at December 31 29,442.6 23,993.0 27,0218 34,9885 38,614.2
Short-term notes payable and long-term ‘

debt due within one year 122.6 250.1 9385 2,077.1 2,510.4
Long-term debt at December 31 1,590.5 77119 11,039.8 11,075.7 8,285.0
Preferred interests in consolidated

subsidiaries at December 31 — — — — 976.4
Stackholders’ equity at December 31 5427.5 4,955.9 4,102.1 5,049.0 6,044.0
Cash dividends per common share 25 .08 .04 42 .68

' As part of our adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3 “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy
Trading and Risk Management Activities,” (EITF 02-3), we concluded that revenues and costs of sales from non-derivative contracts and certain physically settled derivative contracts
should generaily be reported on a gross basis. Prior to the adoption on January 1, 2003, these revenues were presented net of costs. As permitted by EITF 02-3, prior year amounts have not
been restated. Also, see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements far discussion of revenue recognized in 2003 related to the correction of prior period items.

See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of asset sales, impairments and other accruals in 2005, 2004, and 2003.

3 See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the analysis of the 2005, 2004, and 2003 income (loss) from discontinued operations. Results for the year 2002 also include
amounts related to the discontinued operations of Central natural gas pipeline, Mid-America pipeline, Seminole pipeline and Kern River pipeline. Results for the year 2001 also include
amounts related to the discontinued operations of Williams Communications Group, our previously owned subsidiary (WilTel).

4 The 2005 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles is due to implementation of Interpretation (FIN) 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations - an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 147.” The 2003 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles includes a $762.5 million charge related to the adoption of EITF 02-3, slightly
offset by $1.2 million related to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” The $762.5 million charge
primarily consists of the fair value of power tolling, load serving, gas transportation and gas storage contracts. These contracts are not derivatives and, therefore, are no longer reported
at fair value.




By both financiai and operationai
measures, Williams succesded in
generating value from growth in 2005.
We look forward to building on that
success throughout 2006 and beyond.
I'd like to point out several important A topographical map of Colorado’ Piceance

Basin, where Williams is active in developing
natural gas reserves, provides the backdrop for

factors to understanding Williams’ future. Chairman, President and CEO Steve Malcolm,

» We are m:aking‘sig'niﬁca'nt investments in our complementary suite of natural gas businesses. In turn,
we expect those investments will generate significant results for shareholders while adding new energy

supplies and reliability to the domestic market.

» We are opportunity rich, and we are seizing those opportunities. Our three-year eafnings guidance
presents a compelling story of organic growth from prospects that largely are within our control — by
virtue of our.assets, our capabilities and our competitive positions. Those very attributes put us in a

strong position to capfure oppartunities that will add to our current growth p(ojections.

» Weare building on our track record of success by executing our strategies with discipline and diligence.
We u‘nders’tand the importance of those fundamentals. Indeed, they form the foundation of Williams'

pl‘an for growth.

» With the launch of our master limited paitnership, Williams Partners LP, we established an important
tax-advantaged financing source for funding our growth. The master limited partnership structure
also provides Wi_IIia ms with an acquisition currency that we expect will drive an even greater expansion

~ of our midstream business.
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Domestic production climbed by

18 percent during the year, representing

industry-leading performance in terms

of production growth through drilling activity.

2005 Financial Performance

Qur solid and sharply improved financial
performance strengthened our balance
sheet and helps promote growth.

e Qurincome from continuing operations
more than tripled during the year, to
$317 million in 2005 from $93 million
in 2004, :

We produced net cash from operating
activities of $1.45 billion in 2005,
demonstrating the company’s
concentration on generating cash fiows
and applying financial discipline.

total return on their investment in

Williams shares over the course of 2005.

* We are returning more value to investors
via dividends. In 2005, we increased
the quarterly dividend to 7.5 cents, the

second increase since November 2004. -

o Qver the year, we reduced our debt
by nearly $249 million to $7.7 billion,
While early debt retirement is no longer
our priority — because we have more
attractive uses for capital to fund growth
opportunitiés — we remain focused on
steadily improving our credit ratings.

* Our continued commitment to financial
discipline and our extraordinary
re-investment opportunities through
2008 and beyond allow us to forecast a
strong increase in earnings and cash flows
from operations.

Qur shareholders received a 44 percentb '

Strategy and Business Unit Update

We began putting the company on a
growth track nearly 18 months ago

and we are fully engaged in expanding
the business. We continue to focus

on executing our strategy for ongoing
growth. In last year's letter, we introduced
our strategy for creating value: Make
disciplined investments in natural-gas-
focused businesses that are located in
key growth areas where we enjoy the
competitive advantages of scale, a -
low-cast position or market leadership.
That strategy is delivering results for
Williams shareholders.

‘Below are some of the highlights of each

of our businesses during 2005.

- Exploration & Production

.ur E&P business is focused on rapidly

increasing production from our high-quality
reserves in key growth basins. In 2005, the
company again had a 99 percent drilling
success rate on the more than 1,600

wells we drilled. As we continue to execute
this strategy, we also are focused on
maintaining our leadership position in costs
and drilting efficiencies. These efficiencies
combined with the quality of our reserves
gives Williams one of the lowest finding and
development costs in the industry - with

a three-year average rate of 92 cents per
thousand cubic feet of gas equivalent,

E&P's contribution to fhe company’s

overall performance grew to more than

one-third of segment profit. Production -
volumes continue to grow at an
impressive rate. Domestic production
climbed by 18 percent during the

year, representing industry-leading
performance in terms of production
growth through drilling activity (as

~opposed to growth through acquisitions).

In 2005, we replaced domestic reserves
produced at a rate of 277 percent. We
increased total domestic proved reserves -
by 13 percent to 3.4 trillion cubic feet

of gas equivalent at the end of 2005.
including our international interests,
E&P’s total proved reserves were 3.6

- trillion cubic feet of gas équivalent as -

of year-end 2005.

. We were successful in each of our major

basins last year. The Piceance Basin .

- continues to'be our.primary growth driver.

We increased average daily production
there in 2005 by 34 percent —or 88 million
cubic feet of gas equivalent,

We expanded our drilling program in, -
the Piceance Highlands, a newer area

with promising potential. We drilled

25 Highlands wells ast year and are -
ramping up to 54 this-year. In December,
Williams received approval for 10-acre
well density on approximately 21,000 net
acres in a portion of this Highlands area,

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.




Two recent developments in the deepwater

Gulf of Mexico region showcase our expertise:

and should produce solid long-term earnings

and cash flows.

which triples the potential number of
drilling locations in that-particular area to
approximately 1 500 ‘

To continue the l’apld acceleration of

our drilling program, Williams last year
signed a three-yearcontract to add 10
new custom-designed drilling rigs in

the Piceance Basin. With the addition of
these new rigs, Williams expects to drill
approximately 450 wells in the Piceance
Basin this year and more than 500 wells
during 2007. These technologically
advariced rigs require less space,
potentially allowing us to quadruple the
average number of wells we can drill from
a single surface Iocatlon They also are
designed to require fewer employees to
ope‘rate, while improving safety, reducing
emissions and increasing directional '
drilling efficiency and lateral reach.

in Wyoming’s Powder River Basin, our
production activity in the Big George coal -
area is driving our growth. Production in
the Big George area was up 74 million
cubic feet per day, or 101 percent. The

San Juan Basin in Colo. and New Mexico

is a very mature area, but we were able to
increase production there by four percent,
in addition, the group’s entry into the Fort
Worth Basin in Texas will add incremental
production from the Barnett Shale. The
group also plans to further develop the
Arkoma Basin in Oklahoma with production
from the Woodford and Caney Shale.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

Midstream

Wiliams' Nlid's.tream“unit provides refiable
gathering and proces‘sin'g services and
looks for ways to create opportunities to
develop large-scale infrastructure in growth
basins like the deepwater Gulf of Mexico
and our premier positions in the San Juan .
Basin and Wyoming.

Our Midstream unit turned in a very strong
performance in 2005, despite battling
three major hurricanes and a 40 percent
decling in the byenchma'rk spread between
natural gas liquids and Henry Hub natural
gas prices. With relatively little capital
expenditures in 2004 and 2005, this unit

is generating significant cash flows from
operating activities. While most of Witliams’
facilities weathered the storms with
relatively little or no damage, Hurricane
Rita squarely hit our Cameron Meadows
processing plant and put it out of service.
Our Gulf Coast area employees worked
relentlessly for several months to return the
facility to service by early February 2006.

Two recent developments in the deepwater
Gulf of Mexmo region showcase our
expertise and should produce solid long-
term garnings and cash flows. We expanded
our relationship with Chevron-Texaco and
Kerr-McGee, announcing a $177 million ‘
offshore expansion to gather oil and gas
from the Blind Faith Field. We are extending
our Canyon Chief and Mountaineer pipelines

by 37 miles each. The expansion creates
opportunities for Williams to move natural
gas from the Blind Faith discovery through.
our Mobite Bay, Ala., processing plant,

as well as our Transco and Gulfstream
interstate pipelines. The project is -
scheduled for completion during the third
quarter of 2007. -

Pre-construction activity is progressing on

schedule for the second deepwater project —
an approximately 35-milé gathering pipeline
to connect the Discovery pipeline system.to
production facilities for-the Tahiti prospect. -
The Tahiti pipeline lateral expansion, with an
expected design capacity of approximately
200 million cubic feet per day, is scheduled
to be in service by May 2007. Williams and-
Williams Partners own 20 percent and 40
percent of Discovery, respectively.

In the West, we are adding a fifth
cryogenic proceésing train to our Opal,
Wyo., processing plant to meet the
region’s increased demand for natural gas
processing. The train is designed to boost
the overall capamty of the Opal facnlty to
approximately 1.45 biltion cubic feet per day.
Work is scheduled to be completed during
the second quarter of 2007. The facility
pracesses gas from the pralific Pinedale
Anticline field in western Wyoming.

@as Pipeline

(as Pipeline offers reliable, low-cost natural
gas interstate transportation services to




W ™ We placed expansions into service during

2005 on Transco and Gulfstream, and several
more are planned for completion in 2007.

growing major markets in the United States.
Qur business consists of two wholly owned
major pipelines — Transco, which extends
from Texas to the Northeast, and Northwest
Pipeline, which extends from Colorado to
the Pacific Northwest. In addition, Williams.
owns a 50 percent interest in Guifstream,
which runs through the Gulf of Mexico from
Alabama to Florida. These three natural
gas pipeline systems combined deliver
approximately 12 percent of the natural gas
consumed in the United States.

Northwest Pipeline and Transco both plan
to file rate cases in 2006. We expect to put
new, higher rates into effect in early 2007.

As a result of increased transportation
demand, we are pursuing multiple pipeline
expansion projects designed to serve

this incremental growth, strengthen our
competitive position and create value.
All of Williams’ interstate pipelines are
strategically located to access supply

and provide gas transportation services
from production areas expected to have ‘
significant growth opportunities — the
Rockies, the deepwater Guif of Mexico and
in locations where new liquefied natural
gas (LNG) import facilities are in service
or under development.

We placed expansions into service during
2005 on Transco and Gulfstreém, and
several more are planned for completion
in 2007.

There are several projects in various stages
of development on the Transco system.
We expect to éxpénd our pipeline from
Leidy, Pa., to Long Island, N.Y,, to provide
an additional 100,000 dekatherms per
day of firm natural gas transportation
service by late fali 2007, We also plan to
expand our system to provide an additional
165,000 dekatherms per day of firm
transportation service in the Mid-Atlantic
region. In addition, we are in the process

. of negotiating binding agreements for an

expansion that would add about 250,000
dekatherms of daily deliverability from the
Cove Point LNG import facility to markets in
the Northeast.

Further south on our Transco system, we
are formally soliciting market interest on

two projects that would add transportation .

capacity. One would access imported LNG
in the Guif Coast region. The other would
link gas on the Transco system with the
Gulfstream pipeline.

Dufing 2005, Gulfstream reached an
important milestone when it entered into
a conditional agreement that will result
in 100 percent of its capacity being sold
under long-term contracts. Gulfstream
also is gauging interest in an expansion
of its system that would raise the overall

capacity of the pipeline up to an additional

200,000 dekatherms of gas per day.

QOur Northwest Pipeline system has a
major capacity replacement project under

way. The 80 miles of 36-inch pipeline in
existing right of way, between Sumas and
Washougal, Wash., is expected to be in
service‘in November 2006,

Additionally, Northwest Pipeline expects to
construct a new 38-mile Jateral in Colorado
that would provide transportation services

"~ in 2007 for the natural gas being produced

in the Piceance:Basin.

Power

Power helps wholesale electric customers
manage energy commodity risk by providing
tailored services that utilize existing capacity
in our long-term power contracts. This
business is focused on executing contracts
to reduce risk in our power portfolio, while
generating positive cash flows for Williams.

During 2005, Power generated $188 million

in cash from operating activities, which | ‘ j
includes the positive effect of margin cash ‘
returned. This result reflects Power's activities

related to long-term power agreements, as ,

well as the natural gas marketing and supply

functions it performs on behalf of our E&P

 and midstream businesses.

Importantly, during the year, Power
finatized numerous significant agreements,
including a sale of approximately 1,500
megawatts of power tolling rights through
2010. This is indicative of our ability to
identify and close longer-term contracts as
the market continues to strengthen.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
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During 2005, Power generated $188 million

in cash from operating activities, which includes

the positive effect of margin cash returned.

These transactions help manage the risk
associated with the unhedged portions of
our portfolio and are consistent with our
strategy to reduce risk, create cash flow
certainty and honor customer commitments.
QOverall, our power group is experiencing

a greater interest from counterparties

to structure and close agreements. That
greater interest indicates a strengthening
of the power markets.

- Outlook

Williams and our customers play a vital role
in meeting the energy needs of millions of
consumers and businesses. We take that
responsibility very seriously. | am extremely
impressed and grateful for the dedication
that Williams employees demonstrated
under the severe circumstances of last
year’s hurricane season.

It takes dedicated employees, effective

_ processes and leadership throughout the
company to overcome the kind of challenges
we experienced throughout the Guif Coast
region, These characteristics, combined
with our financial performance, are the
foundations for the company’s growth.

Every day we strive to make our actions
match our words, and for that reason,
we have a very strong emphasis on
compliance. Over the past several years,
the company has taken many positive
steps toward ensuring compliance and
has implemented additional controls.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, [NC.

We'll continue to conduct Williams'’
business with full vigilance toward issues
of compliance.

Along with returning value to our
shareholders, Williams-is continuingyits
commitment to foster a culture that values
safety and environmental stewardship

not only as part of responsible operations,
but because it makes good business
sense. We are engaged in dialogue, both
internally and externally, around the issue
of climate change. Generally, we believe
that accomplishing our business goals in a
safe and environmentally sound way while
addressing issues such as climate change
are not necessarily mutually exclusive.

Natural gas prices have now declined
somewhat from recent record levels.
However, current and forecasted prices
remain at points well above historic levels,
and generate attractive investments and
opportunities for the company. Williams is
in an energy commodity-based business
and is subject to commodity price volatility
in earnings and cash flows. The company
seeks to mitigate these commodity risks
at an enterprise level through various
means, including asset hedges inherent
in our portfolio, contractual provisions and
derivatives instruments. I'm confident the
company will continue to prosper in the
current and forecasted price enviranment.

At the beginning of 2006, we set some
ambitious, three-year goals that will help us

generate a superior level of value for Williams
shareholders. We believe 2006 will be a good
year for Williams, led by our exploration and

< production group. However, our sights are

set on 2007 and 2008 when the cumulative
effects of our business strategies will
'produce even greater results. Our guidance
includes a 50 percent increase in segment
profit by the end of 2008 driven by continued
strong growth in production, significant
new midstream projects, successful pipeline
rate cases and new pipeline projects.

We will continue to maximize our many
business opportunities. We expect to invest
more than $5 billion in capital projects
through 2008, with a significant portion of
that amount weighted toward accelerating
the pace with which we increase our
production and proved reserves. We will
continue to pursue strategies to unlock the
value associated with all of our assets and
their strategic promise; we believe that is
the best way to increase shareholder returns.

We remain confident that we can deliver

on our strategies and execute our business
plan with the same discipline and diligence
we have demonstrated over the past several
years. Thank you for your continued support.

Steve Malcolm

Chairman, President and CEQ
March 16, 2006
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DEFINITIONS
We use the following oil and gas measurements in this report:

Bcfe — means one billion cubic feet of gas equivalent determined using the ratio of one barrel of oil
or condensate to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

British Thermal Unit or BTU — means a unit of energy needed to raise the temperature of one
pound of water by one degree Fahrenheit.

BBtud — means one billion BTUSs per day.
Dekatherms or Dth or Dt — means a unit of energy equal to one million BTUs.
Mbbls/d — means one thousand barrels per day.

Mcfe — means one thousand cubic feet of gas equivalent using the ratio of one barrel of oil or
condensate to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

Mdt/d — means one thousand dekatherms per day.
MMcf — means one million cubic feet.
© MMcf/d — means one million cubic feet per day.

MMcfe — means one million cubic feet of gas equivalent using the ratio of one barrel of oil or
condensate to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

MMdt — means one million dekatherxhs.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

In this report, Williams (which includes The Williams Companies, Inc. and unless the context otherwise
requires, all of our subsidiaries) is at times referred to in the first person as “we,” “us” or “‘our.” We also
sometimes refer to Williams -as the “Company.”

‘WEBSITE ACCESS TO REPORTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

We file our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
proxy statements and other documents electronically with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act). You may read and copy any
materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,
Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by
calling the SEC at 1-800- SEC 0330. You may also obtain such reports from the SEC’s Internet website at
hitp://www.sec.gov.

_ _Our Internet website is Attp://www.williams.com. We make available free of charge on or through our

Internet website our annual report on Form. 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to,
the SEC. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Ethics, Board committee charters and Code of
Business Conduct are also available on our Internet website. We will also provide, free of charge, a copy of any
of our corporate documents listed above upon written request to our Secretary at Williams, One Williams
Center, Suite 4700, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172,

GENERAL

We are a natural gas company originally incorporated under the laws of the state of Nevada in 1949 and
reincorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware in 1987. We were founded in 1908 when two Williams
brothers began a construction company in Fort Smith, Arkansas.

Today, we primarily find, produce, gather, process and trahspbrt natural gas. We also manage a wholesale
power business. Our operations are concentrated in the Pacific Northwest, Rocky Mountams Gulf Coast,
Southern California and Eastern Seaboard.

In 2005 our growth opportunities continued to éxpand. Wc“are expanding our natural gas pipelines to
meet market demand, continuing to expand our Exploration & Production drilling program and continuing to
pursue Midstream growth opportunities especially in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico.

We continue to use Economic Value Added® (EVA®)' as the basis for disciplined decision making
around investments for growth. EVA® is a tool that considers both financial earnings and cost of capital in
measuring performance. We look for growth opportunities that provide positive EVA® because we beheve that
there is a strong correlation between EVA® and creation of sustainable value.

Our principal executive offices are located at One Williams Center, Tulsa Oklahoma 74172. Our
telephone number is 918-573-2000.

! Economic Value Added® (EVA®) is a registered trademark of Stern, Stewart & Co.
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2005 HIGHLIGHTS

We entered 2005 having completed the key components of our restructuring plan and in a position to shift
our focus to growth. Our 2005 plan included the followmg objectives:

*

Increase focus and disciplined EVA®- based 1nvestment in natural gas businesses;

Continue to steadﬂy improve credit ratios and rating with the goal of achieving investment grade
ratios;

Continue to reduce risk and liquidity requirements while maximizing cash flow in the Power
segment ‘

Maintain 11qu1d1ty from cash and revolvmg credlt fac111t1es of at least $1 billion;

Generate susvtamable growth in EVA® and shareholder value.

Our 2005 income from continuing operations increased to- $317.4 million, as compared to $93.2 million in
2004. Our 2005 results reflect the benefit of increased natural gas production and higher net realized average
prices, along with reduced levels of interest expense. Results for 2004 included $282.1 million in costs
associated with the early retirement of debt, while results for 2005 were reduced by accruals associated with
agreements to resolve gas reporting issues and 1mpa1rments of certain investments. Our net cash provided by
operating ‘activities was $1.45 billion in 2005, comparable with the 2004 level of $1.49 billion. See Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis’ of Financial Condition and Results of Operatlons for further
discussion of our 2005 performance. In-addition to achieving these results the followmg represent sxgnlﬁcant
actions or events that occurred during the year:

In 2005, we further improved our credit ratios from those achieved in 2004. We retired $200 million
of debt that matured January 15, 2005. On February 16, the holders of the remaining 10.9 million
equity forward contracts associated with the FELINE PACS units exercised contracts to purchase
one share of our common stock for $25 a share, resulting in cash proceeds of approximately
$273 million. The remaining notes associated with the FELINE PACS units totaling approximately
$73 million are due February 16, 2007. ‘

During 2005, Exploration & Production increased its average daily domestic production levels, its
net realized average prices, and its developmental drilling activities. In' March 2005, Exploration &
Production entered into a lease for ten new drilling rigs to support the accelerated pace of natural gas
development in the Piceance basin. The first rig was delivered in January 2006 and the remaining
rigs are expected to be delivered during 2006.

In 2005 and early 2006, Power continued to reduce risk by entering into electricity and capacity
forward contracts with fixed sales prlces for over 6,000 megawatts of capacity in total across various
penods through 2010

During 2005, Mldstream Gas & Liquids (Midstream) continued efforts to expand operations of
large scale assets in growth basins. These efforts include signing definitive agreements to extend oil
and gas pipelines from our Devils Tower _spar to the Blind Faith prospect and obtaining Board
approval to add a fifth cryogenic train to our gas processing plant in Opal Wyoming. Both of these

additions are expected to be in service in 2007.

In July and November of 2005, our Board of Directors approved regular quarterly ‘dividends  of
7.5 cents per share of common stock, which reflects an increase of 50 percent compared with the 5
cents per share paid in each of the three prior quarters.

On August 23, 2005, Williams Partners L.P. completed its initial public offering of five million
common units at a price of $21.50 per unit. The underwriters also fully exercised their option to
purchase an additional 750,000 common units at the same price. Upon completion of the
transaction, we held approximately 60 percent of the interests in Williams Partners L.P., including
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100 percent of the general partner. See the Midstream Gas & Liquids Overview of 2005 within
Item 7 for further information. .

+ During third-quarter 2005, certain Gulf Coast area operations were interrupted by hurricanes. The
impact of these hurricanes included temporary shutdowns as well as varying levels of damage. The
overall impact was not material to our financial position.

» In September 2005, we reached an agreement to settle litigation filed in 2002 under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). The settlement, which received final approval in
November 2005, provided for us to pay $55 million to plaintiffs, of which $50 million was covered .
and paid by insurance. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information.

* In September 2005, we increased our available liquidity by obtaining a total of $700 million of
capacity in two five-year unsecured credit facilities. See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information. s

« In November 2005, we initiated an offer to induce conversion of up to $300 million of the 5 5 percent
junior subordinated debentures convertible into our common stock. The conversion was executed in
January 2006 and approximately $220.2 million of the debentures were exchanged for common
stock. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

+ During 2005 we continued our efforts to resolve legacy issues, such as pending claims and
investigations involving inaccurate reporting of natural gas prices and volumes to an industry
publication in 2002. In February 2006, we reached agreements with various parties to substantially
resolve this exposure. Under the terms of these agreements, Power will pay a total of $77.2 million to
the various parties. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS

See Note 18 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information with respect to each
segment’s revenues, profits or losses and total assets.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Substantially all our operations are conducted through our subsidiaries. To achieve organizational and
operating efficiencies, our activities are primarily operated through the following business segments:

+ Power — manages our wholesale power and natural gas commodity businesses through purchases,
sales and other related transactions, under our wholly owned subs1d1ary Wllhams Power Com-
pany, Inc. and its subs1d1ar1es ‘

)

« Gas Pipeline — includes our interstate natural gas pipelines and pipeline joint venture investments
organized under our wholly owned subsidiary, Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC. -

+ Exploration & Production — produces, develops and manages natural gas reserves primarily located
in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Continent regions of the United States and is comprised of several
wholly owned and partially owned subsidiaries including Williams Production Company LLC and
Williams Production RMT Company.

« Midstream — includes our natural gas gathering, treating and processing business and is comprised
of several wholly owned and partially owned subsidiaries incliiding Williams Field Services Group
LLC and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. Midstream also includes Williams Partners L.P., our
master limited partnership formed in 2005.




* Other — consists of corporate «operations -and certain continuing operations . previously reported
within the International and Petroleum Services segments. Other also includes our interest in
Longhorn Partners Pipeline, L.P. (Longhorn)

This report is organized to reflect this structure.

Detailed discussion of each of our business segments follows.

. Power

‘Our Power business buys, sells, stores and transports energy and energy-related commodities, primarily
power and natural gas. Since our September 2004 decision to continue operating the power business and cease
efforts to exit that business Power has focused not only on its objective of maximizing expected cash flows, but
also on executing new contracts to hedge its portfolio and providing functions that support our natural gas
businesses. Our contracts include physical forward purchases and sales, various financial instruments and
structured transactions. Our financial instruments include exchange-traded futures, as well as exchange-traded
and over-the-counter options and swaps. Structured transactions 1nclude tolling contracts, full requirements
contracts, tolling resales and heat rate options.

Tolling contracts represent the most significant portion of our portfolio. Under the tolling contracts, we
have the right to request a plant owner to convert our fuel (usually natural gas) to electricity in exchange for a
fixed fee. We have the right to request approximately 7,400 megawatts of electricity under six tolling
agreements. The table below lists the locations and available capacity of each of our tolling agreements. These
capacity numbers are subject to uhange and our contractual rights to capacity may not reflect actual
availability at the plants.

Location » . g . : Megawatts
California ......... L B P 3,783
Alabama. . ... o 844
Louisiana ......................... e e 751
New Jersey ........ e JE S B 766
Pennsylvania .. ... e R B e 669
Michigan ........... i i B o 545
Total . ..o e 7,358

We use portions of the electricity produced under the tolling agreements to supply obligations under
various arrangements such as power sales, tolling resales, and full requirements contracts. Under full
requirements contracts, we supply the clectnc1ty required by our counterparties to serve their customers.
Through full requirements contracts, we supply approximately 1,900 megawatts of electricity to our customers
in Georgia and Pennsylvania. : :

Through tolling resale agreements, we enter into transactions that mirror, to varying degrees, some or all
of our rights under our underlying tolling arrangements, which remain in place with our tolling counterparties.
We.have resold part of our rights (2,568 to 3,236 megawatts) under the California tolling arrangement to two.
counterparties for periods through 2010."

We also own two natural gas-ﬁrcd electric generating plants locatcd near Bloomfield, New Mexico
(60 megawatts, Milagro facility) and in Hazleton, Pennsylvania (147 megawatts).

In 2005, we managed natural gas throughout North America with "total physical volumes averaging
2.3 billion cubic feet per day. We use approximately 10 percent of this natural gas to fuel electric generating
plants we own or in which we have contractual rights. We sell approximately 70 percent of this natural gas to
customers including local distribution companies, utilities, producers, industrials and other gas marketers.
With the remaining 20 percent, we procure gas supply for our Midstream operations.’

In 2004, we substantially exited our crude oil and refined products activities.
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In 2003, we substantially exited our European activities.

Operating statistics

The following table summarizes marketing and trading gross sales volumes, including sales volumes to
other segments, for the periods indicated:

Year Ending December 31,

2005 2004 2003
U.S. Operations '
Marketing and trading physical volumes:
Power (thousand megawatt hours) .......... ... ... ... .... 66,779 93998 165,908
Natural gas (billion cubic feet perday) ..................... 2.1 2.3 2.7
Petroleum products (thousand barrels per day) ............... 50 50 77

In 2005, Power managed 2.3 billion cubic feet per day of natural gas. The natural gas volumes managed
include the following (in billion cubic feet per day):

2005
Sales to third barties ........................................................... 1.7
Sales to other SEGMENS ... ... .. e 4
For use in tolling agreements and by owned generation . .....................couun.. 2
Total natural gas managed .. ....... . i e 2.3

As of December 31, 2005, Power had approximately 300 customers compared with 284 customers at the
end of 2004.

Gas Pipeline

We own and operate, through Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC and its subsidiaries, a combined
total of approximately 14,600 miles of pipelines with a total annual throughput of approximately 2,600 trillion
British Thermal Units of natural gas and peak-day delivery capacity of approximately 12 MMdt of gas. Gas
Pipeline consists of Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation and Northwest Pipeline Corporation. Gas
Pipeline also holds interests in joint venture interstate and intrastate natural gas pipeline systems including a
50 percent interest in Gulfstiream Natural Gas System, L.L.C.

Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation (Transco)

Transco is an interstate natural gas transportation company that owns and operates a 10,500-mile natural
gas pipeline system extending from Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and the offshore Gulf of Mexico through
Alabama, Georgia, South Carolina, North Carolina, Virginia, Maryland, Pennsylvania, and New Jersey to the
New York City metropolitan area. The system serves customers in Texas and eleven southeast and Atlantic
seaboard states, including major metropolitan areas in Georgia, North Carolina, New York, New Jersey, and
Pennsylvania. Effective May 1, 1995, Transco transferred the operation of certain production area facilities to
Williams Field Services Group LLC (Williams Field. Services), an affiliated company and part of the
Midstream segment. Effective June 1, 2004 and due in part to Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) Order No. 2004, the operation of the production area facilities was transferred back to Transco.

Pipeline system and customers

At December 31, 2005, Transco’s system had a mainline delivery capacity of approximately 4.7 MMdt of
natural gas per day from its production areas to its primary markets. Using its Leidy Line along with market-
area storage and transportation capacity, Transco can deliver an additional 3.5 MMdt of natural gas per day
for a system-wide delivery capacity total of approximately 8.2 MMdt of natural gas per day. Transco’s system
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includes 44 compressor stations, five underground storage fields, two liquefied natural gas (LNG) storage
facilities. Compression facilities at a sea level-rated capacity total approximately 1.5 million horsepower.

Transco’s major natural gas transportation customers are public utilities and municipalities that provide
service to residential, commercial, industrial and electric generation end users. Shippers on Transco’s system
include public utilities, municipalities, intrastate pipelines, direct industrial users, electrical generators, gas
marketers and producers. One customer accounted for approximately 10 percent of Transco’s total revenues in
2005. Transco’s firm transportatlon agreements are generally long-term agreements with various expiration
dates and account for the major portion of Transco’s business. Additionally, Transco offers storage services
and interruptible transportation services under short-term agreements.

Transco has natural gas storage capacity in five underground storage fields located on or near its pipeline
system or market areas and operates three of these storage fields. Transco also has storage capacity in an LNG
storage facility and operates the facility. The total usable gas storage capacity available to Transco and its
customers in such underground storage fields and LNG storage facility and through storage service contracts
is approximately 216 billion cubic feet of gas. In addition, wholly owned subsidiaries of Transco operate and
hold a 35 percent ownership interest in Pine Needle LNG Company LLC, an LNG storage facility with four
billion cubic feet of storage capacity. Storage capacity permits Transco’s customers to inject gas into storage
during the summer and off-peak periods for delivery during peak winter demand periods.

Transco expansion projects
Central New Jersey Expansion Project

The Central New Jersey Expansion Project, an expansion of Transco's existing natural gas
transmission system in Transco’s Zone 6 from the Station 210 pooling point to a new delivery point on
Transco’s Trenton-Woodbury Line, was placed into service on November 1, 2005. The project adds
105 Mdt/d of new firm transportation capacity, which has been fully subscribed by one shipper for a
twenty-year primary term. The project facilities included approximately 3.8 miles of pipeline 1oop The
estimated capital cost of the project is approx1mately $16 million.

Leidy to Long Island Expansion Project

The Leidy to Long Island Expansion Project will involve an expansion of Transco’s existing natural
gas transmission system in Zone 6 from the Leidy Hub in Pennsylvania to Long Island, New York. The
project will provide 100 Mdt/d of incremental firm transportation capacity, which has been fully
subscribed by one shipper for a twenty-year primary term. The project facilities' will include pipeline
looping in Pennsylvania and pipeline looping, uprating and replacement and a natural gas compressor
facility in New Jersey. The estimated.capital cost of the project is approximately $121 million. We expect
that over three-quarters of the project expenditures will occur in 2007. We filed an application for FERC
approval of the project-in-December 2005. The target in-service date for the project is November 1, 2007.

Potomac Expansion Project

Transco held an “open season” from July 19 through August 17, 2005 to receive. requests from
potential shippers for new firm transportation capacity to be made available on the Transco pipeline
system from receipt. points in North Carolina to delivery points in.the greater Washington, D.C.
metropolitan area under Transco’s proposed Potomac Expansion Project. As a result of the open season,
the expansion is being designed to create 165 Mdt/d of incremental firm transportation capacity, which
has been fully subscribed by shippers under long-term firm arrangements. The estimated capital cost of
the project is approximately $73 million. Transco filed a request for pre-filing review with the FERC on
November 10, 2005. The FERC granted:-the request on November 17, 2005. Transco plans to file an
application for FERC approval of the pro;ect during the th1rd quarter of 2006. The target in-service date
for the project is November 1, 2007.




Sentinel Expansion Project

Transco held an open season from October 31 through'Deccmb'er 2, 2005 to receive requests from
potential shippers for new firm transportation capacity to be made available on the Transco pipeline
system under Transco’s proposed Sentinel Expansion Project. During the open season, we received
requests for a total of 256 Mdt/d of incremental firm transportation capacity from the Leidy Hub in
Clinton County, Pennsylvania and/or the Pleasant Valley Interconnection with Cove Point LNG, LP-in
Fairfax County, Virginia to various delivery points requested by the shippers. Transco is evaluating the
facilities required to support such requested capacity. The final project size, location of facilities and
capital cost will depend on the outcome of that evaluation and the level of firm market commitment
confirmed with the requesting parties. The proposed in-service date for the project is November 1, 2008.

Operating statistics

The following table summarizes transportation data for the Transco system for the periods indicated:

2005 2004 2003

(In trillion British
Thermal Units)

Market-arca deliveries:

Long-héui transportation .............. B P . 755 782 om
Market-area transportation. ... ...ttt i 853 817 802
Total market-area deliveries ........... e ..o 1,608 1,599 1,573
Production-area transportation. ... ... e S P PR 278 317 © 297
Total system deliVETIES .« . ... 'v v et tenee e, 1,886 1916 1,870

: Average Daily Transportation Volumes .................coovou...) \ 5.2 52 51
Average Daily Firm Reserved Capacity . .......... ..., 6.6 6.6 6.5

Transco’s facilities are divided into eight rate zones. Five are located in the production area, and three are
located in the market area. Long haul transportation involves gas that Transco receives in one of the
production-area zones and delivers to a market-area zone. Market-area transportation involves gas that
Transco both receives and delivers within the market-area zones. Production-area transportation involves gas
that Transco both receives and delivers within the production-area zones.

Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline)

Northwest Plpehne is an interstate natural gas transportation company that owns and operates a natural
gas pipeline system extending from the San Juan basin in northwestern New Mexico and southwestern
Colorado through Colorado, Utah, Wyoming, Idaho, Oregon and Washington to a point on the Canadian
border near Sumas, Washington. Northwest Pipeline provides services for markets in California, New Mexico,
Colorado, Utah, Nevada, Wyoming, Idaho, Oregon and Washington directly or indirectly through intercon-
nections w1th other pipelines.

Pipeline system and customers

At December 31, 2005, Northwest Pipeline’s system, having long-term firm transportation agreements
with peaking capacity of approximately 3.4 MMdt of natural gas per day, was composed of approximately
4,100 miles of mainline and lateral transmission pipelines and 42 transmission compressor stations having a
combmcd sea level- rated capacity of approx1rnately 462 000 horsepower.

In December 2003, we received an Amended Corrective Action Order (ACAO) from the Office of
Pipeline Safety (OPS) regarding a segment of one of our natural gas pipelines in western Washington. The
pipeline experienced two breaks in 2003 and we -subsequently idled the pipeline segment until its integrity
could be assured.




By June 2004 we had successfully completed our hydrostatic testing program and returned to service
111 miles of the 268 miles of pipe affected by the ACAQ. That effort has restored 131 Mdt/d of the
360 Mdt/d of idled capacity and is anticipated to be adequate to meet most market conditions To date our
ability to serve the market dermand has not been significantly impacted.

The restored facilities will be monitored and tested as necessary- until they are ultimately replaced in
2006. Through December 31, 2005, approximately $43.3 million has been spent on testing and remediation
costs, including approximately $8.9 million related to one segment of pipe that we determined not to return to
service and was therefore written off in the second quarter of 2004.

As required by OPS, we plan to replace all capacity associated with the segment affected by the ACAO
by November 2006 to meet long-term demands. We conducted a reverse open season to determine whether
any existing customers were willing to relinquish or reduce their capacity commitments to allow us to reduce
the scope of pipeline replacement facilities. That resulted in 13 Mdt/d of capacity being relinquished and
incorporated into the replacement project.

On November 29, 2004, we filed an application with the FERC for certificate authorization to construct
and operate the “Capacity Replacement Project.” This project entails the abandonment of approximately
268 miles of the existing 26-inch pipeline, and the construction of approximately 80 miles of new 36-inch
pipeline and an additional 10,760 net horsepower of compression at two existing compressor stations. The
original cost of the abandoned assets and any cost of removal, net of salvage, will be charged to Accumulated
Depreciation. At December 31, 2005, the net book value of the assets to be abandoned was $82.4 million. The
estimated total cost of the proposed Capacity Replacement Project included in the filing is approximately
$333 million, net of a $3.3 million contribution-in-aid-of-construction from a shipper that agreed to relinquish
13 Mdt/d of capacity. A favorable preliminary determination was issued in May 2005 and we received and
accepted the final FERC certificate in September 2005. We began construction of certain critical river
crossings in late 2005. The main construction of pipeline and compression will begin in early 2006 with an
anticipated in-service date of November 1, 2006.

We anticipate filing a rate case to recover the capitalized costs relating to restoration and replacement
facﬂitles to become eiTective following the in-service date of the replacement facilities.

In 2005, Northwest Pipehne served a total of 143 transportation and storage customers. Transportation
customers include distribution companies, municipalities, interstate and intrastate pipelines, gas marketers and
direct industrial users. The two largest customers of Northwest Pipeline in 2005 accounted for approximately
17.6 percent and 11.0 percent, of its total operating revenues. No other customer accounted for more than
10 percent of Northwest Pipeline’s total operating revenues in 2005. Northwest Pipeline’s firm transportation
agreements are generally long-term agreements with various expiration dates and account for the major
portion of Northwest Pipehne ] busmess Addltionally, Northwest Pipehnc oﬂers interruptible and short-term
firm transportation service.

As a part of its transportation services; Northwest Pipeline utilizes underground storage facilities in Utah
and Washington enabling it to.balance daily receipts and deliveries. Northwest Pipeline also owns and operates
an LNG storage facility in Washington that provides service for customers during a few days of extreme
demands. These storage facilities have an aggregate firm delivery capacity of approximately 600 million cubic
feet of gas per day.

Northwest Pipeline expansion projects

¢

Colorado gas pipeline expansion.

In January 2006, we filed an application with the FERC to construct a 38-mile expansion that would
provide additional capacity in northwest Colorado. The planned expansion would increase capacity by
450 Mdt/d through the 30-inch diameter line and is estimated to cost $55 million. We are currently in
discussions with- shippers to determine the level of commitment and anticipate beginning service on the
expansion in January 2007. '




Operating statistics

The followmg table summarizes volume and capacity data for the Northwest Pipeline system for the
periods indicated:

2005 2004 2003

(In trillion British
Thermal Units)

Total Transportation Volume ........ .. ... ... ... ..t 673 650 682
Average Daily Transportation Volumes ..............cooouririneniien .. 1.8 1.8 1.9
Average Daily Reserved Capacity Under Long -Term Base Firm Contracts,

excluding peak capacity ... .. e 2.5 2.5 2.5

Average Daily Reserved Capacity Under Short-Term Firm Contracts(l)

(1) Consists primérily of additional capacity created from time to time through the installation of new receipt
or delivery points or the segmentation of existing mainline capacity. Such capacity is generally marketed
on a short-term firm basis, because it does not involve the construction of additional mainline capacity.

Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. ( Gulfstream)

Gulfstream is a natural gas pipeline system extending from the Mobile Bay area in Alabama to markets
in Florida. In December 2001, Gulfstream filed an application with the FERC to allow Gulfstream to
complete the construction of its approved facilities in phases. In May 2002, the first phase of the project was
placed into service at a cost of approximately $1.5 billion. The second phase of the project was placed into
service on February 1, 2005. The total capital cost of both phases of the project is approximately $1.7 billion.
At December 31, 20035, our investment in Gulfstream was $395 million. Gas Pipeline and Duke Energy,
through their respective subsidiaries, each hold a 50 percent ownership interest in Gulfstream and provide
operating services for Gulfstream.

Gulfstream expansion projects-

Gulfstream has entered into a conditional agreement pursuant to which, subject to the receipt of all
necessary regulatory approvals and other conditions precedent therein, we intend to further expand the system
and fully subscribe the existing pipeline system on a long-term basis. The estimated capital cost of this
expansion project, if implemented, is anticipated to be approximately $135 million. In addition, we are
pursuing another potential prospect for an expansion. Such expansion, if successful, would require estimated
capital costs of not less than $100 million, and would expand the current mainline capacity of 1.1 million Dth
per day to at least 1.25 million Dth per day. Implementation of our two proposed expansion projects may
require additional compression at Station 100 in Coden, Alabama, and new compression facilities at Station
200 in Florida. No significant increase in operatlons personnel is expected as a result of our two proposed
expanswn prolects

Exploration & Production

Our Exploration & Production segment, which is comprised of several wholly owned and partially owned
subsidiaries, including Williams Production Company LLC and Williams Production RMT Company
(RMT), produces, develops, and manages natural gas reserves primarily located in the Rocky Mountain
(primarily New Mexico, Wyoming and Colorado) and Mid-Continent (Oklahoma and Texas) regions of the
United States. We specialize in natural gas production from tight-sands formations and coal bed methane
reserves in the Piceance, San Juan, Powder River, Arkoma, Green River and Fort Worth basins. Over
99 percent of Exploration & Production’s domestic reserves are natural gas. Our Exploration. & Production
segment also ‘has international oil and gas interests, which include a 69 percent equity interest in Apco
Argentina, Inc. (Apco Argentina), an oil and gas exploration and production company with operations in
Argentina, and a 10 percent interest in the La Concepcion area located in western Venezuela.
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“Exploration & Production’s primary strategy is to utilize its expertise in the development of tight-sands
and coal bed methane reserves. Exploration & Production’s current proved undeveloped and probable reserves
provide us with strong capital investment opportunities for several years into the futuré. Exploration &
Production’s goal is to drill its existing proved undeveloped reserves, which comprise over 51 percent of proved
reserves.and to drill in areas of probable reserves. In addition, Exploration & Production provides a significant
amount of equity production that is gathered and/or processed by our Midstream facilities in the San Juan
basin.

Information for our Exploratron & Production segment relates only to domestlc activity unless otherwise
noted. We use the terms “gross” to refer to all wells or acreage in which we have at least a partlal workmg
interest and “net” to refer to our ownership represented by that working interest.

Oil and gas properties
Rocky Mountain properties

The Plceance basin is located in northwestern Colorado where we prlmarlly target tight sands reserves,
and is our largest area of concentrated development comprising approximately 64 percent of our proved
reserves at December 31, 2005. This area has approximately 1,400 undrilled proved locations in inventory.
Within this basin, we are also the owner and operator of a natural gas gathering system. In 2005, we drilled
320 gross wells and produced a net of .approximately, 116 Bcefe of natural gas from the Piceance basin. Our
estimated proved reserves in the Piceance basin at year-end 2005 were 2,155 Befe. In March 2005 we entered
into a contract with Helmerich & Payne (NYSE HP) for the operatlon -of 10 new FlexR1g® drilling rlgs each
for a-term of three years.

The San Juan basin is located in northwest New Mex1co and southwest Colorado. In 2005, we
participated in the drilling. of 189 gross wells, of which we operate 52, and produced a net of approx1mately
55 Befe from the San Juan basin. Our estimated proveéd reserves in the San Juan basin at year-end 2005 were
663 Bcfe.

Located in northeast Wyoming, the Powder River basin includes large areas with multiple coal seam
potential, targeting thick coal bed methane formations at shallow depths. We operate approximately
2,780 wells in the basin and have an interest in approximately 2,504 additional wells. We have a significant
inventory of undrilled locations, providing long-term drilling’ opportunities. In 2005, we. participated in the
drilling of 960 gross wells from this basin, of which we operate 400, and produced a net of -approximately
42 Befe of natural gas. Our estimated proved reserves-in the Powder Rlver basm at year-end 2005 were
346 Bcfe :

Mzd-Contment propemes

),

In 2005, we drilled 75 gross wells, of which we operate 49, in the southeastem Oklahoma portion of the
Arkoma basin and the Barnett Shale in the Fort Worth basin of Texas. We produced a net of approximately
7 Bcfe of natural gas in 2005 and our estimated proved reserves in the Arkoma and Fort Worth basins at year-
end 2005 were 147 Bcfe.

:Gas reserves and wells -

The following table summarizes our natural gas reserves as of December 31 (using pnces at December 31
held constant) for the year indicated:

4

2005 2004 2003

) : (Bcfe) )
Proved developed natural gas reserves ........... .ot 1,643 1,348 1,165
Proved undeveloped natural gas reserves .......:.......... I 1,739 1,638 1,538
Total proved natural gas reserves . .. R e e L 3,38‘2- 2,986 2,703




The following table summarizes our proved natural gas reserves by basin as of December 31, 2005: -

Percentage of

Basin - ‘ ' ) . - Proved Reserves
Picéahce R IR 64%
SanJuan.............. S e _ -20%
Powder River ........... e e 10%
Other . o e 6%
100%

No major discovery or other favorable or adverse event has caused a significant change in estimated gas
reserves since year-end 2005. We have not filed on a recurring basis estimates of our total proved net oil and
gas reserves with any U.S. regulatory authority or agency other than the Department of Energy (DOE) and
the SEC. The estimates furnished to the DOE have been consistent with those furnished to the SEC, although
Exploration & Production has not yet filed any information with respect to its estimated total reserves at
December 31, 2005, with the DOE. Certain estimates filed with the DOE may not necessarily be directly
comparable due to special DOE reporting requirements, such as the requirement to report gross operated
reserves only. The underlying estimated reserves for the DOE did not differ by more than five percent from the
underlying estimated reserves. utilized in preparing the estimated reserves reported to the SEC.

~ Approximately 97 percent of our year-end 2005 United States proved reserves estimates were audited in
each separate basin by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (NSAI). When compared on a well-by-well
basis, some of our estimates are greater and some are less than the estimates of NSAI. However, in the
opinion of NSAI the estimates of our proved reserves are in the aggfegate reasonable by basin and have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted petroleum engineering .and evaluation principles. These
principles are set forth in the Standards Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserve
Information promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers. NSAI is satisfied with our methods and
procedures in preparing the December 31, 2005 reserve estimates and saw nothing of an unusual nature that
would cause NSAI to take exception with the estimates, in the aggregate, as prepared by us. Reserves
estimates related to properties underlying the Williams Coal Seam Gas Royalty Trust which comprise another
approximately two percent of our total U.S. proved reserves were prepared by Miller and Lents, LTD.

The following table summarizes our leased acreage as of December 31, 2005:
Gross ‘Acres Net Acres

Developed . ..ottt L. 722,490 370,492
Undeveloped . ....... FE A 1,233,507 641,973

At December 31, 2005, we owned interests in 11,339 gfoss producing wells (5,199 net) on our leasehold
lands.
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Operating statistics

We focus on lower-risk development drilling. Our drilling success rate was 99 percent in 2005, 2004 and
2003. The following tables summarize domestic drilling activity by number and type of well for the periods
indicated: \

Number‘ of Wells ) - : ) Gross Wells Net Wells
Development: S
Drilled
2005 e e . 1,627 867
2004 ... J S M e W 1,395 710
2003 ... e TR e 900 419
Successful , ‘ C .
2005 L 1,615 .- .859
2004 ... S i ool 1384 T 1706
2003 . RO [RTRRRRRY R L. 891 414

Substantially all our natural gas production is currently being sold to Power at prevailing market prices.
Because we currently have a low-risk drilling program in proven basins, the main component of risk that we
manage is price risk. Exploration & Production natural gas hedges for 2006 consist of derivative contracts with
Power that hedge 299 BBtud in fixed price hedges (whole year) and approximately 115 BBtud in NYMEX
and regional collars for January through March for projected 2006 domestic natural gas prodiiction. Power
then enters into offsetting derivative contracts with unrelated third parties. Our natural gas production hedges
in 2005 consisted of 286 BBtud in fixed price hedges, 50 BBtud in NYMEX collars and an additional
50 BBtud in regional collars for the fourth quarter only. Hedging decisions are made considering the overall
Williams commodity risk exposure and are not executed independently by Exploration & Production; there are
gas purchase hedging contracts executed on behalf of .other Williams entities which taken as a net position
may counteract Exploration & Production gas sales hedging derivatives.

The following table summarizes our sales and cost information for the year indicated: :

2005 - 2004 2003
Total net production sold (in Befe) ............ e e 2235 1894 182.1
Averége production costs including production taxes per thousand
cubic feet of gas equivalent. (Mcfe) produced.................. $ 92 § 88 § .76
Average sales price per Mefe ..o $641 $ 448 $ 387
Realized impact of hedging contracts (Loss) .................... $(l.61) $(1.32) $ (.31

Acquisitions & Divestitures

Exploration & Production acquired an acreage position in the Forth Worth basin in north-central Texas,
that includes 26.9 Bef of proved reserves as of year end 2005. Our entry into this basin allows us to own an
operated position that has potential for significant growth. It increases our diversification into the Mid-
continent region and allows us to use our horizontal drilling expertise to develop wells in the Barnett Shale
formation.

~ We sold certain non-core assets in the Wyoming Powder River basin that include approximately 9.6 Bef
of proved reserves. These assets are outside of our main area of development in the basin and are operated by
third parties. '

Other information

In 1993, Exploration & Production conveyed a net profits interest in certain of its properties to the
Williams Coal Seam Gas Royalty Trust. Substantially all of the production attributable to the properties
‘conveyed to the trust was from the Fruitland coal formation and constituted coal seam gas. We subsequently
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sold trust units to the public in an underwritten public offering and retained 3,568,791 trust units then
representing 36.8 percent of outstanding trust units, We have continued to sell trust units on the open market
and as of March 1, 2006, we own 789,291 trust units.

International exploration and production interests

We also have investments in international oil and gas interests, principally through our approximately
69 percent interest in Apco Argentina. If combined with our domestic proved reserves, our international
interests would make up 6.1 percent of our total proved reserves.

Midstream

Our Midstream segment, one of the nation’s largest natural gas gatherers and processors, has primary
service areas concentrated in the major producing basins of San Juan, Wyoming, the Gulf of Mexico,
Venezuela and western Canada. Our primary businesses — natural gas gathering, treating, and processing:
natural gas liquids (NGL) fractionation, storage and transportation; and oil transportation — fall within the
middle of the process of taking natural gas and crude oil from the wellhead to the consumer. NGLs, ethylene
and propylene are extracted/produced at our plants. These products are used primarily for the manufacture of
plastics, home heating and refinery feedstock.

Although most of our gas services are performed for a volumetric-based fee, a portion of our gas
processing contracts are commodity-based and include two distinct types of commodity exposure. The first
type includes “Keep Whole” processing contracts whereby we own the NGLs extracted and replace the lost
heating value with natural gas. Under these contracts, we are exposed to the spread between NGLs and
natural gas prices. The second type consists of “Percent of Liquids™ contracts whereby we receive a portion of
the extracted liquids with no exposure to the price of natural gas. Under these contracts, we are only exposed
to NGL price movements.

Our Canadian and Gulf Liquids olefin facilities have an exposure similar to our “Keep Whole” contracts.
We are exposed to the spread between the price for natural gas and the products we produce. In the Gulf
Coast, our feedstock for the ethane cracker is ethane and propane; as a result, we are exposed to the price
spread between ethane and propane and ethylene and propylene.

Key variables for our business will continue to be:

« revenue growth associated with additional infrastructure either completed or currently under
construction; : . .

« disciplined growth in our core service areas;

» prices impacting our commodity-based processing and olefin activities.

Domestic gathering and processing

Geographically, our Midstream natural gas assets are positioned to maximize commercial and operational
synergies with our other assets. For example, most of our offshore gathering and processing assets attach and
process or condition natural gas supplies delivered to the Transco pipeline. Also, our gathering and processing
facilities in the San Juan basin handle about 80 percent of our Exploration & Production group’s wellhead
production in this basin. Several of our western gathering systems serve as critical sources of supply for
Northwest Pipeline customers.

We own and/or operate domestic gas gathering and processing assets primarily within the western states
of Wyoming, Colorado and New Mexico, and the onshore and offshore shelf and deepwater areas in and
around the Gulf Coast states of Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and Alabama. These assets consist of
approximately 8,100 miles of gathering pipelines, nine processing plants (one partially owned) and six natural
gas treating plants with a combined daily inlet capacity in excess of 5.8 billion cubic feet per day. In addition
to these natural gas assets, we own and operate three crude oil pipelines totaling approximately 270 miles with
a capacity of more than 300,000 barrels per day. This includes our Mountaineer crude oil pipeline in the
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deepwater Guif of Mexico that serves the Dominion Exploration & Production- operated Devils Tower field.
See Gathering and processing —deepwater projects below A

Included in the natural gas assets listed above are the assets of Discovery Producer Services LLC and its
subsidiary Discovery Gas Transmission Services LLC (Discovery). We own a partial interest in Discovery and
operate its facilities. Discovery’s assets include a cryogenic natural gas processing plant near Larose,
Louisiana, a natural gas liquids fractionator plant near "Paradis, Louxslana and an offshore natural gas
gathering and transportation system.

Effective June 1, 2004, and due in part to our response to FERC Order 2004, management, operations
and decision-making control of certain regulated gathering assets in the Midstream segment were transferred
to the Gas Pipeline segment. These assets are owned by Transco, but prior to this change were commercially
and physically operated by Midstream. We also requested and were granted a partlal waiver allowing us to
continue to manage and operate the Discovery Gas Transmission and Black Marlin assets. In order to comply
with the remaining provisions of the FERC order, we determined it was necessary to transfer the management
of our equity investment in the Aux Sable processing plant to Power. This transfer was effective September 21,
2004. o ' ’

Gulf Coast petrochemical and olefins

We owh'a 5/12 interest in and are the operator for an ethane cracker at Geismar, Louisiana, with a total
production capacity of 1.3 billion pounds per year of ethylene. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we closed on
the sale of our interest in an associated ethane/ethylene storage and transportation complex located in
Choctaw, Louisiana. We continue to own a ethane pipeline system in Louisiana. .

Our Gulf Liquids New River LLC (Gulf Liquids) business consisted of two refinery off-gas processing
facilities, an olefins fractionator and propylene splitter and connecting pipeline systems in Louisiana. During
the third quarter of 2005, we completed the sale of the olefins fractionator and the related pipeline system. We
continue-to own and operate the propylene splitter and its related pipeline system.

Venezuela

-Our Venezuelan investments involve gas. compression and gas processing and natural gas liquids
fractionation operations. We own controlling interests in three gas compressor facilities which provide roughly
65 percent of the gas injections in eastern Venezuela. These facilities help stabilize the reservoir and enhance
the recovery of crude oil by re-injecting natural gas at high pressures. We also own a 49.25 percent interest in
two 400 MMecf/d natural gas liquids extraction plants, a 50,000 barrels per day natural gas liguids
fractionation plant and associated storage and refrigeration facilities.

Canada

Our Canadian ,opérations include -an olefin liquids extraction plant located near Ft, McMurray, Alberta
and an olefin fractionation facility near Edmonton, Alberta. These facilities extract olefinic liquids from the
off-gas produced from oil sands bitumen upgrading and then fractionate, treat, store and termmal the propane,
propylene, butane and condensate recovered from this process. We continue to be the only olefins fractionator
in Western Canada and the only treater/processor of oil sands off-gas. These operations extract valuable’
petrochemical feedstocks from tar sands refinery off-gas streams allowing our customers to burn -cleaner
natural gas streams and reduce overall air emissions. The extraction plant has processing capacity in excess of
100 MMcf/d with the ability to recover in excess of 15 Mbbls/d of NGL products.

We sold our three 'straddie plants in western Canada to Inter Pipeline Fund of Calgary on July 28, 2004.
The sale included our 100 percent ownership interest in the Cochrane and Empress II plants, :and our
50 percent interest in the Empress V facility. : :
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Other

We own interests in and/or operate NGL fractionation and storage assets. These assets include two
partially owned NGL fractionation facilities near McPherson, Kansas and Baton Rouge, Louisiana that have a
combined capacity in excess of 167,000 barrels per day We also own approximately 20 million barrels of NGL
storage capacity in central Kansas. ,

Williams Partners L.P.

Williams Partners L.P. (Williams Partners) was formed to engage in the business of gathering,
transporting and processing natural gas and fractionating and storing NGLs. We own approximately
60 percent of Williams Partners. Williams Partners provides us with an acquisition currency that is expected to
enable growth of our midstream business. Williams Partners also creates a vehicle to monetize our qualifying
assets through sales. Such sales, which are subject to approval by both our and Williams Partners’ general
partner’s board of directors, allow us to retain control of the assets through our ownership interest in Williams
Partners.

Williams Partners owns a 40 percent equity investment in the Discovery gathering, transportation,
processing and NGL fractionation system; the Carbonate Trend sour gas gathering pipeline; three integrated
NGL storage facilities near Conway, Kansas and a 50 percent interest in an NGL fractionator near Conway,
Kansas.

Expansion projects
Gathering and processing

"In the first quarter of 2004, we began processing additional gas volumes at our Opal processing plant
following an expansion completed by Willbros Mt. West, Inc., a business unit of Willbros Group, Inc. The
new volumes are being produced by affiliates of Shell Exploration & Production Company in southwestern
Wyoming’s Pinedale Anticline and other area producers. This expansion involved the construction of a fourth
cryogenic processing train at our existing gas plant in Opal, Wyoming. This fourth train boosted Opal’s overall -
processing capacity from 750 MMcf/d to more than 1.1 billion cubic feet per day, with the ability to recover in
excess of 50 Mbbls/d of NGL products. Originally, this fourth train was owned by Willbros Mt. West, Inc.
and revenues from the processing were shared with Willbros. We purchased this plant from Wlllbros in
January 2006, and now operate only for our interests.

From the Opal plant, gas can be delivered to markets throughout the West Coast and in the Rockies via
connections to three interstate pipelines — Colorado Interstate Pipeline, Kern River Pipeline and our own
Northwest Pipeline.

Gathering and processing — deepwater projects

The deepwater Gulf continues to be an attractive growth area for our Midstream business. Investments
like our Alpine pipeline and Devils Tower production facilities continue to increase our fee-based business and
our scale in the Gulf.

Our floating production system and associated pipelines, Devils Tower, became operational on May 5,
2004. Initially built to serve Dominion Exploration & Production’s Devils Tower field, the floating production
system is located in Mississippi Canyon Block 773, approximately 150 miles south-southwest of Mobile,
Alabama. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the platform’s service expanded to include the Triton and
Goldfinger fields in addition to the Devils Tower field. Located in 5,610 feet of water, it is the world’s deepest
dry tree spar. The platform, which is operated by Dominion on our behalf, is capable of producing 60 MMcf/d
of natural gas and 128 Mbbls/d of oil. .

The Devils Tower project includes gas and oil pipelines. The 102-mile Canyon Chief gas pipeline consists
of 18-inch diameter pipe. The 117-mile Mountaineer oil pipeline is a combination of 18- and 20-inch diameter
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pipe. The gas is delivered into Transco’s pipeline, and processed at our Mobile Bay plant to recover the NGLs.
The oil is transported to ChevronTexaco’s Empire Terminal in Plaguemines Parish, Louisiana.

Our 18-inch oil pipeline, Alpine, which became operational on December 14, 2003 is averaging
approximately 17.6 Mbbls/d for the fourth quarter of 2005. The pipeline extends 96 miles from Garden Banks
Block 668 in the central Gulf of Mexico to our shallow-water platform at Galveston Area Block A244. From
this platform, the oil is delivered onshore through ExxonMobil’s Hoover Offshore Oil Pipeline System under a
joint tariff agreement. This production is coming from the Gunnison field, which is located in 3,150 feet of
water and operated by Kerr-McGee Oil & Gas Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kerr-McGee
Corporation.

Since 1997, we have invested almost $1 billion in new midstream assets in the Gulf of Mexico. These
facilities provide both onshore and offshore services through pipelines, platforms and processing plants. The
new facilities could also attract incremental gas volumes to Transco’s pipeline system in the southeastern
United States.

Customers and operations

Our domestic gas gathering and processing customers are generally natural gas producers who have
proved and/or producing natural gas fields in the areas surrounding our infrastructure. During 2005, these
operations gathered and processed gas for approximately 200 gas gathering customers and 130 processing
~customers. Our top three gathering and processing customers accounted for about 34 percent of our domestic
_ gathering revenue and processing gross margin. Our gathering and processing agreements are generally long-
term agreements.

In addition to our gathering and processing operations, we also market NGLs and petrochemical products
to a wide range of users in the energy and petrochemical industries. We provide these products to third parties
from the production at our domestic facilities. The majority of domestic sales are based on supply contracts of
less than one year in duration. The production from our Canadian facilities is marketed in Canada and in the

" United States.

Our Venezuelan assets were constructed and-are currently operated for the exclusive benefit of PDVSA.
The significant contracts have a remaining term between 12 and 16 years and our revenues are based on a
- combination of fixed capital payments, throughput volumes, and, in the case of one of the gas compression
facilities, a minimum throughput guarantee. The political situation in' Venezuela has enjoyed relative calm
since the defeat of the 2004 referendum to remove President Hugo Chavez from office. However, President
Chavez has confirmed his public criticism of U.S. policy and has implemented unilateral changes to existing
energy related cdntracts, indicating that a level of political risk still remains.

Financial & operating statistics

The following table summarizes our significant operating statistics for Midstream ( see Note 1 of our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements): '
' 2005 2004 2003

Volumes(1): ‘

Domestic Gathering (trillion British Thermal Units)(2).............. 1,253 1,252 1,272
Domestic Natural Gas Liquid Production (Mbbls/d)(3) ............. 144 155 129
Crude Oil Gathering (Mbbls/d)(3)........... 88 83 68

(1) Excludes volumes associated. with partially owned assets that are not consolidated for financial reporting
_purposes. . :

(2) Prior periods for Domestic Gathering have been restated to reflect the transfer of the jurisdictional assets
to Transco. : :

(3) Annual Average Mbbls/d




Other

At December 31 2003, we owned approxrmately 32 percent of  Longhorn, which owns a refined
petroleum products pipeline from Houston, Texas to El Paso, Texas. During February 2004, we participated in
a recapitalization plan completed by Longhorn, following which our subsidiaries, Longhorn Enterprises of
Texas, In¢. (LETI) and Williams Petroleum Services, LLC (WPS), together own, directly or indirectly,
approximately 94.7 percent of the Class B Interests in Longhorn Pipeline Investors, LLC (Pipeline Investors)
and approximately 21.3 percent of the Common Interests 'therein. Pipeline Investors  indirectly owns
Longhorn. The recapitalization provided the funds necessary to complete final construction and start-up of the
pipeline. As part of the recapitalization, LETI sold a portion of its limited ‘partner interests in Longhorn for
$11.4 million, and ‘LETI and WPS sold a portion of the debt owed to them individually by Longhorn for
approximately $58 million. In addition, in-exchange for the Common Interests described above, LETI
contributed. the remaining balance of its. limited partnership interests, and WPS contributed all of its general
partnership interests in the general partner of Longhorn. LETI and WPS also exchanged the remaining debt
owed by Longhorn for the Class B Interests described above. The Class B Interests are preferred interests but
subordinate to the new investors’ preferred interests, and the Common Interests are subordinate to both.

During the first quarter of 2005, Longhorn became fully operational as deliveries commenced through
both the Odessa and El Paso terminals. However, the pipeline’s throughput fell significantly short of
management expectations. The primary driver behind this volume shortfall was the narrowing of the refined
product pricing differentials between the Gulf Coast and El Paso markets. During the second quarter of 2005,
Longhorn management indicated the shortfall was likely to continue and that the original business model was
no longer feasible. A financial advisor was engaged to develop alternative economlc options for the pipeline.
The three primary alternatives being considered were:

« sale of the pipeline;
« conversion to alternative service; - '
. expansmn to the Phoemx/ Tucson markets

As a result of the other-than-temporary decline in fair value 1dent1ﬁed in the second quarter, we impaired
the Common Interests.by $16.2 million and the Class B shares by $32.7 million. After these adjustments, our
book value of our investment in Longhorn (as of June 30, 2005) totaled $51.6 m11110n comprised of
$25.0 million of Common Interests and $26.6 million of Class B shares.

Durmg the third quarter of 2005, we provided $10 mllhon of a $50 million fully collateralized bndge loan
to fund operations of Longhorn until an economically feasible operational alternative was developed. In the
fourth quarter of 2005, management of Longhorn concluded that its preferred strategy was the sale of the
Longhorn assets. Accordingly, they directed the financial advisor to solicit offers from several entities. The-
financial advisor is currently working to facilitate a transaction by the end of the second quarter 2006. After
reviewing the terms and conditions of the bids, our management has determined a full impairment of our
investment in the Class B and Common Interests is appropriate. This de¢ision resulted in a December 31,
2005 write-down of the remaining $38.1 million in book value which had been further reduced by additional
equity losses during the third and fourth quarters. However, we expect to receive full payment on the
$10 million bridge loan from the proceeds of the sale. ‘ ‘ :

Additional business segment. information

Our ongoing business segments are accounted for as continuing operatlons in the accompanying financial
statements and notes to ﬁnancxal statements included in Part IL.

Operations related to certain assets in “Discontinued Operations” sold in 2003 and 2004 have been
reclassified from their traditional business segment to “Discontinued Operations” in the accompanying
financial statements, and notes to financial statements included in Part II.

Qur corporate parent company performs certain management, legal, financial, tax, consultatlve adminis-
trative and other services for our subsidiaries:
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Our principal sources of cash are from external financings, dividends and advances from our subsidiaries,
investments, payments by subsidiaries for services rendered, interest payments from subsidiaries on cash
advances and net proceeds from asset sales. The amount of drvrdends available to us from subsidiaries largely
depends upon each subsidiary’s carnings’ and operating capital requirements. The terms of many of our
subsidiaries’ borrowing arrangements limit the transfer of funds to our corporate parent.

We believe that we have adequate sources and avarlabrhty of raw materials and commodities for existing
and anticipated business needs. In support of our energy commodity activities, primarily conducted through
Power, we are required by counterparties to provide various forms of credit support such as margin, adequate
assurance amounts and pre-payments for gas supplies. Our pipeline systems-are all regulated in various ways
resulting in the financial return on the investments made in the systems being limited to standards permitted
by the regulatory agencies. Each of the pipeline systems has ongoing capital requirements for efficiency and
mandatory improvements, with expansion opportunities also necessitating periodic capital outlays.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Power. Our Power busmess is subject to a variety of laws and regulatrons at the Iocal state and federal
levels, includmg regulation by the FERC and the Commodity Futures Trading Commission. In addition,
electricity and natural gas markets in California and elsewhere continue to be subject to numerous and wide-
ranging federal and state regulatory proceedmgs and 1nvest1gat10ns We are also subject to various federal and
state actions and investigations regarding, among other things, market structure, behavior of market
participants, market prices, and reporting to trade pubhca‘nons, We may be liable for refunds and other
damages and penalties as a result of ongoing actions and investigations. The outcome of these matters could
affect our creditworthiness and ability to perform contractual obligations as well as other market participants’
creditworthiness and ability to perform contractual obligations to us.

Gas Pipelines. Gas Pipeline’s interstate transmission and storage activities are subject to regulation by
the FERC under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 (NGA) and under the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and, as
such, its rates and charges for the transportation of natural gas in interstate commerce, its accounting, and the
extension, enlargement or abandonment of its jurisdictional facilities, among other things, are subject to
regulation. Each gas pipeline company holds certificates of public convenience and necessity issued by the
FERC authorizing ownership and operation of all pipelines, facilities and properties for which certificates are
required under the NGA. Each gas pipeline company is also subject to.the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of
1968, as amended, which regulates safety requirements in the design, construction, operation and maintenance
of interstate natural gas transmission facilities. FERC Order 2004 “Standards of Conduct for Transmission
Providers” governs how our interstate pipelines communicate and do business with their energy affiliates,
Power and Exploration & Production. One of the cornerstones of Order 2004 is that interstate pipelines will

"not operate their pipeline systems to preferentially benefit their energy affiliates.

Each. of our interstate natural gas pipeline companies establishes its rates primarily through the FERC’s
ratemaking process. Key determinants in the ratemaking process are:

*« costs of providing service, including deprematron expense;

« allowed rate of return, including the equity component.of the capital structure and related income
taxes;

» volume throughput assumptions.

The allowed rate of return is determined in each rate case. Rate design and the allocation of costs between the
demand and commodity rates also impact proﬁtablhty ‘As a result of these proceedlngs certain revenues
previously collected may be subject to refund.

‘Exploration & Production. Our Exploration & Production business is subject to various federal, state
and local laws and regulations on taxation, the development, production and marketing of oil and gas, and
environmental and safety matters. Many laws and regulations require drilling permits and govern the spacing
of wells, rates of production, water discharge, prevention of waste and other matters. Such laws and regulations
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have increased the costs of planning, designing, drilling, installing, operating and abandoning our oil and gas
-wells and other facilities. In addition, these laws and regulations, and any others that are passed by the

jurisdictions where we have production, could limit the total number of wells drllled or the allowable
~ production from successful wells, Wthh could limit our reserves.

Mzdstream. For our Mldstream segment, onshore gathering is subject to regulation by states in which
we operate and offshore gathering is subject to the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act (OCSLA). Of the.
states where Midstream operates, currently only Kansas and Texas actively regulate gathering activities.
Those states regulate gathering primarily through complaint mechanisms under which the state commission
may resolve disputes involving an individual gathering arrangement. Although gathering facilities located
offshore are not subject to the NGA, some controversy exists as to how the FERC should determine whether
offshore facilities function as gathering. These issues are currently before the FERC. Most gathering facilities
offshore are subject to the OCSLA, which provides in part that outer continental shelf pipelines “must provide
open and nondiscriminatory access to both owner and non-owner shippers.”

Our remaining Midstream Canad1an assets are regulated by the Alberta Energy & Utlhtles Board
(AEUB) and Alberta Environment. The regulatory system for the Alberta oil and gas industry incorporates a
large measure of self-regulation, providing that licensed operators are held responsible for ensuring that their
operations are conducted in accordance with all provincial regulatory requirements. For situations in which
non-compliance with the applicable regulations.is at issue, the AEUB and Alberta Environment have
implemented an enforcement process with escalating consequences. '

See Note 15 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on our regulatory
matters. ‘

EN VIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our generation facilities, natural gas pipelines, and exploration and production operations are subject to
federal environmental laws and regulations as well as the state and tribal laws and regulations adopted by the
jurisdictions in which we operate. We could incur liability to governments or third parties for any unlawful
discharge of oil, gas or other pollutants into the air, soil, or water, as well as liability for clean up costs.
Materials could be released into the environment in several ways including, but not limited to:

s from a well or drilling equipment at a drill site;.
+ leakage from gathering systems, pipelines., transportation facilities and storage tanks;
+ damage to oil and gas wells resulting from accidents during normal operations;

| + blowouts, cratering and explosmns

Because the requirements imposed by environmental laws and regulations are frequently changed, we
cannot assure you that laws and regulations enacted in the future, including changes to existing laws and
regulations, will not adversely affect our business. In addition, because we acquire properties that have been
operated in the past by others, we may be liable for environmental damage caused by such former operators.

We believe compliance with environmental laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect on
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. However, environmental laws and regulations could
affect our business in various ways from time to time, including incurring capital and maintenance
expenditures, imposing limitations on generation facility availability, fines and penalties, and creating the need
to seek relief from the FERC for rate increases to recover the costs of certain capital expenditures and
operation and maintenance expenses (which we believe would be granted).

For a discussion -of specific environmental issues, see “Environmental” under Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and “Environmental Matters” in Note 15 of
our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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COMPETITION

Power. In our Power segment, we compete drrectly with large mdependent energy marketers marketlng
affiliates of regulated pipelines and utilities and natural gas producers We also compete with both brokerage
houses and other energy-based companies offering similar services. Since 2002, we have fewer competltors due
to the exit of independent energy marketers from the marketplace and the exit of utilities from financial
merchant activities. We .anticipate more. competition in the future from brokerage houses, which are

increasing their tradmg activity.. . . .

Gas Pipeline. Our Gas Pipeline segment faces 1ncreased competition as a result of various actlons taken
by the FERC and several states in which we operate to strengthen market forces in the natural gas pipeline
1ndustry Tn a number of key markets, interstate pipelines are now facmg competitive pressures from other
major plpehne systems enabling local distribution companies and end users to choose a supplier or switch
suppliers based on the short-term price of gas and the cost of transportat1on We expect competmon for
natural gas transportation to contmue to intensify in future years due to increased customer access to other
pipelines, rates, competitiveness: among pipelines, customers’ desire to have more than one transporter, shorter
contract terms, regulatory developments, and development of LNG facilities particularly in our market areas.
Future utilization of pipeline capacity will depend on competition from other pipelines and LNG facilities, use
of alternative fuels the general level of natural gas demand, and weather condjtions.

Supplrers of natural gas are able to compete for any'gas markeéts capable of being served by plpelmes
using nondiscriminatory transportation services provided by the pipeline companies. ‘As the regulated
environment -has matured, many pipeline companies have -faced reduced levels of .subscribed capacity as
contractual terms expire and customers opt to reduce firm capacity under contract in favor of alternative
sources of transmission and related services. This situation, known in the industry as “capacity turnback,” is
forcing the pipeline companies to evaluate the consequences of major demand reductions in traditional long-
term contracts. It could also result in significant shifts in system utilization, and possible realignment of cost
structure for remaining customers since all interstate natural gas pipeline companies continue to be authorized
to charge maximum rates approved by the FERC on a cdst of service basis. Gas Pipeline doés not anticipate
any srgmﬁcant financial 1mpact from “capacity turnback.” We anticipate that we will be able to remarket most
future capacity subject to future capaCIty turnback, although competltron may cause some of the remarketed
capacity to be sold at lower rates or for shorter terms

Exploratzon & Produczzon Our Exploratron & Productron segment competes with other oil and gas
concerns, including major and independent oil and gas companies in the- development, production and
marketing of natural gas. We compete in areas such as acquisition of oil and gas properties and obtaining
necessary equlpment supplies and services. We also compete in recruiting and retarmng skilled emp oyees.

Midstream. In our Midstream segment we face regional competition with varymg cornpetmve factors
in each basin. Our gathering and processing business competes with other midstream companies, interstate
and intrastate pipelines, master limited partnerships (MLP), producers and independent gatherers and
processors. We primarily compete with five to ten companies across all basins in which we provide services.
Numerous factors impact any given customer’s choice of a gathering or processing services provider, including
rate, location, term, timeliness of well connections, pressure obligations and the' willingness of the provider to
process for either a fee or for liquids taken in-kind."We also’ compete in recruiting and retaining skilled
employees. In 2005 we formed Williams Partners to help compete against other master limited partnerships
for midstream prOJects By virtue of the master limited partnership structure, Williams Partners provides us
with an alternative and low- cost source of caprtal We expect the alternative, low-cost capltal will allow it.to
compete with other MLPs when pursuing acqursrtron opportunities of gathering and processing assets.

EMPLOYEES

At February 28, 2006, we had approximately 3,913 full-time employees including 856 at the corporate
level, 116 at Power, 1,574 at Gas Pipeline, 502 at Exploration & Production, and 865 at Midstream. None of
our employees are represented by unions or covered by collective bargaining agreements. ' :
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

See Note 18 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for amounts of revenues during the last
three fiscal years from external customers attributable to the United States and all foreign countries. Also see
Note 18 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information relating to long-lived assets during
the last two fiscal years, other than financial instruments, long-term customer relationships of a financial
institution, mortgage and other servicing rights and deferred pohcy acqu151t10n costs, located in the United
States and all forelgn countries.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS/RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
FOR PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARBOR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Certain matters contained in this report, excluding historical information, include forward-looking
statements — statements that discuss our expected future results based on current and pending business
operations. We make these forward-looking statements in reliance on the safe harbor protectlons provided
‘under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,

All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this report which address activities,
events or developments that we expect, believe or anticipate will exist or may occur in the future, are forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by various forms of words such as
“anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” .“may,” “should,” “continues,” “estimates,” “expects,” “forecasts,”

“might,” “planned,” “potential,” “projects,” “scheduled” or similar expressions. These forward-looking
statements include, among others, statements regarding:

. amounts and nature of future capital expenditures;

« expansion and growth of our business and operations;
* business strategy;

« estimates of proved gas and oil reserves;

 reserve potential;

. developmevnt drilling po'fential;

+ cash flow from operations;

» seasonality of certain business segments;

» power and gas prices and demand.

Forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions, uncertainties and risks that could cause
future events or results to be materially different from those stated or implied in this document.

Some of these risks are described in the “Risk Factors” section of this report and one should keep in mind
these risk factors when considering forward-looking statements. Given the uncertainties and risk factors that
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement, we
caution investors not to unduly rely on our forward-looking statements. We disclaim any obligation to update
the above list or to announce publicly the result of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements to
reflect future events or developments. Further, the information-about our intentions contained or incorporated
into this report represents our intention as of the date of this report and is based on, among other things, the
existing regulatory environment, industry conditions, market conditions and prices, the economy in general
and our assumptions as of such date. We may change our intentions, at any time and without notice, based
upon any changes in such factors, in our assumptions, or otherwise. '
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition to the other information in this
Report. Each of these factors could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition as
well as adversely affect the value of an investment in our secuntles

Risks Inherent to our Industry and Business

The long-term financial condition of our natural gas transmission and midstream businesses is dependent
on the continued availability of natural gas supplies in the supply basins that we access, demand for those
supplies in our traditional markets, and market demand for natural gas.

The development of additional natural gas reserves requires significant capital expenditures by others for
exploration and development drilling and the installation of production, gathering, storage, transportation and
other facilities that permit natural gas to be produced and delivered to our pipeline systems. Low prices for
natural gas, regulatory limitations, or the lack of available capital for these projects could adversely affect the
development of additional reserves and production, gathermg, storage and pipeline transmission and import
and export of natural gas supplies. Additional natural gas reserves might not be developed in commercial
quantities and in sufficient amounts to fill the capacities of our gathering, transmission and processing pipeline
facilities. Additionally, in some cases, new LNG import facilities built near our markets could result in less
demand for our gathering and transmission fac111t1es

Estimating reserves and future net revenues involves uncertainties and negative revisions to reserve
estimates,. and oil and gas price declines may lead to impairmént of oil and gas assets.

Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estlmatmg underground accumulatlons of oil and gas that
cannot be measured in an exact manner. Reserves that are “proved reserves” are those estimated quantities of
crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty are recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions, but should not be considered as a guarantee of results for future drilling projects.

The process relies on interpretations of available geological, geophysical, engineering and production data.
There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting future
rates of production and timing of developmental expenditures, including many factors beyond the control of
the producer. The reserve data included in this Report represent estimates. In addition, the estimates of future
net revenues from our proved reserves and the present value of such estimates are based upon certain
assumptions about future production levels, prices and costs that may not prove to be correct over time.

Quantities of proved reserves are estimated based on economic conditions in existence during the period
of assessment. Lower oil and gas prices may have the impact of shortening the economic lives of certain fields
because .it becomes uneconomic to produce all recoverable reserves on such fields, which reduces proved
property reserve estimates.

" If negative revisions in the estimated quantities of proved reserves were to occur, it would have the effect
of increasing the rates of depreciation, depletion and amortization on the affected properties, which would
decrease earnings or'result in losses through higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense. The
revisions may also be sufficient to trigger impairment losses on certain properties which would result'in a
further non-cash charge to earnings. The revisions could also possibly affect the evaluation of Exploration &
Production’s goodwill for- impairment purposes.
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Historic performance of our explovation and production business is no guarantee of future performance.
Our success rate for drilling projects in 2005 shonld not be considered a predictor of future performance.

Performance of our exploratlon and production business is affected in part by factors beyond our control,
such as: .

« regulations and regulatory approvals;

+ availability of caprtal for drilling projects ‘which may be aﬁ'ected by other risk factors discussed in
this report;

-+ cost-effective avarlabrhty of dnllmg rigs and necessary equlprnent
. avallablhty of cost effectrve transportatlon for products

+ market risks discussed in this report.

Our drilling, production, gathering, processing and transporting activities involve numerous visks that might
result in accidents and other operating risks and costs.

Our operations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically associated with the development and
exploration for, and the productlon and transportation of 011 and gas. These operatlng risks 1nc1ude but are not
limited to: : :

+ blowouts, cratering and explosions;
« uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas or well ﬁurds
. ﬁres
.« formations with abnormal pressures;
* pollution and other environmental risks;
. natural disasters.

In addition, there are inherent in our gas gathering, processing and transporting properties a variety of
hazards and operating risks, such as leaks, explosions and mechanical problems that could cause substantial
financial losses. In addition, these risks could result in loss of human life, significant damage to property,
environmental pollution, impairment of our operations and substantial losses to us. In accordance with
customary industry practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of these risks and losses. The
location of pipelines near populated areas, including residential areas, commercial business centers and
industrial sites, could increase the level of damages resulting from these risks. Certain segments of our
pipelines run through such areas. In spite of our precautions, an event could cause considerable harm to people
or property, and could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations,
particularly if the event is not fully covered by insurance. Accidents or other operating risks could further
result in loss of service available to our customers. Such circumstances could adversely impact our ability to
meet contractual obligations and retain customers.

Costs of environmental liabilities and complying with existing and future environmental regulations could
exceed our current expectations.

Our operations are subject to extensive environmental regulation pursuant to a variety of federal,
provincial, state and municipal laws and regulations. Such laws and regulations impose, among other things,
restrictions, liabilities and obligations in connection with the generation, handling, use, storage, transportation,
treatment and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, in connection with spills, releases and emissions of
various substances into the environment, and in connection w1th the operation, maintenance, abandonment
and reclamation of our facilities.
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Compliance with environmental laws will require significant expenditures, including for clean up costs
and damages arising out of contaminated properties. The possible failure to comply with environmental laws
and regulations that might result in the imposition of fines and penalties. We are generally responsible for all
liabilities associated with the environmental condition of our facilities: and assets,- whether acquired or
developed, regardless of when the liabilities arose and whether they are known or unknown. In connection with
certain acquisitions and divestitures, we could acquire, or be required to provide indemnification against,
environmental liabilities that could expose us.to material losses, which may not be covered by insurance. In
addition, the steps we could be required to take to bring certain facilities into compliance could be
prohibitively expensive, and we might be required to shut down, divest or alter the operation of those facilities,
which might cause us to incur losses. Although we do not expect that the costs of complying with current
environmental laws will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, no
assurance can be given that the costs of complying with env1ronmental laws in the future will not have such an
effect.

We make assumptions and develop expectations about possible expenditures related to environmental
conditions based on current laws and regulations and current interpretations of those laws and regulations. If
the interpretation of laws or regulations, or the laws and regulations themselves, change, our assumptions may
change. Our regulatory rate structure and our contracts with customers might not necessarily allow us to
recover capital costs we incur to comply with the new environmental regulations. Also, we might not be able to
obtain or maintain from time to time all required environmental regulatory approvals for certain development
projects. If there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory approvals or if we fail to obtain
and comply with them, the operation of our facilities could be prevented or become subject to additional costs,
resulting in potentially material adverse consequences to our operations.

Our operating vesults for certain segments of our business might fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly
basis.

Revenues from certain segments of our business, including gas transmission and the sale of electric
power, can have seasonal characteristics. In many parts of the country, demand for power peaks during the hot
summer months, with market prices also peaking at that time. In other areas, demand for power peaks during
the winter. In addition, demand for gas and other fuels peaks during the winter. As a result, our overall
operating results in the future might fluctuate substantially on a seasonal basis. Demand for gas and other fuels
could vary significantly- from our expectations depending on the nature and location of “our facilities and
pipeline ‘systems and the terms of our power sale agreements and gas transmission arrangements relative to
demand created by unusual weather patterns. Additionally, changes in the price of natural gas could benefit
one of our business units, but disadvantage another. For example our Exploration & Production business may
beneﬁt from higher natural gas prices, and Power, which uses gas as a fuel source, may not.

Risks Related to the Current Geopolitical Situation

. Our investments and projects located outside of the United States expose us to risks related to laws of othér
countries, taxes, economic conditions; fluctuations in currvency rates, political conditions and policies of foreign
governments.” These risks might delay or veduce our realization of value from our international projects.

We currently own and might acquire and/or dispose of material energy-related investments and projects
outside the United States. The economic and political conditions in certain countries where we have interests
or in which we might explore development, acquisition or investment opportunities present risks of delays in
construction and interruption of business, as well as risks of war, expropriation, nationalization, renegotiation,
trade sanctions or nullification of existing contracts and changes in law or tax policy, that are greater than in
the United States. The uncertainty of the legal environment in certain foreign countries in which we develop
or acquire projects or make investments could make it more difficult to obtain non-recourse project or other
financing on suitable terms, could adversely affect the ability of certain customers to honor their obligations
with respect to such projects or investments and could impair our ability to enforce our nghts under
agreements relating to such projects or investments.
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Operations.in foreign countries also can present currency exchange rate and convertibility, inflation and
repatriation risk. In certain conditions under which we develop or acquire projects, or make investments,
economic and monetary conditions and other factors could affect our ability to convert our earnings
denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, risk from fluctuations in currency exchange rates can arise
when our foreign subsidiaries expend or borrow funds in one type of currency. but receive revenue in another.
In such cases, an adverse change in exchange rates can reduce our ability to meet expenses, including debt
service obligations. Foreign currency risk can also arise when the revenues received by our foreign subsidiaries
are not in U.S. dollars. In such cases, a strengthening of the U.S. dollar could reduce the amount of cash and
income we receive from these foreign subsidiaries. We have put contracts in place to mitigate our most
significant foreign currency exchange risks. We have some exposures that are not hedged which could result in
losses or volatility in our earnings.

Risks Related to Strategy and Financing
Our debt agreements impose restrictions on us that may adversely affect our ability to operate our business,

Certain of our debt agreements contain covenants that restrict or limit.among other things, our ability to
create liens, sell assets, make certain distributions, repurchase equity and incur additional debt. In addition,
our debt agreements contain, and those we enter into in the future may contain, financial covenants and other
limitations with which we will need to comply. Our ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by
many events beyond our control, and we cannot assure you that our future operating results will be sufficient to
comply with the covenants or, in the event of a default under any of our debt agreements, to remedy that
default.

Our failure to comply with the covenants in our debt agreements and other related transactional
documents could result in events of default. Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lenders could
elect to declare all amounts outstanding under a particular facility to be immediately due and payable and
terminate all commitments, if any, 1o extend further credit. An event of default or an acceleration under one
debt agreement could cause a cross-default or cross-acceleration of another debt agreement. Such a default or
acceleration could have a wider impact on our liquidity than might otherwise arise from a default or
acceleration of a single debt instrument. If an event of default occurs, or if other debt agreements cross-
default, and the lenders under the affected debt agreements accelerate the maturity of any loans or other debt
outstanding to us, we may not have sufficient liquidity to repay amounts outstanding under such debt
agreements.

Developments affecting the wholesale power and enevgy trading industry. sector have reduced market activity
and liguidity and might continue to adversely affect our results of operations.

In 2004, we announced our decision to maintain our wholesale power and energy trading business and
trading portfolio. Therefore, the legacy issues arising out of the 2000-2001 energy crisis in California, the
resulting collapse in energy merchant credit and volatility in natural gas prices, the Enron Corporation
bankruptcy filing, and investigations by governmental authorities into energy trading activities and increased
litigation related to such inquiries, could continue to affect us in the future. These market factors have led to
industry-wide downturns that have resulted in some companies being forced to exit the energy trading markets
leading to a reduction in the number of trading partners and market liquidity. '

Our lack of investment grade credit vatings increases our costs of doing business in many ways and increases
our risks from market disruptions and further credit downgrades.

Because we do not have an investment grade credit rating, our transactions in each of our businesses
require greater credit assurances, both to be given from, and received by, us to satisfy credit support

requirements. In addition, we are more vulnerable to the impact of market disruptions or a further downgrade
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of our credit rating that might further increase our cost of borrowing or further i 1mpa1r our ability to access one
or any-of the capital markets. Such dlsruptlons could include:

s further economlc downtums

+ deteriorating cap1ta1 market condltlons generally; : .

. declining market prices for electricity and natural gas; |

« terrorist attacks or threaterled attacks on our facilities or those of other energy companies;

. the overall health of the energy industry, includiﬁg‘the bankruptcy or insolvency of other compalnies.

Despite our restructuring efforts, we may not attain investment grade ratings.

Credit rating agencies perform independent analysis when assigning credit ratings. Given the significant
changes in capital markets and the energy industry over the last few years, credit rating agencies continue to
review the criteria for attaining investment grade ratings and make changes to those criteria from time to time.
Our goal is to attain investment grade ratios. However, there is no guarantee that the credit rating agencies
will assign us investment grade ratings even if we meet or-exceed their criteria for investment grade ratios.

Electricity, natural gas liquids and gas prices ave volatile and this volatility could adversely affect our
Sfinancial results, cash flows, access to capital and ability to maintain existing businesses.-

Our revenues, operating results, profitability, future rate of growth and the value of our power and gas
businesses depend primarily upon the prices we receive for natural gas, electricity and other commodities.
Prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow money or
raise addmonal capital. :

Hlstoncally, the markets for these commodmes have been volatﬂe and they are likely to continue to be
volatlle Wide fluctuations in prices might result from relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand
for these commodities, market uncertainty and other factors that are beyond our control, including:

. »worldw1de and domestic supphes of and demand for electricity, natural gas, petroleum, and related
comqu1t1es

+ turmoil in the Middle East and other producing regions;
+ terrorist attacks on production or transportaﬁon assets;
 weather conditions;
+ the level of consumer denland;
+ the price and availability of other typeé of fuels; |
"+ the availability of pipeline capacity; .'
« the price and level of foreign irliports; ‘
+ domestic and fdreign governmental regulations and taxes;
» volatility in Ihe_nanlral gas markets;
+ the overall economic environment;
+ the credit of participants in the markets where products are bought and sold.
We might not be able to successfully managé the risks associated with selling and marketing products in the
wholesale energy markets. '
Our portfolios consist of, wholesale contracts to buy and sell commodities, including contracts for

electricity, natural gas, natural gas liquids and other commodities that are settled by the delivery of the
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commodity or cash throughout the United-States. If the values of these contracts change in a direction or
manner that we do not anticipate or cannot manage, we could realize material losses from our marketing. In
the past, certain marketing and trading companies have experienced severe financial problems due.to price
volatility in the energy commodity markets. In certain instances this volatility has caused companies to be
unable to deliver energy commodities that they had guaranteed undér contract. In such event, we might incur
additional losses to-the extent of amounts, if any, already paid to, or received from, counterparties. In addition,
in our businésses, we often extend credit to our counterparties. Despite performing credit analysis prior to
extending credit, we are exposed to the risk that we might not be able to collect amounts owed to us. If the
counterparty to such a financing transaction fails to pcrform and any collateral that secures our counterparty’s
obligation is inadequate, we will lose money. :

If we are unable to perform under our energy agreements, we could be required to pay damages. These
damages generally would be based on the difference between the market price to acquire replacement energy
or energy services and the relevant contract price. Depending on price volatility in the wholesale energy
markets, such damages could be significant.

Risks Related to Regulations that Affect our Industry

Our’ gas sales, transmission, and storage operations are subject to government regulatlons and rate proceedings
that could have an adverse tmpact on the profitability of these operattons

Our interstate gas sales, transmission, and storage operations conducted through our Gas Pipelines
business are subject to the FERC’s rules and regulations in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and
the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978. The FERC’s regulatory authority extends to: :

+ transportation and sale for resale of natural gas in interstate commerce;
+ rates and charges; |
+ construction;
* acquisition, extension or abandonment of services or facilities;
» accounts and records;
. de;ﬁrgciation and amortization policies;
* operating terms and condiﬁons of service.
Regulatory actions in these areas can affect our business in many ways, including decreasing tariff rates

and revenues, decreasing volumes in our pipelines, increasing our costs and otherwise altering the profitability
of our business.

The FERC has taken certain actions to strengthen market forces in the natural gas pipeline industry that
have led to increased competition throughout the industry. In a number of key markets, interstate pipelines are
now facing competitive pressure from other major pipeline systems, enabling local distribution companies and
end users to choose a transmission provider based on considerations other than location.

Our revenues might decrease if we are unable to gain adequate, reliable and affordable access to transmission
and distribution assets due to the FERC and regional regulation of wholesale market transactions for
electricity and gas.

We depend on transmission and distribution facilities owned and operated by utilities and other energy
companies to deliver the electricity and natural gas we buy and sell in the wholesale market. If transmission is
disrupted, if capacity is inadequate, or if credit requirements or rates of such utilities or energy companies are
increased, our ability to sell and deliver products might be hindered. The FERC has issued power transmission
regulations . that require wholesale electric transmission services to be offered on an open-access, non-
discriminatory basis. Although these regulations are designed to encourage competition in wholesale market
transactions for electricity, we believe that some companies may have failed to provide fair and equal access to
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their transmission systems or have not provided sufficient transmission capacity to enable other companies to
transmit electric power. We cannot predict whether and to what extent the industry will comply with these
initiatives, or whether the regulations will fully accomplish the FERC’s objectives.

In addition, the independent system operators who oversee the transmission systems in regional power
markets, such as California, have in the past been authorized to impose, and might continue to impose,. price
limitations and other mechanisms to address volatility in the power markets. These types of price limitations
and other mechanisms might adversely impact the profitability of our wholesale power marketing and trading.
Given the extreme volatility and lack of meaningful long-term price history in many of these markets and the
imposition of price limitations by regulators, independent system operators or other, marker operators, we can
offer no assurance that we will be able to operate profitably in all wholesale power markets.

The different regional power markets in which we compete or will compete in the future have changmg
regulatory structures, which could affect our growth and performance in these regzons

Our results are likely to be affected by differences in the market and transmission regulatory structures in
various regional power markets. Problems or delays that might arise in the formation and operation of new
regional transmission organizations (RTOs) might restrict our ability to sell power produced by our generating
capacity to certain markets if there is insufficient transmission capacity otherwise available. The rules
governing the various regional power markets might also change from time to time which could affect our
costs or revenues. Because it remains unclear which companies will be participating in the various regional
power markets, or how RTOs will develop and evolve or what regions-they will cover, we are unable to assess
fully the impact that these power markets might have on our business.

Our businesses are subject to éomplex government regulations. The operation of our businesses might be
adversely affected by changes in these regulations or in their interpretation or implementation.

Existing regulations might be revised or reinterpreted, new laws and regulations might be adopted or
become applicable to us or our facilities, and future changes in laws and regulations might have a detrimental
effect on our business. Over the past few years, certain restructured energy markets have experienced supply
problems and price volatility. In some of these markets, including California, proposals have been made by
governmental agencies and other interested parties to re-regulate areas of these markets which have previously
been deregulated. Various forms of market controls and limitations including price caps and bid caps have
already been implemented and new controls and market restructuring proposals are in various stages of
development, consideration and implementation. We cannot assure you that changes in market structure and
regulation will not adversely affect our business. We cannot assure you that other proposals to re-regulate will
not be made or that legislative or other attention to the electric power restructuring process will not cause the
deregulation process to be delayed or reversed.

The outcome of pending rate cases to set the rates we can charge customers on certain of our pipelines might
_result in rates that do not provide an adequate return on the capital we have invested in those pipelines.

We anticipate that in the next twelve months we will file rate cases with the FERC to request changes to
the rates we charge on Northwest Pipeline and Transco. The outcome of those rate cases is uncertain. There is
a risk that rates set by the FERC will be lower than is necessary to provide us with an adequate return on the
capital we have invested in these assets. There is also the risk that higher rates will cause our customers to look
for alternative ways to transport their natural gas.

Legal and regulatory proceedmgs and investigations relating to the energy industry and capital markets have
adversely affected our business and many continue to do so.

Public and regulatory scrutiny of the energy 1ndustry and of the capital markets has resulted in increased
regulation being either proposed or implemented. Such scrutiny has also resulted in various 1nqu1r1es
investigations and court proceedings in which we are a named defendant.
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Such inquiries, investigations. and court proceedings are ongoirig and continue to adversely affect our
business as a whole. We might see these adverse effects continue as a result of the uncertainty of these ongoing
inquiries and proceedings, or additional inquiries and proceedings by federal or state regulatory agencies or
private plaintiffs. In addition, we cannot predict the outcome of any of these inquiries or whether these
inquiries will lead to additional legal procccdmgs against us,.civil or criminal fines or penaltles or other
regulatory actlon,‘mcludmg legislation, which might be’ materially adverse to the operation of our business and
our revenues and net income or increase our operating costs in other ways. Current legal proceedings or other
matters against us arising out of our ongoing and discontinued operations including environmental matters,
disputes over gas measurement, royalty payments, shareholder class action suits, regulatory appeals and °
similar matters might result in adversé decisions against us. The result of such adverse decisions, either
individually or in the aggregate, could be material and may not be covered fully or at all by insurance.

Risks Related to Accounting Standards

Potential changes in accounting standards might cause us to revise our financial results and disclosure in the
future, which might change the way analysts measure our business or financial performance.

Accounting irregularities discovered in the past few years in various industries have forced regulators and
legislators to take a renewed look ‘at accounting practices, financial disclosures, companies’ relationships with
their independent auditors and retirement plan practices. Because it is still unclear what laws or regulations
will ultimately-develop, we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any future changes in accounting regulations
or practices in general with respect to' public companies or the energy industry or in our operations specifically.

In addition, the Financial Accountlng Standards Board (FASB) or the SEC could enact.new accounting
standards that might impact how we are required to record revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.

Risks Related to Market Volatlllty and Risk Management

Our reported results are subJect to volatility around our use of derivatives that hedge the economic risk of
our commodity exposures. Some derivatives do not qualify as hedges under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (SFAS 133) and so changes in fair value are.recorded to
income. During the period from 2002 to 2004 when our Power business was for sale, most changes in the fair
value of derivatives used in our Power business were recorded to income as net forward unrealized mark-to-
market gains. In future periods, the cash associated with those hedges could be Teahzed but the va]ue will have
alrédady been tecorded in income.

Our risk measurement and hedging activities might not prevent losses.

We manage our commodity price risk for our unregulated businesses as a whole. Although we have risk
measurement systems in place that use various methodologies to quantify risk, these systems might not always
be followed or might not always work as planned. Further, such risk measurement systems do not in
themselves manage risk, and adverse changes in energy commodity market prices, volatility, adverse
correlation of commodity prices, the liquidity of markets, and changes in interest rates might still adversely
affect our earmngs and cash flows and our balance sheet under applicable accountmg rules, even if risks have
been’ 1dent1ﬁed

In an effort to manage our financial’ exposure related to commodity price and market fluctuations, we
have entered into contracts to hedge certain risks associated with our assets and operations, including our long-
term tolling agreements. In these hedging activities, we have used fixed-price, forward, physical purchase and
sales contracts, futures, financial swaps and option contracts traded in the over-the-counter markets or on
exchanges, as well as long-term structured transactions when feasible. Nevertheless, no single hedging
arrangement can adequately address all risks present in a given contract. For example, a forward contract that
would ‘be effective in hedging commodity price volatility risks. would not hedge the tolling contract’s
counterparty credit or performance risk. Therefore, unhedged risks ‘will always continue to exist. While we
attempt to manage counterparty credit risk within guidelines established by our credit policy, we may not be
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able to successfully manage all credit risk and as such future cash flows could be impacted by counterparty
default.

The impact of changes in market prices for natural gas on the average gas prices received by us may be
reduced based on the level of our hedging strategles These hedging arrangements may limit our potential
gains if the market prices for natural gas were to rise substantially over the price established by the hedge. In
addition, our hedging arrangements expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, including
instances 1n which:

. productlon is less than expected,

* a change in the difference between published price mdexes established by pipelines in which our
- hedged production is delivered and the reference price established in the hedging arrangements is
such that we are required to make payments to our counterparties;

'+ the counterparties to our hedging arrangements fail to honor their financial commitments.

Risks Related to Employees, Outsourcing of Non-Core Support Activities

Institutional knowledge reszdmg with current employees or our former employees now employed by our
outsourcmg service providers might not be adequately preserved.

In certain segments of our business, institutional knowledge resides with employees who have many years
~of service. As these employees reach retirement age, we may not be able to replace them with employees of
comparable knowledge and experience. Other qualified individuals could leave us or refuse our offers of
employment if our recruitmg and retention efforts-are unsuccessful. Our efforts at knowledge transfer could be
inadequate.

Due to the large number of our former employees who were migrated to an outsourcing provider in 2004,
“access to significant amounts of internal historical knowledge and expertise could become unavaﬂable to us,
particularly if knowledge transfer initiatives are delayed or ineffective.

Failure of the outsourcing relauonshtps mtght negatzvely impact our ability to conduct our business.

Some studies indicate a high failure rate of outsourcing relanonshlps Although we have taken steps to
build-a cooperative and mutually beneficial relationship with our outsourcing providers, a faiture of all or part
of these relationships could lead to loss of institutional knowledge and interruption of services necessary for us
to be able to conduct our business.

Our ability to receive services from outsourcing provider locations outside of the United States might be
impacted by cultural differences, political instability, or unantlapated regulatory vequirements in jurisdictions
outside the United States

, Certain accounting, information technology application development, human resources, and helpdesk
services that are currently prowded by our outsourcing provider were relocated to service centers outside of the
United States during 2005. The economic and pohtlcal conditions in certain countries from which our
outsourcing providers may provide servicés to us present similar risks of business operations located outside of
the United States previously discussed, including risks of interruption of business, war, expropriation,
nationalization, renegotiation, trade sanctions or nullification of existing contracts and changes in faw or tax .
policy, that are greater than in the Umted States.

Risks Related to Weather, other Natural Phenomena and Business Disruption
Our assets and operations can be affected by weather a)id other natural phenomena.

" Our assets and operations, especially those located offshore, can be adversely affected by hurricanes,
earthquakes, tornadoes and other natural phenomena and weather conditions including extreme temperatures,
making it more difficult for us to realize the historic rates of return associated with these assets and operations.
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Our current mformatton technology infrastructure is aging and may adversely affect our ability to conduct our
business.

Limited capital spending for information technology infrastructure during 2001-2003 resulted in an aging
server environment that may not be adequate for our current business needs. While efforts are ongoing to
update the environment, the current age and condition of equipment could result in loss of internal and
external communications, loss of ‘data, inability to access data when needed, excessive software downtime
(including -downtime for critical software applications), dand other dlsruptlons that could have a material
adverse impact on our business.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2.  Properties

We own property in 34 states plus the District of Columbia i iin the United States and in Argentina,
Canada and Venezuela. :

Power’s primary assets are its term contracts, related systems and technological support. In addition,
affiliates of Power own the Hazelton and Milagro generating facilities -described above. In our Gas Pipeline
and Midstream segmerits, we generally own our facilities, although a substantial portion of our pipeline and
gathering facilities is constructed and maintained pursuant to rights-of-way, easements, permits, licenses or
consents on and across properties owned by others. In our Exploration & Production segment, the majority of
our ownership interest in exploratlon and product1on properties is held as working interests in oil and gas
leaseholds.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The information called for by this item is provided in Note 15 Contingent liabilities and commitments
included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this report, which information is incorporated
by reference into this item.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The name, age, period of service, and title of each of oﬁr executive officers as of February 28, 2006, are
listed below. '

Alan S. Armstrong ....... Senior Vice President, Midstream
. Age: 43

Position held since February 2002.
From 1999 to February 2002, Mr. Armstrong was Vice President, Gathermg
and Processing for Midstream. From 1998 to 1999 he was Vice President,
Commercial Development for Midstream.

James J. Bender ......... Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Age 49
Position held since December 16, 2002.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Bender was Senior Vice President and General
Counsel with NRG Energy, Inc., a position held since June 2000, prior to
which he was Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NRG Energy
Inc. since June 1997. NRG Energy, Inc. filed a voluntary bankruptcy petition
during 2003 and its plan of reorganization was approved in December 2003.
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Donald R. Chappel .......

Ralph A. Hill. . ..

William E. Hobbs

Michael P. Johnson, Sr.

Steven J. Malcolm

Phillip D. Wright

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Age: 54 ;
Position held since April 16, 2003.

“ Prior to joining us, Mr. Chappel during 2000 founded and served as chief

executive-officer of a- development business in Chicago, Illinois thfeugh April,

2003 when he joined us. Mr: Chappel.joined Waste‘Management, Inc. in 1987 . -

and held various financial, administrative and operational leadership positions,
including twice serving as chief financial officer, during.1997 and 1998 and
most recently during 1999 through February 2000.

Senior Vice President, Exploration & Production

Age: 46

Position held since December 1998.

Mr. Hill was vice president of the exploration and prodiction unit from 1993 to
1998 as well as Senior Vice President Petroleum Services from 1998 to 2003.

Senior Vice President, Power

Age: 46

Position held since Octobet 2002 ‘ o ,
From February 2000 to October 2002, Mr. Hobbs was President and Chief
Executive Officer of. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading. From 1997 to
February 2000, he served as a Vice President of various Williams subsidiaries.

‘Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer -

Age: 58

.. Position held since May 2004. ' . ;
- Mr. Johnson was named our Senior Vice President of Human Resources and

Administration in April 1999. Prior to joining us in December 1998, he held
officer level positions, such as Vice President of Human Resources, Vice
President for Corporate People Strategies, and Vice President Human
Resource Services, for Amoco Corporation from 1991 to 1998.

Chairman of the Board, Chlef Executwe Officer and Prcs1dent

- Age: 57

Position held since September 21 2001.

.Mr. Malcolm was elected Chief Executive Officer of Williams in J anuary 2002

and Chairman of the Board in May 2002. He was elected President and Chief

~ Operating Officer in September 2001. Prior to that, he was our Executive Vice

President from May 2001, President and Chief Executive Officer of our
subsidiary Williams Energy Services, LLC, since December 1998 and the
Senior Vice President and General Manager of:our subsidiary, Williams Field
Services Company, since November 1994. ’

Senior Vice President, Gas Pipeline -
Age: 50
Position held since January-2005.

"From October 2002 to January 2005 Mr. Wright served as Chlef

Restructuring Officer. From September 2001 to October 2002, Mr. Wright
served as President and Chief. Executive Officer of our sub51dlary Williams
Energy Services. From 1996 until September 2001, he was Senior Vice
President, Enterprise Developmcnt and Planning for our energy services group.

Mr. Wught has held various positions with us since 1989.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for'Registrant’s Common Equity, Related >S‘tockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities o

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and Pacific Stock Exchanges under the
symbol “WMB.” At the close of business on February 28,2006, we had approximately 12,510 holders of
record of our common stock. The high and low closing sales price ranges (New York Stock Exchangé
composite transactions) and dividends declared by quarter for each of the past two years are as follows:

‘ ) ) - 2005 2004
Quarter . High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
ISt oot $19.29 ~ $15.29 $ .05 $11.30 §$ 875 $.01
2nd. .o _ $19.21  $16.29 $ .05 $12.23  §$ 9.89 $.01 -
3rd o $25.05  $19.16 $.075 $12.51 $11.45 $.01
4th ..o $25.40  $19.97 $.075 - $17.10 $12.35.  $.05

Some of our subsidiaries’ borrowing arrangements limit the transfer of funds to us. These terms have not
impeded, nor are they expected to impede, our ability to pay dividends. However, until January 20, 2005, the
credit agreements underlying our two unsecured revolving credit facilities totaling $500 million prohibited us
from paying quarterly cash dividends on our common stock in excess of $0.05 per share. On January 20, 2003,
these facilities were terminated and replaced with two new facilities. As part of the transaction, the dividend
restriction, along with most of the other restrictive covenants, was removed from the new credit agreements.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

~ The following financial data as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and for the three years ended
December 31, 2005, are an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. All other amounts have been prepared from our financial records. Certain
amounts below have been restated or reclassified. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8 for discussion of changes in 2005, 2004 and 2003. Information concerning significant trends in the
financial condition and results of -operations is contained in. Management’s Discussion & Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations of this report. ) . .
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

' . o . (Millions, except per-share amounts)
Revenues(1) ........ ..., $12,583.6 $12,461.3 $16,651.0 $ 3,4345 § 4,899.5
Income (loss) from continuing .
operations (2) ... o 3174 93.2 (57.5) (618.4) 640.5
Income (loss) from discontinued . ‘ ‘
operations(3) ........ oL 2.1) 70.5 "326.6 (136.3) - (1,118.2)
Cumulative effect of change-in accounting -~ - - ' g
principles(4) . ........ ... ... .. e, o (1.7) — (761.3) - — L —
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share: - ' :
Income (loss) from continuing _ ' ‘
operations . ............... i .53 18 (.17) (1.37) 1.28
Income (loss) from discontinued o : _ '
0] 13 10T ) - N — 13 .63 (.26) (2.23)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principles ............... ' — — (1.47) — —
Total assets at December 31............. 29,442.6 23,993.0 27,021.8 34,988.5 38,614.2
Short-term notes payable and long-term
debt due within one year.............. 122.6 250.1 938.5 2,077.1 2,510.4
Long-term debt at December 31 ......... 7,590.5 7,711.9 11,039.8 11,075.7 8,285.0
Preferred interests in consolidated
subsidiaries at December 31 ... ........ — — — — 976.4
Stockholders’ equity at December 31 ..... 5,427.5 4,955.9 4,102.1 5,049.0 6,044.0
Cash dividends per common share........ .25 .08 04 42 .68

(1) As part of our adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3 “Issues Involved in Accounting
for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk
Management Activities,” (EITF 02-3), we concluded that revenues and costs of sales from non-
derivative contracts and certain physically settled derivative contracts should generally be reported on a
gross basis. Prior to the adoption on January 1, 2003, these revenues were presented net of costs. As
permitted by EITF 02-3, prior year amounts have not been restated. Also, see Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of revenue recognized in 2003 related to the correction
of prior period items. :

(2) See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of asset sales, impairments and
other accruals in 2005, 2004, and 2003. ‘

(3) See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the analysis of the 2005, 2004, and 2003
income (loss) from discontinued operations. Results for the year 2002 also include amounts related to the
discontinued operations of Central natural gas pipeline, Mid-America pipeline, Seminole pipeline and
Kern River pipeline. Results for the year 2001 also includes amounts related to the discontinued
operations of Williams Communications Group, our previously owned subsidiary (WilTel).

(4) The 2005 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles is due to implementation of Interpretation
(FIN) 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an Interpretation of FASB
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Statement No. 147.” The 2003 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles includes a’

$762.5 million charge related to the adoption of EITF 02-3, slightly offset by $1:2 million related to the

adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset ‘

Retirement Obligations.” The $762.5 million charge primarily consists of the fair value of power tolling,
load serving, gas transportation and gas storage contracts. These contracts are not derivatives and,
therefore, are no longer reported at fair value.

Item7.. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General '

We are primarily a natural gas company, engaged in finding, producing, gathering, processing, and
transporting natural gas. We also manage a wholesale power business. Our operations are located principally in
the United States and are organized into the following reporting segments: Power, Gas Pipeline, Exploration &
Production, and Midstream Gas & Liquids (see Note 1 of Notes to Consohdated FmanCIal Statements for
further discussion of reporting segments). :

Unless indicated otherwise, the following discussion of critical accounting policies and estimates,
discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition and liquidity relates to our current
continuing operations and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included in Part IT Ttem 8 of this document.

Overview of 2005

We entered 2005 héving completed the key components of our 2003 restructuring plan and in a position
to shift our focus to growth. Our 2005 plan included the following objectives:

» Increase focus and disciplined EVA®-based investment in natural gas businesses (EVA® (Economic
Value Added) is a registered Trademark of Stern Stewart & Co. )

« Continue to steadily improve credit ratios and ratings with the goal of achlevmg investment grade
ratios;

« Continue to reduce risk and liquidity requlremcnts while maximizing cash flow in the Power
segment;

« Maintain liquidity from cash and revolving credit facilities of at léast $1 billion;
e Generate sustainable growth in EVA® and shareholder value.

Our 2005 income from continuing operations increased to $317.4 million, as compared to $93.2 million in
2004. Our 2005 results reflect the benefit of increased natural gas production and higher net realized average
prices, along with reduced levels of interest expense. Results for 2004 included $282.1 million in costs
associated with the early retirement of debt, while results for 2005 were reduced by accruals associated with
agreements to resolve gas reporting issues and impairments of certain investments. Our net cash provided by
operating activities was $1.45 billion in 2005, comparable with the 2004 level of $1.49 billion.. In addition to
achieving these results, the following represent significant actions or events that occurred during the year:

+ In 2005, we further improved our credit ratios from those achieved in 2004, We retired $200 million
of debt that matured January 15, 2005. On February 16, the holders of the remaining 10.9 million
equity forward contracts associated with the FELINE PACS units exercised contracts to purchase
one share of our common stock for $25 a share, resulting in cash proceeds of approximately
$273 million. The remaining notes associated with the FELINE PACS units totaling approximately
$73 million are due February 16, 2007.

* During 2005, Exploration & Production increased its average daily domestic production levels, its
net realized average prices, and its developmental drilling activities. In March 2005, Exploration &
Production entered into a lease for ten new drilling rigs to support the accelerated pace of natural gas
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development in the Piceance basin. The first rig was.delivered in Janudry 2006 and the remaining
rigs- are. expected to be delivered duririg 2006. .

In 2005 and early 2006, Power continued to reduce risk by entering irfto electricity and capacity
forward contracts with fixed sales prices for over 6, 000 megawatts of capacity in total across various
periods through 2010. '

During 2005, Midstream Gas & Liquids (Midstream) continued efforts to expand operations of
large scale assets in growth basins. These efforts include signing definitive agreements to extend oil
and gas pipelines from our Devils Tower spar to the Blind Faith prospect and obtaining Board
approval to add a fifth cryogenic train to our gas processing plant in Opal, Wyoming. Both of these
additions are expected to be in service in 2007.

In July and November of 2005 our Board of Directors approved regular quarterly dividends of
7.5 cents per share of common stock, which reflects an increase of 50 percent compared with the 5
cents per share paid in each of the three prior quarters.

On August 23, 2005, Williams Partners L.P. completed its initial public offering of five million
common units at a price of $21.50 per unit. The underwriters also fully exercised their option to
purchaseé an additional 750,000 common units at the same price. Upon completion of the
transaction, we held approximately 60 percent of the interests in Williams Partners L.P., including
100 percent of the general partner. See the Midstream Gas & Liquids Overview of 2005 within -
Item 7 for further information.

During third-quarter 2005, certain Gulf Coast area operations were interrupted by hurricanes. The
impact of these hurricanes included temporary shutdowns as well as varying levels of damage The
overall impact was not material to our financial position.

In September 2005, we reached an agreement to settle litigation filed in 2002 under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). The settlement, which received final approval in
November 2005, provided for us to pay $55 million to plaintiffs, of which $50 million was covered
and paid by insurance. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information.

In September 2005, we increased our available liquidity by obtaining a total of $700 million of
capacity in two five-year unsecured credit facilities. See Note 11 of Notes to Consohdated Financial
Statements for further information.

In November 2005,.we initiated an offer to induce conversion of up to $300 million of the 5.5 percent
junior subordinated debentures convertible into our common stock. The conversion was executed in
January 2006 and approximately $220.2 million of the debentures were exchanged for common
stock. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

During 2005 we continued our efforts to resolve legacy issues, such as pending claims and
investigations involving inaccurate reporting of natural gas prices and volumes to an industry
publication in 2002. In February 2006, we reached agreements with various parties to substantially

" resolve this exposure. Under the terms of these agreements, Power will pay a total of $77.2 miltion to

the various parties. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information.

Outlook for 2006

Our

plan for 2006 is focused on continued“disciplined growth. Objectives of this plan include:
Contmue to improve both EVA® and segment profit.

Invest in our natural gas businesses in a way that improves EVA®, meets customer needs, and
enhances our competltlve position. . :
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« Continue to increase natural gas production.
* Increase the scale of our gathermg and processmg business in key growth basins.

+ File new rates to enable our Gas Pipeline segment to remain compet1t1ve and value -creating, while
managing our costs and capturing demand growth. These rates are expected to be effective in 2007.

"« Execute power contracts that offset a significant percentage of our financial obligations associated -
with our tolling agrecments.v

As a result of the strategy to grow our natural gas businesses, we estimate capital expenditures will
increase to approximately $2.0 to $2.2 billion in 2006, compared to $1.3 billion in 2005. We expect to fund
capital and investment expenditures, debt paynients, dividends and working-capital requirements through cash
generated from operations, which is currently estimated to be between $1.6 billion and $1.9 billion in 2006, as
well as proceeds from debt issuances, sales of units of Williams Partners L.P., and cash and cash equlvalents
on hand as needed. -

Potential risks and/or obstacles that could prevent us from achieving these objectives include:

Volatlhty of commodlty pnces
» Lower than expected levels of cash ﬂow from opcranons
« Decreased drilling success at Exploration & Production;

» Exposure associated with our efforts to resolve regulatory and 11t1gat10n issues (see Note 15 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statemcnts)

« General economic and industry downturn.

We continue to address these risks through utilization of commodity hedging strategies, focused efforts to
resolve regulatory issues and litigation claims, disciplined investment strategies, and maintaining our desired
level of at least $1 billion in liquidity from cash and revolving credit facilities.

New Accounting Standards and Emerging Issues

Accounting standards that have been issued and are not yet effective, or that have not yet been issued,
may have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements in the future. These include:

« Revised SFAS No. 123, “Share-Based Payment”;
+ Proposed SFAS on “Fair Value Measurements” (exposure draft);

« Proposed Interpretation on “Accountmg for Uncertain Tax Posmons —an 1ntcrpretat1on of FASB
“Statement No. 109 (exposure draft);

* Accounting for Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits (prcliminary views).

See Recent Accounting Standards in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on these and other recently issued accounting standards. -

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements reflect the selection and application of accounting policies that require
management to make significant estimates that require subjective and complex judgment. The selection of
these policies has been discussed with our Audit Committee. We believe that-the following are the more
critical judgment areas in ‘the application of our accounting policies that currently affect our financial
condition and results of operations.
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Revenue Recognition — Derivatives

We hold a substantial portfolio of energy trading and non-trading contracts for a variety of purposes. We
review these contracts to determine whether they are non-derivatives or derivatives. If they are derivatives, we
further assess whether the-contracts qualify for either cash flow hedge accounting or the normal purchases and
normal sales exception. The determination of whether a derivative ‘contract qualifies as a cash flow hedge
_ includes an analysis of historical market price information to assess whether the derivatives are expected to be
highly effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. For derivatives that are
designated as cash flow hedges, changes in their fair value are not reflected in earnings until the associated
hedged item affects earnings. For those that have not been designated as hedges or do not qualify for hedge
accounting, the net change in their fair value is recognized in income currently (marked.to market).
Derivatives for which the normal purchases and normal sales exception has been elected are accounted for on
an accrual basis. The fair value for derivative contracts is determined based on the nature of the transaction
and the market in which transactions are executed. We also 1ncorporate assumptions and Judgments about
counterparty performance and credit considerations in our determination of their fair value.

Contracts are executed in the following environments:
« Exchange-traded or over-the-counter markets with quoted pnces

+ Exchange-traded or over-the-counter markets with quoted market prlces but limited price trans-
parency, requiring increased judgment to determine fair value; '

« Markets without quoted market ‘prices.

The number of transactions executed without quoted market prices is limited. We estimate the fair value of
these contracts by using readily available price quotes in similar markets and other market analyses. The fair
value of all derivative contracts is continually subject to change as the underlymg commodlty market changes
and our assumptions and judgments change.

. Additional discussion of the accounting for energy contracts at fair value is included in Energy Trading
Activities within Item 7, Item 74 — Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures AboutMarketstk and Note 1
of Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements. .

Oil- and Gas-Producing Activities

We use the successful efforts method of accounting for our oil- and gas-producing activities. Estimated
natural gas and oil reserves and forward market prices for oil and gas are a significant part of our financial
calculations and certain estimated reserves are used as collateral to secure financing. Following are examples
of how these estimates affect financial results:

» An increase (decrease) in estimated proved oil and gas reserves; can reduce (increase) our unit-of-
production depreciation, depletion and amortization rates.

. Changes in oil and gas reserves and forward market prices both impact projected future cash flows
from our oil and gas properties. This, in turn, can impact our penodlc impairment analyses, including
that for goodwill.

The process of estimating natural gas and oil reserves is very.complex, requiring significant judgment in
the evaluation of all available geological, geophysical, engineering, and economic data. After being estimated
internally, 99 percent of our reserve estimates are either audited or prepared by independent experts. The data
may change substantially over time as a result of numerous factors, including additional development activity,
evolving production history, and a continual reassessment of the viability of production under changing
-economic conditions. As a result, material revisions to existing reserve estimates-could occur from time to
time. A revision of our reserve estimates within reasonably likely parameters is not expected to result in an
impairment of our oil .and gas properties or goodwill. However, reserve -estimate revisions would impact our
depreciation and’depletion expense prospectively. For example, a change of approximately 10 percent in oil
and gas reserves for each basin would change our annual depreciation, depletion and amortization expense
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between approximately $20 million and $25 million. The actual impact would depend on the specific basins
impacted and whether the change resulted from proved developed, proved undeveloped or a combination of
these reserve categories.

Forward market prices, which are utilized in our impairment analyses, include estimates of prices for
periods that extend beyond those with quoted market prices. This forward market price information is
consistent with that generally used in evaluating our drilling decisions and acquisition plans. These market
prices for future periods impact the production economics underlying oil and gas reserve estimates. The prices
of natural gas and oil are volatile and change from period to period, thus impacting our estimates. An
unfavorable change in the forward price curve within reasonably likely parameters is not expected to result in
an impairment of our oil and gas properties or goodwill.

Contingent Liabilities

We record liabilities for estimated loss contingencies, including environmental matters, when we assess
that a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Revisions to contingent
liabilities are reflected in income in the period in which new or different facts or information become known or
circumstances change that affect the previous assumptions with respect to the likelihood or amount of loss.
Liabilities for contingent losses are based upon our assumptions and estimates and upon advice of legal
counsel, engineers, or other third parties regarding the probable outcomes of the matter. As new developments
occur or more information becomes available, our assumptions and estimates of these liabilities may change.
Changes in our assumptions and estimates or outcomes different from our current assumptions and estimates
could materially affect future results of operations for any partlcular quarterly or annual period. See Note 15 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets And Tax Contingencies

We have deferred tax assets resulting from certain investments and businesses that have a tax basis in
excess of the book basis and from tax carry-forwards generated in the current and prior years. We must
evaluate whether we will ultimately realize these tax benefits and establish a valuation allowance for those that
may not be realizable. This evaluation considers tax planning strategies, including assumptions about the
availability and character of future taxable income. At December 31, 2005, we have $940 million of deferred
 tax assets for which a $37 million valuation allowance has been established. When assessing the need for a
valuation allowance, we considered forecasts of future company performance, the estimated impact of
potential asset dispositions and our ability and intent to execute tax planning strategies to utilize tax
carryovers. Based on our projections, we believe that it is probable that we can utilize our year-end 2005
federal tax net operating loss carryovers and capital loss carryovers prior to their expiration. We are not
expecting to be able to utilize $24 million, or approximately $8 million of tax benefit, of the charitable
contribution carryovers expiring in 2006. The remaining $20 million of charitable contributions are expected to
be utilized prior to their expiration. We also do not expect to be able to utilize $29 million of foreign deferred
tax assets related to carryovers. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding the tax carryovers. The ultimate amount of deferred tax assets realized could be
materially different from those recorded, as influenced by potential changes in jurisdictional income tax laws
and the circumstances surrounding the actual realization of related tax assets.

We regularly face challenges from domestic and -foreign tax authorities regarding the amount of taxes
due. These challenges include questions regardmg the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of
income among various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating the liability associated with our various filing positions,
we record a liability for probable tax contingencies. The ultimate disposition of these contingencies could have
a material impact on net cash flows. To the extent we were to prevail in matters for which accruals have been
established or were reqilired to pay amounts in excess of our accrued liability, our effective tax rate in a given
financial statement period may be materially impacted. :
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets And Investments

We evaluate our long-lived assets and investments for impairment when we believe events or changes in
circumstances indicate that we may not be able to recover the carrying value of certain long-lived assets or the
decline in carrying value of an invesiment is other-than-temporary. In addition to those long-lived assets and
investments for which impairment charges were recorded (see Notes 2, 3, and 4 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements), certain others were reviewed for which no impairment was required. Our computations
utilized judgments and assumptions in the following areas:

e The probability that we would sell an asset or continue to hold and use it;

« For assets held for use, estimated fair value of the asset, undiscounted future cash flows, and
discounted future cash flows;

« For assets held for sale, estimated sales proceeds, form and timing of the asset disposition, and
counterparty performance considerations;

» For investments that may be impaired, whether the potential impairment is other than temporary;

. Current and future economic environment in which the asset operates.

Canadian Olefins

We continue to assess our Canadian olefins assetsfor impairment based on previously identified
indicators. Our investment in these assets is currently not estimated to be recoverable without modifications to
or a renegotiation of key terms in an off-gas processing agreement. We have performed recoverability tests
that considered varying outcomes relating to successful renegotiation of the processing agreements. Our
computations used judgments and assumptions in the following areas:

« Varying terms of renegotiated contracts;

« Commodity pricing;

« Probability weighting of different scenarios; -
 Trends in foreign exchange rates. ' |

After applying probability weightings to the various scenarios, we determined that the assets did not
require impairment at December 31, 2005 and 2004. A critical assumption in our impairment analysis was the
valuation of future contract terms in the related processing agreement. Unsuccessful renegotiation of the
contract or a decrease of approximately 20 percent or more in our low case contract valuation estimate would
likely result in an impairment.

Aux Sable

We own a 14.6 percent equity interest in Aux Sable Liquid Products LP (Aux Sable), which owns and
operates a natural gas liquids extraction and fractionation facility. During 2003, we performed an impairment
review of our investment in Aux Sable as operating results and cash flow projections suggested that a decline
in the fair value of this investment below our carrying value, could exist. We estimated the fair value of our
investment based on a projection of discounted cash flows of Aux Sable. Based upon our analysis, we recorded
a $14.1 million impairment of this investment. :

During 2005, we decided to pursue a potential sale of this investment. We have recorded an impairment
of $23 million based on our estimate of sales proceeds from this investment.
Pension and Postretirement Obltgauons

We have employee benefit plans that include pension and other postrcurement bcncﬁts Pension and
other postretirement benefit plan-expense and obligations are calculated by a third-party actuary and are
impacted by various estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include the expected long-
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term rates of return on plan assets, discount rates, expected rate of compensation increase, health care cost
trend rates, and employee demographics, including retirement age and mortality. These assumptions are
reviewed annually and adjustments are made as needed. The assumptions utilized to compute expense and the
benefit obligations are shown in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The table below
presents the estimated increase (decrease) in pension and other postretirement benefit expense and
obligations resulting from a one-percentage-point change in the specified assumption.

Benefit Expense ) Benefit Obligation
One-Percentage- One-Percentage- One-Percentage- One-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrease Point Increase Point Decrease
(Millions)
Pension benefits:
Discount rate. .. ....c.ovvvneeeeurennns $(14) $15 $(131) $155
Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets . ............. L (9) 9 — —
Rate of compensation increase ......... 2 (2) 12 (12)
Other postretirement benefits: ,
Discount rate. . ... oot Y] 6 (65) 79
Expected long-term rate of return on '
planassets ............... .. .. ..., (2) 2 — —
Assumed health care cost trend rate . . .. 9 (6) 73 (58)

The expected long-term rates of return on plan assets are determined by combining a review of historical
returns realized within the portfolio, the investment strategy included in the plans’ Investment Policy
Statement, and the capital market projections provided by our independent investment consultant for the asset
classifications in which the portfolio is invested as well as the target weightings of each asset classification.
These rates are impacted by changes in general market conditions, but because they are long-term in nature,
short-term market swings do not significantly impact the rates. Changes to our target asset allocation would
also impact these rates. Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets used for our pension plans has
been 8.5 percent since 2002. Over the past ten years, our actual average return on plan assets for our pension
plans has been approximately 8.6 percent.

The discount rates are used to discount future benefit obligations to today’s dollars. Decreases in these
rates increase the obligation and related expense. The discount rates for our pension and other postretirement
benefit plans: were determined separately based on an approach specific to our plans and their respective
expected benefit cash flows as described in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Our
discount rate assumptions are impacted by changes in general economic and market conditions that affect
interest rates on long-term, high-quality corporate bonds. '

The expected rate of compensation increase represents average long-term salary increases. An increase in
this rate causes pension obligation and expense to increase.

The assumed health care cost trend rates are based on our actual historical cost rates that are adjusted for
expected changes in the health care industry.
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Results of Operations

Consolidated Overview

The following table and discussion is a summary of our consolidated results of operations for the three
years ended December 31, 2005. The results of operations by segment are discussed in further detail following
this consolidated overview discussion.

Years Ended December 31,

% Change % Change
from from
2005 2004(1) 2004 2003(1) 2003
(Millions) (Millions) (Millions)

Revenues ......... J $12,583.6 - +1%  $12,461.3 —25% -$16,651.0
Costs and expenses: ‘

Costs and operating expenses ............ 10,871.0 —1% 10,751.7 +28%  15,004.3

Selling, general and administrative expenses 325.4 +8% 355.5 +16% 421.3

Other (income) expense —net .......... 612 NM (51.6) +142% (21.3)

General corporate expenses .............. __ 1549 —29% 1198 —38% __ 87.0

Total costs and expenses ................ 11,412.5 11,175.4 15,491.3
Operating income . ..., 1,171.1 _ 1,285.9 1,159.7
Interest accrued —net.................... (664.5) f+-20% » (827.7) +34% (1,248.0)
Investing income . .., ......oooverruannnn. 23.7 —51% 48.0 —34% 73.2
Early debt retirement costs ........ PR (.4) . +100% (282.1) NM - (66.8)
Minority interest in income of consolidated »

subsidiaries ......... ... oo (25.7) —-20% (21.4) —10% - (19.4)
Other income —mnet...................... _ - 271 +24% 218 —43% 3835
Income (loss) from continuing operations ‘

before income taxes and cumulative effect

of change in accounting principles ........ 531.3 224.5 (62.8)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ........ 2139 —63% 131.3 NM (5.3)
Income (loss) from continuing operations. 3174 93.2 A (57.5)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . (2.1) NM . 70.5 —78% 326.6
Income before cumulative effect of change in . :

accounting principles ........... ... ..., 315.3 163.7 269.1
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principles . ... ... (1.7) NM . — +100% (761.3)
Net income (10SS) ...t 3136 163.7 . (492.2)
Preferred stock dividends.................. — NM — +100% 29.5
Income (loss) applicable to common stock .. $ 313.6 $ 1637 $ (521.7)
(1) + = Favorable Change; — = Unfavorable Change; NM = A percentage calculation is not meaningful

due to change in signs, a zero-value denominator or a percentage change greater than 200.

2005 vs. 2004

The $122.3 million increase in revenues is due primarily to increased revenues at Exploration &
Production due to higher natural gas prices and production volumes sold and gas management income, and at
Midstream due primarily to increased natural gas liquids (NGL) prices and crude marketing revenue.
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Partially offsetting these increases is decreased revenue at Power due primarily to the absence of crude and
refined products activity and reduced net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains.

The $119.3 million increase in costs and operating expenses is due primarily to increased crude marketing
costs and increased NGL costs at Midstream in addition to increased depreciation, depletion and amortization
and gas management expense at Exploration & Production. Partially offsetting these increases are decreased
costs at Power primarily due to the absence of crude and refined products activity..

The $30.1 million decrease in selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses is primarily due to a
$17.1 million reduction in expenses at Gas Pipeline to record the cumulative impact of a correction to pension
expense attributable to the periods 2003 and 2004 and a $9.7 reduction of bad debt expense at Power resulting
from the sale of certain receivables to a third party. Partially offsetting these items is increased staffing costs at
Exploration & Production in support of increased operational drilling activity.

Other (income) expense — net, within operating income, in 2005 includes the following significant items:

» An $82.2 million accrual for litigation contingencies at Power, associated primarily with agreements
reached to substantially resolve exposure related to certain natural gas price and volume reporting
issues; ‘

« Gains totaling $29.6 million on the sale of two natural gas properties at Exploration & Production;

« A gain of $9 million on a sale of property in the Other segment.

Other (income) expense — net, within operating income, in 2004 includes:

+ Income of $93.6 million from an insurance arbitration award associated with our Gulf Liquids New
River Project LLC (Gulf Liquids) at Midstream;

» Gains of $16.2 million from the sale of Exploration & Production’s securities, invested in a coal seam
royalty trust, that were purchased for resale;

« A $9.5 million gain on the sale of Louisiana olefins assets at Midétrearﬁ;

» A $15.4 million loss provision related to an ownership dispute on prior period production included at
Exploration & Production; ' '

« An $11.8 million environmental expense accrual related to the Augusta refinery facility in the Other
segment; '

* A $9 million write-off of previously capitalized costs on an idled segment of Northwest Pipeline’s
system included in the Gas Pipeline segment. -

The $35.1 million increase in general corporate expenses is due primarily to $13.8 million of expense
related to the settlement of certain insurance coverage issues and a $16 million increase in outside legal costs
associated primarily with securities class action matters.

The $163.2 million decrease in interest accrued — net is due primarily to lower average borrowing levels
in 2005 as compared to 2004.

The $24.3 million decrease in investing income is due primarily to a $76.4 increase in impairment charges
on our investment in Longhorn Partners Pipeline, L.P. (Longhorn), a $13.9 million increase in Longhorn
equity losses, and a $23 million impairment of our Aux Sable equity investment. Partially offsetting these
decreases are the following increases:

+ A $30.4 million increase in domestic and international equity earnings, excluding Longhorn and Aux
Sable; ’ .

« The absence in 2005 of a $20.8 million impairment of an international cost-based investment;
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.« The absence in 2005 of a $16.9 million impairment of our- Dlscovery Producer Setvices LLC
(Discovery) equity investment;

« An $8.6 million gain on the sale of our remaining interests in the MAPL and Seminole assets;
» The absence in 2005 of a $6.5 million Longhorn recapitalization fee.
Early debt retirement costs include premiums, fees and expenses related to the retirement of debt.

Provision (benefit) for income taxes changed unfavorably by $82.6 million due primarily to increased
pre-tax income in 2005 as compared to 2004, The effective income tax rate for 2005 is higher than the federal
statutory rate due primarily to state income taxes, nondeductible expenses, the effect of taxes on foreign
operations and the inability to utilize charitable contribution carryovers. The 2005 effective income tax rate
has been reduced by a benefit adjustment to reduce the overall deferred income tax liabilities and favorable
settlements on federal and state income tax matters. The effective income tax rate for 2004 is higher than the
federal statutory rate due primarily to state income taxes, a charge associated with charitable contribution
carryovers and the effect of taxes on foreign 0perat1ons A 2004 accrual for income tax cont1ngenc1es was offset
by favorable settlements of certam federal and state 1ncome tax matters.

Income (loss) from dzsconlmued operations in 2004 is comprlsed of gains on the sales of the Canadian
straddle plants and the Alaska refinery of $189.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively, as well as $22 million
in income from out Canadian straddles discontinued operation. Partially offsetting these are $153 million of
charges to increase our accrued liability associated with certain Quality Bank litigation matters.

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles in 2005 is due to the 1mplementat1on of FIN 47, (see
Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

2004 vs. 2003

The $4.2 billion decrease in revenues is due pnmarlly to an apprommately $3 9 billion decrease in
revenues at Power resulting from lower realized revenues from power and crude and refined products. Partially
offsetting the decrease was an increase in Midstream’s révenues of $97.8 million reflecting higher volumes and
improved NGL margins.

The $4.3 billion decrease in costs and operating expenses is due primarily to lower costs and operating
expenses at Power. This decrease is due primarily to lower purchase volumes of power and crude and refined
products.

The $65.8 million decrease in SG&A expense is due primarily to a $36 million decrease in compensation
expense at Power due to reduced staffing levels, combined with the absence of $13.6 million of expense related
to the accelerated recognition of deferred compensation during 2003. In addition, Midstream’s SG&A expense
declined $18 million largely due to asset sales and lower legal expense.

Other (income) expense — net, within operating income in 2004 is included in the 2005 vs. 2004
discussion. Other (income) expense — net, within operating income, in 2003 1ncludes

+ A $188 million gain from the sale of a Power contract;

. Net gains of $96.7 million in from the sale of Exploration & Production’s interests in certam natural
gas properties in the San Juan basin;

» A $16.2 million gain from Midstream’s sale of the wholesale propane busi’ness;
* A $12.2 million gain on foreign currency exchange-at Power;

A $9.2 million gain on sale of blending assets at the Other segrhe'nt;

« Income of $7.2 million at Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation (Transco) due to a partial
reduction of accrued liabilities for claims associated with certain producers as a result of settlements
and court rulings included in the Gas Pipeline segment; -
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A $108.7 million impairment on Gulf Liquids_ at Midstream;

A $45 million goodwill inipairment at Power;

A $44.1 million impairment of the Hazelton generation plant at Power; -

A $25.6 million charge at Northwest Pipeline to write off capitalized software development costs for
a service delivery system, included in the Gas Pipeline segment;

A $20 million charge related to a settlement by Power with the Commodity Futures Trading
Commlsswn (CFTC)

A $19.5 million expense accrual at Power related to an adjustment of Cahfomla rate refund and
other related accruals;

[

+ A $7.2 million impairment of thé Aspen prdject at the Other .segmént.-

The $32.8 million increase in general corporate expenses is due primarily to efforts to evaluate and
implement certain cost reduction strategies, and initial costs associated with outsourcing of certain services,
increased legal costs due primarily to shareholder litigation and ERISA matters, and increased third-party
costs associated with certain mandated compliance activities.

The $420.3 million decrease in interest accrued — net includes:

» A reduction in interest expense and fees of $206 million at Exploration & Production due primarily
to the May 2003 prepayment of a secured note payable of Williams Production RMT Company (the
RMT note);

+ A $164 million decrease reflecting lower average borrowing levels;

+ A reduction in amortization expense of $46 million related to deferred debt issuance costs, primarity
due to the reduction of debt;

* A $24 million decrease reflecting lower average interest rates on long-term debt;

» The absence in 2004 of $14 million of interest expense at Power related to a Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) ruling in 2003;

» The absence in 2004 of $10 million of interest expense related td a petroleum pricing dispute in 2003;

» A $35 million decrease in capitalized interest due primarily to completion of certain Midstream
projects in the Gulf Coast region.

“The $25.2 million decrease in investing income includes $57.1 million lower interest income due primarily
to higher net interest income at Power in 2003 as a result of certain FERC proceedings. The decrease was
partially offset by $29.6 million higher equity earnings. Impairments and results from investment sales were
substantlally comparable in both periods.

Early debt retirement costs include payments in excess of the carrying value of the debt, dealer fees and
the write-off of deferred debt issuance costs and discount/premium on the debt. :

Provision (benefit) for income taxes increased by $136.6 million due primarily to pre-tax income in 2004
compared to a pre-tax loss in 2003. The effective income tax rate for 2004 is greater than the federal statutory
rate due primarily to the effect of state income taxes, a charge associated with charitable contribution
carryovers and the effect of taxes on foreign operations. A 2004 accrual for tax contingencies was offset by
favorable settlements of certain federal and state income tax matters. The effective income tax rate for the
2003 benefit for income taxes is lower than the federal statutory rate due primarily to nondeductible
impairment of goodwill, nondeductible expenses, an accrual for tax contingencies and the effect of state
income taxes, somewhat offset by the tax benefit of capital losses.
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The primary components of income (loss) from discontinued operations in 2004 are included in the 2005
vs. 2004 discussion. Income (loss) from discontinued operations in 2003 is composed of the followmg pre-tax
items: ‘

« Gains of $463.4 million on asset sales;'

« Income (net of losses) from. opérations of $197.5 million;
.« Asset impairments of $176.1 million; |
. » Losses of $9. 6 m1ll1on on asset sales.

The cumulative effect of changﬂ in accounting principles reduced net income ( loss) for 2003 by
$761.3 million due to a $762.5 million. charge related to the-adoption of EITF 02-3 (see Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements), slightly offset by $1.2 million related to the adoption of SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (see Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

In June 2003, we redeemed all of our outstanding 9.875 percent cumulatwe convertible preferred shares.
Thus, no preferred dividends were paid in 2004. :




ol

Results of Operations — Segments

We are currently organized into the following segments: Power, Gas Pipeline, Exploration & Production,
Midstream and Other. Other primarily consists of corporate operations and certain continuing operations
formerly included in the previously reported International and Petroleum Services segments. Our manage-
ment currently evaluates performance based on segment profit (loss) from operations (see Note 18 of Notes
to Cohsolidated Financial Statements).

Prior period amounts have been restated to reflect all segment changes The following d1scussmns relate
to the results of operations of our segments.

Power
Overview of 2005

Power’s comparative operating results in 2005 were significantly influenced by the effect.of cash flow
hedge accounting and increased average natural gas and power prices. In fourth quarter 2004, Power
designated a portion of its power and natural gas derivativé contracts as cash flow hedges. As such, we deferred
recognition of certain unrealized mark-to-market gains in accumulated other comprehensive loss in 2005.
Similar unrealized gains were recorded to earnings in 2004 and 2003 prior to the application of hedge
accounting. Power’s 2005 earnings do reflect unrealized mark-to-market gains from (1) net increases in the
fair value of forward derivative contracts held for trading purposes or Wthh did not quahfy for hedge
accounting, and (2) hedge ineffectiveness.

Power’s 2005 results also reﬁect the 'combined impact of increased natural gas and power prices on its
nonderivative tolling contracts. Although the average price of power increased, there was a greater increase in
the average purchase price of natural gas, which is used to produce power. Hurricane Katrina and mild
weather in California affected the prices of natural gas and power. The narrowing of the margin between power
and natural gas prices and an outage at an electric generation facility resulted in an accrual gross margin loss
(realized costs in excess of realized revenue) on’ certain tolling contracts. The chart below illustrates the
impact of the unrealized mark-to-market gain and accrual gross margin loss on Power’s total gross margin
(revenue less cost of sales). The below chart does not reflect, however, cash flows that Power realized in 2005
from hedges for which mark-to-market gains or losses had been previously recognized, In 2005, Power had
positive cash flows from operations. In addition to these declining margins, significant accruals for litigation
contingencies, which -were substantially resolved in 2006, and an impairment of an equity investment further
adversely impacted Power’s 2005 results. : :

$400
$300 +
$200 +
$100 +
$-
$(100) 1
$(200) 1
$(300)

{Millions)

2003 v 2004 2005

mmm Margin from MTM c—=—=3 Margin from Accrual —m— Total Gross Margin

47




In 2005, Power continued to focus on its objectives of minimizing financial risk, maximizing cash flow,
meeting contractual commitments, executmg new contracts to hedge its portfoho and prov1d1ng functions that
support our natural’ gas busmesses : .

Key factors that may mﬁuence Power s financial condltlon and operatmg performance include:

* Prices of - power and natiral gas, mcludmg changes in the margm between power and natural gas
prices;

> Changes in power and natural gas price volatility;
» Changes in power and natural gas supply and demand;
. Changes in the regulatory environment;

« The inability of counterparties to perform under contractual obligations due to their own credlt
constraints; . -

» Changes i in mterest rates

N}

TTe Changes in market hqurdlty, 1nclud1ng changes in the ab111ty to effectlvely hedge the portfoho

Outlook for 2006

For 2006, Power 1ntends to service its customers’ needs whlle increasing the certainty of cash flows from
its long-term tolling contracts by executing new long-term electricity and capacity sales contracts. In 2005 and
early 2006, Power entered into electricity and-capacity forward contracts with fixed sales prices for over 6,000
megawatts of capacity in total across various periods through 2010. Most of these contracts are treated on an
accrual basis as either operating subleases or normal sales-contracts under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Actlvmes” (SFAS 133). ‘

As Power contmues to apply hedge accountmg in 2006, its future earmngs may be less volatile. However
not all of Power’s.derivative contracts qualify for hedge accounting. Because the derivative contracts qualifying
for hedge accounting were previously marked to market through earnings prior to their being designated as
cash flow hedges, the amounts recognized in future earnings under hedge accounting will not necessarily align
with the expected-cash flows to be realized from the settlement of those derivatives. For example, to the extent
that future earnings reflect losses from underlying transactions, such as natural gas purchases and power sales
associated with tolling transactions, that have been hedged by the derivatives, the corresponding offsetting
gaing from the hedges have already been recognized in prior periods under mark-to-market accounting.
However, cash flows from Power’s portfolio continue to reflect the net amount from both the hedged
transactions and the hedges.

Even with the adoption of hedge accounting, Power’s earnings will continue to refléct mark-to-market
volatility from unrealized gains and losses resulting from:

» Market movements of commodity-based derivatives that are held for trading purposes;

« Market movements of commodity-based derivatives that represent economic hedges but which do
not qualify for hedge accounting;

s Ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges, primarily caused by locational differences. between the hedging
derivative.and the hedged item or changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties.

The fair value of Power’s tolling, full requirements, transportation, storage and transmission contracts is
not reflected in the balance sheet since these contracts are not derivatives. Some of these contracts have a
significant negative estimated fair value and could-also result in future operating profits or losses as a result of
the volatile nature of energy commodity markets. The inability of counterparties to perform under contractual
obligations due to their own credit constraints could also affect future results.
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Year-Over-Year Results
Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
. i (Millions) '
Realized revenues ... ...t iian.. $8.921.8 $8,954.7  $12,930.5
Net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains .............. 172.1 304.0 262.1
Segment revenues .. .......vuvineiinereinnnen. 9,093.9 9,258.7 13,192.6
Cost of sales................... R [T 9,150.3  9,073.3  12,954.6
GYOSS MATZIN . oo ettt e (56.4)  185.4 238.0
Operating exXpenses ...........ic.ovevneeen.n. B P o222 23.7 353
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... 64.5 - 83.2 124.0
Other (income) expense — net ... ... e 113.6 1.8 (56.4)
Segment profit (10SS) ....... i 8 (256.7) $ 767 $ 135.1

2005 vs. 2004

‘The $164.8 million decrease in revenues includes a $32.9 million decrease in realized revenues and a
$131.9 million decrease in net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains.

Realized revenues represent (1) revenue from the sale of commodities or completion of energy-related
services, and (2) gains and losses from the net financial settlement of derivative contracts. The $32.9 million
decrease in realized revenues is primarily due to the absence in 2005 of $471 million in crude and refined
products realized revenues, partially offset by a $444 million increase in power and natural gas realized
revenues. : '

The absence of crude and refined products revenues is due to the sale of the refined products business in
2004. Power and natural gas realized revenues increased primarily due to a 33 percent increase in average
natural gas sales prices and a 17 percent increase in average power sales prices. Hurricane Katrina, among
other factors, contributed to the increase in prices. A 29 percent decrease in power sales volumes partially
offsets the increase in prices. Power sales volumes decreased because Power did not replace certain long-term
physical contracts that expired or were terminated and because of mild weather in California, which resulted
in lower demand. ‘ ‘

Net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses represent changes in' the fair values of certain
derivative contracts with a future settlement or delivery date that have not been designated as cash flow hedges
and the impact of the ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges. The $131.9 million decrease in net forward
unrealized mark-to-market gains is primarily due to a $165 million-decrease associated with power and gas
derivative contracts, partially offset by the absence in 2005 of a $38 million unrealized loss on the interest rate
portfolio in 2004.

The decrease in power and gas unrealized mark-to-market gains primarily results from the impact of cash
flow hedge accounting, which was prospectively applied to certain of Power’s derivative contracts beginning
October 1, 2004. Net unrealized gains of $711 million related to the effective portion of the hedges are
reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss in 2005 compared to $15 million'in 2004. If Power had not
applied cash flow hedge accounting in 2005, we would have reported the $711 million in revenues instead of in
accumulated other comprehensive loss. Also in 2005, Power recognized losses of $6.8 million representing a
correction of unrealized losses associated with a prior year. Our management concluded that the effects of this
correction are not material to prior periods, 2005 results, or our trend of earnings. Partially offsetting these
decreases is the effect of a greater increase in forward power prices on a greater volume of power purchase
contracts in 2005 compared to 2004, resulting in increased unrealized mark-to-market gains on net power
derivatives that are not accounted for as cash flow hedges.
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The absence in 2005 of the unrealized loss on the interest rate portfolio is due to the termination and
liquidation of all remaining interest-rate derivatives in fourth quarter 2004. A decrease in forward interest rates
caused unrealized losses in the interest rate portfolio in 2004,

The $77 million increase in Power’s cost of sales is primarily due to an increase in power and natural gas
costs of $563 million, partially offset by a decrease in crude and refined products costs of $486 million. Power
and natural gas costs increased primarily due to a 32 percent increase in average power purchase prices and a
44 percent increase in average natural gas purchase prices, partially offset by a 29 percent decrease in power
purchase volumes. Hurricane Katrina, among other factors, contributed to the increase in prices. Costs in 2005
include approx1mately $8 million in purchases due to an outage at an electric generating facility that Power
has access to via a fuel conversion service agreement. A 2004 reduction to certain contingent loss accruals of
$10.4 million associated with power marketing activities in California during 2000 and 2001 also contributes to
the increase in costs. Costs in 2004 include $486 million of crude and refined products costs, which are absent
in 2005 due to the sale of the refined products business in 2004. Costs in 2004 also reflect a $13 million
payment made to terminate a nonderivative power sales contract.

SG&A expenses decreased primarily due to decreased employee incentive compensation and decreased
costs for outside services. A $9.7 million reduction of allowance for bad debts resulting from the sale of certain
receivables to a third party also contributed to the decrease in SG&A expenses. SG&A4 expenses in 2004
include a $6.3 million reductlon of allowance for bad debts resultmg from a 2004 settlement with certam
California utilities.

Other (income) expense — ner in 2005 includes:

* An $82.2 million accrual for estimated litigation contingencies, primarily associated with agreements
reached to substantially resolve exposure related to natural gas price and volume reporting issues
(see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements);

¢ A $4.6 million accrual for a regulatory settlement;

+ .A $23 million impairment of an equity investment (see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). : ‘

Other (income) expense — net in 2004 1ncludes $6.1 million in fees related to the sale of certain
receivables to a third party.

Although increased gas prices favorably impacted the fair value of Power’s derivative natural gas hedges,
the $333.4 million change from a segment profit to a segment loss is primarily due to the impact of cash flow
hedge accounting. Additionally, plant outages and depressed margin spreads between the cost of gas and sales
price of electricity contributed to lower segment profit. Accruals in 2005 for litigation contingencies and an
impairment of an equity investment also contribute to the change in segmient profit (loss). Partially offsetting
the decrease in segment profit is the absence in 2005 of unrealized and realized losses from the interest rate
portfolio, which was liquidated in the fourth quarter of 2004.

2004 vs. 2003

The $3.9 billion decrease in revenues includes an approximately $4 billion decrease in realized revenues
partially offset by a $41.9 million increase in net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains.

The approximately $4 billion decrease in realized revenues is primarily due to an approximately
$3.1 billion decrease in power and natural gas realized revenues and an $862 million decrease in crude and
refined products realized revenues.

Power and natural gas realized revenues decreased primarily due to a 47 percent decrease in-power sales
volumes, partially offset by a 5 percent increase in power sales prices. Sales volumes decreased because Power
did not replace certain long-term physical contracts that expired or were terminated in 2003, primarily due to a
lack of market liquidity and past efforts to reduce our commitment to the Power business. In addition, results
for 2003 include a realized gain of $126.8 million based on the terms of an agreement to terminate a derivative
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contract. In addition, during 2003, revenues include the correction of the accounting treatment previously
applied to certain third party derivative contracts during 2002 and 2001, resulting in the recognition of
approximately $117 million in revenues attributable to prior periods. Refer to Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information. Additionally, power and natural gas revenues in 2003 include a
$37 million reduction for increased power rate refunds owed to the state of California as the result of FERC
rulings. Crude and refined products revenues decreased primarily due to the sale of the crude gathering
business in 2003, the sale of the refined products business in 2004 and the past efforts to exit this line of
business.

In 2004, Power had net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains of $304 million, an increase of
$41.9 million from 2003. The increase in unrealized gains is due to a $75 million increase associated with
power and gas contracts, partially offset by an $11 million decrease in crude and refined products and a
$22 million decrease in the interest rate portfolio. The increase in power and gas primarily results from a
greater increase associated with near-term natural gas forward prices in 2004 than in 2003. Also contributing
to the increase was the absence in 2004 of unrealized losses of approximately $70 million recognized in first
quarter 2003 on contracts for which we elected the normal purchases and sales exception in second quarter
2003, Another factor contributing to the increase was the impact of cash flow hedge accounting, which was
prospectively applied to certain of Power’s forecasted transactions beginning October 1, 2004. A net loss of
$15 million related to the effective portion of the hedges was reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income in 2004, The decrease in crude and refined products primarily results from the sale of the crude
gathering business in 2003, the sale of the refined products business in 2004 and the past efforts to exit this line
of business. These activities led to a significantly smaller derivative position in 2004 than in 2003 which
resulted in lower unrealized mark-to-market gains. The decrease in the interest rate-portfolio is due primarily
to a decrease in forward interest rates in first quarter 2004 compared to a slight increase in first quarter 2003.

The $3.9 billion decrease in Power’s cost of sales is primarily due to a decrease in power and natural gas
costs of approximately $3 billion and a decrease in crude and refined products costs of $904.5 million. Power
and natural gas costs decreased primarily due to a 48 percent decrease in power purchase volumes, partially
offset by a 2 percent increase in power prices. A $10.4 million reduction to certain contingent loss accruals in
2004 and a $13.8 million loss for other contingencies in 2003, both associated with power marketing activities
in California during 2000 and 2001, contributed to the decrease in costs discussed above. Costs in 2004 also
reflect a $13 million payment made to terminate a nonderivative power sales contract, which partially offsets

the decrease in power and natural gas costs. Crude and refined products costs decreased primarily due to the
sale of the crude gathering business in 2003, the sale of the refined products business in 2004, and other past
efforts to exit this line of business.’

The $40.8 million decrease in SG&A4 expenses is largely due to a $36 million decline in compensation
expense, primarily as a result of staff reductions in prior years combined with the accelerated recognition of
$13.6 million in 2003 of certain deferred compensation arrangements. In addition, a $6.3 million reduction of
allowance for bad debts resulting from the 2004 settlement with certain California utilities and the absence of
a $6.5 million bad debt charge associated with a termination settlement in 2003 also contributed to the
decrease.

Other (income) expense — net in 2004 includes $6.1 million in fees related to the sale of certain
receivables to a third party. Other (income) expense — net in 2003 includes a $188 million gain from the sale
of an energy-trading contract and a $13.8 million gain from the sale of certain investments. These income
items are partially offset by the effect of the following 2003 items:

¢ A $20 million charge for a settlement with the CFTC;

*+ Accruals of $19.5 million for power marketing activities in California in prior periods (see Note 15
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements);

¢ A $45 million impairment of goodwill;

» A $44.1 million impairment on a power generating facility (see Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements); .
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» A $14.1 million impairment associated with the Aux Sable partnershrp investment (see Note 3 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

The $58 4 million decrease in segment profir is primarily due to lower sales volumes and the absence in
2004 of income from certain terminated contracts and prior period adjustments and the effect of the other
income changes noted above, partrally offset, by lower SG&A expense.

Gas Pipeline
Overview

We operate, through our Northwest Pipeline and Transco subsidiaries, approximately 14,600 miles of
pipeline from the Gulf Coast to the northeast United States and from northern New Mexico to the Pacific
northwest with a total annual throughput of approximately 2,600 trillion BTUs. Additionally, we hold a
50 percent interest in Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. (Gulfstream). This asset, which extends from
the Mobile Bay area in Alabama to markets in Florida, has current transportation capac1ty of 1.1 billion cubic
feet per day. o

Our strategy to create value for our shareholders focuses on maximizing the utilization of our pipeline
capacity by providing high quality, low cost transportation of natural gas to large and growing markets.

Gas Pipeline’s interstate transmission and storage. activities are subject to regulation by the FERC and as
such, our rates and charges for the transportation of natural gas in interstate commerce, and the extension,
expansion or abandonment of jurisdictional facilities and accounting, among other things, are subject to
regulation. The rates are established through the FERC’s ratemaking process. Changes in commodity prices
and volumes transported have little impact on revenues because the majonty of cost of service is recovered
through ﬁrm capacity reservatlon charges in transportation rates.

Significant events of 2005
Grays Harbor

Effective January 2005, Duke Energy Tradmg and Marketing, LLC. (Duke). terminated its ﬁrm
transportation agreement related to Northwest Pipeline’s Grays Harbor lateral. In January 2005, Duke paid
Northwest Pipeline $94 million for the remaining book value of the asset and the related income taxes. We
and Duke have not agreed on the amount of the income taxes due Northwest Pipeline as a result of the
contract termination. We have deferred the $6 million difference between the proceeds and net book value of
the lateral pending resolution of the disputed early termmatlon obligation. v :

On June 16, 2005, we filed a Petition for a Declaratory Order with the FERC requestmg that it rule.on
our interpretation of our tariff to aid in resolving the dispute with Duke. On July 15, 2005, Duke filed a motion
to intervene and provided comments supporting its position concerning the issues in dispute.

Gulfstream pipeline expansions

Gulfstream completed a major extension and began service under newbontraets in 2005.

+ In February, the 110-mile Phase II natural gas pipeline expansion was placed into service. This
facilitated the increase of long-term transportation volumes by 350 million cubic feet per day.

« In June, Gulfstream began incremental natural gas transportation service of 400,000 dekatherms per
day (Dth/d) for two major Florida utilities. -

« In August, Gulfstream established transportation service of up to 48,000 Dth/d for an additional
Florida utility. :

With these additional agreements, Gulfstream’s long-term. transportation commitment is now approxi-
mately 69 percent of total pipeline capacity. : :
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Litigation related fo recovery of fuel costs .

In August 2005, pursuant to a settlement agreement, we resolved all outstanding issues pertaining to a
regulatory filing involving recovery ‘of certain fuel costs in prior periods. As a result of this ruling, we
recognized income of $14.2 million from the reversal of a related liability.

. Central New Jersey Expansion Project.

In November 2005, Transco began operation of the 3.5-mile Central New Jersey Expansion Project on
our Transco natural gas pipeline system. The expansion provides an additional 105,000 Dth/d of firm natural
gas transportation service in Transco’s northeastern market area. The capacity has been fully subscribed by a
single shipper for a twenty-year term.

Significant 2005 adjustments
Operating results for the year include:

« Adjustments of $17.7 million were recorded, reflected as a $12.1 million reduction of costs and

- operating expenses and a $5.6 million reduction of SG&A expenses. These cost reductions were
‘corrections of the carrying value of certain liabilities that were recorded in prior periods. Based on a
review by management, these liabilities were no longer required.

+ Pension expense was reduced by $17.1 million in the second quarter of 2005 to reflect the cumulative
impact of a correction of an error attributable to 2003 and 2004. The error was associated with our
third-party actuarial computation of annual net periodic pension expense and resulted from the
identification of errors in certain Transco participant data involving annuity contract information
utilized for 2003 and 2004. ’

» Adjustments of $37.3 million reflected as increases in costs and operating expenses related to
$32.1 million of prior period accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items and an
accrual of $5.2 million for contingent refund obligations.-

Our management concluded that the effects of these adjustments are not material to our consolidated results
for 2005 or prior periods, or to our trend of earnings.

Outlook for 2006
Filing of rate cases

During 2006, we will be focused on successfully filing rate cases for both Transco and Northwest Pipeline
subsidiaries which are expected to result in new transportation and storage rates beginning in 2007.

FERC Order “Accounting for Pipeline Assessment Cost”

- FERC Order “Accounting for Pipeline Assessment Costs,” effective January 1, 2006, requires FERC-
regulated companies to expense certain pipeline integrity-related assessment costs that we have historically
capitalized. As a result of this Order we anticipate expensing approximately $27 million to $35 million of costs
expected to be incurred in 2006 that would have been capitalized prior to the Order becoming effective.

Northwest pipeline capacity replacement project

In September 2005, we received FERC approval to construct and operate approximately 80 miles of
36-inch pipeline loop, which will replace most of the capacity previously served by 268 miles of 26-inch
pipeline in the Washington state area. The estimated cost of the project is $333 million, with an anticipated in-
service date of November 1, 2006.
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Colorado gas pipeline expansion

In January 2006, we filed an application with the FERC to construct a 38-mile expansion that would
provide additional natural gas transportation capacity in northwest Colorado. The planned expansion would
increase capacity by 450,000 Dth/d through the 30-inch diameter line and is estimated to cost $55 million.
We are currently in discussions with shippers to determine the level of commitment and anticipate beginning
service on the expansion in January 2007. :

Leidy 1o Long Island expansion project

In December 2005, we filed an application with the FERC to construct an expansion of our existing
facilities in the northeast United States. This project will provide 100,000 Dth/d of incremental firm capacity,
which has been fully subscribed for a twenty-year primary term. The estimated capital cost of the project is
approximately $121 million with three-quarters of that spending expected to occur in 2007. The expansion is
expected to be in service by November 1, 2007.

Year-Over-Year Operating Results
k Years Ended December 31,

2005 . 2004 2003
. . ‘(Millions)
Segment revenues ......... . P $1,412.8  $1,3623  $1,368.3
“Segment profit .............. P e PR $ 5858 $ 3858 § 555.5

During 2004, our management and decision-making‘control of certain regulated gas gathering assets were
transferred from our Midstream segment to our Gas Pipeline segment. Consequently, the results of operations
were similarly reclassified and all prior periods reflect this reclassification.

2005 vs. 2004

The $50.5 million, or 4 percent, increase in Gas Pipeline revenues is due primarily to $86 million higher
revenues associated with exchange imbalance cash-out settlements (offset in costs and operating expenses).
Partially offsetting this increase is $24 million lower transportation revenues due primarily to the termination
of the Grays Harbor contract, and $11 million lower revenues associated with reimbursable costs; which are
passed through to customers (offset in costs and operating expenses and SG&A expenses).

Costs and operating expenses increased $109 million, or 16 percent, due primarily to:
+ An increase in costs of $86 million associated with exchange imbalances (offset in revenues);

+ The increase in costs of $32.1 million due to pnor period accounting and valuation corrections
related to inventery, as previously discussed; ‘

* Anincrease in operating and maintenance expense of $14 million due primarily to increased contract
service costs, materials and supplies and rental fees;

T The increase in costs of $5.2 million due to an accrual for contmgent refund obligations, as
prev1ously discussed.

Partially offsetting these increases are decreases due to:

» Income of $14.2 million associated with the resolution of the litigation related to recovery of gas
COosts;

» The cost reduction of $12.1 mllllon due to adjustmg the carrymg value of certain liabilities as noted
previously;

» Lower reimbursable costs of 35 million (offset in revenues).
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SG&A expenses decreased approximately $38 million, or 31 percent, due to the $17.1 million reduction in
pension costs to correct a prior period error, $6 million lower reimbursable costs (offset in revenues), and the
reversal of $5.6 million of prior period accruals.

- Comparative segment: profit is unchanged from 2004 The followmg are significant components of 2005
segment profit: : : ‘

+ The reduction in pension costs of $17.1 ‘million to correct a prior period error;

» An increase in Gulfstream equity earnings of $14 million due to.the realization of a $4.6 million
construction fee award on the completion of the Phase II expansion project coupled with increased
Tevenues associated with the Gulfstream expansions; .

+ Income of $14.2 million from the reversal of the contmgency related to recovery of gas costs;’

* The $17.7 million reversal of prior period accruals;

-« The increase in costs of $32.1 million due to prior period.‘accounting and valuation corrections
related to inventory;

* An increase in operating and maintenance expense of $14 million due primarily to increased contract
service costs, materials and supplies and rental fees;

« A decrease in transportation revenue of $24 million due prlmanly to the termmatlon of the Grays
Harbor contract

2004 vs. 2003 . ‘ ‘
The $6 million decrease in Gas Pipeline revenues is due to the following:

» A decrease in revenue of $25 million associated with reimbursable costs, which are passed through to
customers (offset in costs and operating expenses and SG&A expenses);

*» A decrease in revenues of $12 million due to lower environmental mitigation credits;
¢ A decrease in revenue of $9 million due to less short-term revenues at Northwest Pipeline;
+ A decrease in revenue of $5 million due to reduced commodity revenues at Transco._

Partially offsetting these revenue reductions is' $46 million higher transportation revenue primarily from
expansion projects.

Costs and operating expenses decreased $2 million due primarily to:
A decrease in reimbursable costs of $18 million (offset in revenues);

» A decrease in expenses of $8.5 million related to adjustments to depreciation recognized in a prior
period;

» A decrease in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense of $8 million related to capitalized
environmental mitigation credits;

« The absence of a $4 million write-off of certain receivables at Transco in 2003.
These decreases were partially offset by:
« An increase in maintenance expense of $11 million;

+ An increase in fuel expense of $10 million at Transco reflecting a reduction in pricing differentials on
the volumes of gas used in operations as compared to 2003;

» An increase in costs of $7 million associated with exchange imbalances;

+ An increase in regulatory charges of $5 million.
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"+ SG&A expenses decreased $11 million, or 9 percent, due primarily to $6 million lower reimbursable costs
(offset in revenues) and $4 million lower rent resulting from the terms -of a new office lease at Transco. ..

Other (income) expense — net in 2004 includes an approximate $9 million charge for the write-off of
previously capitalized costs incurred on an idled segment of Northwest Pipeline’s system that we determined
will not be returned to service. Other (income) expense — net in 2003 includes a $25.6 million charge at
Northwest Pipeline to write off capitalized software development costs for a service delivery system following a
decision not to implement and $7.2 million of income at Transco resulting from a reduction of accrued
liabilities for claims associated with certain producers as a.result of settlements and court rulings (see Royalty
indemnifications in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

The $30.3 million, or 5 percent, increase in segment profi, which includes equity earnings and income
(loss) from investments is due to the following: ' :

-+ The a‘bsence of the 2003 $25.6 million charge discussed abo?e;
-+ A $13.4 million increase in equity earnings due primarily from our investment in Gulfstream;
« A $12 million increase in revenues, excluding reimbursable costs that do not impact segment profit,
"o A $5 million redﬁction in SG&A expense, excluding re‘imbursable costs that do not impact segment
profit. . ‘ ' o B
These increases to segment profit were partially offset by:

» A $9 million charge for the write-off of previously capitalized costs discussed above;

* A $9 million increase in costs and operating expenses, excluding reimbursable costs that do not
impact segment profit; ’

.+ The absence of the 2003 $7.2. million of income resulting from a reduction of accrued liabilities.

Exploration & Production
Overview of 2005

In 2003, we continued our strategy to rapidly expand the development of our significant drilling inventory
located in our key growth basins. Our major accomplishments for the year include:

« Increased average ‘daily domestic production levels by approximately 18 percent from last year,
surpassing our goal of 15 percent. The domestic average daily production for the year ending
December 31, 2005, was approximately 612 million cubic feet of gas equivalent (MMcfe) compared
to 519 MMcfe in 2004. '
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2005 domestic production grew 18 percent or 93 MMcfe per day over 2004

» Benefited from higher market prices which, in turn, increased our net realized average prices
received for production volumes sold. Net realized average prices include market prices, net of hedge
positions, less gathering and transportation expenses. We realized net domestic average prices of
$4.69 per thousand cubic feet of gas equivalent (Mcfe) compared with $3.17 per Mcfe in 2004, an
increase of approximately 48 percent.

+ Increased our development drilling program throughout 2005, surpassing annual drilling activities
prior to 2005. We drilled 1,629 gross wells in 2005 compared to 1,395 in 2004. Capital expenditures
for domestic drilling, development, and acquisition activity in 2005 were approx1mately $768 million
compared to approximately $436 million in 2004.

The benefits of higher production volumes and higher net realized average prices were partially offset by
increased operating costs and increased derivative hedge losses in 2005. The increase in operating costs was
primarily the result of escalated overall production and maintenance activities among oil and gas producers,
which increased competition for drilling rigs and services in our basins. The increase in hedge losses was
primarily due to higher market prices associated with our NYMEX collars and fixed hedge positions.

Significant events of 2005

In March 2005, we entered into a contract for the operation of ten new drilling rigs, each for a lease term
of three years. This arrangement supports our plan to accelerate the pace of natural gas development in the
Piceance. basin through both deployment of the additional rigs and also as a result of the drilling and
operational efficiencies the new rigs are designed to deliver. We received our first two rigs in January and
February 2006, and they have begun drilling. Although we originally expected to deploy on¢ new rig per month
beginning in November 2003, delays occurred as construction was impacted by the hurricanes experienced in
the Gulf.

During the second quarter of 2005, we acquired an acreage position with a few producing wells in the
Fort Worth basin in north-central Texas. In early January 2006, we increased our position in this basin. Our
entry into this basin allows us to own an operated position that has potential for significant growth. It increases
our diversification into the Mid-Continent region and allows us to use our horizontal drilling expertise to
develop wells in the Barnett Shale formation.
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Outlook for 2006
Our expectations for 2006 include:

+ Continuing our development drilling program in our key basins of Piceance, Powder River,
San Juan, and Arkoma. We have increased our planned capital expenditures for 2006 to between
$950 million and $1.05 billion. The ten new drilling rigs are dedicated specifically to drilling activity
in the Piceance basin.

¢ Increasing our domestic -average daily production level of 612 MMcfe for the year ending
December 31, 2005, by 15 to 20 percent by the end of 2006.

Approximately 299 MMcfe of our forecasted 2006 daily production of 750 to 825 MMcfe is hedged at
prices that average $3.82 per Mcfe at a basin level. In addition, we entered into the following collar
agreements:

» NYMEZX collar agreement for approximately 50 MMcfe per day of our 2006 production at a floor
price of $6.50 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $8.25 per Mcfe;

« NYMEX collar agreement for approximately 15 MMcfe per day of our 2006 production at a floor
price of $7.00 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $9.00 per Mcfe;

» Northwest Pipeline/Rockies collar agreement for approximately 50 MMcfe per day of our 2006
production at a floor price of $6.05 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $7.90 per Mcfe at a basin level.

Risks to achieving our objectives include drilling rig availability, including timely deliveries of the

contracted new rigs, as well as obtaining permits as planned for drilling. -

Year-Over-Year Operating Results
Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
. - (Millions)
Segment revenues ............. e [ $1,269.1  $777.6  $779.7
Segment Profit .. .. .....couiiiii e ... $ 5872 $2358  $401.4

2005 vs. 2004

The $491.5 million, or 63 percent increase in revenues is primarily due to an increase in domestic
production revenues of $434 million during 2005 reflecting higher net realized average prices and higher
productien volumes sold. Also contributing to the increase is a $58 million increase in revenues from gas
management activities and $13 million increased production revenues from our international operations.
Partially offsetting these increases is a $10 million loss due to hedge ineffectiveness.

The increase in dornestic production revenues primarily results from $319 million higher revenues
associated with a 42 percent increase in net realized average prices for production sold as well as a
$115 million increase associated with an 18 percent increase in average daily production volumes. The higher
net realized average prices reflect the benefit of the lower volumes hedged in 2005 as compared to 2004
coupled with higher market prices for natural gas. The increase in production volumes primarily reflects an
increase in the number of producing wells resulting from our successful 2005 drilling program.

To manage the commodity price risk and volatility of owning producing gas properties, we enter ifnto
derivative forward sales contracts that economically lock in a price relating to a portion of our future
production. Approximately 47 percent of domestic production in 2005 was hedged at a weighted average price
of $3.99 per Mcfe at a basin level. In addition, we entered into the following colldr agreements for 2005:

* NYMEX collar agr'eement for approximately 50 ‘MMcfe per day for the first quarter of 2005 at a
floor price of $7.50 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $10.49 per Mcfe.
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+ NYMEX collar agreement for approximately S0 MMcfe per day for the second, third and fourth
quarter of> 2005 at a floor price of $6.75 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $8.50 per. Mcfe.

. » Northwest Pipeline/Rockies collar agreement for approximately 50 MMcfe per day for the fourth
quarter of 2005 at a floor price of $6.10 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $7.70 per Mcfe at a basin
level.

These hedges are executed with our Power segment which, in turn, executes offsetting derivative
contracts with unrelated third parties. Generally, Power bears the counterparty performance risks associated
with unrelated third parties. Hedging decisions are made considering our overall commodity risk exposure and
are not executed independently by Exploration & Production.

Total costs and expenses increased $147 million, primarily due to the following:

« $62 million higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense pnmanly due to higher
production volumes and increased capitalized drilling costs;

« $16 million higher lease operatmg expense from the increased number of producing wells and
generally higher industry costs;

« $23 million higher operating taxes primarily due to increased market prices and production volumes
sold; '

« $18 million higher SG&A expenses primarily due to higher compensation and increased staffing in
2005 in support of increased drilling and operational activity;

+ $58 million higher gas management expenses associated with higher revenues from gas management
activities;

+ $11 million lower gain in 2005 than in 2004 on the sale of securities associated with our coal seam
‘royalty trust that were previously purchased for resale.

These increased costs and expenses are partially offset by the absence in 2005 of a $15.4 million loss provision
related to an ownership dispute on prior period production in 2004, a $7.9 million gain on the sale of an
undeveloped leasehold position in Colorado in the first quarter of 2003, and a $21.7 million gain on the sale of
certain outside operated properties in the Powder River basin area of Wyoming in the third quarter of 2005.

The $351.4 million increase in segment profit is primarily due to increased revenues from higher volumes
and higher net realized average prices, as well as the gains on sales of assets, partially offset by higher expenses
as discussed above. Segment profit also includes a $19 million increase reflecting higher revenues and equity
earnings resulting from higher net realized oil and gas prices primarily from our Apco Argentina operations.

2004 vs. 2003

The $2.1 million, or less than [ percent, decrease in revenues is primarily due to the absence of
$24 million in income realized during 2003 from derivative instruments that did not qualify for hedge
accounting, partially offset by an increase in domestic production revenues of $22 million during 2004. The
increase in domestic production revenues primarily results from $49 million higher revenues associated with a
9 percent increase in production volumes partially offset by $27 million lower revenues associated with a
4 percent decrease in net realized average prices for production sold. Net realized average prices include the
éffect ‘of hedge positions which were at prices below market levels. The increase in production volumes
primarily reflects an increase in the number of producing wells resultmg from our successful 2004 dnlhng
program.

Approximately 77 percent of domestic production in 2004 was hedged at a weighted average price of
$3.65 per MMcfe at a basin level. :
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Total costs and expenses increased-$167 million, which includes the absence of $95 million in net gains on
sales of assets occurring in. 2003. The remaining increase in costs and expenses primarily reflects:

+ $18 million higher depreciation, depletion and amortlzatlon expense primarily from increased
production volumes as well as increased capitalized drilling costs that reflect greater levels of drilling
and increased prices for tubular goods occurring in response to supply conditions in the worldwide

steel market;

+ $20 million higher lease operatmg expense associated with the hlgher number of producing wells and
increased well maintenance activities, higher labor and fuel costs, and increased overhead payments
to another operator;

» $17 million higher operating taxes due primarily to increased production volumes sold;

» A $16 million gain from the sales of securities, associated with a coal seam royalty trust, that were
- previously purchased for resale :

» A $15.4 million loss prov151on regarding an ownershlp dxspute on pnor period production.

The $165.6 million decrease in segment profit is due pr1mar11y to the absence of $95 million in net gains
on sales of assets occurring in-2003, the increase in operating expenses, and the loss provision of $15.4 million
relating to an ownership dispute on prior. period production partially offset by the $16 million gain attributable
to the sales of securities associated with our coal seam royalty trust that were purchased for resale. Segment
profit also includes $25 million and $18 million related to international activities for 2004 and 2003,
respectively. This increase is primarily driven by the improved operating results of Apco Argentina.

Midstream Gas & Liquids
Overview of 2005

In 2005, Midstream’s ongoing strategy was to safely and reliably operate large-scale midstream
infrastructure where our assets can be fully utilized and drive low per-unit costs. Our business is focused on
consistently attracting new volumes to our assets by providing highly reliable service to our customers.

The following factors influenced our business in 2003

Formation of Williams f’ari;zers L.P

In February 2005, we formed Williams Partners L.P., a limited partnership, to complement our business
strategy by providing access to a lower cost of capital to further expand the scale of our operations. On
August 23, 2005, we completed our initial public offering (IPO) of five million common units of Williams
Partners L.P. at a price of $21.50 per unit. The undérwriters also fully exercised their option to purchase an
additional 750,000 common units at the same price. Williams Partnérs L.P. owns a 40 percent equity
investment in the Discovery gathering, transportation, processing and natural gas liquids (NGL) fractionation
svstem; the Carbonate Trend sour gas gathering pipeline; three integrated NGL storage facilities near
Conway, Kansas; and a 50 percent interest in an NGL fractionator near Conway, Kansas. Upon completion of
the transaction, we held approximately 60 percent of the limited pdrtnership units in Williams Partners L.P.
and 100 percent of the general partner, Williams Partners GP, LLC.

Impact of hurricanes’

 Hurricanes Dennis, Katrina and Rita caused temporary shut-downs of most of our facilities and our
producers’ facilities in the Gulf Coast region, which reduced product flows resulting in lower segment profit of
an estimated $17 million, which includes our insured property damage deductible, in the second half of 2005.
Our major facilities resumed normal operations shortly after the passage of each hurricane except for our
Devils Tower spar and Cameron Meadows gas processing plant. The Devils Tower deepwater spar was shut in
on August 27, 2005, due to Hurricane Katrina and returned to service in early November. The Cameron
‘Meadows natural gas processing plant near Johnson Bayou, Louisiana sustained significant damage from
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Hurricane Rita on September 24, 2003. The plant returned to limited service in February 2006. We are
pursuing a business interruption claim with our insurance carrier but have not rccogmzed any amounts related
to this pendlng clalm

Expanszon eﬁ”orts in growth areas

Consistent w1th our strategy, we continued to expand our Midstream operations where we have large
scale assets in growth basins. On October 5, 2005, we signed definitive agreements to construct, own and
operate a 37-mile extension of our oil and gas pipelines from our Devils Tower spar to the Blind Faith prospect
located in Mississippi Canyon. This extension, estimated to cost $177 million, is expected to be ready for
service by the third quarter of 2007. Also, in September we received Board approval to expand our existing gas
processing plant located near Opal, Wyoming, by adding a fifth cryogenic train capable of processing up to
350° MMcfd. This plant expansion is expected to be in service by the second quarter of 2007 to begin-
processmg gas from the Pinedale Anticline field.

Favarable commodity price margins

The actual realized NGL per unit margins at our processing plants exceeded Midstream’s historical five-
year annual average for the last six quarters. However, the industry benchmark for NGL fractionation spreads
at Mont Belvieu, Texas was 40 percent below 2004 fractionation spreads. The geographic diversification of
Midstream assets contributed significantly to our actual realized unit margins ‘exceeding .the industry
benchmark at Mont Belvieu for gas processing spreads. The largest impact is realized at our western United
States gas processing plants, which benefit from lower regional market natural gas prices. A decline in volumes
in recent quarters is largely due to the third quarter impact of summer hurricanes on our Gulf Coast facilities
as well as lower fourth quarter NGL recoveries at our West region plants. The lower NGL recoveries in the
West were the result of intermittent periods in which the spread between NGL and natural gas prices was
such that it was uneconomical to recover NGLs. oo _ -

" Domestic Gathering and Processing
Net Per Unit NGL Margin with Production and Sales Volumes by Quarter
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Outlook for 2006 = . . . o
" The following factors coild impact our business. in 2006 and beyond.

+ As evidenced in recent years, natural gas and crude oil markets are highly volatile despite above
average margins at our gas processing plants in recent years. Although NGL margins earned at our
gas processing plants in 2005 were above the five-year average, we cxpcct unit margins in 2006 to

- trend downward towards historical averages. '

« Both gathenng and processing volumes at our facilities are also expected to be at or above levels of

previous years due to continued strong drilling actrvmes in our core basins. We expect continued

~_ expansion of our gathering and processing systems in our Gulf Coast and West regrons to keep pace
" with 1ncreased demand for our scrv1ces

.« In 2006, we will continue to invest-in facilities in the growth basins in whxch we provide services. The
phase I expansion of our Wamsutter gathering system 1s scheduled to be. operatronal during the first
quarter of 2006

* Based on recent market price forecasts we anticipate olefins unit margins to be somewhat lower than
2005 levels.

« As disclosed in the critical accounting policies and estimates section of this Item 7, it is possible that
our investment in our Canadian olefins assets may not be recoverable without modification to or a
renegotiation of key terms-in an .off-gas processing agreement. We are evaluatmg our alternatives . '
and wrll continue to monitor the recoverability of our investment.

* We expect continued growth in the deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexrco to contribute to, and
become a larger component of, our future segment revenues and segment proﬁt We expect these
" additional fee-based revenues to lower our proportionate exposure to commodity price risks.

+ Revenues from déepwater production areas are often subject to risks associated with the interruption
and timing of product flows which can be influenced by weather and other third-party operatronal

issues.

. .
v 4 '

Year-Over-Yeai Results
Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
. (Mfllions) .
Segment TEVENUes . ..........coo.n.... e $3,232.7 " $2,882.6 $2,784.8
Segment profit (loss) ' § : A
Domestic gathering & processing ........... T 379.7 . 3858 314.1
Venezuela ........... S T DU L 947 . 856 76.4
Other'. .. .o i 623 13407 (139.4)
Unallocated general and administrative expense S . (65.5) (557 (53.8)
Total ............. S A oo $ 471208 5497 $ 1973

In order .to provide additional clarity, our management discussion and analysis of operating results
separately reflects the portion' of general and administrative éxpense not allocated to an asset group as
Unallocated general and administrative expense above. These charges represent any overhead cost not directly
attributable to one of the specific asset groups | noted in this discussion.

2005 vs. 2004

The $350.1 million increase in Midstream’s revenues is largely due to higher commodity prices, offset
slightly by lower sales volumes. Revenues associated with production of NGLs increased $72 million, of which
$180 million is due to higher NGL prices partially offset by $108 million due to lower sales volumes. The

62




decline in sales volumes in our Gulf Coast region is largely due to the impact of summer hurricanes, while the
West region decline is largely due to the higher levels of NGL rejection as well as maintenance issues with our
gas processing facility at Opal, Wyoming. Crude marketing revenues increased $196 million as a result of the
start up of a deepwater pipeline in the second quarter of 2004 while the marketing of NGLs increased
$58 million as a result of both higher prices and additional spot sales. Both of these increases are offset by
similar increases.in costs. In addition, fee revenues increased $21 million in part due to hlgher customer
production volumes flowing to our West region and deepwater assets.

Costs and operating expenses increased $364.1 million primarily in support of higher revenues noted
above. Costs related to the production of NGLs increased $92 million as a result of $100 million in higher
natural gas purchases due largely to higher prices, partially offset by lower volumes. In addition, operating
expenses increased $33 million mostly due to higher fuel expense and commodity costs associated with our
NGL storage and fractionation business and higher depreciation expense. Similar to the impact to revenues,
total costs and operating expenses also increased $196 million due to higher crude marketing purchases and
$58 mllhon related to the marketing of NGLs and additional spot purchases.

The $78.5 million decline in Mldstream segment profit is' primarily due to the absence of the
$93.6 million gain from the Gulf Liquids’ insurance arbitration award in 2004. The offsetting increase in
segment profit is primarily due to higher fee revenues from our gathering and processing and Venezuela
businesses and higher earnings from our investment in the Discovery Partnership, partially offset by lower net
NGL madrgins and higher operating costs. A more detailed analysis of the segment profit .of Mldstream s
various operanons is presented below.

Domestic gathering & processing

The $6.1 million decrease in domestic gathering and processing segment profit includes a $30 million
decline in the Gulf Coast region, largely offset by a $24 million increase in the West region.

The $24 million increase in our West region’s segment profit primarily results from higher gathering and
processing fee revenues, and the absence of an asset write-down and other 2004 charges, offset partially by
higher operating expenses and lower net NGL margins. The significant drivers to these items are as follows:

» Gathering and processing fee revenues increased $18 million primarily as a result of higher average
per-unit gathering and processing rates and higher volumes in the Rocky Mountain production area -
due to increased drilling activity. A portion of this i lncrease is also due to the increase in volumes
subject to fee-based. processing contracts.

s Other (income) expense — net had a favorable variance of $10 million primarily due to the absence .
of the write-down of $7.6 millien for an idle treating fac1l1ty in 2004.

+ Net NGL margins decreased $6 million due to a $17 million impact from a decline in sales volumes
resulting from lower fourth quarter NGL recoveries caused by intermittent periods of uneconomical
market commodity prices and a power.outage and associated operational issues at our Opal,
Wyoming facility.. Net NGL margins are defined as NGL revenues less BTU replacement cost,
plant fuel, transportation and fractionation expense. The impact of lower volumes is partially offset

, by an $11 million impact of higher per unit NGL margins. ‘

The $30 million decrease in the Gulf Coast region’s segment profit is primarily a result of higher
operating and depreciation expenses and lower net liquids margins. The significant components of this decline
include the following: A

» Operating expenses 1ncreased $10 million primarily due to hlgher mainténance expenses related to
our gathering assets, compressor overhauls, and an increase in hurricane- related costs of $2 million.
Inspection and repair expenses related to the hurrlcanes are bemg recorded as incurred up to the
level of our insurance deductible.

+ Depreciation expense increased $13 million primarily due to placmg in service our Devils Tower spar
and associated deepwater gas and oil pipelines in May and June 2004, respectively.
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* Liquids margins declined $14 million due-to lower volumes, largely due to the impact of summer
hurricanes, and the-increase in natural gas prices. While revenues from the Devils Tower deepwater

" facility are recognized as volumes are delivered over the life of the reserves, cash payments from our
customers are based on a contractual fixed fee received over a defined term. As a result, $44 million
of cash received in 2005, which is included in cash flow from operations, was deferred at
December 31, 2005 and will be recognized as revenue in periods subsequent to 2005. The- total
amount deferred for all years as of December 31, 2005 was $80 million.

Venezuela

Segment profit for our Venezuela assets increased $9.1 million as a result of higher plant volumes and
higher equity earnings from our investment in the ACCROVEN partnership. The higher equity earnings are
largely due to the rcncgotlanon of a power supply contract and the absence of 2004 legal fees associated w1th

the J ose Terminal.
Other

The $71.7 million decrease in segment profit of our other operations is largely due to the absence of the
$93.6 million gain from the Gulf Liquids’ insurance arbitration award and a $9.5 million gain.on the sale of the
Choctaw ethylene distribution:assets-in- 2004 partially offset by $7 million in higher olefins and commedity
margins, $6 million in higher ‘earnings from our equity investment in the Discovery partnership, and the -
absence of a 2004 $16.9 million impairment charge also related to our equity investment in the Discovery

partnership.

Unallocated general and administrative expense

- The $9.8 million unfavorable variance for our unallocated general and administrative expense is primarily
due to higher employee expenses and admmlstratlve costs associated with the creation of Williams Partners,
L.P.

2004 vs. 2003 .

The $97.8 million increase in Midstream’s revenues is pnmanly the result of favorable commodxtv prices
on our gas processing and olefins businesses, largely offset by lower trading revenues resulting from the fourth-
guarter 2003 sale of our wholesale propane business. Revenues associated with production of NGLs increased
$417 mil]idn, of which $214 million is due to higher volumes and $203 million is due to higher NGL prices.
Olefins revenues increased $223 million as a result of both higher market prices and higher volumes. In
addition, our deepwater service revenues increased $9 million due to the addition of new infrastructure. Other
factors affecting total revenues include approximately $1 billion in lower trading revenues resulting from the
fourth-quarter 2003 sale of our wholesale propane business, partially offset by 2 $263 million increase as the
result of marketing NGLs-on béhalf of our customers. Before 2004, our purchases of customers’ NGLs were
netted ‘within revenues.. In 2004, these purchases of customers’ NGLs are included in costs and operating
expenses which substantially offset the change in revenues. Of this $263 million increase, approximately
$146 million results from the difference in financial reporting presentation; the remaining increase is due to
higher NGL volumes and prices. ‘Also partially offsetting the lower trading revenues is $141 million in higher
crude sales associated with the 2004 startup-of one of ‘out deepwater pipelines, which is offset in costs and
operating expenses.

Costs and operating expenses decreased $56 million prlmarlly as'a result of approx1mate1y $1 billion' in
lower trading costs due to the sale of our wholesale propane business in 2003. This decline was partially offset
by $312 million in higher costs related to the production of NGLs and $157 million in higher costs related to
the production of olefins products. These costs increased as a result of both the higher production volumes
noted above and the higher prices for natural gas and olefins feedstock. Maintenance and depreciation
expenses increased $33 million in large part due to newly constructed deepwater assets. Similar to the impact
to revenues, total costs and operating expenses increased $263 million due to the marketing of NGLs on behalf
of customers and $141 million in higher crude purchascs related to the same decpwater pipeline mentioned
above.
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The $352.4 million increase in Midstream segment. profit includes the $93.6 million gain from the Gulf
Liquids’ insurance arbitration award in 2004 and the absence of a $108.7 million impairment charge in 2003
related to these same assets, both of which are included in other (income) expense — net, within operating
income. The remaining increase in segment profit is primarily due to higher NGL and olefins production
volume and unit margins, higher service revenues, and reduced general and administrative expenses. These
increases are partially offset by higher operating expenses and asset impairment charges. A more detailed
analysis of segment profit of Midstream’s various operations is presented below,

Domestic gathering & processing

The $71.7 million increase in domestic gathering and processing segment profit includes a $64 1 million
increase in the West region and a $7.6 million increase in the Gulf Coast region.

The $64.1 million increase in our West region’s segment profit reflects higher NGL volume and unit
margins offset by lower fee revenues and higher operating expenses. Our West region’s net NGL margins for
2004 increased $69 million compared to the same period in 2003. Net NGL margins are defined as NGL
revenues less BTU replacement cost, plant fuel, transportation and fractionation expense. Average per unit
NGL margins increased 49 percent and comprised $51 million of the increase in NGL margins. As a result of
the higher spread between the prices of NGLs and natural gas, our West plants operated at near capacity and
produced 21 percent higher volumes comprising the remaining $18 million increase in NGL net margins.

The $7.6 million increase in our Gulf Coast region’s segment profit is due to higher NGL margins
partially offset by lower fee revenues and higher depreciation expense. The significant components of the net
increase include the following: ‘

» Net NGL margins at our Gulf Coast gas processing plants increased $35 million due to a
101 percent increase in NGL production volumes which represented $28 million of the increase in
margins. The significantly higher NGL volumes were driven by the favorable spread between NGL
and natural gas prices coupled with the recently completed production handling infrastructure
flowing additional deepwater gas production to our plants. Per unit margins in the Gulf Coast region
increased 13 percent and comprised the remaining ’$7 million increase in net NGL margins.

« Segment profit from our deepwater assets declined $20 million primarily due to $29 million in higher
costs associated with assets placed into service in the first two quarters of 2004 partially offset by
$9 million in higher services revenues. The increase in revenues includes $22 million in incremental
‘revenues from newly constructed assets partially offset by a $13 million decline in handling and
gathering revenues due to lower production volumes on other deepwater assets substantially resulting
from the effects of Hurricane Ivan. While revenues from the Devils Tower deepwater facility are
recognized as volumes are delivered over the life of the reserves, cash payments from our customers
" are based on a contractual fixed fee received over a defined term.- As a result, $36 million of cash
received, which is includéd in cash flow from operations, was deferred at December 31, 2004 and will
be recognized as revenue in periods subsequent to 2004.

Venezuela

The $9.2 m1111on increase in segment profit for our Venezuelan. assets is primarily due to the absence of
the financial impact of a fire at the El Furrial facility that reduced revenues by $10 million in the first quarter
of 2003.

Other

The $273.4 million increase in segment profit in our other businesses includes the $93.6 million Gulf
Liquids insurance arbitration award and the absence of $108.7 million in Gulf Liquids impairment charges in
2003. The remaining increase is comprised of the following:

+ Combined margins from our olefins businesses improved $66 million reflecting the overall improve-
ment in olefins pricing and higher production volumes. Market prices for ethylene and propylene
products increased due to higher demand and lower inventories. Production volumes increased as a
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result of increased spot sales and the new higher fixed margin contract at our Giesmar facility while
our Canadian and Gulf Liquids volumes benefited from improved plant operations.

+ The favorable variances above are partially offset by a 2004 $16.9 million impairment charge related
to our equity investment in the Discovery partnership, reflecting management’s assessment that
there was an other-than-temporary decline in the value of this investment.

Other
Overview of 2005

As discussed below, the $105 million 2005 Other segment loss is primarily associated with our equity
method investment in Longhorn. Shipping volumes on the Longhorn pipeline declined significantly during the
second quarter of 2005 compared to those experienced in the first quarter. The decline was due primarily to
the impact of significant changes in- transportation pricing competition and economics in the wake of
significantly higher crude oil prices. Longhorn management indicated that the shortfall in volumes was likely
to continue and that continued operation as originally planned was no longer economically feasible. As a
result, the owners and management of Lenghorn began evaluating several alternatives for the future operation
of Longhorn. ,

To ensure adequate liquidity to continue operations while assessing alternatives, during the third quarter
of 2005 Longhorn obtained a $25 million bridge loan commitment from existing investors. The loan is secured
by a first lien on the assets of Longhorn. We have fully funded our $10-million commitment of this loan, which
has a one-year term and an interest rate of 14 percent. Our receivable related to this loan is included in
accounts and notes receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The loan agreement allows for an additional
$25 million loan, secured by the same first lien on the assets of Longhorn. All existing investors will have the
opportunity to participate in funding the second $25 m11110n increment. We do not expect to participate as a
lender in this additional increment.

Based on management’s outlook for Longhorn at the end of the second quarter, we assessed our
investment in Longhorn to determine if there had been an other-than-temporary decline in its fair value. As a
result, we recorded an impairment of $49.1 million during the second quarter of 2003. In the fourth quarter of
2005, management of Longhorn decided to pursue a strategy of the sale of Longhorn. As a result, Longhorn is
negotiating a purchase and sale agreement. Based on initial indications from potential buyers, we determined
that our Longhorn investment would require full impairment. Therefore, in fourth quarter 2005, we recorded a
$38.1 million 1mpalrment to write off the remammg investment in Longhorn.

On Apnl 1, 2005 we completed a contract to transfer our Longhorn operanng agreement to a new
operator in exchange for payments of approximately $285,000 a month, adjusted for inflation, over the next
seven years. The transfer became effective May 1, 2005. Realization of the Longhorn operating agreement
payments is dependent upon the continued operation of Longhorn. Any payments received as a result of the
ongoing payment stream or through monetization of the contract will be recognized as income when received.

Outlook for 2006

Projected volumes indicate that Longhorn will continue to operate at a loss until a sale is complete.
However, as a result of the full write-off of our investment in Longhorn during the fourth quarter of 2005, we
will no longer recognize equity losses associated with this investment. We currently expect to receive full
payment on the $10 million bridge loan from the proceeds of the sale.

Year-Over-Year Operating Results
' : Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
o ‘ . (Millions)
Segment TEVENUESs ... ................ R e $.-27.2 $328 $ 720
Segment loss ...... A e $(105.0) $(41.6) $(50.5)




2005 vs. 2004

Other segment loss for 2005 includes $87.2 million .of impairment charges, of which $38.1 million- was
recorded during the fourth quarter, related to our investment in Longhorn. In a related matter, we wrote off
$4 million of capitalized project costs associated with Longhorn. We also recorded $23.7 million of equity
losses associated with our investment in Longhorn. Partially offsetting these charges and losses was a
$9 million fourth-quarter gain on the sale of land.

Other segment loss for 2004 includes $11.8 million of accrued environmental remediation expense
associated with the Augusta refinery. Also included in Other segment loss is $10.8 million of impairment
charges related to our investment in Longhorn, $9.8 million of equity losses associated with our investment in
Longhorn, and $6.5 million of net unreimbursed advisory fees related to the recapitalization of Longhorn.

2004 vs. 2003

Other segment revenues for 2003 includes approximately $22 million of revenues related to certain butane
blending assets, which were sold during third quarter 2003.

Other segment loss for 2004 includes various items which are discussed above. Other segment loss for
2003 includes a $43.1 million impairment related to our investment in equity and debt securities of Longhorn.
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Energy Trading Activities

Fair Value of Trading and Nontrading Derivatives

The chart below reflects the fair value of derivatives held for trading purposes as of December 31, 2003.
We have presented the fair value of assets and liabilities by the period in which we expect them to be realized.

:Net Assets (Liabilities) — Trading

‘(Millions) . ‘
To be " Tobe - . To be : To be To be
.. Realized in ) Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in
1-12 Months 13-36 Months 36-60 Months 61-120 Months 121+ Months Net
(Year 1) ' (Years 2-3) (Years 4-5) (Years 6-10) (Years 11+) Fair Value
$— 5(4) 5— 5— $— $(4)

As the table above illustrates, we are not materially engaged in trading activities. However, we hold a
substantial portfolio of nontrading derivative contracts. Nontrading derivative contracts are those that hedge or
could possibly hedge on an economic basis forecasted transactions. We have designated certain’ of these
contracts as cash flow hedges of Power’s forecasted purchases of gas, and purchases and sales of power related
to its long-term structured contracts and owned generation and Exploration & Production’s forecasted sales of
natural gas production. We began applying cash flow hedge accounting in our Power business in the fourth
quarter of 2004, after we decided to cease efforts to exit and to continue to operate the Power business. Many
of these derivatives had an existing fair value prior to their designation as cash flow hedges. Certain of Power's
other derivatives have not been designated as or do not qualify as SFAS 133 cash flow hedges. The chart
below reflects the fair value of derivatives held for nontrading purposes as of December 31, 2005, for both the
Power and Exploration & Production businesses. Of the total fair value of nontrading derivatives, SFAS 133
cash flow hedges had a net liability value of $6 million as of December 31, 2005, which includes the existing
fair value of the derivatives at the time of their designation as SFAS 133 cash flow hedges.

Net Assets (Liabilities) — Nontrading

(Millions)
To be To be To be To be To be
Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in
1-12 Months 13-36 Months 36-60 Months 61-120 Months 121+ Months Net
(Year 1) (Years 2-3) (Years 4-5) (Years 6-10) (Years 11+) Fair Value
$(219) $68 $240 $17 $— $106

Methods of Estimating Faiv Value

Most of the derivatives we hold settle in active periods and markets in which quoted market prices are
available. These include futures contracts, option contracts, swap agreements and physical commodity
purchases and sales in the commodity markets in which we transact. While an active market may not exist for
the entire period, quoted prices can generally be obtained for natural gas through 2012 and power through
2010.

These prices reflect current economic and regulatory conditions and may change because of market
conditions. The availability of quoted market prices in active markets varies between periods and commeodities
based upon changes in market conditions. The ability to obtain quoted market prices also varies greatly from
region to region. The time periods noted above are an estimation of aggregate availability of quoted prices. An
immaterial portion of our total net derivative value of $102 million relates to periods in which active quotes
cannot be obtained. We estimate energy commodity prices in these illiquid periods by incorporating
information about commodity prices in actively quoted markets, quoted prices in less active markets, and
other market fundamental analysis. Modeling and other valuation techniques, however, are not used
significantly in determining the fair value of our derivatives.
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Counterparty Credit Considerations

We include an assessment of the risk of counterparty nonperformance in our estimate of fair value for all
contracts. Such assessment considers (1) the credit rating of each counterparty as represented by public rating
agencies such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service, {(2) the inherent default probabilities
within these ratings, (3) the regulatory environment that the contract is subject to and (4) the terms of each
individual contract.

Risks surrounding counterparty performance and credit could ultimately impact the amount and timing
of expected cash flows. We continually assess this risk. We have credit protection within various agreements to
call on additional collateral support if necessary. At December 31, 2003, we held collateral support, including
letters of credit, of $607 million.

We also enter into netting agreements to mitigate counterparty performance and credit risk. During 2005
and 2004, we did not incur any significant losses due to recent counterparty bankruptcy filings.

The gross credit exposure from our derivative contracts as of December 31, 2005, is summarized below.

Investment

Counterparty Type . Grade(a) Total
: , _(Millions)
Gas and electric utilities. ................. P e e $ 5422 $ 5722
* Energy marketers and traders ... ............ioniiiiiii 3,930.1 7,568.6
Financial institutions . .. ... 1,851.1 1,851.1
Other .............. P P : 4 1.7
' | $6,3238 99936
Credit TESETVES . . .o\ i ettt et et e SR PRI (37.0)
Gross credit exposure from derivatives .. ................ RO ‘ $9,956.6

We assess our credit exposure on a net basis. The net credit exposure .from our derivatives as of
December 31, 20085, is summarized below.

' . Investment
Counterparty Type Grade(a) " Total
. : (Millions)

Gas and electric utilities.............. O $129.4 $ 142.1
Energy marketers and traders ............ ... ... oo, 401.1 976.7
Financial institutions ... ................... [P P 36.1 36.1
Other ..., S ST e . 4 1.4

$567.0 1,156.3
Credit TBSRIVES . .\ vttt e et e ‘ (37.0)
Net credit exposure from derivatives ................. . ..oivuiiin. $1,119.3

(a) We determine investment grade primarily using publicly available credit ratings. We included
counterparties with a minimum Standard & Poor’s rating of BBB— or Moody’s Investors Service rating
of Baa3 in investment grade. We also classify counterparties that have provided sufficient collateral,

such as cash, standby letters of credit, adequate parent company guarantees, and property interests, as
investment grade.

Trading Policy

We have policies and procedures that govern our trading and risk management activities. These policies
cover authority and delegation thereof in addition to control requirements, authorized commodities and term
and exposure limitations. Power’s value-at-risk is limited in aggregate and calculated at a 95 percent
confidence level.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
QOutlook

~ We believe we have, or have access to, the financial resources and liquidity necessary to meet future
requirements for working-capital, capital and mvestment expenditures and debt payments while mamtalmng a
sufficient level of liquidity to reasonably protect against unforeseen circumstances requiring the use of funds.
In 2006, we expect to continue to reduce debt through scheduled debt payments and exchanges, while
maintaining liquidity from cash and unused revolving credit facilities of at least $1 billion. We are maintaining
this level as we consider the potential impact of significant changes in commodity prices, contract margin
requirements above current levels, unplanned capital spending needs and the rieed to meet near term
scheduled debt payments. We expect to fund capital and investment expenditures, debt payments, dividends,
and working-capital requirements through cash flow from operations, which is currently estimated to be
between $1.6 billion and $1.9 billion in 2006, proceeds from debt issuances and sales of units of Williams
Partners, L.P., as well as cash and cash equivalents on hand as needed.

We enter 2006 positioned for growth through disciplincd investments in our natural gas businesses.
Examples of this planned growth include:

+ Gas Pipeline will continue to expand its system to meet the demand of growth markets. Additionally,
Northwest Pipeline will construct an 80 mile pipeline loop, which will replace most of the capacity
previously served by 268 miles of pipeline in the Washington state area. -

» Exploration & Production’s March 2005 operating lease agreement will provide access to ten new
drilling rigs each for a lease term of three years that will allow us to accelerate the pace of developing
our natural gas reserves in the Piceance basin through both deployment of the additional rigs and the

" rigs’ designed drilling and operational efficiencies. We received our first two rigs in January and
February 2006 and they have begun drilling.

o Midstream will continue to pursue 51gn1ﬁcant deepwater productlon commltments and expand
capacity in the western United States. :

We estimate capital and investment expenditures will total approximately $2 billion to $2.2 billion in
2006. Of the total estimated capital expenditures for 2006, $950 million to $1.1 billion is for capital
expenditures at Exploration & Production. Also within the total estimated expenditures for 2006 is
approximately $616 million to $681 million for maintenance-related projects at Gas Pipeline, including
pipeline replacement and Clean Air Act compliance. Commitments for-construction and acquisition of
property, plant and equipment are approximately $222 million at December 31, 2003.

In November 2005, we initiated an offer to induce ‘conversion of up to $300 million of the 5.5 percent
junior subordinated convertible debentures into our common stock. The conversion was executed in January
2006 and approximately $220.2 million of the debentures were exchanged for common stock. See Note 12 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerits for further 1nformat10n

We have proposed to sell an approximate 23 percent interest in our gathermg and proccssmg assets in the
Four Corners area to Williams Partners L.P. The terms of this proposed transaction, including price, will be
subject to the approval of our board of dlrectors and the board of d]rectors of the general partner of Williams -
Partners L.P.

Potential risks associated with our planned levels of liquidity and the planned capital and investment
expenditures discussed above include:

« Lower than expected levels of cash flow from operations due to commodity pricing volatility.

To mitigate this exposure, Exploration & Production has.economically hedged the price of natural
gas for approximately 414 MMcfe per day of its expected 2006 production of 750 to 825 MMcfe per
‘day. Power has entered into fixed forward sales contracts that economically cover substantially all of
its fixed demand obligations through 2010.
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« Sensitivity of margin requirements associated with our marginable commodity contracts.

As of December 2005, we estimate our exposure to additional margin requirements over the next
360 days to be no more than $567 million, using a statistical analysis at a 99 percent confidence level.

« Exposure associated with our efforts to resolve regulatory and litigation issues (see Note 15 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Overview

Liquidity
Our internal and external sources of liquidity include cash generated from our operations, bank
financings, proceeds from asset sales and issuance of long-term debt and equity securities. While most of our
sources are available to us at the parent level, others are available to certain of our subsidiaries, including

equity issuances from Williams Partners, L.P. Our ability to raise funds in the capital markets will be
impacted by our financial condition, interest rates, market conditions, and industry conditions.

Available Liquidity
Year Ended

December 31, 2005
. . (Millipns)
Cash and cash equivalents™ ... ... .. ... .. $1.597.2
- Auction rate securities and othér liquid securities ......................... 122.9
Available capacity under our four unsecured revolving and letter of credit
" facilities totaling $1.2 billion........... O A P 64.5
Available capacity under our $1.275 billion secured revolving and letter of
credit facility™ ™ . . . 897.0
Additional Liquidity
Shelf registration for a variety of debt and equity securities. ... .. .. Cereeeens $2,200.0
Shelf registration for debt only available to Northwest Pipeline and
Transco™** . ... ...... e $ 3500

* Cash and cash equivalents includes $320.7 million of funds received from third parties as collateral. The
obligation for these amounts is reported as customer margin deposits payable on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

** This facility is secured by the common stock of Transco and guaranteed by Williams Gas Pipeline
Company, L.L.C. Northwest Pipeline and Transco each have access to $400 million under this facility to
the extent not utilized by us. Williams Partners L.P. has access to $75 million, to the extent not utilized
by us that we guarantee.

*** The ability of Northwest Pipeline to utilize these registration statements for debt securities is restricted
by certain covenants of its debt agreements. So long as our credit rating is below investment grade,
Northwest Pipeline and Transco can only use their shelf registration statements to issue debt if such debt
is guaranteed by us.

Financial ratios and credit ratings

One of our objectives for 2006 is to continue the improvement in our financial. ratios, with the ultimate
goal of achieving ratios comparable to investment grade rated companies at some point in the future. Our
end-of-year debt to capitalization ratio is 58.7 percent in 2005, 61.6 percent in 2004 and 74.5 percent in 2003.
We expect the ratio to be 55 to 57 percent for 2006. Debt includes long-term debt .and long-term debt due
within one year. Capitalization includes long-term debt due within one year, long-term debt, and stockholders’
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equiry. If the improvement in our ratios continues, our credit ratings may improve. However, a decline in our
financial ratios, or other adverse events, could result in a ratings decline. Current ratings are:

Current Senior Unsecured Debt Ratings

Northwest .
Williams Pipeline Transco
Standard & Poor’s ... ... . B+ B+ B+
Moody’s Investors SErvice . ... .ot i e Bl Ba2 Ba2
Fitch Ratings . ... i BB BB+ BB+

In mid-2003, Standard & Poor’s raised our debt ratings outlook from stable to positive. With respect to
Standard & Poor’s, a rating of “BBB’’ or above indicates an investment grade rating. A rating below “BBB”
indicates that the security has significant speculative characteristics. A “B” rating indicates that Standard and
Poor’s believes the issuer has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation, but that adverse
business, financial or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor’s capacity or willingness to meet ifs
financial commitment to the obligation. Standard and Poor’s may modify its ratings with a “+” or a “—” sign
to show the obligor’s relative standing within a major rating category.

With respect to Moody’s, a rating of “Baa” or above indicates an investment grade rating. A rating below
“Baa” is considered to have speculative elements. A “Ba” ranking indicates an obligation that is judged to
have speculative elements and is subject to substantial credit risk.-A “B” rating from Moody’s signifies an
obligation that is considered speculative and is subject to high credit risk. The “1”, “2” and “3” modifiers
show the relative standing within a major category. A “1” indicates that an obligation ranks in the higher end
of the broad rating category, “2” indicating a mid-range rankmg, and “3” ranking at the lower end of the
category.

In March 2006, Fitch raised our debt ratings outlook from stable to positive. With respect to Fitch, a
rating of “BBB” or above indicates an investment grade rating. A rating below “BBB” is considered
speculative grade. A “BB” rating from Fitch indicates that there is a possibility of credit risk developing,
particularly as the result of adverse economic change over time; however, business or financial alternatives
may be available to allow financial commitments to be met. Fitch may add a “+” or a “~” sign to show the
obligor’s relative standing within a major rating category. o

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of debt covenants and ratios.

Year Ended’
December 31, 2005
. (Millions) ..
Net cash provided (used) by:
- Operating activVities . ... ittt i e e $1,4499 .
Financing activities ........... [ P ' 36.5
Investing activities . ... ..ot e (819.2) -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents............. e P v $ 667.2

Operating Activities

Our 2005 net cash provided by operating activities decreased slightly from 2004 and increased by
88 percent from 2003. A primary driver in net cash provided by operating activities is income from continuing
operations, which increased primarily as a result of higher gas production volumes and net average realized
prices for production sold. Refer to Results of Operations in Item 7 for more detailed information regarding
income from continuing operations. Also contributing to the increase in income from continuing operations is
the'reduction in interest expense due to lower average borrowing levels. Cash payments for interest decreased
$224 million from 2004. In addition to the changes in results of operations, net cash inflows' from margin
deposits. and customer margin deposits payable decreased significantly from 2004. In 2004, our Power

72




subsidiary issued a significant number of letters of credit to replace its cash margin deposits. As the letters of
credit were issued, the counterparties returned our cash margin deposits to us. Due to fewer letters of credit
being issued to replace cash margin deposits in 2005 and 2003, we have fewer receipts of margin deposits than
in 2004.

Other, including changes in noncurrent assets and liabilities, includes contributions to our tax-qualified
pension plans of $52.1 million, $136.8 million and $42.8 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. It is our
policy to make annual contributions to our tax-qualified pension plans in an amount equal to the greater of the
actuarially computed annual normal cost plus any unfunded actuarial accrued liability, amortized over
approximately five years, or the minimum required contribution under existing tax laws. Additional amounts
may be contributed to increase the funded status of the plans. In an effort to strengthen our funded status and
take advantage of strong cash flows, we contributed approximately $41.1 million more than our funding policy
required in 2005 and $98.9 million more than our funding policy required in 2004.

Financing Activities

During 2003, our net cash provided (used) by financing activities was a source of cash as compared to a
use in 2004 and 2003. During. 2005, we received approximately $273 million reported in proceeds from
issuance of common stock resulting from the exercise of the FELINE PACS equity forward contracts.
Payments of long-term debt was significantly lower in 2005 as-compared to 2004 primarily due to the
substantial completion of our debt reduction strategy in 2004. During January 2005, we retired $200 million of
6.125 percent notes issued by Transco, which matured January 15, 2005. During August 2005, we completed
an initial public offering of approximately 40 percent of our interest in Williams Partners L.P. resulting in net
proceeds of $111 million reported as proceeds from sale of limited partner units of consolidated partnership.
During 2004, we repaid long-term debt through tender offers and early retirements. We also reduced our debt
through our FELINE PACS exchange. This noncash exchange resulted in payments of fees and expenses
reported as premiums paid on tender offer, early debt retirements and FELINE PACS exchange. During 2003,
we repurchased our outstanding 9.875 percent cumulative convertible preferred shares. We also repaid the
RMT note payable and we refinanced our long-term debt at more favorable rates. See Note 11 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for more detailed information regarding financing activities.

" Dividends paid on common stock were increased from $.05 to $.075 per common share in third-quarter
2005 and totaled $143 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Investing Activities

During 2005, our net cash provided (used) by investing activities was a use of cash as compared to a
source in 2004 and 2003. During 2005, we received $310.5 million in proceeds from the Gulfstream
recapitalization. In January 2005, Northwest Pipeline received an $87.9 million contract termination payment,
representmg reimbursement of the net book value of the related assets. Refer to Gas Pipeline in Results of
Operations in Item 7 for more information on the contract termination. In 2004, we sold all of our restricted
investments resulting in proceeds of $851.4 million. Since our $800 million revolving and letter of credit
facility that required 105 percent cash collateral has been replaced with a new revolving credit facility in
January 2005, we are no longer required to hold the restricted investments. In 2004 and 2003, we had
numerous. asset sales resulting in proceeds in 2004 and 2003 .of $877.8 million and $2,250.5 million,
respectively. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more detalled information
regarding investing activities.
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In- 2005, we began the year positioned for growth and have used additional cash flow for capital
expenditures primarily at Exploration & Production. See a detail of capital expenditures by segment below.

Capital Expenditures
(Millions) - N

2005 2004 2003
$1,299.0 $787.4  $956.0

® Gas Pipeline . " OExploration & Production
OMidstream Gasv‘& Liquids ~ M Other (including Power)

. Exploratlon & Productlon made capltal expend1tures in 2005 pnmanly for development drilling in
the Piceance basin.

* Gas 'Pipeline made capital expenditures in 2005 primarily for normal maintenance and compliance.

+ Midstream Gas & Liquids made capital expenditures in 2005 primarily for further expandmg our
systems in existing basins.

Off-balance sheet ﬁnancing arrangemenls and guarantees of debt or other commitments

. In January 2005, we termmated our two unsecured revolvmg and letter of credit facilities totaling
$500 million and replaced them with two new facilitiés that contain similar terms but fewer restrictions. In
September 2005, we also entered into two new revolvmg and letter of credit fac111t1es that have a similar
structuré (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

We have provided a guarantee for obligations of Williams Partners L.P. under the $1.275 billion secured
revolving and letter of credit facility. ‘

We have various other guarantees and commitments which are disclosed in.Notes 3, 10, 11, 14, and 15 of
Notes to Consolidated. Financial Statements. We do not believe these guarantees.or the possible fulfillment of
them will prevent us from meeting our liquidity needs.
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Contractual Obligations

(1)

)

3)

(4)
(5)

The table below summarizes the matunty dates of our contractual obhgatlons by period.

2007- . 2009- . o .
2006 2008 2010 Thereafter Total
o (Millions) ’
Long-term debt, including current portion: '
" Principal ............. e $ 119 S$1,112  § 270 $ 6,237 $ 7,738
Interest . ... i 579 1,093 990 6,100 8,762
Capital leases . ..........vviim i us 1 2, 1 e 4
. Operating leases(1)(5)-....... ... ivon.. 234 . 455 - 382 . 1,238 . 2,309
Purchase objigations: ’ I ‘ ‘ o S
Fuel conversion and other service » , ’ ' g ‘
contracts(2) (5) ...... e 246 500 501 2,629 3,876
O(REr(S) oy 514 427 287 393(4) 1,621
Other long-term habrhtles including current ' ‘
portion: - ‘ r . ‘ i ]
Physical and financial derivatives:(3)(5) .. 1,259 . 719 . 218 153 2,349
Other........ P 72. 100 <30 1 203
Total ...."7..... RN PPN $3.024  $4.408 © $2,679  $16,751  $26,862

Excludes sublease iﬁcprne_ of $1.4 billion consisting of $260 million in 2006, $633 million in 2007-2008,
and $518 million in 2009-2010, Includes a Power tolling agreement that is accounted for as an operating
lease.

Power has entered into certain contracts giving us the right to receive fuel conversion services as well as
certain other services associated with ‘electric’ generation facilities that are currently in operation
throughout the continental United States. Certain of Power’s tolling agreements could be considered
leases pursuant to the guidance in EITF Issue 01-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease,” if in the future the 'agreements are modified for any reason. If deemed to be a capital lease, the
net present value of the fixed demand payments would be reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
consistent with other capital lease obligations, and as an asset in property. plant and equipment — net.
See Note 1 of Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements for further information.

Although the amounts presented represent expected cash outflows, a portlon of those obligations has
previously been paid in accordance with third party margining agreements. As of December 31, 2005, we
have paid' $28 million in margins, adequate assurance, and prepayments related to the obligations
included in this disclosure. In addition, the obligations for physical and financial derivatives are based on
market information as of December 31, 2005. Because market information changes daily and has the
potential to be volatile, significant changes to the values in this category may occur.

Includes one year of annual payments totaling $2 million for contracts with indefinite termination dates.

Expected offsetting cash inflows resulting from product sales or net positive settlements are not reflected
in these amounts. The expected offsetting cash 1nﬂows as of December 31, 2005, are approximately

$9.2 billion.

Effects of Inflation

Our operations in recent years have benefited from relatively low inflation rates. Approximately

48 percent of our gross property, plant and equipment is at Gas Pipeline and approximately 52 percent is at
other operating units. Gas Pipeline is subject to regulation, which limits recovery to historical cost. While
amounts in excess of historical cost are not recoverable under current FERC practices, we anticipate being
allowed to recover and earn a return based on increased actual cost incurred to replace existing assets. Cost-
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based regulation, along with competition and other market factors, may limit our ability to recover such
increased costs. For the other operating units, operating costs are influenced to a greater extent by specific
price changes in oil and natural gas and related commodities than by c¢hanges in general inflation. Crude, -
refined product, natural gas, natural gas liquids and power prices are particularly sensitive to OPEC production
levels and/or the market perceptions concerning the supply and demand balance in the near future. However,
our exposure to these price changes is reduced through the use of hedgirig instruments.

Environmental

We are a participant in certain environmental activities in various stages including assessment studies,
cleanup operations and/or remedial processes at certain sites, some of which, we"currently do not own (see
Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). We are monitoring these sites in a coordinated effort
with other potentially responsible parties, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or other
governmental authorities. We are jointly and severally liable along with unrelated third parties in some of
these activities and solely responsible in others. Current estimates of the most likely costs of such activities are
approximately $64 million, all of which are recorded as liabilities on our balance sheet at December 31, 2005.
We will seek recovery of approximately $18 million of the accrued costs through future natural gas
transmission rates. The remainder of these costs will be funded from operations. During 2005, we paid
approximately $9 million for cleanup and/or remediation and monitoring activities. We expect to pay
approximately $15 million in 2006 for these activities. Estimates. of the most likely costs of cleanup are
generally based on completed assessment studies, preliminary results of studies or our experience with other
similar cleanup operations. At December 31, 2005, certain assessment studies were still in process for which
the ultimate outcome may yield significantly different estimates of most likely costs. Therefore, the actual
costs incurred will depend on the final amount, type and ¢xtent of contamination discovered at these sites, the
final cleanup standards mandated by the EPA or other governmental authorities,  and other factors.

We are subject to the federal Clean Alr Act and to the federal Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990,
which require the EPA to issue new regulations. We are also subject to. regulation at the state and local level.
In September 1998, the EPA promulgated rules designed to mitigate the migration of ground-level ozone in
certain states. In March 2004 and June 2004, the EPA promulgated additional regulation regarding hazardous
air pollutants, which may impose additional controls. Capital expenditures necessary to install emission control |
devices on our Transco gas pipeline system to comply with rules were approximately $72 million.in 2005 and
are estimated to be between $40 million and $45 million subsequent to 2005, The actual costs incurred will
depend on the final implementation plans developed by each state to comply‘ with these regulations. We
consider these costs on our Transco system associated with compliance with these environmental laws and
regulations to be prudent costs incurred in the ordinary course of business and, therefore recoverable through
its rates.
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Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk .

Our current interest rate risk exposure is related primarily to our debt portfolio. The majority of our debt
portfolio is comprised of fixed rate debt in order to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates. The
maturity of our long-term debt portfolio is partially influenced by the expected life of our operating assets.

The tables below provide information about our interest rate risk-sensitive instruments as of Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004. Long-term debt in the tables represents principal cash flows, net of (dis-
count) premium, and weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity dates. The fair value of our
publicly traded long-term debt is valued using indicative year-end traded bond market prices. Private debt is
valued based on the prices of similar securities with similar terms and credit ratings.

Fair Value
December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter (1) Total 2005
(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt, including
current portion{(4): . .
Fixed rate ..... Loolo.. 8104 %381 $I53 $ 41 3205 $6,179 $7,063 $7,952
Interest rate .......... 79% 17% 18% 18% 18% 1.8% o
Variable rate .......... $15 $15 8563 $12 $12 8 30 $ 647 S 647
Interest rate(2) ....... ‘ ‘
Fair Value
December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter (1) Total 2004
(Dollars in millions) ‘
Long-term debt, including '
current portion:
Fixedrate ............ $235 $104 $381 §153 $ 41 $6,386 $7,300 - $8,195
Interest rate .......... 76% 1.7% . 77% 17% 7.7% 7.7% ‘
Variable rate .......... $15 §15 $ 15 $563 §$ 12 $ 42 $ 662 $ 662

Interest rate(3) ... .. ..

{1) Including unamortized discount and premium.

(2) The weighted-average interest rate for 2005 is LIBOR plus 2 perccnf. ’
(3) The weighted-average interest rate for 2004 was LIBOR plus 2.1 percent. |
{4) Excludes capital leases.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price of natural gas, electricity, refined
products and natural gas liquids, as well as other market factors, such as market volatility and commodity
price correlations, including correlations between crude oil and gas prices and between natural gas and power
prices. We are exposed to these risks in connection with our owned energy-related assets, our long-term
energy-related contracts and our proprietary trading activities. We manage the risks associated with these
market fluctuations using various derivatives and non-derivative energy-related contracts. The fair value of
derivative contracts is subject to changes in energy-commodity market prices, the liquidity and volatility of the
markets in which the contracts are transacted, and changes in interest rates. We measure the risk in our
portfolios using a value-at-risk methodology to estimate the potential one-day loss from adverse changes in the
fair value of the portfolios. ‘ '

Value at risk requires a number of key assumptions and is not necessarily representative of actual losses in
fair value that could be incurred from the portfolios. Our value-at-risk model uses a Monte Carlo method to
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simulate hypothetical movements in future market prices-and assumes- that, as a result of changes in
commodity prices, there is a 95 percent probability that the one-day loss in fair value of the portfolios will not
exceed the value at risk. The simulation method uses historical correlations and market forward prices and
volatilities. In applying the value-at-risk methodology, we do not consider. that the simulated hypothetical
movements affect the positions or would cause any potential liquidity issues, nor do we consider that changing
the portfolio in response to market conditions could affect market prices and could take longer than a one-day
holding period to execute. While a one-day holding period has historically been the industry standard, a longer
holding period could more accurately represent the true market rlsk given market liquidity and our own credlt
and liquidity constraints.

We segregate our denvanve contracts into trading and nontrading contracts, as defined in the followmg
paragraphs. We calculate value at risk separately for these two categories. Derivative contracts designated as
normal purchases or sales under SFAS 133 and nonderivative energy contracts have been excluded from our
estimation of value at risk.

Trading

Our trading portfolio consists of derivative contracts entered into for purposes other than economically
hedging our commodity price-risk exposure. Only contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are carried
at fair value on the balance sheet. Our value at risk for contracts held for trading purposes was approximately
$4 million at December 31, 2005, and $1 million at December 31, 2004. During the year ended December 31,
20035, our value at risk for these contracts ranged from a high of $6 million to a low of $1 million.

Nontrading

-Our nontrading portfolio consists of contracts that hedge or could potentialiy hedge the price risk
exposure from the following activities:

Segment Commodity Price Risk ExposureA -
Exploration & Production .+ Natural gas sales

Midstream . « Natural gas purchases

Power ' ' + Natural gas purchases and sales

» Electricity purchases and sales

The value at risk for contracts held for nontrading purposes was $17 million at December 31, 2005, and
$29 million at December 31, 2004. During the year ended December 31, 2005, our value at risk for these
contracts ranged from a high of $34 million to a low of $17 million. Certain of the contracts held for
nontrading purposes are accounted for as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133. We do not consider the
underlying commodity positions to which the cash flow hedges relate in our value-at-risk model. Therefore,
value at risk does not represent economic losses that could occur on a total nontrading portfolio that includes
the underlying commodity positions.

.Foreign Currency Risk

We have international investments that could affect our financial results if the investments incur a
permanent decline in value as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and/or the economic
conditions in foreign countries.

Tnternational investments accounted for under the cost method totaled $45 million and $52 miltion at
December 31, 2003, and 2004, respectively, These investments are primarily in nonpublicly traded companies
for which it is not practicable to estimate fair value. We believe that we can realize the carrying value of these
investments considering the status of the operations of the companies underlying these investments. If a
20 percent change occurred in the value of the underlying currencies of these investments against the
U.S. dollar, the fair value at December 31, 2005, could change by approximately $9.1 million assummg a
direct correlation between the currency fluctuation and the value of the investments.
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Net assets of consolidated foreign operations whose functional currency is the local currency are located
primarily in Canada and approximate six percent of our net assets at December 31, 2005, and 2004. These
foreign operations do not have significant transactions or financial instruments denominated in other
currencies. However, these investments do have the potential to impact our financial position, due to
fluctuations in these local currencies arising from the process of re-measuring the local functional currency
into the U.S. dollar. As an.example, a 20 percent change in'the respective functional currencies against the
U.S. dollar could have changed stockholders’ equity by approximately $62 million at December 31, 2005.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary. Data

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT»ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
' FINANCIAL REPORTING

Williams’ management is responsible for. establishing and maintaining.adequate internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)
and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and Board of Directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorization of our
management and board of directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our
financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of Williams’ internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Frame-
work. Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control over financial
reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Based on
our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2005, Williams’ internal control over financial reporting is
effective based on those criteria.

Ernst & Young, LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on
our assessment of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. A copy of this report is included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Williams Companies, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that The Williams Companies, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). The Williams Companies, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. :

Because of its inherent. limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that The Williams Companies, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based
on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, The Williams Companies, Inc. maintained, in ‘all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of The Williams Companies, Inc. as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 of The Williams Companies, Inc. and our
report dated March 6, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
March 6, 2006




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Williams Companies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of The Williams Companies, Inc. as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respons1b1l1ty is to express an opinion on these ﬁnanc1a1
statements and schedule based on our audits.

" We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a.test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluatmg the overall financial.statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Williams Companies, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly i in all matenal Tespects the mformatlon set forth therem

As explained in- the second paragraph of the Asset retirement oblzgatzons section in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements,.effective December 31, 2005, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation
No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations.” Also as explained in Notes 1 and 9 to the

“consolidated financial statements, effective January.l, 2003, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Related to Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk
Management Activities” (see the “Energy commodity risk management and trading activities” section in
Note 1) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obllgatzons (see the third paragraph of the Asset retirement oblzgatzons section in Note 9).

We also have audited, in accorclance wnh the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of The Williams Companies, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issiied by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzauons of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
March 6, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon,

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
March 6, 2006
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Millions, except per-share amounts)
Revenues:
POWET oo $ 9,093.9 $ 9,272.4 $13,195.5
Gas Pipeline . ..ot P 1,412.8 1,362.3 1,368.3
Exploration & Production . ... e 1,269.1 777.6 719.7
Midstream Gas & Liquids ... ... oo 3,2327 2,882.6 2,784.8
10 14T 272 32.8 72.0
Intercompany eliminations . ... ...ttt e (2,452.1) (1,866.4) (1,549.3)
Total TEVEMUES .« o\ oottt e e e TR 12,583.6 12,461.3 16,651.0

Segment costs and expenses:

Costs and operating eXPenses . . . ...t vttt e e 10,871.0 10,751.7 15,004.3

Selling, general and administrative eXpenses ...............ooviiiiiie i n.. 3254 355.5 421.3

Other (INCOME) EXPENSE — MEL . oo\ttt ettt e 61.2 (51.6) (21.3)
Total segment costs and EXPENSES .. ... v vi it 11,257.6 11,055.6 15,404.3

General COrporate EXPEMSES . ...\t vttt e 154.9 119.8 87.0

Operating income (loss):

B P (236.8) . 865 145.3
Gas PIpeline . ..o 542.2 557.6 539.6
Exploration & Production . . ... i e 568.4 223.9 392.5
Midstream Gas & Liquids .. ...t e 446.6 552.2 178.0
O BT . .o ot 56 . (14.5) (8.7)
General COrporate XPEMSES ..o vve et v e ittt e i e et e (154.9) (119.8) (87.0)

Total operating income ..., e [,171.1 1,285.9 1,159.7

Interest accrued . ... (671.7) (834.4) (1,293.5)

Interest capitalized .. ... . e 7.2 6.7 455

Investing iNCOME . ... .t e o 237 48.0 73.2

Early debt retitement COStS. .. ..o v ittt e 0.4) (282.1) (66.8)

Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries. .............................. (25.7) (21.4) (19.4)

Other INCOME — ML . ..ottt ettt ettt e et e e 27.1 21.8 38.5

Tncome (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and cumulative effect of

-change in accounting principles . ...... ... . oo S 531.3 224.5 (62.8)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes ... ... i 213.9 131.3 (5.3)

Tnicome (loss) from continuing OPErations .. ...........c..vueireiniinaneaniennn, 3174 93.2 (57.9)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations ..............cc.iiiiiiiiiiiiiiia.. (2.1) 70.5 326.6

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principles .................... 3153 163.7 269.1

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles . ............c.oiiiuririiineeo. . (1.7) — (761.3)

Net income {108S) ..o e 313.6 163.7 (492.2)

Preferred stock dividends . ... .. . o — — 29.5

Income (loss) applicable to common stock . ... ... ... i $ 3136 $ 1637 $ (521.7)

Basic earnings (loss) per common share: '
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations ...................euureurenrnrnnenenns $ .55 $ 18 $ (.17)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .................... e — 13 .63
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principles .................. .55 31 .46
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles.................. e — — (1.47)

Net 1ne0me (J08S8) . v\ttt et $ .55 $ 31 $  (1.01)

Weighted-average shares (thousands)......... .. . i i 570,420 529,188 518,137

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share: ‘

Income (loss) from continuing OPerations ............c...veiiuniinieinnnnnnene.. . 8 .53 $ A8 $ 17)
Income (loss) fram discontinued OPErations ... .........c.uuieieimnnnnenniennann — 13 .63
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principles .................. .53 31 .46
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles . ......... ... .. .. ... ... — — (1.47)
Net income (1058) ... ..ot % .53 $ 31 $  (1.01)
Weighted-average shares (thousands).......... ... ... i i i 605,847 535,611 518,137

See accompanying notes.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,
2005 2004

{Dollars in millions,
except per-share

amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... .. i e $ 15972 § 9300
Restricted cash . . ... e e 92.9 . 714
Accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance of $86.6 in 2005 and $93.8 in 2004) ..... 1,613.3 1,422.8
IIVEMEOTIES . .+ v e v et et e e e e e et e e e e e e e 272.6 261.1
DErIVaAtIVE ASSETS . . . o\ ittt e 5,299.7 2,961.0
MATEIR dEPOSIES © . ..o o\ttt e et ettt e e e 3492 131.7
Assets of discontinued Operations. . ... ... .o 12.8 - 13.6
Deferred income taxes.......... R B 241.0 89.0
Other current assets and deferred charges. ... .......c.oiiriiiit i - 218.1 157.0
Total CUITENt @SSEIS ..ottt t e et ettt e et e e e 9,697.3 6,043.6
Restricted cash ... ... i 36.5 353
INVESHNIENTS . o . .. o\ttt et e et e e e 887.8 1,316.2
Property, plant and equIpmMent — MEL. . ... ..ttt e ittt e 12,409.2 11,886.8
DErIVatIVE A8 . . . ottt ittt e e e 4,656.9 3,025.3
GoodWill Lo e e 1,014.5 1,014.5
Other assets and deferred charges . ......... ... .. ... ... i 7404 - 671.3
TOtal ASSEES « o v vttt e e e e $294426  $23,993.0

Current liabilities:

AcCCOunts payable . . ... $ 1,360.6  § 1,043.2
Accrued liabilities. .. ...................... e e e 1,121.9 974.0
Customer margin deposits payable. . .. ... . ©3207 17.7
Liabilities of discontinued OPerations . . .. ...\ttt ittt it e 1.2 1.6
Derivative Habilities . ... oottt o i e e 5,523.2 2,859.3
Long-term debt due withinone year ....... .. ... 122.6 250.1
Total current Habilities. . ...t 8.450.2 5,145.9
Long-term debt............. e e e e e e e e e e 7,590.5 7,711.9
Deferred income taxes .. ... FE N 2,508.9 2,470.1
Derivative lHabilities . . .. .. . . e e 4,331.1 2,735.7
Other liabilities and deferred income. . ........ ... . . e 920.3 873.8
Contingent liabilities and commitments (Note 15)
. Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries ........... ... ... . i i 214.1 99.7
Stockholders’ equity: '
Common stock (960 million shares authorized at $1 par value; 579.1 million and . )

563.8 million shares issued at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively) ............. 579.1 563.8
Capital in excess of par value . . ... ... ... e 6,327.8 6,005.9
Accumulated deficit . ... .. L L . (1,135.9)  (1,306.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . .......... ... ... L. e (297.8) (244.2)
OHNET o e e e (4.5) (21.9)

' o 5,468.7 4,997.1
Less treasury stock, at cost (5.7 million shares of common stock in 2005 and 2004) ... ..., (41.2) (41.2)

Total stockholders’ equity . ... ... . 5,427.5 4,955.9

- Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... vii i $29,442.6  $23,993.0

See accompanying notes.

84




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance, December 31,2002 . ............... ... .
Comprehensive loss:
Netloss —2003 ...l
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges, net
of reclassification adjustments ... .........
Net unrealized depreciation on marketable
equity securities, net of reclassification
adjustments ....... ... ..o
Foreign currency translation adjustments. ... ..
Minimum pension fiability adjustment ... ... ..

Total other comprehensive loss...... ... e

Total comprehensive loss . ......................

- Redemption of 9.875 percent cumulative convertible

preferred stock (1.5 million shares) ............
Cash dividends — Common stock ($.04 per share)

Preferred stock ($20.14 per share)

Repayments of stockholders’ notes ...............

Stock award transactions, including tax benefit. . . ..

Balance, December 31,2003 ........... .. .... ...
Comprehensive income: ‘
Netincome — 2004 ..................c.o....
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges, net
of reclassification adjustments.............
Net unrealized appreciation on marketable
equity securities, net of reclassification
adjustments ............................
Forcign currency translation adjustments. . . . ..
Minimum pension liability adjustment. ... ....

Total other comprehensive loss............ .. ..

Total comprehensive income . ................. ..
Issuance of common stock and settlement of
forward contracts as a result of FELINE PACS
exchange (Note 12) ...........0.... ... ......
Cash dividends — Common stock (5.08 per share)
Allowance for and repayment of stockholders’ notes
Stock award transactions, including tax benefit. . .. .

Balance, December 31,2004 . .. .............. ...
Comprehensive income:

Netincome —2005 ..............cooiia...
Other comprehenswe loss:

Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges net

of reclassification adjustments.............

Foreign currency translation adjustments. . . . ..

Minimum pension liability adjustment.. ... ...

Total othier comprehensive loss ................

Total comprehensive income .................. ..
Issuance of common stock and settlement of
forward contracts as a result of FELINE PACS
exchange (Note 12) .........................
Cash dividends — Common stock (8.25 per share)
Allowance for and repayment of stockholders’ notes
Stock award transactions, including tax benefit. . . . .

Balance, December 31,2005 .. ............... ...

Accumulated
Other
Capital in ~ Retained  Comprehensive
Preferred Common  Excess of Earnings Inceme . Treasury
Stock Stock Par Value (Deficit) - (Loss) Other Stock Total
(Dollars in millions) ‘

S 271.3 $522.5 . $51772 § (8843) $ 338 $(30:3) $(41.2) $5,049.0
— — — (492.2) — — —  (4922)
— —_ — — (236.9) — — (236.9)
— — — — “(7.4) — — (7.4)

— — — - 77.0 — — 77.0

— — — — 125 — — 12.5
(154.8)
(647.0)
(271.3) — — — — — — (271.3)
_ - - (20.8) — — — (20.8)
— — — (29.5) — — - (29.5)

— — — — — 2.3 — 2.3

1.5 17.9 — — ‘ — — 19.4

— 524.0 5,195.1 (1,426.8) (121.0) (28.0) (41.2) 4,102.1

— — - 163.7 — — - 163.7

— — — - {142.7) — g (142.7)

— — - — 19 — — 1.9

— — — — 15.8 — — 5.8

— — — - 1.8 — — 1.8
(123.2)

40.5

— 33 782.9 — — — — 816.0

— — — (43.4) - — — (43.4)

— — — — 6.1 — 6.1

— 6.7 27.9 — — — — 34.6

— 563.8 6,009 " (1,306.5) (244.2) 21.9) . (41.2) 4,955.9

— — — 3136 — — — 3136

_ _ — — (65.4) — — (65.4)

— — — — 11.4 — — 4

' — — 4 - 4

(53.6)

260.0

- 109 261.9 — — — — 2728

- = = (430 - — — (40

— — — — — 17.4 — 17.4

— 44 60.0 — — — —_— 64.4
L $579.1 $6,327.8  $(1,135.9) $(297.8) $(4.5) $(41.2) $54275

See accompanying notes.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT.OF, CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Income (loss) from"continuing OPerations ... ... .. ..o il it e T e
" Adjustments to réconcile to cash provided by operations:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization. . ... . .. e
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes........... .. .. e e
Provision for loss on investments, property and other assels ... ... F T S
Net gain on dispositions of assets . ..., e
Early debt retirement costs ............. c.coneiiL. e
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ....... .. .. ... .. ... .

Amortization of stock-based awards

Payment of deferred set-up fee and fixed rate interest on RMT note payable ....................... ‘

Proceeds from dispositions of investme
Proceeds received on sale of note from
Payments received on notes receivable

Proceeds from Gulfstream recapitalization ........ .. ... .. i il

O her — MET. L e e e el N
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities of continuing operations ................ . ‘

Net cash used by investing activities of discontinued operations ........... P

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ... .. e LA e P

Increase_(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ., ... ... e P

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .................. ... ... ... e B

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Accrual for fixed rate interest included in RMT note payable ....................................
Amortization of deferred set-up fee and fixed rate interest on RMT note payable ...................
. Cash provided (used) by changes in current assets, and- liabilities:
©URestricted CHSh L e
Accounts and notes receivable ... ..
INVENTOMIES . . o et '
Margin deposits and customer margin deposits payable ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, R,
Other current assets and deferred Charges . . ... . i e
Accounts payable ... .. e
Accrued Habilities . . ... .. o e
Changes in current and noncurrent derivative assets and habllmes ..................................
Changes in noncurrent restricted cash ... .. ..
Other, including changes in noncurrent assets and labilities. . ......................................
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing OPErations ............. i
Net cash provided by operating activities of dlscommued OPETAtiONS . ..\t ettt
Net cash provided by operating ACHVITIES ..o .
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of notes payable. .. ... .. e e
Proceeds from long-term debt . ............ ... ..., e
Payments of long-term debt . ... i e
Proceeds from issuance of common Stock .. ... e e
Proceeds from sale of limited partner units of consolidated partnership .............................. '
Dividends paid. .. oo e e e
Repurchase of preferred stock. . ... ... . v
Payments for debt issuance costs and amendment fees ......... .. L oo e
Premiums paid on tender offer, early debt retirements and FELINE PACS exchange..................
. Dividends paid t0 minorty INErestS . . .. ..t e e
- Changes in restricted cash ... ... e
Changes in cash overdrafts . ... ... .. . e e
Other —met.........o O
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities of continuing operations . .. .. . U
Net cash used by financing activities of discontinued operations ............: T
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . ............ .. .. i .
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property, plant and equipment: -
Capital eXxpenditures .. ... ..ot e e
Proceeds from dispositions. .. ... e e e e
Proceeds from contract termination payment .. ........ ettt
Changes in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. ....... ... .. ... . . e
Purchases of investments/advances to affiliates .. ....... PP ‘e
Purchases of auction rate SECUTITIES . .. ..ottt et e e e e e e .
Purchases of.restricted INVESIIMENTS .. ... .o\ ittt e e e
Proceeds from sales of BUSINESSES . .. . ..ottt e e
Proceeds from sales of auction rate securities . ........... i i i
Proceeds from sale of restricted vestments . ..., S

nts and otherassets. ...

WAITED .o oo -

from WilTel ............. ... ... .. e e

See.accompanying-notes.
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Millions)
$ 3174 $ 932 § (57.5)
740.0 668.5 657.4
(45.3) 123.0 12.3
118.7 86.7 2319
(58.3) (18.1) . (142.8)
4 282.1 66.8
25.7 214 19.4
12.7 9.3 27.1
= — (265.0)
— — 993
— — 154.3
(140) - . (14D (1.4)
(240.9) 234.6 668.7
9.7) . (183) 88.6
85.5 414.1 134.4
5.9 112.8 ©10.3
232.5 (118.5) (630.2)
1229 (218.9) . - (245.8)
1739 (160.4)  (350.0)
— $6.5 17.6
825 (112.0) 92.1
1,449.9 1,472.1 587.7
— 15.8 182.4
1,449.9 1,487.9° 770.1
— C(33) (960.8)
— J75.0 2,006.5
(251.2)  (3,263.2) (2,187.1)
309.9 ’

111.0 — —
(143.0) (43.4) (533
— — (275.0)
(29.6) (26.0) (78.6)
(4)  (246.9) (57.7)
(20.7) (5.9) (19.8)
2.7 21.7 67.9
3.2 (21.4) (29.7)
— (11.5) (2.8)
36.5  (3,504.3) (1,589.2)
— (1.2) (94.8)
36.5  (3,505.5) (1,684.0)
(1,299.0) (787.4)  (956.0)
47.3 120 603.9
87.9 — S
65.1 — —
(116.1) (2.1)  (150.4)
. (224.0). - -~
e (471.8)  (739.9)
314 877.8  2,250.5
"7 1379 — —
— 851.4 351.8
64.2 94.1 128.6
54.7 - — —
—_ C69.1 16.0
310.5 — —
20.9 (12.9) 15.5
(819.2) 630.2 1,520.0
—_ (.8) (23.9)
(819.2) 629.4 1,496.1
667.2  (1,388.2) 5822
9300  2,318.2 1,736.0
$1,597.2 $ 9300 § 23182




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentation, and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Description of Business

Operations of our company are located principally in the United States and are organized into the
following reporting segments: Power, Gas Pipeline, Exploration & Production, and Midstream.

Power is an energy services provider that buys, sells, stores, and transports energy and energy-related
commodities, primarily power and natural gas, on a wholesale level. Power focuses on its objectives of
minimizing financial risk, maximizing cash flow, meeting contractual commitments, executing new contracts
to hedge its portfolio, and providing commodity marketing and supply functions that support our natural gas
businesses.

Gas Pipeline is comprised primarily of two interstate natural gas pipelines, as well as investments in
natural gas pipeline-related companies. The Gas Pipeline operating segments have been aggregated for
reporting purposes and include Northwest Pipeline, which extends from the San Juan basin in northwestern
New Mexico and southwestern Colorado to Oregon and Washington, and Transco, which extends from the
Gulf of Mexico region to the northeastern United States. In addition, we own a 50 percent interest in
Gulfstream. Gulfstream is a natural gas pipeline system extending from the Mobile Bay area in Alabama to
markets in Florida.

Exploration & Production includes natural gas development, production and gas management activities
primarily in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Continent regions of the United States and in Argentina.

Midstream is comprised of natural gas gathering and processing and treating facilities in the Rocky
Mountain and Gulf Coast regions of the United States, oil gathering and transportation facilities in the Gulf
Coast region of the United States, majority-owned natural gas compression and transportation facilities in
Venezuela, and assets in Canada, consisting prlmarlly of a natural gas liquids extraction facility and a
fractionation plant.

Basis of Presentation
The following are presented as discontinued operations in our financial statements (see Note 2):

+ Retail travel centers concentrated in the midsouth, part of the previously reported Petroleum
Services segment;

+ Refining and marketing operations in the midsouth, including the Midsouth reﬁnery, part of the
previously reported Petroleum Services segment;

» Texas Gas Transmission Corporation, previously one of Gas Pipeline’s segments;

+ Natural gas properties in the Hugoton and Raton basins, previously part of the Exploration & '
Production segment;

+ Bio-energy operations, part of the previously reported Petroleum Services segment;

» General partnership interest and limited partner mvestment in Williams Energy Partners, previously
the Williams Energy Partners segment;

» The Colorado soda ash mining operations, part of the previously reported International segment;

o Certain gas processing, natural gas liquids fractionation, storage and distribution operations in
western Canada and at a plant in Redwater, Alberta, previously part of the Midstream segment;
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
 Refining, retail and pipeline operations in Alaska, part of the previously reported Petroleum Services
segment;
« Straddle plants in western Canada, previously part of the Midstream segment.

We have restated all segment information in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for all
prior periods presented to reflect the discontinued operations noted previously. Certain other amounts have
been rcclass1ﬁed to conform to the current classifications.

‘Unless 1ndlcated otherwise, the information in the Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statemcnts
relates to our continuing operations.

At December 31, 2004, all of the assets and liabilities of Gulf Liquids, which are not material to our
Consolidated Balance Sheet, were classified as held for sale and included in other current assets and deferred
charges and accrued. liabilities. In second-quarter 2005, we decided to retain a portion of the Gulf Liquids
operations and reclassified certain of the assets and liabilities from held for sale to held for use. The sale of the
remaining assets held for sale closed on July 15, 2005.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our corporate parent and our majority-
owned subsidiaries and investments. We apply the equity method of accounting for investments in companies
in which we and our subsidiaries own 20 to 50 percent of the voting interest, or otherwme exercise 51gn1ﬁcant
influence over operating and financial policies of the company.

Use of estimates

Management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates and assumptions include:
« Impairment assessments of investments, long-lived assets and goodwill;
. Litigation-rclated contingencies;
» Valuations of derivatives and energy contracts;
. En\‘dronmental remediation obligations;
» Hedge accounting correlations;
» Realization of deferred income tax assets;
+ Valuation of Exploration & Production’s reserves;
» Pension and postretirement valuation variables.

These estimates are discussed further throughout the accompanying notes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes demand and time deposits, certificates of deposit, and other
marketable securities with maturities of three months or less when acquired.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -— (Continued)

Restricted cash

Restricted cash within current assets consists primarily of collateral required by certain loan agreements
for our Venezuelan operations, escrow accounts established to fund payments required by Power’s California
settlement (see Note 15), and an escrow account used to collect and manage margin dollars. Restricted cash
within noncurrent assets relates primarily to certain borrowings by our Venezuelan operations and- letters of
credit. We do not expect this cash to be released within the next twelve months. The current and noncurrent
restricted cash is primarily invested in short-term money market accounts with financial institutions.

The classification of restricted. cash is determined based on the expected term of the collateral
requirement and not necessarily the maturity date of the investment vehicle.

Auction rate securities .

Auction rate securities are instruments with long-term underlying maturities, but for which an auction is
conducted periodically, as specified, to reset the interest rate and allow investors to buy or sell the instruments.
Because auctions generally occur more often than annually, and because we hold these investments in order to
meet short-term liquidity needs, we classify auction rate securities as short-term and include them in other
current assets and deferred charges on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. Consistent with our other securities
that are classified as available-for-sale, our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows reflects the gross amount of
the purchases of auction rate securities and the proceeds from sales of auction rate securities.

Accounts receivable

~ Accounts receivable are carried on a gross basis, with no discounting, less the allowance for doubtful
accounts. We do not accrue a standard allowance when revenue is recognized. We estimate the allowance for
doubtful accounts based on existing economic conditions, the financial conditions of the customers and the
amount and age of past due accounts. Receivables are considered past due if full payment is not received by
the contractual due date. Interest income related to past due accounts receivable is generally recognized at the
time full payment is received or collectibility.is assured. Past due accounts are generally written off against the
allowance for doubtful accounts only after all collection attempts have been exhausted.

Inventory valuation

All inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. We determine the cost of certain natural gas
inventories held by Transco using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost method. We determine the cost of the
remaining inventories primarily using the average-cost method.

Property, plant and equipmeni

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. We base the carrying value of these assets on
estimates, assumptions and judgments relative to capitalized costs, useful lives and salvage values.

As regulated entities, Northwest Pipeline and Transco provide for depreciation using the straight-line
method at FERC-prescribed rates. Depreciation rates used for major regulated gas plant facilities for all years
presented, are as follows:

Category of Property . : : : . Depreciation Rates
Gathering facilities. . /... ............... BT 0% - 3.80%

Storage facilities......... R EERRTRa e - 1.05% - 2.50%
Onshore transmission facilities . .................. e e 2.35% - 5.00%

Offshore transmission facilities.............. e e i 0.85% - 1.50%




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Depreciation for nonregulated entities is provided primarily on the straight-line method over estimated

useful lives, except as noted below for oil and gas exploration and productlon activities. The estimated useful
lives are as follows ' o .

‘ Estimated
. Useful Lives
Category of Property . : L ’ : (In years)
Natural gas gathenng and processmg facilities ........... e S 10 to 40
Power generation facilities .. ....... .. ... ... . i T, o 30
Transportation equipment .............. e e e S 3to 10
Building and improvements .......... R, PP AP ... 10 to 45
Right of way . ... 4 10 40
Office furnishings and computer software and hardware .............. ... ... ... 3t020

Gams or losses from the ordinary sale or ret1rement of .property, plant and equipment for regulated
plpehnes are credited or charged to accumulated depreciation; other gains or losses are recorded in other
{income) expense — net included in operating income.

Ordinary maintenance and repair costs are - generally expensed as incurred. Costs of major renewals and
replacements are capitalized as property, planz and equlpment — net.

Oil and gas exploration and production activities are accounted for under the successful efforts method.
Costs incurred in connection with the drilling and equipping of exploratory wells, as applicable, are capitalized
as incurred. If proved reserves are not found, such costs are charged to expense. Other exploration costs,
including lease rentals, are expensed as incurred. All costs related to development wells, including related
production equipment and lease acquisition costs, are capxtahzed when incurred. Unproved properties. are
evaluated annually, or as conditions warrant, to determine any impairment in carrying value. Depreciation,
depletion and amortization is provided under the units of production method on a field basis.

Proved properties, including developed and undeveloped, and costs associated with unproven reserves, are
assessed for impairment using estimated future cash flows on a field basis. Estimating future cash flows
involves the use of complex judgments such as estimation of the proved and unproven oil and gas reserve
quantities, risk associated with the different categories of oil and gas reserves, timing of development and
production, expected future commodity prices, capital expenditures, and production costs.

Wé record an asset and a liability equal to the present value of each expected future asset retirement
obligation (ARO). The ARO asset is depreciated in a manner consistent with the depreciation of the
underlying physical asset. We measure changes in the liability due to passage of time by applying an interest
method of allocation. This amount is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as a
corresponding accretion expense included in other (income) expense — net included in operating income,
except for regulated entities, for which the liability is offset by a regulatory asset.

- Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of the assets of businesses acquired. It is evaluated
annually for impairment by first comparing our management’s estimate of the fair value of a reporting unit
with its carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a
computation of the implied fair value of the goodwill is compared with its related carrying value. If the
carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss
is recognized in the amount of the excess. We have goodwill of approxunately $1 billion at December 31,
2005, and 2004, at our Exploration & Production segment. .
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

When a reporting unit is sold or classified as held for sale, any goodwill of that reporting unit is included
in its carrying value for purposes of determining any impairment or gain/loss on sale. If a portion of a reporting
unit with goodwill is sold or classified as held for sale and that asset group represents a business, a portion of
the reporting unit’s goodwill is allocated to and included in the carrying value of that asset group. None of the
operations sold during 2005, 2004, and 2003 represented reporting units with goodwill or businesses within
reporting units to which goodwill was required to be allocated.

Judgments and assumptions are inherent in our management’s estimate of undiscounted future cash flows
used to determine the estimate of the reporting unit’s fair value. The use of alternate judgments and/or
assumptions could result in the recognition of different levels of impairment charges in the financial
statements.

Treasury stock

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for under the cost method whereby the entire cost of ‘the
acquired stock is recorded as treasury stock. Gains and losses on the subsequent reissuance of shares are
credited or charged to capital in excess of par value using the average-cost method.

Energy commodity risk management and trading activities

In 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 02-3 that rescinded EITF Issue No. 98-10,
“Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities.” The consensus was
applicable for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2002, and we applied the consensus effective
January 1, 2003. As a result, beginning in 2003, we no longer apply fair value accounting to (1) energy and
energy-related contracts that are not derivatives as defined in SFAS No. 133 and (2) physical commodity
trading inventories. We reported the initial application of the consensus as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, reducing net income (loss) by $762.5 million, net of 2 $471.4 million benefit for income
taxes. The charge primarily consisted of the fair value of energy-related contracts, such as power tolling
contracts, full requirements contracts, load serving contracts, storage contracts, transportation contracts and
transmission contracts. These energy-related contracts do not meet the definition of a derivative and thus,
beginning January 1, 2003, were no longer reported at fair value, but were rather reported under the accrual
basis of accounting. The cumulative effect charge also included the amount by which the December 31, 2002,
fair value of physical commodity trading inventories exceeded cost. We continue to carry derivatives at fair
value. See further discussion on our accounting and reporting ‘for derivatives in the following Derivative
instruments and hedging activities section. ‘ ‘

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

We report all derivatives at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in derivative assets and
derivative liabilities as both current and noncurrent. We determine the current and noncurrent classification
based on the timing of expected future cash flows of individual contracts.

We utilize derivatives to manage our commodity price risk. Derivative instruments held by us to manage
commodity price risk consist primarily of futures contracts, swap agreements, option contracts, and forward
contracts involving short- and long-term purchases and sales of a physical energy commodity. We execute
most of these transactions in exchange-traded or over-the-counter markets for which quoted prices in active
periods exist. For contracts with terms that exceed the time period for which actively quoted prices are
available, we must estimate commodity prices during the illiquid periods when determining fair value. We
estimate commodity prices during illiquid periods utilizing-internally developed valuations incorporating
information obtained from commodity prices in actively quoted markets, quoted prices in less active markets,
prices reflected in current transactions, and other market fundamental analysis.
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* For commodity derivatives that are not designated in a hedging relationship, we report changes in fair
value currently in revenues. The accounting for changes in the fair value of commodity derivatives designated
in a hedging relationship 'depends on the type of hedging relationship. We have elected the normal purchases
and normal sales exception, available under SFAS No. 133, for certain commodity derivative contracts held
by Power-involving short- and long-term.purchases and sales of a physical energy commodity. We reflect these
contracts in derivative assets and derivative liabilities, as both current and noncufrent, at their fair value on the
date of the election less the amount of that fair value realized during settlement periods subsequent to the
~election. We elected the normal purchases and normal sales exceptiori on other commodlty derivative
contracts at their inception. We do not reflect these contracts 'on the Consohdated Balance Sheet.

In September 2004, we announced our decision to continue operating the Power business and cease
efforts to exit that business. As a result of that decision, Power’s derivative contracts became eligible for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133. Power elected cash flow hedge accounting on a prospective basis beginning
October 1, 2004, for certain qualifying derivative contracts.

For a derivative to qualify for designation in a hedging relationship, it has to meet specific criteria and we
must maintain appropriate documentation. We establish hedging relationships pursuant to our risk manage-
ment policies. We evaluate the hedging relationships at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis to
determine whether the hedging relationship remains, and is expected to remain, highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the underlying risk being hedged. If a derivative
ceases to be or is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, and
future changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized currently in revenues.

For commodity derivatives designated as a hedge of a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedges), the
effective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative is reported in other.comprehensive income (loss)
and reclassified into earnings in the period in which the hedged item affects earnings. Any ineffective portion
of the derivative’s change in fair value is recogmzed currently in revenues. Gains or losses deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) associated with terminated derivatives, derivatives that cease
to be highly effective hedges, and cash flow hedges that have been otherwise discontinued remain in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged item affects earnings or it is probable that
the hedged item will not occur. by the end of the originally speaﬁed time period or within two months
thereafter. Forecasted transactions designated as the hedged item in a cash flow hedge are regularly evaluated
to assess whether they continue to be probable of occurring. If it becomes probable that the forecasted
transaction will not occur, any gain or loss deferred in accumulated other. comprehensive income (loss) is
recognized in revenues at that time.

Certain gains and losses on derivative instruments included in the Consolidated Statement of Oﬁerations
are netted together to a single net gain or loss, while other gains and losses are reported on a gross basis. Gains
and losses recorded on a net basis include:

. Unreahzed galns and losses on all denvatlves that are not demgnated as cash flow hedges;

« The ineffective portlon of unreahzed gams and losses on derivatives that are de51gnated as cash flow
hedges :

Realized gains and losses on all derivatives that settle financially;"

+ Realized gains and losses on derivatives held for trading purposes:
« Realized gains and losses on derivatives entered into as a pre-contemplated buy/sell arrangement.
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Realized gains and losses on derivatives that require physical delivery, and which are not held for trading
purposes nor were entered into as a pre-contemplated buy/sell arrangement are recorded on a gross basis.. Our
presentation of gains and losses is based on the following guidance:

« EITF 02-3;

« EITF Issue No. 03-11 “Reporting Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are
Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not ‘Held for Trading Purposes’ as defined in Issue
No. 02-3;”

+ EITF Issue No. 99-19 “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus as an Agent.”,

The EITF concluded in Issue No. 03-11 that judgment is required in determining whether realized gains and
losses on physically settled derivatives not held for trading purposes should be reported on a gross or net basis.
In reaching our conclusions on presentation, we evaluated the indicators in Issue No. 99-19, including whether
we act as principal in the transaction; whether we have the risks and rewards of ownership, including credit
risk; and whether we have-latitude in establishing prices. ‘

Assessment of energy-related contracts for lease classification

EITF 01-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,” became effective on July 1,
2003, and provides guidance for determining whether certain contracts such as transportation, transmission,
storage, full requirements, and tolling agreements are executory service arrangements or leases pursuant to
SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” The consensus is applied prospectively to arrangements consum-
mated or modified after July 1, 2003. Prior to July 1, 2003, we accounted for energy-related contracts as
executory service arrangements and continue this accounting unless a contract is subsequently modified and
evaluated to be a lease. For executory service arrangements, the monthly demand payments are expensed as
incurred. Certain of Power’s tolling agreements will likely be considered leases under the consensus if the
tolling agreements are ever modified. One tolling agreement was modified in 2004 and is accounted for as an
operating lease. For tolling agreements that are modified and deemed to be operating leases, the monthly
demand payments are expensed as incurred. If the monthly demand payments are not incurred on a straight-
line basis, expense is nevertheless recognized on a straight-line basis. If such tolling agreements are modified
and deemed to be capital leases, the net present value of the demand payments would be reported on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as long-term debt and as an asset in property, plant and equipment — net.

Gas Pipeline revenues

Revenues for sales of products are recognized in the period of delivery, and revenues from the
transportation of gas are recognized in the period the service is provided. Gas Pipeline is subject to FERC
regulations and, accordingly, certain revenues collected may be subject to possible refunds upon final orders in
pending rate cases. Gas Pipeline records estimates of rate refund liabilities considering Gas Pipeline and other
third-party regulatory proceedings, advice of counsel and estimated total exposure, as discounted and risk
weighted, as well as collection and other risks.

Exploration & Production revenues

Revenues from the domestic production of natural gas in properties for which Exploration & Production
has an interest with other producers are recognized based on the actual volumes sold during the period. Any
differences between volumes sold and entitlement volumes, based on Exploration & Production’s net working
interest, that are determined to be nonrecoverable through remaining production are recognized as accounts
receivable or accounts payable, as appropriate. Cumulative differences between volumes sold and entitlement
volumes are not significant.
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Revenues, other than Gas Pipeline, Exploration & Production, and energy commodity risk management
© and trading activities

Revenues generally are recorded when services' are performed or products have been delivered.

Impairment of long-lived assets and investments

We evaluate the long-lived assets of identifiable business activities for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate, in our management’s judgment, that the carrying value of such assets may
not be recoverable. When an indicator of impairment has occurred, we compare our management’s estimate of
undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the assets to the carrying value of the assets to determine
whether an impairment has occurred. We apply a prebability-weighted approach to consider the likelihood of
different cash flow assumptions and possible outcomes including selling in the near term or holding for the
remaining estimated useful life. If an impairment of the carrying value has occurred, we determine the amount
of the impairment .recognized in the financial statements by estimating the fair value of the assets and
recording a loss for the amount that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value.

For assets identified to be disposed of in the future and considered held for sale in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we compare the carrying
value to the estimated fair value less the cost to sell to determine if recognition of an impairment is required.
Until the assets are disposed of, the estimated fair value, which includes estimated cash flows from operations
until the assumed date of sale, is recalculated when related events or circumstances change.

We evaluate. our investments for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate, in our
management’s judgment, that the carrying value of such investments may have experienced an other-than-
temporary decline in value. When “evidence of loss in value has occurred, we compare our estimate of fair
value of the investment to the carrying value of the investment to determine whether an impairment has
occurred. If the estimated fair value is less than the-carrying value and we consider the decline in value to be
other-than-temporary, the excess of the carrying value over the fair value is reeogmzed in the consolldated
financial statements as an impairment.

Judgments and assumpt1ons are 1nherent in our management s estimate of undiscounted future cash ﬂows
and an asset’s fair value. Additionally, judgment is used to determine the probability of sale with respect to
assets considered for disposal. The use. of alternate judgments and/or assumptions could result in the
recognition of different levels of impairment charges in the consolidated financial statements.

Capitalization of interest

4

We capitalize interest on major projeets during construction. Interest is capitalized on borrowed funds
and, where regulation by the FERC exists, on internally generated funds. The rates used by regulated
companles are calculated in accordance with FERC rules. Rates used by unregulated companies are based on
the average interest rate on debt. The beneﬁt of interest capitalized on 1nternally generated funds for regulated
entities is reported in other income ( expense ) — net below operating income.

Additionally, Exploration & Production capitalizes interest on those construction projects with construc-
tion periods of at least three months and a total project cost in excess of $1 million. Exploration & Production
capitalizes interest on equity investments when the investee is undergoing construction in preparation for its
plannéd principal operations.

Employee stock-based awards '

Employee stock-based awards are accounted for under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion

No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Fixed-plan common stock
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options generally do not result in compensation expense because the exercise price-of the stock options equals
the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The plans are described more fully in Note 13.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income ( loss) and earnings (loss) per share if we had applied
the fair value récognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatlon
(SFAS 123) Begrnmng January 1, 2006, we will ' adopt revised SFAS No. 123, “Share- Based, Payrnent”
(SFAS 123(R)). See further drscussron in the Recent Accounzzng Szandazds section within this note.
' + ... Years Ended December 31,
B 2005 2004 2003

(Dollars in millions, except per
share amount)

Net income (loss), as reported S AU $3136 $1637  $(492.2)

Add: Stock-based emp]oyee compensation expense ‘included in the © . ‘
consolidated statement of operations, net of related tax effects. .. 8.9 8.9 18.7

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for. a]l awards, net of

related tax effects ....... e R R FETT SRR . (‘17’.0) {(25.1) (31.'6)‘
Pro forma net income (loss) .. .. .......... PR e $305.5 $147’.5 $(505.14)
Earnings (loss) per share: o - ‘

Basic — as reported . ... $ 55 $ .31 $.(10D)

Basic — pro forma ..... ...... e e U | $ 54 % .28 ¢ § (1.03)

Diluted — as reported. . ... ... ... . N $ 5305 315 (L0l
} Diluted-—pro forma,.;.‘...-....‘.‘ ....... L $ 527§ .28 | $ (1.03)

"Pro forma amounts for 2005 inc ude ‘compensation expense from awards of our company ‘stock made in
2005, 2004, 2003, and 2002 (see Note 13). Pro forma amounts for 2004 include compensmon expense from
awards made in 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001. Also included in 2004 pro forma expense is $3.3 million of
incremental expense associated with the stock option exchange program. Pro forma amounts for 2003 include
compensation expense from awards made in 2003, 2002, and 2001. Also, included in 2003 pro forma expense
is.$2 million of incremental expense associated with the stock option exchange program

Since compensatlon expense from.stock optrons is recognlzed over the future years’ vestmg penod for pro
forma drselosure purposes and additional awards are generally made each vear, pro forma amounts may not. be
representatlve of future years’ amounts. . .

F

Income raxes .

We include the operatrons of our subsrdlanes in our consohdated tax return Deferred income taxes are
computed using the liability method and are provided on all temporary differences between the financial basis
- and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities. Our management’s judgment and income tax assumptions are
used to determine the ‘lev‘els, if any, of valuation allowances associated with deferred tax assets.

Earnmgs (1095) per share ‘ o S

Baszc earnings ( loss) per share is based on the sum of the welghted average number of common shares
outstanding and issuable restricted and vested deferred shares. Diluted earnings (loss) per share includes any
dilutive effect of stock options, unvested deferred shares and, for apphcable penods presented convertlble
preferred stock and convertible debt, uniess otherwise noted
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Foreign currency translation

Certain of our foreign subsidiaries and equity method investees use their local currency as their functional
currency These foreign currencies include the Canadian dollar, British pound and Euro. Assets and liabilities
of certain forelgn subsidiaries and equity investees are translated at the spot rate in effect at the apphcable
reporting date, and the combined statements of operations and our share of the results of operations of our
equity affiliates are translated into the U.S. dollar at the average exchange rates in effect during the applicable
period. The resulting cumulative translation adjustment is recorded as a separate component of other
comprehensive income (loss). -

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded based on
exchange rates at the time such transactions arise. Subsequent changes in exchange rates result in transaction
gains and losses which are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations..

Issuance of equity of consolidated subszdz‘ary

Sales of equity by a consohdated subs1d1ary are accounted for as capltal transactions with the adjustment
to capltal in excess of par value No gain or loss is recogmzed on these transactlons

Recent Accountmg Standards

Stock based awards

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 123(R). The
Statement requires that compensation costs for all share-based awards, including grants of employee stock
options, to.employees be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations based on their fair values.
Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. The Statement, as issued by the FASB, was to be effective as
of the beginning"of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. However, in
April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted a new rule that delayed the effective
date for SFAS 123(R) to the beginning of the next fiscal year that begins after Junc 15, 2005. We intend to
adopt the revised Statement on January 1, 2006.

The Statement-allows either 4 modified prospective appl1cat1on or a modified retrospcctlve apphcatlon for
adoption. We will use 'a ‘modified prospective application for adoption and will apply the Statement to new
awards and to awards modified; repurchased, or cancelled after January 1, 2006. Also, for unvested stock
awards -outstanding as of January 1, 2006, compensation costs for the portion of these awards for which the
requisite service has not been rendered will be recognized as the requisite service is rendered after January 1,
2006. Compénsation costs for these awards will be based on fair value at the original grant date as estimated
for the pro forma disclosures under SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS 123.” Additionally, a modified
retrospective application requires restating periods prior to January 1, 2006 on a basis consistent with the’pro
forma dlsclosures required by SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148 Smce we will use a modified
prospective apphcatxon we will not restate - prlor periods.

. We currently account for share-based awards to employees by applymg the intrinsic value method in .
accordance with APB No. 25 and, as such, generally recognize no compensation cost for employee stock
options. We currently recognize compensation cost for deferred share awards. Adoption of the Statement’s fair
value method will have a significant impact on our results of operations. At January 1, 2006, we have
approximately $56 million of compensation cost from outstanding unvested stock awards to be recognized as
the requisite service 'is rendered, primarily in 2006 or 2007. Of the $56 million of compensation cost,
approximately $23 million relates to stock options and approximately $33 million relates to stock awards where
we currently recognize expense under APB No. 25 and related guidance. Stock-based awards will be granted
during 2006. Our compensation cost as reported in pro forma disclosures required by SFAS 123, as amended

9%




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

by SFAS No. 148, may not be representative of compensation cost to be incurred in 2006 and beyond as the
number and types of awards may differ and estimates of fair value may differ due to changes in the market
price of our common stock, and to changing capital market and employee exercise behavior assumptions.

Certain of our stock awards currently result in compensation cost under APB No. 25 and related
guidance. These stock awards are subject to vesting provisions and our policy is to adjust compensation cost
for forfeitures when they occur. Upon the January 1, 2006, adoption of SFAS 123(R), we will reduce net
income (loss) through cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for previously recognized
compensation cost, net of income taxes, related to the estimated number of these outstanding stock awards
that are expected to be forfeited. The adjustment will not be material.

We currently present pro forma disclosure of net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share as if
compensation costs from all stock awards were recognized based on the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS 123. The Statement requires use of valuation techniques, including option pricing models, to estimate
the fair value of employee stock awards. For pro forma disclosures, we currently use a Black-Scholes option
pricing model in estimating the fair value of employee stock options and we intend to continue using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model when we adopt SFAS 123(R).

FERC Order, “Accounting for Pipeline Assessment Cost”

On June 30, 2005, the FERC issued an Order, “Accounting for Pipeline Assessment Cost,” to be
effective January 1, 2006. The Order requires companies to expense certain pipeline integrity-related
assessment costs that we have historically capitalized. We anticipate expensing approximately $27 million to
$35 million of costs expected to be incurred in 2006 that would have been capitalized prior to the Order
becoming effective.

Other recent accounting standards

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4,” which will be applied prospectively for inventory costs incurred in fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2005. The Statement amends Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory
Pricing,” to clarify that abnormal amounts of certain costs should be recognized as current period charges and
that the allocation of overhead costs should be based on the normal capacity of the production facility. The
impact of this Statement on our consolidated financial statements will not be material.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29,” which is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The Statement amends APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions.” The guidance in APB Opinion No. 29 is based on the principle that exchanges of
nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged but includes certain
exceptions to that principle. SFAS No. 153 amends APB Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of
nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial
substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange.
We will apply SFAS No. 153 as required.

In March 2005, the FASB issued a Staff Position (FSP) on a previously issued Interpretation (FIN).
FSP FIN 46(R)-5, “Implicit Variable Interests under revised FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46(R)),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” states that a reporting enterprise must consider implicit variable
interests when applying the provisions of FIN 46(R). The FSP was effective in the second quarter of 2005 and
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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In April 2005, the FASB staff issued FSP FAS 19-1, “Accounting for Suspended Well Costs.” This FSP
amends SFAS No. 19, “Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing Companies,” as it
pertains to capitalizing the costs of drilling exploratory wells pending determination of whether the well has
found proved reserves. FSP FAS 19-1 provides that exploratory well costs should continue to be capitalized if
the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify its completion as a producing well and the entity is
making sufficient progress assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the project.
This FSP was effective beginning in the third quarter of 2005 and did not have a material impact on our
consohdated ﬁnan01a1 statements.

In May 2005 the FASB 1ssued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections —.a
replacement of APB Op1n10n No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3,” which is effective prospectively for
reporting a change in accounting principle for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Statement
changes the reporting of a change in accounting principlé to require retrospective application to prior periods
unless explicit transition provisions provide otherwise. The Statement is effective for any existing accounting
pronouncé}nénts including those in the transition phase when it becomes eﬂ”ectlve We w111 apply
SFAS No. 154 as required.

In June 2005, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 04-10, “Determining Whether to Aggregate Operating
Segments That Do Not Meet the Quantitative Thresholds.” The consensus is effective for fiscal years ending
after September 15, 2005, and does not affect the current presentation of our reportable operating segments.

In June 2005, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 05-2, “The Meaning of Conventional Convertible Debt
Instrument in EITF Issue No. 00-19, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and
Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock.” The consensus is to be applied prospectively for new
instruments entered into or existing instruments modified in periods beginning after June 29, 2005. We have
outstanding 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures that were considered conventional
convertible debt at issuance. This Issue does not currently impact these debentures. If we were to modify these
debentures, we would have to evaluate the terms of the instruments after the modification to determine if they
would remain a conventional convertible debt instrument or 1f the convertible features should be accounted for
separately as a derivative.

In September 2003, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 04- 13, “Accounting for Purchases and Sales of
Inventory with the Same Counterparty.” The consensus states that two or more inventory purchase and sales
transactions with the same counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another should be
combined as a single exchange transaction for purposes of applying APB Opinion No. 29. A nonmonetary
exchange of inventory within the same line of business where finished goods inventory is transferred in
exchange for the receipt of either raw materials or work in process inventory should be recognized at fair value
by the entity transferring the finished goods inventory if fair value is determinable within reasonable limits and
the transaction has commercial substance. All other nonmonetary exchanges of inventory within the same liné
of business should be recognized at the carrying amount of the inventory transferred. The Issue is effective for
new arrangements entered into, and modifications or renewals of existing arrangements, beginning in the first
reporting period beginning after March 15, 2006. We will apply-this Issue beginning in the second quarter of
2006. We will assess the impact of this Issue on our consolidated financial statements. _

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than;
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” The FSP provides guidance regarding
when an investment is impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary and measurement of the
impairment' loss. The FSP applies to debt and equity securities, except equity securities accounted for under
the equity method. The FSP is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. We are
currently evaluating the appllcanon of this FSP to determine its potential 1mpact to our consolidated financial
statements. !
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In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” With regard to SFAS No. 133, this
Statement permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded
derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, clarifies which interest-only and principal-only strips are
not subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 133, and requires the holder of an interest in securitized financial
assets to determine whether the interest is a freestanding derivative or contains an embedded derivative
requiring bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 also amends SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” to eliminate’ a restriction on the passive derivative
financial instruments that a qualifying special purpose entity may hold. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all
financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after
September 15, 2006. We will assess the impact of this Statement on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emerging accounting issues

In addition to the recently issued accounting standards, there are several emerging accounting issues that
could potentially impact our Consolidated Financial Statements in the future, including:

+ Proposed SFAS on “Fair Value Measurements” (exposure draftj§

« Proposed Interpretation on “Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (exposure draft);

» Accounting for Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. (preliminary views).

We will monitor these emerging issues to assess any potential future impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

Note 2. Discontinued Operations

The businesses discussed below represent components that have been sold as of December 31, 2005, and
also are classified as discontinued operations. Therefore, their results of operations (including any impair-
ments, gains or losses), financial position and cash flows have been reﬁected in the consolidated financial
statements and notes as discontinued operatlons

Summarized Results of Discontinued Operations

The following table presents the summarized results of discontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003. Income (loss} from discontinued operations before income taxes for the
year ended December 31, 2004, includes charges of approximately $153 million to increase our accrued
liability associated with certain Quality Bank litigation -matters (see Note 15). The provision for income taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2004, is less than the federal statutory rate due primarily to the effect of net
Canadian tax benefits realized from the sale of the Canadian straddle plants partially offset by the United
States tax effect of earnings associated with these assets.

2005 2004 2003
. . - (Mitlions)
REVENMUES . . o\ ottt e e e $ —  $ 3534 $2614.6
Income (loss) from discontinued operatiohs b¢f0ré income taxes .. $(3.9) $(121.3) $ 197.5
(Impairments) and gain (loss) on'sales—mnet ................. S 200.5 2777
Benefit (provision) for income taxes ............... ... ... bl 1.3+~ (8.7) -(148.6)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. ..., ............. $(2.1) § 705 $ 326.6
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2004 Completed Transactions . .
Canadian straddle plants

On July 28, 2004, we completed the sale of the Canadlan straddle plants for approximately $544 million
and recognized a $189.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale. These assets were previously written down to
estimated fair value, resulting in impairments of $41.7 million during 2003 and $36.8 million in 2002. In 2004,
the fair value of the assets increased substantially due primarily to renegotiation of certain customer contracts
and a general improvement in the market for processing assets. These operations were part of the Midstream
segment.

Alaska refining, retail and pipeline operations

On March 31, 2004, we completed the sale of our Alaska refinery, retail and pipeline operations for
approximately $304 million. We received $279 million in cash at the time of sale and $25 million in cash
during the second quarter of 2004. Based on information we obtained throughout the sales negotiations
process, we recorded impairments of $8 million in 2003 and $18.4 million in 2002. We recognized a
$3.6 million pre-tax gain on the sale during first quarter 2004. These operations were part of the previously
reported Petroleum Services segment. .

We are party to a pending matter involving pipeline transportation rates charged to our former Alaska
refinery in prior periods. While we have no loss exposure in this matter, favorable resolution could result in a

refund.

2003 Completed Transactions
Canadian liquids operations

During the third quarter of 2003, we completed the sales of certain gas processing, natural gas liquids
fractionation, and storage and distribution operations in western Canada and at our Redwater, Alberta plant
for total proceeds of $246 million. We recognized pre-tax gains totahng $92.1 million i in 2003 on the sales.
These operations were part of our Midstream segment.

Soda ash operations

- On September 9, 2003, we completed the sale of our soda ash mining facility located in Colorado. During
2003, we recognized impairment charges of $17.4 million and a pre-tax loss on the sale of $4.2 million. We
had recorded impairment charges of $133.5 million in 2002 and $170 million in 2001 The soda ash operations
were part of the prev1ously reported International segment.

Williams Energy Partners

On June 17, 2003, we completed the sale of our 100 percent general partnership interest and 54.6 percent
limited partner investment in Williams Energy Partners for $512 million in cash and assumption by the
purchasers of $570 million in debt. In December 2003, we received additional cash proceeds of $20 million
following the occurrence of a contingent event. We recognized a total pre-tax gain of $310.8 million on the
sale during 2003, ircluding the $20 million of additional proceeds. We deferred an additional $113 million
associated with certain environmental indemnifications we provided the purchasers under the sales agreement.
In second quarter 2004, we settled these indemnifications with an agreement to pay $117.5 million over a four-
year period (see Note 10). Williams Energy Partners was a previously reported segment.
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Bio-energy facilities

On May 30, 2003, we completed the sale of our bio-energy operations for $59 million in cash. During
2003, we recognized a pre-tax loss of $5.4 million on the sale. We had recorded impairment charges totaling
$195.7 million during 2002. These operations were part of.the previously reported Petroleum Services
segment. ’

Natural gas properties

On May 30, 2003, we completed the sale of natural gas exploration and production properties in the
Raton Basin in southern Colorado and the Hugoton Embayment in southwestern Kansas. This sale included
all of our interests within these basins. We recognized a $39.7 million pre-tax gain on the sale during 2003.
‘These properties were part of the Exploration & Production segment.

Texas Gas

On May 16, 2003, we completed the sale of Texas Gas Transmission Corporation for $795 million in cash
and the assumption by the purchaser of $250 million in existing Texas Gas debt. We recorded a $109 million
impairment charge in 2003. No significant gain or loss was recognized on the subsequent sale. These
operations were part of the Gas Pipeline segment:

Midsouth refinery

On March 4, 2003, we completed the sale of our refinery and other related operations located in
Memphis, Tennessee, for $455 million in cash. We recognized a pre-tax gain on the sale of $4.7 million in the
first quarter of 2003. During the second quarter of 2003, we recognized a $24.7 million pre-tax gain on the sale
of an earn-out agreement we retained in the sale of the refinery. We had recorded impairment charges totaling
$240:8 million during 2002. These operations were part of the previously reported Petroleum Services
segment.

Williams travel centers

On February 27, 2003, we completed the sale of our travel centers for approximately $189 million in cash.
We did not recognize a significant gain or loss on the sale.” We had recorded impairment charges of
$146.6 million in 2002 and $14.7 million in 2001. These operations were part of the previously reported
Pctroleum Services segment.
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Note 3. Investing Activities
Investmg Income

Investmg income:for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, is as follows:

2005 . 2004 2003
(Millions)
Equity earnings® ... ... . e $ 656 $499 - $ 203
Loss from investments® ............... PR PR T (109.1)  (35.5) . (25.3)
Impairments of cost-based investments ................ e - (22) (285) . (35.0)
Interest income and other ... ... e PR SN e ' 69.4 - 62.1 113.2.
TOtl ..ot S $ 237 $480 § 732

* Ttems also included in segment profit (see Note 18).
Loss from investments for the year ended December 31 2005, includes:

f An $87.2 million 1rnpa1rment of our 1nvestment in Longhorn, which is included in our Other
segment;

* A $23 mllhon 1mpa1rment of our mvestment in Aux Sable which is included in our Power segment.
Loss Sfrom investments for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes: ‘
A $10.8 million impairinent of our Longhorn investmenf;
+ $6.5 million net unreimbursed Longhorn recapitalization advisory fees;

* A $16.9 million impairment of our investment in Discovery, which is included in our Midstream
segment.

Loss from investments for the year ended December 31, 2003 1ncludes
+ A $431 m11110n 1mpa1rment of our Longhorn 1nvestment
» A $14.1 million impairment of our investment in Aux Sable;
« A $13.5 million gain on the sale of stock in eSpeed Inc., which is included in our Power segment;

+ An $11.1 million gain on sale of our investment in West Texas LPG Pipeline, L.P., which is included
in our Midstream segment.

Impairments of cost-based investments for the year ended December 31, 2004, includes a $20.8 million
impairment of our investment in an Indonesian toll road, primarily due to increased uncertainty of the
Indonesian economy.

Impairments of cost-based investments for the year ended December 31, 2003, includes:
+ A $13.5 million impairment of our investment in ReserveCo, a company holding phosphate reserves;
¢ A $13.2 million impairment of our investment in Algar Telecom S.A.

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2003, includes approximately $34 million of interest
income at Power as the result of certain FERC proceedings.
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Investments

Investments at December 31, 2005 and 2004, are as follows:

2005 2004 -
(Millions)
Equity method:
Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LL.C.—50% ................... .. $3954 § 726.1
Discovery Producer Services, L.L.C. — 60%* in 2005; 50% in 2004 . ... .. 227.9 184.2
Longhorn Partners Pipeline, LP. —21.3% ............ ... ... .. .. ... — 1132
ACCROVEN —493% ...ty e 60.0 62.0
Aux Sable Liquid Products, LP. —14.6% .........ccoiiirnniiinnnn. 19.2 45.6
Petrolera Entre Lomas S.A. —40.8% ....... e 51.9 44.9
0 11T o 76.7 70.5

831.1 1,246.5
Cost method:

Various international funds ... .. ... . . 45.2 499
Other ..o P 11.5 19.8
56.7 69.7

$887.8  $1,316.2

* We own 20% directly and 40% indirectly through Williams Partners L.P., of which we own
approximately 60%.

The difference between the carrying value of our equity investments and the underlying equity in the net
assets of the investees is primarily related to the impairments recognized.

Dividends and distributions, including those discussed below, received from companies accounted for by
the equity method were $447.4 million and $60 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. '

Gulfstream

We received a $310.5 million distribution from Gulfstream following its debt offering in October 2005.
We also received dividends of $60.5 million from Gulfstream in 2005. These transactions reduced the carrying
value of our investment. ‘

Discovery

During 2005, our Midstream subsidiary acquired an additional 16.67 percent in Discovery, which was
later reduced by 6.67 percent due to a nonaffiliated member exercising its purchase option. After these
transactions, we hold a 60 percent interest in Discovery. We continue to account for this investment under the
equity method due to the voting provisions of Discovery’s limited liability-company which provide the other
member of Discovery significant participatory rights such that we do not control the investment.

Additionally, we contributed $40.7 million during 2005 to Discovery for planned capital expenditures.
Each owner contributed an amount equal to their respective ownership percentage, thus having no impact on
the overall ownership allocation. During 2005, we received $31.3 million in distributions from Discovery,
which reduced the carrying value of our investment.

103




’ THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Longhorn

Shipping volumes on the Longhorn pipeline declined significantly during the second quarter of 2005
compared to those experienced in the first quarter. The decline was due primarily to the impact of significant
changes in transportation pricing competition and economics in the wake of higher crude oil prices. Longhorn
management indicated that the shortfall in volumes was likely to continue and that continued operation as
originally planned was no longer economically feasible. As a result, the owners and management of Longhorn
began evaluating several alternatives for the future operation of Longhorn.

Based on management’s outlook for Longhorn at the end of the second quarter, we assessed our
investment in Longhorn to determire if there had been an other-than-temporary decline in its fair value. As a
result, we recorded an impairment of $49.1 million during the second quarter of 2005. In the fourth quarter of
2005, management of Longhorn decided to pursue a strategy of the sale of Longhorn. Based on initial
indications from potential buyers, we determined that our Longhorn investment would require full impair-
ment. Therefore, in fourth quarter 2005, we recorded a $38.1 million impairment to write oﬂ' the remaining
investment in Longhorn.

Aux Sable

During 2005, we decided to solicit sales offers for our investment in Aux Sable, a natural gas liquids
extraction and fractionation facility. Based on initial indications of potential sales proceeds, management
concluded that there is an other-than-temporary decline in fair value below carrying value. Accordingly, we
recorded an impairment of $23 million.

Summarized Financial Position and Results of Operations of Equity Method Investments

Financial position at December 31:

2005 2004
. (Millions)
Current assets..............c..ouonnn.. N $ 4705 § 3451
Noncurrent assets. .......... e 3,674.4 3,660.3
Current liabilities . . . . ... e 362.0 357.4
Noncurrent labilities . . .. ... o . e 1,225.6 432.2
- Results of operations for the years ended Decemb:ef 3L , ,
2005 2004 2003
(Millions)
GrosS TEVENUE . .o vvee e, e ... $1,337.5 81,0647 $753.9
Operating inCome . ........c.ovvireeueneneenin.. [ 236.3 185.0 109.7 .
Net INCOME .ot e e e e e e e 105.3 107.8 12.6

Guarantees on Behalf of Investees

We have guaranteed commercial letters of credit totaling $17 million on behalf of ACCROVEN. These
expire in January 2007 and have no carrying value. '

* We have provided guarantees on behalf of certain entities'in which we have an equity ownership interest.
These generally guarantee operating performance measures and the maximum potential future exposure
cannot be determined. There are no expiration dates associated with these guarantees No amounts have been
accrued at December 31, 2005 and 2004.
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Note 4. Asset Sales, Impairments and Other Accruals

Significant gains or losses from asset sales, impairments, and other accruals in other (income) expense —
net within segment costs and expenses for the years noted are as follows:

(Income) Expense

2005 2004 2003
' (Millions)
Power
Accrual for litigation contingencies.......................... $82 § — § —
Gain on sale of Jackson power contract...................... — — (188.0)
Commodity Futures Trading Commission settlement........ ... — — 20.0
California rate refund and other accrual adjustments...... S — — 19.5
Impairment of goodwill ..... ... .. ... . ... il — - 45.0
Impairment of generation facilities . ......................... — . — 44.1
Gas Pipeline
Write-off of previously capitalized costs on an idled segment of a
pipeline . . . : — 90 —
Write-off of software. development costs due to cancelled ' .
implementation ........... ... ... ... ..., PP — — 25.6
Exploration & Production ; :
Gains on sale of certain natural gas properties ................ (29.6) - (96.7)
Loss provision related to an ownership dispute ....... S s — 15.4 —
Midstream Gas & Liquids '
Arbitration award on a Gulf Liquids insurance claim dispute . . .. — (93.6) —
Impairment of Gulf Liquids assets .................. ... . ... — 2.5 108.7
Gain on sale of the wholesale propane business ............... - — (16.2)
Other -
Gainonsale of land . ................. ... ... ... ... (9.0) — —
Environmental accrual related to the Augusta refinery facility . . .. — 118 =
Gain on sale of blending assets ....................... e — — (9.2)
Power

Accrual for litigation contingencies

This accrual in 2005 includes a $77.2 million charge for agreements reached to substantially resolve
exposure related to the inaccurate reporting of natural gas prices and volumes to an industry publication in
2002. See Note 15 for further discussion.

California rate refund and other accrual adjustments

In addition to the $19.5 million charge included in other (incomé) expense — net within segment costs
and expenses for 2003, a $13.8 million charge is recorded within costs and operating expenses in the same
period. These two amounts, totaling $33.3 million, are for California rate refund liability and other accrual
adjustments and relate to power marketing activities in California during 2000 and 2001 (see Note 15 for
further discussion).
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Impairment of goodwill

Because of our exit strategy during 2003 and the market conditions in which this business operated, we
evaluated Power’s remaining goodwill for impairment. In estimating the fair value of the Power segment, we
considered our derivative portfolio which is carried at fair value on the balance sheet and our nonderivative
portfolio which is no longer carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Because of the significant negative fair
value of certain of our nonderivative contracts, we determined we may be unable to realize the carrying value
of this segment; and thus, we recognized a $45 million goodwill impairment during 2003. ‘

Impairment of generation facilities

The 2003 impairment relates to the Hazelton generation facility. Fair value was estimated using future
cash flows based on current market information and discounted at a risk adjusted rate.

Midstream Gas & Ligquids
Arbitration award on a Gulf Liquids insurance claim dispute

Winterthur International Insurance Company (Winterthur) issued policies to Gulf Liquids providing
financial assurance related to construction contracts. After disputes arose regarding obligations under the
construction contracts, Winterthur disputed coverage resulting in arbitration between Winterthur and Gulf
Liquids. In July 2004, the arbitration panel awarded Guif Liquids $93.6 million, plus interest of $9.6 million.
Following the arbitration decision, Winterthur filed a Petition to Vacate the Final Award in the New York
State court and Gulf Liquids filed a Cross-Petition to Confirm the Final Award. Prior to the State court’s
ruling, Winterthur agreed to the terms of the award and on November 1, 2004, remitted the proceeds to us. As
a result, we recognized total income of approximately $103 million related to the arbitration award in fourth
quarter 2004,

Impairment of Gulf Liqm’ds assets

During second quarter 2003, our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell the assets of Gulf Liquids. In
the third quarter of 2005, we sold substantially all of Gulf Liquids. We recognized impairment charges of
$2.5 million and $108.7 million during 2004 and 2003, respectively, to reduce the carrying cost of the long-
lived assets to estimated fair value less costs to sell the assets. We estimated fair value based on a probability-
weighted analysis of various scenarios including expected sales prices, discounted cash flows and salvage
valuations. Prior to fourth quarter 2004, the operations of Gulf Liquids were included in discontinued
operations.

Other
Environmental accrual related to the Augusta refinery facility

As a result of information obtained in fourth quarter 2004 related to the Augusta refinery site, we accrued
additional amounts for completion of work under a current Administrative Order on Consent and reasonably
estimated remediation costs. Accruals may be adjusted as more information from thé site investigation

becomes available.
Additional Items

Revenues within our Power segment in 2003 includes approximately $117 million related to the correction
of the accounting treatment previously applied to certain third party derivative contracts during 2002 and

2001.
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Costs and operating expenses within our Gas Pipeline segment in 2005 includes:

An adjustment to reduce costs by $12.1 millicn to correct the carrying value of certain liabilities
recorded in prior periods;

Income from a liability reversal of $14.2 million associated with a favorable ruling involving
adjustments to estimated gas purchase costs for operations in prior periods;

A prior period charge of approximately $32.1 million related to accounting and valuation corrections
for certain inventory items;

An accrual of approximately $5.2 million for contingent refund obligations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses within our Gas Pipeline segment in 2005 include:

An adjustment to reduce-costs by $5.6 million to correct the carrying value of certain liabilities
recorded in prior periods;

A $17.1 million reduction in pension expense for the cumulative impact of a correction of an error
attributable to 2003 and 2004 (see Note 7).

General corporate expenses in 2005 includes $13.8 million of expense in our Other segment related to the
settlement of certain insurance coverage issues with an insurer that had underwritten portions of the fiduciary
insurance applicable to our ERISA litigation settlement and the directors and officers insurance applicable to
our pending securities litigation. :

Note 5.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations includes:

2005 2004 2003
(Millions)
Current: v
Federal . ... e .. $2250 $11.0 % (83)
S . . 2.8 (13.7)  (17.6)
Foreign . ... .o e SR 314 11.0 8.8
‘ 259.2 83  (17.6)
Deferred _
Federal ... ... . . e (52.9) 751 (17.0)
State ........ P e 15.6 38.7 44.4
Foreign........ A L (8.0) 9.2 (15.1)
(45.3)  123.0 12.3
Total provision (benefit) ............... . ... .. ..., $213.9 $131.3  § (5.3)
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Reconciliations from the provision {benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations at the federal
statutory rate to the realized provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
: (Millions) -
Provision (benefit) at statutoryrate ............ R $186.0 §$ 78.6 $(22.0)
Increases in taxes resulting from: - . " .
State income taxes (net of federal benefit) .................... 215 279 .5
Foreign operations —net .............. e e 6.7 6.1 35
Capital Jo8Ses . . .. oo e o - — (39.6)
Valuation allowance/expiration charitable contributions ......... 8.4 13.8 —
Non-deductible impairment of goodwill .................. . — — 15.8
Adjustment of excess deferred taxes. .. .. e DU (20.2) — —
Non-deductible penalties . .............ooiiiiiiiinnin... 17.7 (.9) 9.0
Other—mnet.................. pe T - (6.2) - 5.8 27.5
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ........................... - $213.9  $131.3  § (5.3)

- Utilization of foreign operating loss carryovers reduced the proﬁsion for income taxes by $13 million and
$19 million in 2005 and 2003, respectively. During 2004, the utilization of foreign tax credits reduced the
prov151on for income taxes by $12 million.

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income, taxes and cumulatzve eﬁ”ect of change in
accounting principles includes 859 million, $51 million, and $9 million of international income in 2003, 2004,
and 2003, respectively.

We provide for income taxes using the asset and liability method as required by SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” During 2005, as a result of additional analysis of our tax basis and book basis
assets and liabilities, we recorded a $20.2 million tax benefit adjustment to reduce the overall deferred income
tax liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Significant components of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005, and
2004, are as follows: :

2005 2004
(Millions)
Deferred tax liabilities: _
Property, plant and €quipment ....................... .. L $2,718.9  $2,356.5
Derivatives —net .. ....... O, 61.3 993
Tnvestments, .......... S 310.9 442.4
Other............. e e P 80.1 201.8
Total deferred tax liabilities .................... e . 31712 3,100.0
Defeired tax assets: ‘ o _
Minimum tax credits . ...................... P U 1638 1510
Accrued liabilities . ....... ... .. ... . .. L PN . 4138 171.5
Receivables .......... 393 44.2
Federal Carryovers ..............c......... P o 286.0 3153
FOTEIgN CAITYOVETS o vttt ettt e et et e et 30.4 54.1
Other.......covviiiiianninn. e SO 7.1 443
Total deferred tax assets .......... ... . i, . 940.4 780.4
Valuation allowance . . . . . .. B S 37.1 61.5
" Net deferred tax assets .............. e e 903.3  718.9

Overall net deferred tax labilities .......... ... .. ... $2,267.9  $2,381.1

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2005, and 2004, serves to reduce the recognized tax benefit
associated with charitable contribution carryovers and foreign carryovers to an amount that will, more likely
than not, be realized.

Undistributed carningé of certain v éqrisolidated foreign siubsidiaries at December 31, 2005, totaled
approximately $142 million. No provision for deferred U.S. income taxes has been made for these subsidiaries
because we intend to permanently reinvest such earnings in foreign operations.

Cash payments for income taxes (net of refunds) were $230 million and $8 million in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Of the $230 million for 2005, $204 million relates to settlements with taxing authorities
associated with prior period audits. Cash refunds for income taxes (net of payments) were $88 million in 2003.

At December 31, 2005, federal net operating loss carryovers are $773 million and charitable contribution
carryovers are $44 million. We do not expect to utilize $24 million of charitable contribution carryovers prior
to expiration in 2006. We expect to.utilize the net operating loss carryovers prior to expiration in 2022 through
2025 and the remaining $20 million of charitable contribution carryovers prior to expiration in 2007 and 2008.
We also do not expect to be able to utilize $29 million of the $30.4 million available foreign deferred tax assets
related to carryovers.

* During the course of audits of our business by domestic and foreign tax authorities, we frequently face
challenges regarding the amount of taxes due. These challenges include questions regarding the timing and
amount of deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating the liability
associated with our various tax filing positions, we record a liability for probable tax contingencies. In
association with this liability, we record an estimate of related interest as a component of our current tax
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~ provision. The impact of this accrual‘is included within other — net in our reconciliation of the tax provision to
the federal statutory rate. g

Note 6. Earnings (Lﬁss) Per Common Share from Continuing Operations

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31 2005 2004 and
2003, are:

2005 -2004 2003

(Dollars in millions, except per-share
amounts; shares in thousands)

Income (loss) from continuing operations(1) .............. $ 3174 § 932 § (57.5)
Convertible preferred stock dividends (see Note 12) ........ — - 29.5

Income (loss) from continuing operations'available to
common stockholders for basic and diluted earnings per : ) ; o
shire ..o .. 8 3174 § 932 § (87.0)

Basic weighted-average shares(2) .......... I 570,420 529,188 518,137
Effect of dilutive securities:” ' _
Unvested deferred shares(3 ....... e 2,890 2,631 —
" Stock options . . ............. P e 4,989 3,792 -
Convertible debentures ... .....covvvveiiniinen i 27,548 - — —_
Diluted weighted-average shares ........ PP 605,847 535,611 518,137
Earnings (loss) per common share from continuing S .
operations: . ‘ ‘
BaSIC . . $ S5 8 A8 s (17
Diluted ................ e . ST $ 53 8 18 0§ (17)

* (1) The year ¢ended December 31, 2005, includes $10.2 million of interest expense, net of tax, associated with

_ our convertible debentures (see Note 12). This amount has been added back to income from continuing

~ operations available 1o common stockholders to calculate dlluted earnings per common share (sce
discussion of antidilutive items below).

(2)- In February 2005 and October 2004, we issued 10.9 million and 33.1 million, respectively, common
shares associated with our FELINE PACS units (see Note 12).

(3) The unvested deferred shares outstanding at December 31, 2005, will vest over the period from January
2006 to January.2010.

Approximately 27.5 million and 16.5 million weighted-average shares related to the assumed conversion
of convertible debentures, as well as the related interest, have been excludéd from the computation of diluted
earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Inclusion of these
shares would have an antidilutive effect on diluted earnings per common share. If no other components used to
calculate diluted earnings per common share change, we estimate the assumed conversion of convertible
debentures would have become dilutive and therefore be included in diluted earnings per common share at an
income from continuing operations available to common stockholders amount of $198.1 million and
$192.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, and 2003, respect_ively.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, -approximately 3.6 million weighted-average: stock options,
approximately 6.4 million weighted-average shares related to the assumed conversion of 9.875 percent
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cumulative convertible preferred stock and approximately 2.5 million weighted-average unvested deferred
shares have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per common share as thelr inclusion
would be antidilutive. The preferred stock was redeemed in June 2003.

The table below includes information related to options that were outstanding at the end of each
respective year but have been excluded from the computation of weighted-average stock options due to the
option exercise price exceeding the fourth quarter weighted-average market price of our common shares.

2005 . 2004 2003
Options excluded (millions) .............. L 4.7 8.5 15.0
Weighted-average exercise prices of options : A
excluded ... $35.22 $28.21 . $22.77

Exercise price ranges of options excluded ... $22.68 - $42.29 $14.61 - $42.29 $10.39 ;$42'52

Fourth quarter weighted-average market :
price................ e $22.41 $14.41 $9.76

During January 2006, we issued 20.2 million shares of common stock related to a conversion offer for our
~ convertible debentures (see Note 12). These shares will be a component of basic earnings per common share
in future periods.

Note 7. Employee Benefit Plans

We have noncontributory defined benefit pension plans in which all eligible employees participate.
Currently, eligible employees earn benefits primarily based on a cash balance formula. Various other formulas,
as defined in the plan documents, are utilized to calculate the retirement benefits for plan participants not
covered by the cash balance formula. At the time of retirement, participants may receive annuity payments, a
lump sum payment or a combination of lump sum and annuity payments. In addition to our pension plans, we
currently provide subsidized medical and life insurance benefits (other postretirement benefits) to certain
eligible participants. Generally, employees hired after December 31, 1991, are not eligible for these benefits,
except for participants that were employees of Transco Energy Company on December 31, 1995, and other
miscellaneous defined participant groups. Certain of these other postretirement benefit plans, particularly the
subsidized medical benefit plans, provide for retireé contributions and contain other cost-sharing features such
as deductibles, co-payments, and co-insurance. The accounting for these plans anticipates future cost-sharing
that is consistent with our expressed intent to increase the retiree contribution level generally in line with
health care cost increases. "
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- Benefit Obligations

The following table presents the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets for pension benefits and
other postretirement benefits for the years indicated. It also presents a reconciliation of the funded status of
these benefit plans to the amounts recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 of each year
indicated. The -annual measurement date for our plans is December 31.

D Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2005 2004 2005 2004
(Millions) *

-Change in benefit obligation: SR e
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............. $893.0 $7759 § 2684 $ 3624
SErvice COSt. ..\ ovvi e e 2157 240 33 3.2
Interest cost ............ A 476 505 203 - 188
Plan partlclpants contributions ................. L - - 43 43
Curtailment’ . .. ... P e S (23) - -

~ Settlement benefits paid .................... S (4.0) (4 = =
Benefits paid............. .o i (582) (78.8) (24.0) (24.8)
Plan amendments........... R - .. 18 51.2 (75.5) .
Actuarial (gain) Joss ....... ... _(235). 1163 51.9 (20.0)
Benefit obligation at end of VEAT t'eiin - 8974  893.0 375.4 . 268.4-

Change in pIan assets: ‘ : o L o _

Fair value of plan assets at begmmng of year. cee.... 8355 - . 706.3 1589 1527
Actual return on plan assets.......... P - 564 - 696 9.5 132
Employer contributions ............ LSl I 579 1388 14.9 13.5
Plan part1c1pants contnbunons ..... R - —_ _ 43 43
Benefits paid ................ S Lo (582) (78 8) - (24.0) (24.8)

. VSettlement benefits paid . T T . (4.0) ' (4) — —
Fair value of plan assets at-end of year........... ~.. 8876 835.5 163.6 158.9

FUnded SEATUS « « o v vvee e (98)  (57.5) - (211.8)  (109.5)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss ..................... 309.7 295.3 74.4 23.7

Unrecognized prior service cost (credit) .............. 5.1 4.7 1.7 (53.8)

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost...................... $305.0 $242.5  $(1357) $(139.6)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet consist of:

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2005 . 2004 2005 2004
(Millions)

Prepaid benefit cost ............. P $3126 $2510 § — § —
Accrued benefit cost . ... . .. (16.8)  (17.6)  (135.7) (139.6)
Regulatory asset .. ..o, - 23 1.7 — —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (before tax). 6.9 7.4 — —
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost...................... $305.0 $242.5 $(135.7) $(139.6)
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The regulatory asset shown in the table above is the portion of the additional minimum pension liability
recognized by our FERC-regulated gas pipelines. As required by FERC accounting guidelines, our FERC-
regulated gas pipelines are required to record the effect of an additional minimum pension liability to a
regulatory asset instead of accumulated other comprehensive income.

The 2005 actuarial gain of $2.5 million for our pension plans included in the table of changes in benefit
obligation reflects a gain of approximately $68 million for the cumulative impact of a correction of an error
determined to have occurred in 2003 and 2004. The error was associated with our third-party actuarial
computation of the benefit obligation which resulted in the identification of errors in certain Transco
participant data involving 4nnuity contract information utilized for 2003 and 2004. This gain is offset
substantially by the impact of changes to the discount rates utilized to determine the benefit obligation. The
2004 actuarial loss of $116.3 million for our pension plans included in the table of changes in benefit |
obligation reflects the impact of changes in various actuarial assumptions used to calculate the benefit
obligation including the expected type of benefit payment and discount rates. The 2005 actuarial loss of
$51.9 million for our other postretirement benefit plans included in the table of changes in benefit obligation is
due primarily to the impact of changes in assumptions utilized to calculate the bcneﬁt.obligation including the
health care cost trend rates, discount rate and estimated cost savings related to the Medicare Prescription
Drug Act.

The current accounting rules for pension and other postretirement benefit plans allow for the delayed
recognition of gains and losses caused by differences between actual and assumed outcomes for items such as
estimated return on plan assets, or caused by changes in assumptions for items such as discount rates or
estimated future compensation levels. The unrecognized net actuarial loss presented in the previous table
represents the cumulative net deferred losses from these types of differences or changes which have not yet
been recognized in the financial statements. A portion of the net unrecognized gains and losses are amortized
over the participants’ average remaining future years of service, which is approx1mately 12 years for our
pension plans and 14 years for our other postretirement benefit plans.

The accumulated benefit obligation for our pension plans was $831 4 million and $823 4 million at
December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for our pension plans with projected benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets were $428.6 million and $359.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005,
and $381.2 million and $305.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004. The accumulated' benefit
obligation for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was $16.7 million at
December 31, 2005, and $17.6 million at December 31, 2004. There were no assets for these plans at
December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004.
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Net Periodic Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Expense (Income)

Net periodic pensioﬁ‘ expense (income) and other postretirement benefit expense (income) for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, consists of the following:

Pension Benefits

2005 2004 2003
(Millions) '
~ Components of net periodic pension expense (income):
SEIVICE COST . o vttt i e e e ettt $ 215 $240 $ 255
TREETEST COST . . o v v vt ce e et e et e e e e e e .. 476 50.5 527
Expected return on plan assets ....... e (71.1)  (64.9) (54.2)
Amortization of prior service credit ................. P (.4) (1.5) (2.5)
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss ......................... (4.9) 9.4 13.7
Regulatory asset amortization ....................ooo .6 20 39
Settlement/curtailment expense ... ..... P SR DU 2.7 1 6
Net periodic pension expense {(income) ..............covnvern... $ (40) $ 196 $ 397

Other Postretirement Benefits

2005 2004 2003
' (Millions)

Components of net periodic other postretirement benefit expense

(income): o ,

Service Cost .. ... ER DU $ 33 § 32 §$ 6.2

Interest cost .. ... ... e 0203 18.8 24.1

Expected return on plan assets ................ ... ...... DI (11.5) (12.4) (13.0)

Amortization of transition obligation ......................... — 2.7 2.7

Amortization of prior service cost (credit) .................... (4.3) .6 6

Recognized net actuarial loss. ........ e © 32 — —

Regulatory asset amortization . e B 6.8 6.7 8.6 .

Settlement/curtailment income . . .......... ... .. oo, — — . (41.9)
Net periodic other postretirement benefit expense (income) ....... $ 178 $19.6 $(12.7)

Net periodic pension expense (income) for 2005 includes a $17.1 million reduction to expense to record
the cumulative impact of a correction of an error determined to have occurred in 2003 and 2004. The error was
associated with our third-party actuarial computation of annual net periodic pension expense which resulted
from the identification of errors in certain Transco participant data involving annuity contract information
utilized for 2003 and 2004. The adjustment is reflected as $16.1 million within recognized net actuarial
(gain) loss and $1 million within regulatory asset amortization.

The $41.9 million settlement/curtailment income component of net periodic other postretirement benefit
expense (income) in 2003 is included in income (loss} from discontinued operations in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations due to the settlement/curtailment directly resulting from the sale of the operations
included within discontinued operations.

The amount of other postretirement benefit costs deferred as a net regulatory asset at December 31, 2005,
and 2004, is $13 million and $18 million, respectively, and is expected to be recovered through rates over
approximately six years.
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Key Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions utilized to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 20035,
and 2004, are as follows:

Other
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2005 2004 2005 2004
Discount rate .......... S 5.65% 5.86% 5.60% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase .. ........................ 5 5 N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions utilized to determine net pension and other postretirement benefit
expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, are as follows:

* Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
DISCOUNT TALE « o v v v eeee e e 586% 6.25% 7% 5.63% 625% 7%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets... 8.5 85 85 745 8.5 7
Rate of compensation increase ... ............... 5 5 5 N/A N/A N/A

The discount rates for our pension and other postretirement benefit plans were determined separately
based on an approach specific to our plans and their respective expected benefit cash flows. With the
assistance of our third-party actuary, the plans were analyzed and discount rates based on a yield curve
comprised of high-quality corporate bonds published by a large securities firm were matched to a highly
correlated published index of high-quality corporate bonds. Based on an analysis performed between each of
the plans’ yield curve discount rates and the index, a formula was developed to determine the December 31,
20035, discount rates based upon the year-end published index.

The expected long-term rates of return on plan assets were determined by combining a review of the
historical returns realized within the portfolio, the investment strategy included in the plans’ Investment Policy
Statement, and the capital market projections provided by our independent investment consultant for the asset
classifications in which the portfolio is invested and the target weightings of each asset classification.

The mortality assumptions used to determine the obligations for our pension and other postretirement
benefit plans are related to the experience of the plans and to our third-party actuary’s best estimate of
expected plan mortality. The selected mortality tables are among the most recent tables available.

The assumed health care cost trend rate for 2006 is 10 percent, and systematically decreases to 5 percent
by 2014.

The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

Point increase Point decrease
(Millions) )
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . ........... $ 4.8 $ (3.8)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ...................... 72.7 (57.8)

Medicare Prescription Drug Act

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (the
Act) was signed into law. The Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D)
beginning in 2006 as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a

115




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. Qur health care plans for retirees include
prescription drug coverage. In accordance with FSP No. FAS 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Require-
ments Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003,” the
provisions of the Act were not reflected in any measures of benefit obligations or other postretirement benefit
expense in the financial statements or accompanying notes until further guidance was effective. In May 2004,
the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.” Although final guidance had not been
issued, we believed the prescription drug benefits included in our health care plans for retirees, prior to the
amendment of the plans discussed below, were actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. In accordance with
FSP No. FAS 106-2, we reflected the effect of the subsidy on the measurement of net periodic other
postretirement benefit expense {income) in 2004. Net periodic other postretirement benefit expense (income)
for the year ended December 31, 2004, reflects a reduction of $3.4 million, including a decrease in service cost
of $.4 million and decrease in interest cost of $2.7 million. The reduction in the benefit obligation was
approximately $43 million as of January 1, 2004, and is included as a component of the actuarial (gain) loss
in the table of changes in benefit obligation. We amended our health care plans for retirees in the fourth
quarter of 2004 to coordinate and pay secondary to any part of Medicare, including prescription drug benefits
covered by Medicare Part D. This amendment further decreased the benefit obligation by $75.5 million and is
reflected as a plan amendment in the table of changes in benefit obligation for 2004. As a result of the
amendment, our plans were no longer actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. Beginning in 2005, the net
reduction to the obligation is being amortized over approximately seven years which is the participants’
average remaining years of service to full eligibility for benefits. It is reflected in the amortization of prior
service credit in the table of components of net periodic other postretirement benefit expense (income) for
2005.

Due to anticipated difficulties to administer our plans as previously amended to coordinate and pay
secondary to Medicare Part D in 2006, we amended our plans in June 2005 to generally provide primary
prescription drug coverage and apply for the federal subsidy in 2006. As a result of the amendment, generally
our plans are designed to be actuarially equivalent to the standard coverage under Medicare Part D. The
amendment increased our benefit obligation by $51.2 million at June 30, 2005, and is reflected as a plan
amendment in the table of changes in benefit obligation for 2005. Beginning in the third quarter of 2005, the
increase to the obligation is being amortized over the participants’ average remaining years of service to full
eligibility for benefits, which is approximately seven years. Net periodic other postretirement benefit expense
for 2005, reflects an increase of $7.1 million, including an increase in recognized net actuarial loss of
$.3 million, an increase in service cost of $.3 million, an increase in interest cost of $2.6 million, and an increase
in amortization of prior service credit of $3.9 million, resulting from the plan amendment. We are continuing
to evaluate coordination with Medicare Part D as a strategy to decrease our benefit obligation in the future and
will closely monitor the development of systems and capabilities of third-party administrators to coordinate
prescription drug benefits with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services.

Plan Assets

The investment policy for our pension and other postretirement benefit plans articulates an investment
philosophy in accordance with ERISA which governs the investment of the assets in a diversified portfolio.
The investment strategy for the assets of the pension plans and approximately one half of the assets of the
other postretirement benefit plans include maximizing returns with reasonable and prudent levels of risk. The
investment returns on the approximate one half of remaining assets of the other postretirement benefit plans is
subject to federal income tax, therefore the investment strategy also includes investing in a tax efficient
manner.
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The following table presents the weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2005, and 2004 and
target asset allocation at December 31, 2005, by asset category. -

Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2005 2004 Target 2005 2004 Target
EQUIty SECUTIHES « « « oo e e 81% 82% 84%  78% 717%  80%
Debt securities .......... e e 13 14 16 - 13 14 20
Other oo e 6 4 9 9

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Included in equity securities are investments in commingled funds that invest entirely in equity securities
and comprise 37 percent of the pension plans weighted-average assets at December 31, 2005, and 2004 and
26 percent and 24 percent of the other postretirement benefit plans’ weighted-average assets at December 31,
2005, and 2004, respectively. Other assets are comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents for the pension
plans and cash and cash equivalents, and insurance contract assets for the other postretirement benefit plans.

The assets are invested in accordance with the. target allocations identified in the previous table. The
investment policy provides for minimum and maximum ranges for the broad asset classes in the previous table.
Additional target allocations are identified for specific classes of equity securities. The asset allocation ranges
established by the investment policy are based upon a long-term investment perspective. The ranges are more
heavily weighted toward equity securities since the liabilities of the pension and other postretirement benefit
plans are long-term in nature and historically equity securities have significantly outperformed other asset
classes over long periods of time. ’

Equity security investments are restricted to high-quality, readily marketable securities that are actively
traded on the major U.S. and foreign national exchanges. Investment in Williams’ securities or an entity in
which Williams has a majority ownership is prohibited except where these securities may be owned in a
commingled investment vehicle in which the pension plans trust invests. No more than five percent of the total
stock portfolio valued at market may be invested in the common stock of any one corporation. The following
securities and transactions are not authorized: unregistered securities, commodities or commodity contracts,
short sales or margin transactions or other leveraging strategies. Investment strategies using options or futures
are not authorized. -

Debt security investments are restricted to high-quality, marketable securities that include U.S. Treasury,
federal agencies and U.S. Government guaranteed obligations, and investment grade corporate issues. The
overall rating of the debt security assets is required to be at least “A”, according to the Moody’s or Standard &
Poor’s rating system. No more than five percent of the total portfolio at the time of purchase may be invested
in the debt securities of any one issuer. U.S. Government guaranteed and agency securities are exempt from
this provision. '

During 2003, 11 active investment managers and one passive investment manager managed substantially
all of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans’ funds, each of whom had responsibility for managing
a specific portion of these assets.

Periodically, an asset and liability study is performed to determine the optimal asset mix to meet future
benefit obligations. The most recent pension asset and liability study was performed in 2001.

Plan Benefit Payments and Employer Contributions

The following are the expected benefits to be paid by the plan and the expected federal prescriptidn drug
subsidy to be received in the next ten years. These estimates are based on the same assumptions previously
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discussed and reflect future service as appropriate. The actuarial assumptions are based on long-term
expectations and include, but are not limited to, assumptions as to average expected retirement age and form
of benefit payment. Actual benefit payments could differ significantly from expected benefit payments if near-
term participant behaviors differ significantly from the actuarial assumptions.

Federal
Other Prescription
Pension Postretirement Drug
Benefits Benefits Subsidy
A ) (Millions)

2006 . ... PR U $ 413  $220 $ 2.1
2007 ... ... e e 39.2 238 2.4
2008 ...l e e 40.2 254 2.6
2000 .. e 438 26.9 2.8
T2010 0. P 394 - 28.2 3.1

- 2011- 2015 O 200.7 - 1524 19.0

We expect to contnbute approximately $20 million to our pension plans and approximately $16 million to
our other postretirement benefit plans in 2006.

Defined Contribution Plans

We also maintain defined contribution plans.for the benefit of substantially all of our employees.
Generally, plan participants may contribute a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax and after-tax basis in
accordance with the plan’s guidelines. We match employees’ contributions up to certain limits. Costs related
to continuing operations of $17 million were recognized for these plans in 2005 and 2004 and $18 million was
recognized for these plans in 2003. One of our defined contribution plans was amended as of July 1, 2005, to
convert one of the funds within theé plan to a nonleveraged employee stock. ownership plan (ESOP). The
compensation cost related to- the ESOP of $.7 million is included in the $17 million of contributions,
previously mentioned above, and ‘represents the contribution made in consideration for employee services
rendered in 2005. It is measured by the amount of cash contributed to the ESOP. The shares held by the
ESOP are treated as outstanding when computing earnings per share and the dividends on the shares held by
the ESOP are recorded as a component of retained earnings. For 2006 and future years, there will be no
contributions to this ESOP, other than dividend reinvestment, as contributions for purchase of our stock is
now restricted within this deﬁned contnbutlon plan.

Note 8. Inventories

Inventories at December 31, 2005, and 2004, are as follows:

2005 2004
: . ) (Millions)
Natural gas liquids........ P P P ... $100.0 $ 632
Natural gas in underground Storage . ...... ... viiiii i 90.4 133.1
Materials, supplies and other ... .. . e 82.2 64.8

$272.6  $261.1

Inventories determined using the LIFO cost method were approximately 8 percent and 6 percent of
inventories at December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The remaining inventories were primarily
determined using the average-cost method.
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If inventories valued using the LIFO cost method at December 31, 2005 and 2004, were valued at current
replacement cost, the amounts would increase by $59 million and $25 million, respectively

Natural gas in underground storage reflects a $32.1 million charge recorded in 2005 for prior period
accounting and valuation correctrons

Note 9. Property, Plant and Equipment h
Property, plant and equipment-net at Deccmber 31, 2005, and 2004, is as follows: -

2005 © 2004
(Millions)
Cost: '
POWeT. .. e $ 1549 $ 1882
Gas Pipeline .......... e P e el o 8,371.1 8,140.3
Exploration & Production(1) ..... ..o ........ S el . il 44589 3,690.6
Midstream Gas & Liquids(1l) .............. ... o i, - 43514 4,189.9
Other........ooivvivieieennn. e e e 2355 243.8
. . : . 17,571.8 16,452.8
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ................ (5,162.6) (4,566.0)

$12,409.2  $11,886.8

(1) Certain assets above are currently pledged as collateral to secure debt (see Note 11).

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense for property, plant and equzpment net was $739 mllllon
in 2005, $667.4 million in 2004, and $655.6 million in 2003.

Property, plant and equipment-net includes approximately $374 million at December 31, 2005, and
$218 million at December 31, 2004, of construction in progress which is not yet subject to depreciation. In
addition, property of Exploration & Production includes approximately $443 million at December 31, 2005,
and $561 million at December 31, 2004 of capltahzed costs related to properties with unproven reserves not
yet subject to depletion.

Property, plant and equipment-net includes approximately $1.2 billion at December 31, 2005, and 2004,
related to amounts in excess of the onglnal cost of the regulated facilities within Gas Pipeline as a result of our
prior acquisitions. This amount is bcmg amortized over 40 years using the straight-line amortization method.
Current FERC policy does not permit recovery through rates for amounts in excess of original cost of
construction.

Asset retirement obligations

In ‘March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations —
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” The Interpretation clarifies that the term “conditional asset
retirement” as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” refers to a legal
obligation to perform an assef retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are
conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The Interpretation also
clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation.

We adopred the Interpretation on December 31, 2005. In accordance with the Interpretation, we
estimated future retirement obligations for certain assets previously considered to have an indeterminate life.
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As a result, we recorded an increase in other liabilities and deferred income of $29.4 million, an increase in
property, plant and equipment — net of $12.2 million, and a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle of $1.7 million (net of $1.0 million of taxes). We also recorded a $14.5 million regulatory asset in
other assets and deferred charges for retirement costs éxpected to be recovered through regulated rates. Had
we implemented the Interpretation at the beginning of 2003, the financial statement impact at December 31,
2004 would not be substantially different than the impact at December 31, 200S.

A We adopted SFAS No. 143 on-January 1, 2003. As a result, we recorded an increase in.other liabilities
and deferred income of $33.4 million, an increase in property, plant and equipment — net of $24.8 million,
and a‘cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle credit of $1.2 million (net of $0.1 million of taxes).
We also recorded a $9.7 million regulatory asset in other assets and deferred charges for retirement costs
expected to be recovered through regulated rates. ‘

- The asset retirement’ obligation at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is $93 million and $55 million,
respectively. The increase in the obligation in 2005 is primarily due to implementation of FIN 47, accretion,
and revisions to liability estimates.

The accrued obligations relate to producing wells, underground storage caverns, offshore platforms,
fractionation facilities, gas gathering well connections and pipelines, and gas transmission facilities. At the end
of the useful life of each respective asset, we are. legally obligated to.plug both producing wells and storage
caverns and remove any related surface equipment, remove surface equipment and restore land at fractiona-
tion facilities, to dismantle offshore platforms, to cap certain gathering pipelines at the wellhead connection
and remove any related surface equlpment and to remove cenam components of gas transmission facﬂmes
from the ground.

Note 10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Under our cash-management system, certain subsidiaries’ cash accounts reflect credit balances to the
extent checks written have not-been presented for-payment. Accournis payable includes approximately
$69 million of these credit balances at December 31, 2005, and $6 million at December 31, 2004.

On May 26, 2004, we were released from certain historical indemnities, primarily related to environmen-
tal remediation, for an agreement to pay $117.5 million. We had previously deferred $113 million of a gain on
sale related to these indemnities. At the date of sale, the deferred revenue and identified obligations related to
the indemnities totaled $102 million. The carrying value of this obhgatlon is $51.3 million at December 31,
2005, and $74.8 million at December 31, 2004. We will pay the remaining balance in two installments of
$20 million on July 1, 2006, and $35 million on July 1, 2007.

We have provided guarantees in the event of nonpayment by. our previously owned communications
subsidiary, WilTel, on certain lease performance obligations that extend through 2042. The maximum
potential exposure is approximately $47 million at December 31, 2005, and $49 million at December 31, 2004.
Our exposure declines. systematxca]ly throughout the remaining term of WilTel’s obligations.
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Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2005, and 2004, are as follows:

2005 _ . 2004
) ) (Millions)
Interest........ PRI e $ 2450 $238.2
Taxes other than income taxes ........... FE T 141.4 109.1
Employee costs .......c.oooiiii ... e 147.2 151.3
Accrual for Power litigation contmgenc:1es O 52.2* L —
Guarantees and payment obhgatlons related to WllTel e 42.7 44.4
Net lease obligation . ... ... ... it " 303 35.6
Structured indemnity settlement ................. ... ... e . 19.4 26.7
TNCOME taXES « . v vveveieaeit e i, 58.2 4.0
Other ... ... B PP e ... 3855 364.7

$1,121.9  $974.0

Represents the current port1on An additional $30 million is included in Other liabilities and deferred
income.

Note 11. Debt, Leases and Banking Arrangements

Long-Téerm Debt ‘
Long-term debt at December 31, 2005 and 2004, is:

Weighted- .
ﬁlvteer?egsi December 31,
Rate (1) 2005 - 2004
(Millions)
Secured(2) : ‘
6.62%-9.45%, payable through 2016 ............... 8.0% § 1957 § 2197
Adjustable rate, payable through 2016 ............. 6.4% 572.2 587.3
Capital lease obligations . ............. e 9.3% . 28 —
Unsecured » : :
5.5%-10.25%, payable through 2033 ............... 7.6% 6,867.3  7,079.7
Adjustable rate, due 2008 ....................... 54% 750 75.0
Other, payable through 2007 ..................... 6.0% 1 3
Total long-term debt, inctuding current portion ......... ‘ 7,713.1 ' 7,962.0
Long-term debt due within.one year ................ . (122.6) (250.1)
Long-term debt ................ JE $ 17,5905 $ 17,7119
At December 31, 2005.

(1)
(2)

Includes $487.6 million and $492.5 million at December 31 2005 and 2004, respectively, secured by
substantially all of the assets of Williams Production RMT Company. The net book value of these assets
significantly exceeds the outstanding debt. Also includes ‘$280.3 million and $314.5 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, collateralized by certain fixed assets of two of our Venezuelan
subsidiaries with a net book value of $408.7 million and $444.6 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.
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Revolving credit and letter of credit facilities.

In January 2005, we replaced two unsecured bank revolving credit facilities totaling $500 million with two
new facilities for the same amount, which have the same terms but almost all of the restrictive covenants and
events of default were removed or made less restrictive. These facilities provide for both borrowings and
issuing letters of ‘credit but are expected to be used primarily for issuing letters of credit. In connection with
the replacement, we paid $19.1 million in fees that are being amortized over the life of the new facilities. We
are required to pay to the bank fixed fees at a weighted-average rate of 3.64 percent on the total committed
amount of the facilities. In addition, we pay interest on any borrowings at a fluctuating rate comprised of either
a base rate or LIBOR. We were able to obtain the unsecured credit facilities because the funding bank
syndicated its associated credit risk through a private offering that allows for the resale of certain restricted
securities to qualified institutional buyers. To facilitate the syndication of these facilities, the bank established
trusts funded by the institutional investors. The assets of the trusts serve as collateral to reimburse the bank for
our borrowings in the event that the facilities are delivered to the investors as described below. Thus, we have
no asset securitization or collateral requirements under the facilities. Upon the occurrence of certain credit
events, letters of credit under the agreement become cash collateralized creating a borrowing under the
facilities. Concurrently, the funding bank can deliver the facilities to the institutional investors, whereby the
investors replace the funding bank as lender under the facilities. Upon such occurrence, we will pay:

+ A fixed facility fee at a weighted-average rate.of 3.19 percent to the investors;
+ Interest on borrowings under the $400 million facility equal to a fixed rate of 3.57 percent;-
+ Interest on borrowings under the $100 million facility at a fluctuating LIBOR interest rate. -

At December 31, 2005, letters of credit totdling $465 million have been issued under these facilities and
no revolving credit loans are outstanding.

During May 2005, we amended and restated our $1.275 billion secured revolving credit facility, which is
available for borrowings and letters of credit, resulting in certain changes, including the following:

+ “Added Williams Partners L.P. as a borrower for up to $75 million;
+ Provided our guarantee for the obligations of Williams Partners L.P. under this agreement;

~ *» Released certain Midstream assets held as collateral and replaced them with the common stock of
Transco;

« Reduced commitment fees and margins.

The facility is guaranteed by Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC. Northwest Pipeline and Transco each
have access to $400 million under the facility to the exterit not otherwise utilized by us. Interest is calculated
based on a choice of two methods: a fluctuating rate equal to the facilitating bank’s base rate plus an
applicable margin or a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin. We are required to pay a
commitment fee (curréntly .325 percent annually) based on the unused portion of the facility. The applicable
margins and commitment fee are based on the relevant borrower’s senior unsecured long-term debt ratings.
Slgmﬁcant financial covenants under the credit agreement 1nclude the followmg 4

+ Ratio of debt to capitalization no greater than 70 percent for the penod of December 31 2004
through December 31, 2005, and 65 percent, for. the remaining term of the agreement. At
December 31, 2005, we are in compliance with this covenant as our ratlo of debt to capitalization, as
calculated under this covenant, is appr0x1rnately 57 percent.

« Ratio of debt to capitalization, as calculated under this covenant, no greater than 55 percent for
Northwest Pipeline and Transco.
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» Ratio of EBITDA to interest, on a rolling four quarter basis, no less than (i) 1.5 for the period
ending March 31, 2005, (ii) 2.0 for any period after March 31, 2005 through December 31, 2005,
and (iii) 2.5 for the remaining term of the agreement. Through December 31, 2005, we are in
compliance with this covenant as we exceed the compliance level by approximately 62 percent.

At December 31, 2005, letters of credit totaling $378 million have been issued under this facility and no
revolving credit loans are outstanding.

In September 2005, we entered into two unsecured bank revolving credit facilities totaling $700 million
that are similar in structure to our $500 million credit facilities. These facilities provide for both borrowings
and issuing letters of credit, but are expected to be used primarily for issuing letters of credit. We are required
to pay fixed facility fees at a weighted-average rate of 2.29 percent on the total committed amount of the
facilities. In addition, we will pay interest on any borrowings at a fluctuating rate comprised of either a base
rate or LIBOR. Similar to our $500 million facilities described above, we were able to obtain these unsecured
facilities because the funding bank syndicated its associated credit risk into the institutional investor market
through a private offering. Upon the occurrence of certain credit events, letters of credit under the agreement
become cash collateralized creating a borrowing under the facilities. Concurrently, the funding bank can
deliver the facilities to the institutional investors, whereby the investors replace the fundmg bank as lendcr
under the facilities. Upon such occurrence, we will pay:

+ A fixed facility fee as described above;
« Interest on borrowings pnderv the $500 million facility at a fixed rate of 4.35 percent;
* Interest on borrowings under the $200 million facility at ‘a floating LIBOR interest rate.

At December 31, 2003, letters of credit totaling $671 million have been issued under these facilities and no
revolving credit loans are outstanding. :

Retirements

During January 2005, we retired $200 million of 6.125 percent notes issued January 15, 1998, by Transco,
which matured January 15, 2005.

Aggregate minimum maturities of long-term debt (excluding capital 1eases and unamortized discount and
premium) for each of the next five years are as follows:

2006 .. e e $119.0
2007 .o R PR 396.3
2008 . 715.6
2009 ......... e e 53.1
2010 .. PRETRTRO e 2173

Cash payments for interest (net of amounts capitalized) were as follows: 200‘5 — $625 million; 2004 —
$849 million; and 2003 — $1.3 billion.

On May 28, 2003, we issued $300 .million of 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures due
2033. These notes, which are callable after seven years, are convertible at the option of the holder into our
common stock at a conversion price of approximatély $10.89 per share. In November 2005, we initiated an
offer to convert these debentures to shares of our common stock. In January 2006 we converted approximately
$220.2 million of the debentures (see Note 12). : :
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Leases-Lessee

Future minimum annual rentals under noncancelable operatlng lcases as of December 31 2003, are
payable as follows:

) (Millions)
2006 .t e B $ 231.8
2007 o 229.1
2008 ..., DU e e 225.8
2009 ..., o e e TP L 201.4-
2010 . U e e 179.2
Thereafter. . ...t ...................... 1,238.6
Total .ovveeeen U R L. 823059

The above amounts. include obligations of approximately $2 billion related to a tolling agreement at
Power that is accounted for as an operating lease as a result of changes. to the contract terms in 2004 after
implementation of EITF 01-8 (see Note 1). Under the tolling agreement, Power has the exclusive right to
capacity and fuel conversion services as well as ancillary services associated with electric generation facilities’
that are currently in operation in southern California. Current annual rentals under this tolling agreement are
approximately $162 million with approximately 12 years remaining on the agreement as of Decerber 31,
2005. These rentals are offset through year 2010 with i income from sales and other transactions made possible
by the tolling agreement. :

Total rent expense was $226- million in 2005, $206 million in 2004 and $110 million in 2003. Rent expense
at Power, primarily related to the tolling agreement, was $161 million (including ($1) million of contingent
rentals) in 2005 and $136 million (including $9 million of contingent rentals) in 2004. Contingent rentals are
primarily based on utilization of the leased property or changes in the capacity and availability of the power
generating facility. Income from sales and other transactions made possible by the tolling agreement was
approximately $172 million (including $7 million of contingent rental income) in 2005 and $129 million
(including $6 million of contingent rental income) in 2004.

Note 12 Stockholders’ Equlty

On June 10, 2003, we redeemed all of ‘the outstanding 9.875 percent cumulative- convertlble preferred
shares for approximately $289 million, plus $5.3 million for accrued dividends. The $13.8 million of payments
in excess of carrying value of the shares was also recorded as a dividend. These shares were repurchased with
proceeds from a private placement of $300 million of 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures
due 2033. These notes, which are callable after seven years, are convertible at the option of the holder into our
common stock at a conversion price of approximately $10.89 per share.

In November 2005, we initiated an offer to convert the 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible
debentures into our common stock. In January 2006, we converted approximately $220.2 million of the
debentures in exchange for 20.2 million shares of common stock, a $25.8 million cash premium, and
$1.5 million of accrued interest. :

In January 2002, we issued $1.1 billion of 6.5 percent notes payable in 2007 that were subject to
remarketing-in 2004. Each note was bundled with-an equity forward contract (together; the FELINE PACS
units) and sold in a public offering for $25 per unit. The equity forward contract required the holder of each
note to purchase one share of our common stock for $25 three years from issuance of the contract. In the
fourth quarter of 2004, we exchanged approximately 33.1 million of the 44 million issued and outstanding
FELINE PACS units for one share of our common stock plus $1.47 in cash for each unit. On February 16,
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20035, the settlement date of the equity forward contracts, the holders of the remaining 10.9 million equity
forward contracts purchased one share of our common stock for $25, resulting in cash proceeds of
approximately $273-million and an increase in capital in excess of par value of approximately $262 million.

We maintain a Stockholder Rights Plan, as amended and restated on September 21, 2004, under which
each outstanding share of our common stock has a right (as defined in the plan) attached. Under certain
conditions, each right may be exercised to purchase, at an exercise price of $50 (subject to adjustment), one
two-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. The rights may be exercised only if
an Acquiring Person acquires (or obtains the right to acquire) 15 percent or more of our common stock or
commences an offer for 15 percent or more of our common stock. The rights, which until exercised do not
have voting rights, expire in 2014 and may be redeemed at a price of $.01 per right prior to their expiration, or
within a specified period of time after the occurrence of certain events. In the event a person becomes the
owner of more than 15 percent of our common stock, each holder of a right (except an Acquiring Person)
shall have the right to receive, upon exercise, our common stock having a value equal to two times the exercise
price of the right. In the event we are engaged in a merger, business combination or 50 percent or more of our
assets, cash flow or earnings power is sold or transferred, each holder of a right (except an Acquiring Person)

shall have the right to receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring company having a value equal to
two times the exercise price of the right. ‘

Note-13. Stock-Based Compensation
Plan Information

The Williams Companies, Inc. 2002 Incentive Plan (Plan) was approved by stockholders on May 16,
2002, and amended and restated on May 15, 2003, and January 23, 2004, The Plan provides for common-
stock-based awards to both employees and nonmanagement directors. Upon approval by the stockholders, all
prior stock plans were terminated resulting in no further grants being made from those plans. However, awards
- outstanding in those prior plans remain in those plans with their respective terms and provisions.

The Plan permits the granting of various types of awards including, but not limited to, stock options,
restricted stock and deferred stock. Awards may be granted for no consideration other than prior and future
services or based on certain financial performance targéts being achieved. At December 31, 2005, 45 million
shares of our common stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to existing and future stock awards, of which
21.6 million shares were available for future grants. At December 31, 2004, 49.7 million shares of our common
stock were reserved for issuance, of which 25.2 million were available.

Loans

Several of our prior stock plans allowed us to loan money to participants to exercise stock options using
stock certificates as collateral. Effective November 14, 2001, we no longer issue loans under the stock option
loan programs. Loan holders were offered a one-time opportunity in January 2002 to refinance outstanding
loans at a market rate of interest commensurate with the borrower’s credit standing. At December 31, 2005, -
$4.6 million of the notes remain outstanding. However, $4.4 miilion of the outstanding notes were paid by the
end of February 2006. Loans outstanding at December 31, 2004, totaled $22 million (net of a $7 million
allowance).
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Deferred -Shares

Deferred shares are valued at the date of award. Deferred share expense is recognized in the performance
year or over the vesting period, depending on the terms of the awards. Expense related to forfeited shares is
recognized in the year of the forfeiture. ‘ .

2005 2004 2003

. ) . (Millions, except per-share amounts)
Deferred shares granted . ............ .. ... o .. 1.4 1.8 o
" Deferred shares issued ........... S, EAND . .6 9 1.3
Welghted average falr value of deferred shares granted per o '
share....... A D $ 1935 $ 1054 ©$§ 4.68
Deferred share expense JR T, $ 14 '$ 14 % 30
Options

" The purchase price per share for stock optlons may not be less than the market price of the underlymg
stock on the date of grant, Stock options generally become exercisable over a three-year period from the date '
of grant and generally expire ten years after grant.

On May 15, 2003, our shareholders approved a stock option exchange program. Under this program,
eligible employees were given a one-time opportunity to exchange certain outstanding options for a
proportionately lesser number of options at an exercise price to be determined at the grant date of the new
options. Surrendered options were cancelled June 26, 2003, and replacement options were granted on
December 29, 2003. We did not recognize any expense pursuant to the stock option exchange. However, for
purposes of pro forma disclosures, we recognized additional expense related to these new options. The
remaining pro forma expense on the cancelled options was amortized through year-end 2004.

The follovﬁng summary reflects stock obtion‘ Aactivity for our common stock and related information for
2005, 2004, and 2003:

2005 ’ 2004 . 2003
Weighted- - . Weighted- - Weighted-
. Average Average Average
Exercise © Exercise : Exercise
Options . Price Options Price Options Price
(Millions) . . (Millions) -~ (Millions)
Outstanding — beginning ' o ,
of year .............. 22.0 $15.36 25.7 $14.63 38.8 $19.85
Granted ............... 34 16.28 4.5 9.96 4.1% 9.76 .
Exercised.............. : (4.1) 9.60 (5.5) 393 . (.2) 5.86
- Canceled .............. (9) - 2838 2.7) 2235 - (17.0**  25.60
Outstanding — end of 7 ' o
VEAT .« 204  $16.63 22.0 $15.36 25.7 $14.63
Exercisable — end of year 14.3 $17.40 17.1 $16.87 12.3 $24.23

* Includes 3.9 million shares that were granted December 29, 2003, under the stock option exchange
program.

** Includes 10.4 million shares that were cancelled on June 26, 2003, under the stock option exchange
program,
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The following summary provides information about. options for our common. stock that are outstanding
and exercisable at December 31, 2005: ; :

Stock Options

Stock Options Outstanding . Exercisable
Weighted-

Weighted- . Average Weighted-

Average Remaining Average

Exercise Contractual Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Options Price’ Life Options Price

(Millions) (Millions)

$2.12t0 $10.00 ........ ..., 10.3 $ 7.23 6.6 years 1.4 $ 6.26
$10.39 to $16.64 ............. ... 1.6 1547 3.6 years 1.6 15.53
$16.91 to $31.58 ... ... 49 21.35 6.7 years 1.7 2531
$32.88 10 $45.33 .. ... il 36 37.66 23 years 3.6 37.66
Total ... 20.4 $16.63 5.6 years 143 $17.40

The estimated fair value at date of grant of options for our common stock granted in 2005, 2004, and
2003, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, is as follows:

2005 2004 2003*

. Weighted-average grant date fair value of options for our common stock

granted during the year ...... PR P PR . $6.70  $4.54 $2.95
-Assumptions: ' . .

Dividend yield . ... ... e DU [ 1.6% 04% = 1%

VOLatility ...\ 333%  50%  50%

Risk-free interest rate .. .......... B L 41% 33% 3.1%

Expected life (years) ........ .. ... e 6.5 5.0 5.0

The 2003 weighted average fair value and assumptions do not reflect options that were granted Decem-
ber 29, 2003, as part of the stock option exchange program. The fair value of these options is $1.58, which is
the difference in the fair value of the new options granted and the fair value of the exchanged options. The
assumptions used in the fair value calculation of the new options granted were: (1) -dividend yield of
0.4 percent; (2) volatility of 50 percent; (3) weighted average expected remaining life of 3.4 .years; and
(4) weighted average risk free interest rate of 1.99 percent. '

Pro forma net income (loss) and earnings per share, assuming we had applied the fair-value method of
SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” in measuring compensation cost beginning with
1997 employee stock-based awards, is disclosed under employee stock-based awards in Note 1.

Note 14. Financial Instruments, Derivatives, Guarantees and Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial Instruments
Fair-value methods

We used the following methods and assumptions in estimating our fair-value disclosures for financial
instruments: '

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash: The carrying amounts of cash equivalents reported in the
balance sheet approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.
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- Other securities,’ notes_and- other noncurrent receivablés, structured indemnity settlement obligation,
margin deposits, and customer margin deposits payable: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet
approximate fair value as these instruments have interest rates approximating market. Other securities consists
primarily of auction rate securities.

Long-term debt:  The fair value of our publicly traded long-term debt is valued using indicative year-end
traded bond market prices. Private debt is valued based on the prices of similar securities with similar terms
and credit ratings. At both December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately 89 percent of our long-term debt was
publicly traded. We use the expertise of outside investment banking firms to assist with the estimate of the fair
value of our long-term debt. ‘

Energy derivatives: Energy d@ﬁVatives include:
- » Futures contracts;

* Forward purchase and sale contracts;

* Swap agreements;

» Option contracts.

The falr value of energy denvatlves is determined based on the nature of the underlying transaction and the
market in which the transaction is executed. Most ‘of these transactions are executed in exchange-traded or
over-the-counter markets for which quoted prices in active periods exist. For contracts with lives exceeding the
time period for which quoted prices are available, we determined fair value by estimating commodity prices
during the illiquid periods. We estimated commodity prices during illiquid periods by incorporating informa-
tion obtained from commodity prices m act1vely quoted markets, prices reflected in current transactions and
market fundamental arialysis. : :

Carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments

2005 2004
: - o . " Carrying . : Carrying ] :
Asset (Liability) . . C o Amount Fair Value _  Amount Fair Value
- . . L ) . -+ (Millions) .
Cash and cash equivalents ..-........0..... $.1,597.2 . $1,5972 % 9300 .§ 9300
- Restricted cash (current and noncurrent) . . . .. C 1294 - 129.4 112.7 S 1127

Other securities .................c........ 1229 1229 — —
Notes and other noncurrent receivables ... ... 266 .26 800 80.5
Cost.based investments. (see Note 3) .......... - 53567 .- . (a) 69.7 . - (a)
Long-term debt, including current portion (see ' ' Co

Note 11)(b) ..., e (7,710.3)  (8,599.4) (7,962.0) (8,857.2)
Structured .indemnity settlement obligation . . : ‘ ‘ : ,

(see Note 10) .. ovoinaeeeiann.., (51.3) (51.3) (74.8) (74.8)
Margin deposits .. ... e [P 349.2 349.2 131.7 - 131.7
Customer margin deposits payable........... (320.7) (320.7) (17.7) . (17.7)
Guarantees ........... e 43.3 433 45.0 45.0
Energy derivatives: o : o o ' .

Energy commodity cash flow hedges....... (5.5) (5.5) {328.8) (328.8)

_ Other energy derivatives . ................ 106.9. 106.9 718.7 .. . 7187

Other derivatives ...............icciioo... , 9 09 1.4 1.4
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(a) These investments are primarily in nonpubhcly traded companies for which it is not practicable to
estimate fair value.

(b) Excludes capital leases.

Energy Derivatives
Our energy denvatrve contracts include the followmg

Futures contracts. Futures contracts are commitments to either purchase or sell a commodlty at a
future date for a specified price and are generally settled in cash, but may be settled through delivery of the
underlying commodity. Exchange-traded or over-the-counter markets providing quoted prices in active
periods are available. Where quoted prices are not available, other market indicators exist for the futures
contracts we enter into. The fair value of these contracts is based on quoted prices.

Swap agreements and forward purchase and sale contracts: Swap agreements require us to make
payments to (or receive payments from) counterparties based upon the differential between a fixed and
variable price or variable prices of energy commodities for different locations. Forward contracts, which
involve physical delivery of energy commodities, contain both fixed and variable pricing terms. Swap
agreements and forward contracts are valued based on prices of the underlymg energy commodities over the

contract life and contractual or notional volumes with the resulting expected future cash flows discounted to a
present value using a risk-free market interest rate. .

Options: Physical and financial option contracts give the buyer the right to exercise the option and
receive the difference between a predetermined strike price arid a market price at the date of exercise. These
contracts are valued based on option pricing models censidering prices of the underlying energy commodities
over the contract life, volatility of the commaodity prices, contractual volumes, estrmated volumes under option
and other arrangements and a risk-free market interest rate.

Energy commodity cash flow hedges

We are exposed to market risk from changes in energy commodity prices within our operations. We
utilize derivatives to manage our exposure to the variability in expected future cash flows attributable to
commodity price risk associated with forecasted purchases and sales of natural gas and electricity. Certain of
these derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges.

. Our Power segment sells electricity produced by our electric generation facilities, obtained contractually
through tolling agreements or obtained through marketplace transactions at different locations throughout the
United, States. We also buy electricity and capacity to serve our full requirements agreements in the
Southeast. To reduce exposure to a decrease in revenues and increase in costs from fluctuations in electricity
prices, we enter into fixed-price forward physical sales and purchase contracts to fix the price of forecasted
electricity sales and purchases, respectively.

Our electric generation facilities and tolling agreements require natural gas for the production of
electricity. To reduce the exposure to increasing costs of natural gas due to changes in market prices, we enter
into natural gas futures contracts, swap agreements and fixed-price forward physical purchases to fix the prices
of anticipated purchases of natural gas.

Power’s cash flow hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk during the term of the hedge. However, ineffectiveness may be recognized primarily as a
result of locational differences between the hedging derivative and the hedged item, changes in the
creditworthiness -of counterparties and the hedging derivative contract having an initial fair value upon
designation.
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Our Exploration & Production segment produces, buys and sells natural gas at different locations
throughout the United States. To reduce exposure to a decrease in revenues from fluctuations in natural gas
market prices, we hedge price risk by entering into natural gas futures contracts, swap agreements, and
financial option contracts to fix the price of forecasted sales and purchases of natural gas. We also enter into
basis swap agreements as part of our overall natural gas price risk management program to reduce the
locational price risk associated with our producing basins. Exploration & Production’s cash flow hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the
term of the hedge. However, ineffectiveness may be recognlzed prlmanly asa result of locational differences
between the hedging derivative and the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of our cash flow hedges are deferred in. other comprehensive income and are
reclassified into revenues in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted purchases or sales
affect earnings, or when it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur either by the end of
the originally specified time period or within an additional two-month period. Approximately $2 million and
$13 million of net gains from hedge ineffectiveness is included in revenues in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations during 2005 and 2004, respectively..For 2005 and 2004, there were no derivative gains or losses
excluded from the assessinent of hedge effectiveness. As of December 31, 2005, we had hedged portions of
future cash flows associated with anticipated energy commodity purchases and sales for up to 10 years. Based
on recorded values at December 31, 2003, approximately $280 million of net losses (net of income tax benefits
of $173 million) will be reclassified into earnings within the next year. These recorded values are based on
market prices of the commodities as of December 31, 2005. Due to the volatile nature of commodity prices
and changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, actual gains or losses realized in 2006 will likely differ
from these values. These gains or losses will offset net losses or.gains that will be realized in earnings from
previous unfavorable or favorable market movements associated with underlying hedged transactions.

Power elected hedge accounting for certain of its nontrading denvatwes in the fourth quarter of 2004 after
our Board decided in September 2004 to retain Power and cease efforts to exit that business. Before this
election, net changes in the fair value of these derivatives were recogmzed as revenues in the Consohdated
Statement of Operatlons

Other energy derivatives

Our Power segment has other energy derivatives that have not-been designated or do not qualify as
SFAS No. 133 hedges. As such, the net change in their fair value is recognized in revenues in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Even though they do not qualify for hedge accounting (see derivative
instruments and hedging activities in Note 1 for a description of hedge accounting), certain of these
derivatives-hedge Power’s future cash flows on an economic basis. In addition, our Exploration & Production
segment enters into natural gas basis swap agreements that are not designated in a hedging relationship under
SFAS No. 133

We also hold significant nonderivative energy-related contracts in our Power portfolios. These have not
been included in the financial instruments table above because they are not derivatives as defined by
SFAS No, 133. See Note I regarding energy commodity risk management and trading actzvzlzes for further
discussion of the nonderivative energy-related contracts.

Guarantees

In addition to the guarantees and payment obligations discussed elsewhere in these footnotes. (see
Notes-3, 10, and 15), we have issued guarantees and other similar arrangements with off-balance sheet risk as
discussed below.
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In connection with agreements executed prior to our acquisition of Transco to resolve take-or-pay and
other contract claims and to amend gas purchase contracts, Transco entered into certain settlements with
producers which may require the indemnification of certain claims for additional royalties that the producers
may be required to pay as a result of such settlements. Transco, through its agent, Power, continues to
purchase gas under contracts which extend, in some cases, through the life of the associated gas.-reserves.
Certain of these contracts contain royalty indemnification provisions that have no carrying value. Producers
have received certain demands and may receive other demands, which could result in claims pursuant to
royalty indemnification provisions. Indemnification for royalties will depend on, among other things, the
specific lease provisions between the producer and the lessor and the terms of the agreement between the
producer and Transco. Consequently, the potential maximum future payments under such indemnification
provisions cannot be determined. However, management believes that the probability of payments is remote.

In connection with the 1993 public offering of units in the Williams Coal Seam Gas Royalty Trust
(Royalty Trust), our Exploration & Production segment entered into a gas purchase contract for the purchase
of natural gas in-which the Royalty Trust holds a net profits interest. Under this agreement, we guarantee a
minimum purchase price that the Royalty Trust will realize in the ‘calculation of its net profits interest. We
have an annual option to discontinue this minimum purchase price guarantee and pay solely based on an index
price. The maximum potential future exposure associated with this guarantee is not determinable because it is
dependent upon natural gas prices and production volumes. No amounts have been accrued for this contingent
obligation as the index price continues to substantially exceed the minimum purchase price.

A foreign bank is a defendant in litigation related to a loan they provided to us. We have repaid the loan
and indemnified the bank for legal fees and potential losses that may result from this litigation. We are unable
to.determine the maximum amount of future payments that we could be required to pay as it is dependent
upon the ultimate resolution of the claim. However; we believe the probability is remote that a judgment will
be made against the bank that we will have to pay. The carrying value of this guarantee is $0.1 million at
December 31,.2005.

We are requlred by certain foreign lenders to ensure that the interest rates received by them under various
loan agreements are not reduced by taxes by providing for the reimbursement of any domestic taxes required
to be paid by the foreign lender. The maximum potential amount of future payments under these
indemnifications is based on the related borrowings. These indemnifications generally continue indefinitely
unless limited by the underlying tax regulations and:have no carrying value. We have never been called upon
to perform under these indemnifications.

Former managing directors of Gulf Liquids are involved in litigation related to the construction of the gas
processing plants. Gulf Liquids has indemnity obligations to the former directors for legal fees and potential
losses that may result from this litigation. We are unable to determine the maximum amount of future
payments that we could be required to pay as it is'dependent upon the ultimate resolution of the litigation.
‘However, we believe the probability is remote that a judgment will be entered against the former directors that
.we will have to pay. Thus, no amounts have been accrued for this contingent obligation. These legal fees and
any judgment should be recoverable under a directors and officers insurance policy.

‘We have guaranteed the performance of a former subsidiary of our wholly owned subsidiary MAPCO
Inc., under a coal supply contract. This guarantee was granted by MAPCO Inc. upon the sale of its. former
subsidiary to a third-party in 1996. The guaranteed contract provides for an annual supply of a minimum of
2.25 million tons of coal. Our potential exposure is dependent on the difference between current market prices
of coal and the pricing terms of the contract, both of which are variable, and the remaining term of the
contract. Given the variability of the terms, the maximum future potential payments cannot be determined.
We believe that our likelihood of performance under this guarantee is remote. In the event we are required to
perform, we are fully indemnified by the purchaser of MAPCO Inc.’s former subsidiary. This guarantee
expires in December 2010 and has no carrying value. :
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- Concentration of Credit Risk

Cash équivalent&

Our cash equivalents consist of high-quality securities placed with various major financial institutions
with credit ratings at or above BBB by Standard & Poor’s or Baal by Moody’s Investors Service.

Accounts and notes receivable

The following table summarizes concentration of receivables, net of allowances by product or service at
December 31, 2005 and 2004:

2005 2004
(Millions)
Receivables by product or service: '
Sale or transportation of natural gas and related products ............. '$-1,142.6. $ 859.0
Sales of power and related services ... 394.5 441.9
INtErest vovoeeeeennnn. ., P AT e 32.4 31.4
InSUranCe. .. .o 232 _14.6
Other.......... . cciiiiiivieian PR 21.1 75.9
Total ............ B RS T $1,613.8  $1,422.8

Natural gas customers include pipelines, distribution companies, producers, gas marketers and industrial
users primarily located in the eastern and northwestern United States, Rocky Mountains, Gulf Coast,
Venezuela and Canada. Customers for power include the California Independent System Operator (ISO), the
California Department of Water Resources, and other power marketers and utilities located throughout the
majority of the United States. Other receivables in 2004 included a'$54.1 million receivable from WilTel. We
sold this receivable in January 2005, for $54.6 million. As a general policy, collateral is not required for
receivables, but customers’ financial condition and credit worthiness are evaluated regularly.

As of December 31, 2005, Power had approximately $33 million of certain power receivables net of
related .allowances from the ISO and the California Power Exchange (compared to $61 million at
December 31, 2004). We believe that we have appropriately reflected the collection and credit risk associated
with receivables and derivative assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statement of Operations at
December 31, 2005. .

Derivative assets and liabilities

We have a risk of loss as a result of counterparties not performing pursuant to the terms of their
contractual obligations. Risk of loss can result from ‘credit considerations and the regulatory -environment of
the counterparty. We attempt to minimize credit-risk exposure to derivative counterparties and brokers-
through formal credit policies, consideration of credit ratings from public ratings agencies, monitoring
procedures, master netting agreements and collateral support under certain circumstances.

The concentration of counterparties within the energy and energy trading industry impacts our overall
exposure to credit risk in that these counterparties are similarly influenced by changes in the economy and
regulatory issues. Additional collateral support could include the following:-

. Letters of credit;
+ Payment under margin agreements;

« Guarantees of payment by credit worthy parties;
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» Transfers of ownership interests in natural gas reserves or power generation assets.

We also enter into nettmg agreements to mitigate counterparty performanc,e and credit risk.

The gross credit exposure from our denvatlve contracts as of December 31, 2005 is summanzcd below.,

. Investment
Counterparty Type . B Grade(a) Total
. K . ) (Millions)

Gas and electric utilities.. ... ... R e $ 5422 § 5722

Energy marketers and traders ........................ N 3,930.1 7.568.6

Financial institutions . . ........ ... ... e 1,851.1 1,851.1

OET oo e e 4 1.7
$6,323.8  9,993.6

Crg:dit TESETVES « oo ettt ettt et e et S e o (37.0)

Gross credit exposure from derivatives ..... LSS $9,956.6

We - assess our credit exposure on a net basis. The net credit cxposure from our derivatives as of

December 31 2005 is summarized below.

(a)

. Investment
Counterparty Type . _ . . Grade(a) Total
. ) s (Mitlions)

Gas and electric utilities............. AT e $129.3 $ 1421
Energy marketers and traders . ......... .o oo 0 oo 401.1 976.7
Financial institutions . .. ........ ... oo, e 36.1 36.1
Other .o e , .5 14

- $567.0  1,1563
Credit TESEIVES . o v\ ot ettt e et e e e e e (37.0)
Net credit exposure from derivatives ......... ... ..., . $1,119.3

We determine investment grade primarily using publicly available credit ratings. We included
counterparties with a minimum Standard & Poor’s of BBB- or Moody’s Investors Service rating of Baa3
in investment grade. We also classify counterparties that have provided sufficient collateral, such as cash,
standby letters of credit, parent company guarantees, and property interests, as investment grade.

Revenues

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were no customers for which our sales exceeded 10 percent of our

consolidated revenues.

Note 15. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Rate and Regulatory Matters and Related Litigation

Our interstate pipeline subsidiaries have various regulatory proceedings pending. As a result of rulings in

certain of these proceedings, a portion of the revenues of these subsidiaries has been collected subject to
réfund. The natural gas pipeline subsidiaries have accrued approximately $4 million for potential refund as of
December 31, 2005.
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Issues Resulting From California Energy Crisis

Subsidiaries of our Power segment are engaged in power marketing in various geographic areas, including
California. Prices charged for power by us and other traders and generators in California and other western
states in 2000. and 2001 were challenged in various proceedings, including those before the FERC. These
challenges included refund proceedings, summer 2002 90-day contracts, investigations of alleged market
manipulation including withholding, gas indices and other gaming of the market, new long-term power sales to
the State of California that were subsequently challenged and civil litigation relating to certain of these issues.
We have entered into settlements with the State of California (State Settlement), major California utilities
(Utilities Settlement), and others that substantially resolved each of these issues with these parties. Certain
issues, however, remain open at the FERC and for other nonsettling parties.

Refund proceedings

Although we entered into the State Settlement and Utilities Settlement, which resolved the refund issues
among the settling parties, we continue to have potential refund exposure to nonsettling parties, such as
various California end users that did not participate in the Utilities Settlement. As a part of the-Utilities
Settlement, we funded escrow accounts that we anticipate will satisfy any ultimate refund determinations in
favor of the nonsettling parties. We are also owed interest from counterparties in the California market during
the refund period for which we have recorded a receivable totaling approximately $27 million at December 31,
2005. Collection of the interest is subject to the conclusion of this proceeding. Therefore, we continue to
participate.in the FERC refund case and related ‘proceedings. Challenges to virtually every aspect of the
refund proceeding, including the refund period, are now pending before the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals.
As part of the State Settlement, an additional $60 million, previously accrued, remains to-be-paid to the
California Attorney General (or his designee) over the next five years, with the.final payment of $15 million
due on January 1, 2010.

Reporting of Natural Gas-Related Information to Trade Publications

We disclosed on October 25, 2002, that certain of our natural gas traders had reported inaccurate
information to a trade publication that published gas price indices. In 2002, we received a subpoena from a
federal grand jury in northern California seeking documents related to our involvement in California markets,
including our reporting to trade publications for both gas and power transactions. We have completed our
response to the subpoena. Two former traders with Power have pled guilty to manipulation of gas prices
through misreporting to an industry trade periodical. On February 21, 2006, we entered into a deferred
prosecution agreement with the Department of Justice (DOJ) that is intended to resolve this matter. Pursuant
to the agreement, we will pay $50 million. Absent a breach, the agreement will’ exp1re in 15 months and no
further action will be taken by the DOJ. ‘

Civil suits based on allegations of manipulating the gas indices have been brought against us and others,
in each case seeking an unspecified amount of damages. We are currently a defendant in:

» Federal court in New York based on an allegation of manipulation of the NYMEX gas market. We
have reached a settlement of this matter for $9.15 million. The settlement agreement has been filed
with the court and is subject to court approval.

» Class action litigation in federal court in Nevada éllegihg that we manipulated gas prices for direct
purchasers of gas in California. We have reached settlement of this matter for $2.4 million. Legal
documents will be filed with the court and the settlement is subject to court approval.

+ Class action litigation in state court in California alleging that we manipulated prices for indirect
purchasers of gas in California. We have reached settlement of this matter for $15.6 million. Legal
documents will be filed with the court and the settlement is subject to court approval.
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» State court in California on behalf of certain individual gas users.

« Class action litigation in state court in Kansas and Tennessee brought on behalf of indirect
purchasers of gas in those states.

It is reasonably possible that additional amounts may be necessary to resolve the remaining outstanding
litigation in this area.

‘Mobile Bay Expansion

In December 2002, an administrative law judge at the FERC issued an initial decision in Transco’s
general rate case which, among other things, rejected the recovery of the costs of Transco’s Mobile Bay
expansion project from its shippers on a “rolled-in” basis and found that incremental pricing for the Mobile
Bay expansion project is just and reasonable. In March 2004, the FERC issued an Order on Initial Degision in
which it reversed certain parts of the administrative law judge’s decision and accepted Transco’s proposal for
rolled-in rates. Power holds long-term transportation capacity on the Mobile Bay expansion project. If the
FERC had adopted the decision of the administrative law judge on the pricing of the Mobile Bay expansion
project and also required that the decision be implemented effective September 1, 2001, Power could have
been subject to surcharges of approximately $77.1 million, excluding interest, through December 31, 2005, in
addition to increased costs going forward. Certain parties have filed appeals in federal court seeking to have
the FERC’s ruling on the rolled-in rates overturned.

Envon Bankruptcy

We have outstanding claims against Enron Corp. and various of its subsidiaries (collectively “Enron”)
related to its bankruptcy filed in December 2001. In 2002, we sold $100 million of our claims against Enron to
a third party for $24.5 million. In 2003, Enron filed ochctlons to these claims. We have resolved Enron’s
objections, subject to court approval. Under the sales agreement, the purchaser of the claims -may demand
repayment of the purchase price for the reduced portions of the claims. We anticipate negotiating with the
purchaser regarding potential payment obligations. :

Environmental Matters
Continuing operations

Since 1989, our Transco subsidiary has had studies underway to test certain of its facilities for the
presence of toxic and hazardous substances to determine to what extent, if any, remediation may be necessary.
Transco has responded to data requests from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and state
agencies. regarding such potential contamination of certain of its sites. Transco has identified polychlorinated
biphenyl (PCB) contamination in compressor systems, soils and related properties at certain compressor
station sites. Transco has also been involved in negotiations with the EPA and state agencies to develop
screening, sampling and cleanup programs. In addition, Transco commenced negotiations with certain
environmental authorities and other programs concerning investigative and remedial actions relative to
potential mercury contamination at certain gas metering sites. The costs of any such remediation will depend
upon the scope of the remediation. At December 31, 20035, Transco had accrued liabilities of $14 million
related to PCB contamination, potential mercury contamination, and other toxic and hazardous substances.
Transco has been identified as a potentially responsible party at various Superfund and state waste disposal
sites. Based on present volumetric estimates and other factors, Transco has estimated its aggregate exposure
for remediation of these sites to be less than $500,000, which is included in the environmental accrual
discussed above.

Beginning in the mid-1980’s, our Northwest Pipeline subsidiary evaluated many of its facilities for the
presence of toxic and hazardous substances to determine to what extent, if any, remediation might be
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necessary. Consistent with other natural. gas transmission companies, Northwest Pipeline identified PCB
contamination in air compressor systems, soils and related properties at certain compressor station sites.

Similarly, Northwest Pipeline identified hydrocarbon impacts at these facilities due to the former use of
earthen pits and mercury contamination at certain gas metering sites. The PCBs were remediated pursuant fo
a Consent Decree with the EPA in the late 1980s and Northwest Pipeline conducted a voluntary clean-up of
the hydrocarbon and mercury impacts in the early 1990s. In 2003, the Washington Department of Ecology
required Northwest Pipeline to reevaluate its previous mercury clean-ups in Washington. Currently, North-

west Pipeline is assessing the actions needed to bring the sites up to Washington’s current environmental
standards. At December 31, 2005, we have accrued liabilities totaling approximately $4 million for these costs.

We expect that these costs will be recoverable through Northwest Pipeline’s rates.

We also accrue environmental remediation costs for our natural gas gathering and processing facilities,
primarily related to soil and groundwater contamination. At December 31, 2005, we have accrued liabilities

totaling approximately $7 million for these costs.

In August 2005, our subsidiary, Wllhdms Production RMT Company, voluntarily disclosed to the
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) two air permit violations related to
malfunctioning equipment. In October 2005, the CDPHE responded to our disclosure indicating that penalty
immunity is not available in the matter and that it will seek resolution through a Compliance Order on
Consent. We believe that our voluntary self-evaluation and disclosure qualified for penalty immunity and will
discuss resolution of the compliance issues with the CDPHE.

Former operations, including operations classified as discontinued

In connection with the sale of certain assets and businesses, we have retained responsibility, through
indemnification of the purchasers, for ‘environmental and other liabilities existing at the time the sale was
consummated, as described below. :

Agrico

In connection with the 1987 sale of the assets of Agrico Chemical Company, we agreed to indemnify the
purchaser for environmental cleanup costs tesulting from certain conditions at specified locations to the extent
such costs exceed a specified amount. At December 31, 2005, we have accrued liabilities of approximately
$11 million for such excess costs. :

We are in a dispute with a defendant that was involved in two class action damages lawsuits in Florida
state court involving this former chemical fertilizer business. Settlement of both class actions was judicially
approved in October 2004. We were not a named defendant in the settled lawsuits, but have contractual
obligations to participate with the named defendants in the ongoing environmental remediation. One
defendant seeks indemnification of approximately $20 million from us as a result of the settlement. In’
November 2003, the court ordered us to arbitrate the indemnification dispute with the one defendant. The
arbitration is expected to occur in the second quarter of 2006. Under the arbitration format, the arbitrator
must choose without any modification either our $1 million final offer or the defendant’s approx1mately
$20 million final offer.

‘Other

At December 31, 2005, we have accrued environmental liabilities totaling approximately $28 mllhon
related primarily to our:

..+ Potential indemnification. obhgatlons to purchasers of our former retail petroleum and refining
operations; : : :
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« Former propane marketing operations, bio-energy facilities, petroleum products and natural gas
pipelines;

« Discontinued petroleum refining facilities;
» Former exploration and production and mining operations..

These costs include certain conditions'at specified locations related primarily to soil and groundwater
contamination and any penalty assessed on Williams Refining & Marketing, L.I..C. (Williams Refining)
associated with noncompliance with the EPA’s National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(NESHAP). In 2002, Williams Refining submitted to'the EPA a self-disclosure letter indicating noncompli-
ance with those regulations. This unintentional noncompliance had occurred due to a regulatory interpretation
that resulted in under-counting the total annual benzene level at Williams Refining’s Memphis refinery. Also
in 2002, the EPA conducted an all-media audit of the Memphis refinery. In 2004, Williams Refining and the
new owner of the Mempbhis refinery met with the EPA and the DOJ to discuss alleged violations and proposed
penalties due to noncompliance issues identified in the report, including the benzene NESHAP issue. On
February 2, 2006, the DOJ confirmed our agreement-in-principle to resolve the United States’ claims against
us for alleged violations. In connection with the sale of the Memphis refinery in 2003, we also have an
indemnity dispute with the purchaser. : A

In 2004, the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) issued a notice of violation
(NOV) alleging various air permit violations associated with our operation of the Dry Trail gas processing
plant prior to our sale of the facility. The NOV was issued to our subsidiary, Williams Field Services Company

- (WFS), and the purchaser of the plant. On April 14, 2005, the ODEQ issued a letter to the current Dry Trail

plant owners assessing a penalty under the NOV of approximately $750,000. The current owner has asserted
an indemnification claim to us for payment of the penalty. We are analyzing the proposed penalty and
negotlatmg a resolutlon with the current plant owner and the ODEQ.

In 2004, our Gulf Liquids subsmhary initiated a self—audlt of all environmental conditions (air, water,
waste) at three facilities: Geismar, Sorrento, and Chalmette, Louisiana. The audit revealed numerous
infractions of Louisjana environmental regulations and resulted in a Consolidated Compliance Order and
Notice of Potential Penalty from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ)- No specific
penalty amount was assessed. Instead, LDEQ was required by Louisiana law to demand a profit and loss
statement .to determine the financial benefit obtained by noncompliance and to assess a penalty accordingly.
Gulf Liquids offered $91,500 as a single, final, global multi-media settlement. Subsequent negotiations have
resulted in a revised offer of $109,000, which LDEQ is currently reviewing.

Certain of our subsidiaries have been identified as potentially responsible parties at various Superfund and
state waste disposal sites. In addition, these subsidiaries have incurred, or are alleged to have incurred, various
other hazardous materials removal or remediation obligations under environmental laws.

Summary of environmental matters

Actual costs incurred for these matters could be substantlally greater than amounts accrued depending on
the actual number of contaminated sites identified, the actual amount and extent of contamination discovered,
the final cleanup standards mandated by the EPA and other.governmental authorities and other factors.

Other Legal Matters

Royalty indemnifications

We are defending a lawsuit commenced in 1996 in which a pro'du.cer has asserted a ‘claim against our
Transco subsidiary for indemnification relating to prior royalty payments. The producer claimed damages,
including interest calculated through December 31, 2005, of approximately $11 million. The Louisiana Court
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of Appeals affirmed a lower court’s judgment in favor of Transco and the producer now seeks to have the case
reviewed by the Loulslana Supreme Court.

Will Price (formerly Quingue)

In 2001, fourteen of our entities were named as defendants in a nationwide class action lawsuit in Kansas
state.court, that had been pending against other defendants, genergally. pipeline and gathering companies, since
2000. The plaintiffs alleged that the defendants have engaged in mismeasurement techniques that distort the
heating content of natural gas, resulting in an alleged underpayrnent of royalties to the class of producer
plaintiffs and sought an unspecified amount.of damages. The fourth amended petition, which was filed in 2003,
deleted all of our defendant -entities except two. Midstream subsidiaries. All remaining defendants have
opposed class certification and a hearing on plaintiffs’ second motion to certify the class was held on Apnl 1,
2005. We‘are awaiting a decision from the court.

" Grynberg

In 1998, the DOJ informed us that Jack Grynberg, an individual, had filed claims.on behalf of himself
and the federal government, in the United States District Court for the District of Colorado under the False
Claims Act against us and certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries. The claims sought an unspecified amount
of royalties allegedly not pald to the federal govemment treble damages, a civil penalty, attorneys’ fees, and
costs. In connection with our sales of Kern River Gas Transmission and Texas Gas Transmission Corporation,
we agreed to indemnify the, purchasers for any liability relating to this claim, including legal fees. The "
maximum amount of future payments that we could potentially be required to pay under these indemnifica-
tions depends upon the ultimate resolution of the claim and cannot currently be determined. Grynberg has also
filed claims against approximately 300 other energy. companies alleging that the defendants violated the False
Claims Act in connection with the measurement, royalty valuation and purchase of hydrocarbons. In 1999, the
DOJ announced that it was declining to intervene in any of the Grynberg cases, including the action filed in
federal court in Colorado against us. Also in 1999, the Panel on Multi-District Litigation transferred all of
these cases, including those filed against us, to the federal court in Wyoming for-pre-trial purposes. Grynberg’s
measurement claims remain pending against us and the othér defendants; the court previously dismissed
Grynberg’s royalty valuation claims. In May 2003, the court-appointed special master entered a report which
recommended that the claims against.our Gas Pipeline and Midstream subsidiaries be dismissed but upheld
the claims against our Exploration & Production subsidiaries against our jurisdictional challenge. The District
Court is considering whether to affirm or reject the special master’s recommendations and heard oral
arguments on December 9, 2005. '

On August 6, 2002, Jack J. Grynberg, and Celeste C. Grynberg, Trustee on Behalf of the Rachel Susan
Grynberg Trust, and the Stephen Mark Grynberg Trust, served us and one of our Exploration & Production
subsidiaries with a complaint in the state court in Denver, Colorado. The complaint alleges that we have used
mismeasurement techniques- that distort the BTU heating content of natural gas, resulting in the alleged
underpayment of royalties to Grynberg and other. independent. natural gas .producers. The complaint also
alleges that we inappropriately took deductions from the gross value of their natural gas and made. other
royalty valuation errors. Under various theories of relief, the plaintiff is seeking actual damages of between
$2 million and $20 million based on interest rate variations and punitive damages in the amount of
approximately $1.4 million. In 2004, Grynberg filed an amended complaint against one of our Exploration &
Production subsidiaries. This subsidiary filed an answer in January 2005, denying liability for the damages
claimed. Trial in this case has been set.for May 2006, but the parties are negotiating an agreement that would
eliminate the measurement claims and -defer further proceedings on the. royalty claims until resolution of an

appeal in another case,
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- Securities class actions

Numerous shareholder class action suits were filed against us in 2002 in the United States District Court
for the Northern District of Oklahoma. The majority of the suits allege that we and co-defendants, WilTel
Communications (WilTel), previously an owned subsidiary known as Williams Communications, and certain
corporate officers, have acted jointly and separately to inflate the stock price of both companies. Other suits
allege similar causes of action related to a public offering in early January 2002 known as the FELINE PACS
offering. These cases were also filed in 2002 against us, certain corporate officers, all members of our board of
directors and all of the offerings’ underwriters. WilTel is no longer a defendant as a result of its bankruptcy.
These cases have all been consolidated and an order has been issued requiring separate amended consolidated
complaints by our equity holders and WilTel equity holders. The underwriter defendants have requestéd
indemnification and defense from these cases. If we grant the requested indemnifications to the underwriters,
any related settlement costs will not be covered by our insurance policies. We are currently covering the cost of
defending the underwriters. In 2002, the amended complaints of the WilTel securities holders and of our
securities holders added numerous claims related to Power. The parties are currently engaged in discovery,
and the trial date is currently set for. August 16, 2006. Preliminary settlement discussions have occurred.
Derivative shareholder suits have been filed in state court in Oklahoma all based on similar allegations. The
state court approved motions to consolidate and to stay these Oklahoma suits pending action by the federal
court in the shareholder suits. We have directors and officers insurance which we believe provides coverage for
these claims. However, it is reasonably possible that the ultimate resolution of this litigation will include some
amount outside of insurance coverage. Based on the status of proceedings through the date of this filing, a
reasonable estimate of such amount cannot be determined.

In addition, four class action complaints were filed against us, the members of our Board of Directors and
members of our benefits and investment committees under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act by
participants in our 401 (k) plan. In September 2005, the parties agreed to settle these consolidated matters for
$55 million. Of this amount, we have paid $5 million and our insurance carriers paid $50 million. This
settlement received final approval at a fairness hearing on November 16, 2005. The U.S. Department of Labor
was also independently investigating our employee benefit plans but communicated its decision on Novem-
ber 1, 20035, to close its investigation of the 401 (k) plan’s stock investments.

Federal income tax litigation

" One of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Transco Coal Gas Compény, is engaged in a dispute with the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regarding the recapture of certain income tax credits associated with the
construction of a coal gasification plant in North Dakota by Great Plains Gasification Associates, in which
Transco Coal Gas Company was a partner. The IRS has taken alternative positions that allege a disposition
date for purposes of tax credit recapture that is earlier than the position taken in the partnership tax return. On
August 23, 2001, we filed a petition in the U.S. Tax Court to contest the adjustments to the partnership tax
return proposed by the IRS. Certain settlement discussions have taken place since that date. During the fourth
quarter of 2004, we determined that a reasonable settlement with the IRS could not be achieved. We filed a
Motion for Summary Judgment with the Tax Court, which was heard, and denied, in January 2005. The
matter was then tried before the Tax Court in February 2005. We continue to believe that the return position
of the partnership is with merit. However, it is reasonably possible that the Tax Court could render an
unfavorable decision that could ultimately result in estimated income taxes and interest of up to approxnnately
$115 million in excess of the amount currently accrued.

TAPS Quality Bank

One of our subsidiaries, Williams Alaska Petroleum, Inc. (WAPI), is éctively engaged in administrative
litigation being conducted jointly by the FERC and the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) concerning
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the Trans-Alaska Pipeline Systern (TAPS) Quality Bank. Primary issues being- litigated include the
appropriate. valuation of the naphtha heavy distillate, vacuum gas oil and residual ,product cuts within the
TAPS Quality Bank as well as the appropriate retroactive effects of the determmatlons Due to the sale of
WAPI s interests on March 31, 2004 no future Quahty Bank liability will accrue but we are respon51ble for
any liability that existed as of that date including potential liability for any retroactive payments that might be
awarded in these proceedmgs for the period prior to March 31, 2004. In the third quarter of 2004, the FERC
and RCA presiding administrative law judges rendered their joint and individual initial decisions. The initial
decisions set forth méthodologies for determining the valuations of the product cuts under review and also
approved the retroactive application of the approved methodologies for.the heavy distillate and residual
product cuts. Based on our computation and assessment of ultimate ruling terms that would be considered
probable, we recorded an accrual of approximately $134 million in the third quarter of 2004. Because the
application of certain aspects of the initial decisions are subject to interpretation, we have calculated the
reasonably possible impact of the decisions, if fully adopted by the FERC and RCA, to result in additional
exposure to us of approximately $32 million more than we have accrued at December 31, 2005.

.On October 20, 2005, the FERC and the RCA issued substantially similar orders regarding the initial
decisions. Consistent with the 2005 Highway Reauthorization Bill enacted on August 10, 2005, the two orders
eliminate our retroactive exposure for refunds prior to February 1, 2000. The orders also generally affirm the
initial decisions except for some modifications to the residual product cuts valuation methodology. We believe
the overall impact of the change in retroactive periods precludes our previously disclosed concerns for
reasonably possible exposure for amounts in addition to those currently accrued. '

In November 2005, ExxonMobil appealed the FERC’s decision to the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals
asserting that the FERC’s reliance on the Highway Reauthorization Act as . the basis for limiting the
retroactive effect violates, among other things, the separation of powers under-the U.S. Constitution by
interfering with -the FERC’s independent decision-making role. ExxonMobil filed a similar appeal in the
Alaska Superior Court. We have appealed the FERC’s order to the extent of its ruling on the West Coast
Heavy Distillate component. Decisions on these appeals are not expected until late 2006-at the earliest.

Redondo Beach taxes

On February 5, 2005, Power received a tax assessment letter, addressed to AES Redondo Beach, L.L.C.
and Power, from the city of Redondo Beach, California, in which the city asserted that approximately
$33 million in back taxes and approximately $39- million.in interest and penalties are owed related to natural -
gas used at the generating facility operated by AES Redondo Beach. On the same date, Power was served with
a subpoena from the city related to the tax assessment. During July 2005, the city held hearings on this matter.
On September 23, 2005, the tax administrator for the city issued a decision in which he found Power jointly
and severally liable with AES Redondo Beach for back taxes of approximately $36. million and interest and
penalties of approximately $21 million. Both Power and AES Redondo Beach have filed notices of appeal that
will be heard -at the city fevel pursuant to a schedule that calls for a final determination by May 19, 2006. On
December 19, 2005, Power received additional assessments from the city totaling approximately $3 million in
taxes {(inclusive of interest and penalties) for the period from October 1, 2004 through September 30, 2005. In
late January, 2006, we received an additional assessment totaling approximately $270,000 (inclusive of
interest and- penalties) for the period from October 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. Power and AES
Redondo Beach have objected to these assessments and have requested a hearing on them. We believe that
under Power’s tolling agreement related to the Redondo Beach generating facility, AES Redondo Beach -is
responsible for taxes of the nature asserted by the c1ty, however, AES Redondo Beach has notified us that they
do not agree. : :
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Gulf Liquids litigation

Gulf Liquids contracted with Gulsby Engineering Inc. (Gulsby) and Gulsby-Bay for the construction of
certain gas processing plants in Louisiana. National American Insurance Company (NAICO) and American
Home Assurance Company provided payment and performance bonds for the projects. Gulsby and Gulsby-
Bay defaulted on the construction contracts. In the fall of 2001, the contractors, sureties, and Gulf Liquids
filed multiple cases in Louisiana and Texas. In January 2002, NAICO added Gulf Liquids’ co-venturer Power
to the suits as a third-party defendant. Gulf Liquids has asserted claims against the contractors and sureties
for, among other things, breach of contract requesting contractual and consequential damages from
$40 million to $80 million, any of which is subject to a sharing arrangement with XL Insurance Company. The
contractors and sureties are asserting both contract and tort claims, some of which appear to be duplicative,
against Gulf Liquids, Power, and others. The requested contractual and extra-contractual damages range from
$20 million to $90 million.

The cases filed in Harris County, Texas, have been consolidated. Various motions for summary judgment
are pending before the court. Depending in part on the resolution of these various motions, it is reasonably
possible that the contractors and sureties might be awarded damages against us in these various cases for an
amount up to $25 million. Trial in the Harris County cases is set for March 27, 2006.

Hurricane lawsuits

We were named as a defendant in two class action petitions for damages filed in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana in September and October 2005 arising from hurricanes
that struck Louisiana in 2005. The class plaintiffs, purporting to represent all persons, businesses and entities
in the State of Louisiana who have suffered damage as a result of the winds and storm surge from the
hurricanes, allege that the operating activities of the two sub-classes of defendants, which are all oil and gas
pipelines that dredged pipeline canals or installed pipelines in the marshes of south Louisiana (including
Transco) and all.oil and gas exploration and production companies which drilled for oil and gas or dredged
canals in the marshes of south Louisiana, have altered marshland ecology and caused marshland destruction
which otherwise would have averted all or almost all of the destruction and loss of life caused by the
hurricanes. Plaintiffs request that the court allow the lawsuits to proceed as class actions and seek legal and
equitable relief in an unspecified amount. We are .presently reviewing the petltlons in preparation for filing
responsive pleadings in these cases.

Other Divestiture Indemnifications

Pursuant to various purchase and sale agreements relating to divested businesses and assets, we have
indemnified certain purchasers against liabilities that they may incur with respect to the businesses and assets
acquired from us. The indemnities provided to the purchasers are customary in sale transactions and are
contingent upon the purchasers incurring liabilities that are not otherwise recoverable from third parties. The
indemnities generally relate to breach of warranties, tax, historic litigation, personal injury, environmental
matters, right of way and other representations that we have provided. At December 31, 2005, we do not
expect any of the indemnities provided pursuant to the sales agreements to have a material impact on our
future financial position. However, if a claim for indemnity is brought against us in the future, it may have a
material adverse effect on results of operations in the period in which the claim is made.

In addition to the foregoing, various other proceedings are pendmg against us which are incidental to our
operations.
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Summary

Litigation, arbitration, regulatory matters, and énvirbnmenta_l matters are subject to inherent uncertain-
ties. Were an unfavorable ruling to occur, there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on the
results of operations in the period in which the ruling occurs. Management, including internal counsel,
currently believes that the ulﬁmate‘_‘ resolutioni of the foregoing matters, taken as a whole and after
consideration of amounts accrued, insurance coverage, recovery from customers or other indemnification
arrangements, will not have a materially adverse effect upon our future financial position.

Commitments

" Power has entered into certain contracts giving it the right to receive fuel conversion services as well as
certain other services associated with electric generation facilities that are currently in operation throughout
the continental United States. At December 31, 2005, Power’s estimated committed payments under these -
contracts range from approximately $397 million to $420 million annually through 2017 and decline over the
remaining five years te $359 million in 2022. Total committed payments under these contracts over.the next
seventeen years are approximately $5.9 billion. Total payments made under these contracts during 2005, 2004,
and 2003 were $403 million, $402 million, and $394 million, respectively.

Commitments for construction and acquisition of property, plant and equipment are -approximatcly
$222 million at December 31, 2005.

Note 16. ARelated- Party Transactions
Lehman Brothers Holdmgs, Inc.

Lehman Brothers Holdmgs Inc. was a related party as a result of a director that served on both our Board
of Directors and Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc.’s Board of Directors. On May 20, 2004, this director retired
from our .Board of Directors. In 2002, Williams Production RMT Company, a wholly owned subsidiary,
entered into a $900 million short-term credit agreement dated July 31, 2002, with certain lenders including a
subsidiary of Lehman Brothers. Holdings, Inc. This debt obligation was refinanced in second quarter 2003,
Included in interest accrued on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2003 was $199.4 million of
interest expense, including amortization of deferred set up fees related to this note. We paid $37.2 million to
Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. in 2003, primarily for underwriting fees related to debt and equity issuances
as well as strategic advisory and restructuring success fees.

~ American Electric Power Company, Inc.

Amerlcan Electric Power Company, Inc. (AEP) is a related party as a result of a director that serves on
both our Board of Directors and AEP’s Board of Directors. In 2003, AEP paid Power $90 million to resolve a
dispute involving the liquidation of a trading position. There were no other significant transactions with AEP
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
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Note 17. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income .(Loss)

The table below presents changes in the componenté' of 'accumulaled other comprehensive income {loss).

Income (Loss)

Unrealized : . .
Appreciation Foreign Minimum
Cash Flow (Depreciation) Currency Pension
Hedges On Securities Translation Liability =~ Total
(Millions)
Balance at December 31, 2002...... .. ... %8 713 8§55 0 $(239)  $(19.1) $ 338
2003 Change: ' A : '
Pre-income tax amount . .............. e (408.8) . 2.6 77.0 18.2 (311.0)
Income tax benefit (provision) ............. 156.3 (1.0) — (6.9) 148.4
Net reclassification into earnings of derivative
instrument losses (net of a $9.7 million . :
income tax benefit) ........... [P 156 .. — — — 15.6
Realized gains on securities reclassified into A
earnings (net of a $5.3 million income tax) . . L = - (9.0) — — (9.0)
Reclassification into earnings due to sale of ' '
bio-energy facilities ................ ... ) L — — — 1.2 1.2
(236.9) (14) 77.0 12.5 (154.8)
Balance at December 31, 2003-. ... .. Lo (165.6) 0 (1.9) 53.1 (6.6) (121.0)
2004 Change: . .
Pre-income tax amount . ................... (460.9) (2.4) ‘ 15.8 3.0 (444.5)
Income tax benefit (provision) ......... e 176.5 .9 — (1.2) 176.2
Net reclassification into earnings of derivative . :
instrument losses (net of a $87.8 million S .
income tax benefit) ......... ... .. ...: .. 1417 — — — 141.7
Realized losses on securities reclassified into ‘ ‘
earnings (net of a $2.1 million mcome tax) .. — 3.4 — — 3.4
(142.7) 1.9 15.8 1.8 (123.2)
Balance at December 31,2004 ............. {308.3) — 68.9 (4.8) (244.2)
2005 Change: A ' ‘
Pre-income tax amount ................... (395.5) — 11.4 6 (383.5)
Income tax benefit (provision)............. 151.3 e — (.2) 151.1
Net reclassification into earnings of derivative
instrument losses (net of a $110.8 million : ‘
income tax benefit) ......... e 178.8 — — 4 — 178.8
' (65.4) — 114 4 (53.6)
Balance at December 31,2005............. $(373.7) $ — $ 80.3 $ (44) $(297.8)

Available for Sale Securities

During 2004, we received proceeds totaling $851.4 million from the sale and maturity of available for sale
securities. We realized losses of $5.5 million from these transactions. During 2004, all available for sale
securities matured or were sold.
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During 2003, we received proceeds totaling $370.5 million from the sale and maturity of available for sale
securities. We realized gross gains and losses of $14.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively, from these
transactions. At December 31, 2003, we held U.S. Treasury securities with a fair value of $381.3 million.
Gross unrealized losses of $3 million on these securities are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at December 31, 2003.

Note 18. Segment Disclosures

Our reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. The
segments are managed separately because each segment requires different technology, marketing strategies
and industry knowledge. Other primarily consists of corporate operations and certain continuing operations
that were included within the previously reported International and Petroleum Services segments.

Performance Measurement

We currently evaluate performance based on segment profit (loss) from operations, which includes
segment revenues from external and internal customers, segment costs and expenses, depreciation, depletion
and amortization, equity earnings (losses) and income (loss) from investments including impairments related
to investments accounted for under the equity method. The accounting policies of the segments are the same
as those described in Note 1, Description of Business, Basis of Presentation, and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies. Intersegment sales are generally accounted for at current market prices as if the sales
were to unaffiliated third parties.

During 2004, Power was party to intercompany interest rate swaps with the corporate parent, the effect of
which is included in Power’s segment revenues and segment profit (loss) as shown in the reconciliation within
the following tables. We terminated all interest-rate derivatives in the fourth quarter of 2004. -

The majority of energy commodity hedging by certain of our business units is done through intercompany
derivatives with Power which, in turn, enters into offsetting derivative contracts with unrelated third parties.
Power bears the counterparty performance risks associated with the unrelated third parties. External revenues
of our Exploration & Production segment includes third-party oil and gas sales, more than offset by
transportation expenses and royalties due third parties on intercompany sales.

The following geographic area data includes revenues from external customers based on product
shipment origin and long-lived assets based upon physical location.

United States Other Total
. (Millions)

Revenues from external customers: , ,
2005 ... e $12,2583  $3253  $12,583.6
2004 .. N 12,167.8 293.5 12,461.3
2003........ . N '15,755.8 895.2 16,651.0

Long-lived assets ' ‘ ’ S
2005 . e $12,692.7  $739.8  $13,4325
2004 ..., L el 12,149.0 762.0 12,911.0
2003 . 11,982.0 776.9 12,758.9

Our foreign operations are primarily located in Venezuela, Canada, and Argentina. Long-lived assets are
comprised of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets.
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The following table reflects the reconciliation of segment revenues and segment profit (loss) to revenues
and operating income as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and other financial
information related to long-lived assets. '

Midstream

Gas  Exploration &  Gas &
Power Pipeline  Production Liguids Other  Eliminations Total

(Millions)

2005
Segment revenues: .

External ....... ... ... oo i $ 81925 $1,395.0  §(201.6) 33,1876 $ 101 § —  $12,583.6

Internal ........ .. .. i 901.4 17.8 1,470.7 45.1 17.1 (2,452.1) . —
Total FeVenuUes . .......oovivvevtvnaiiiiian, $ 9,093.9 $1,4128  $1,269.1 $3,2327 § 272 $(2,452.1) $12,583.6
Segment profit (I0ss) ..........ccoviiniin.. $ (256.7) $ 5858 $§ 5872 $ 4712 $(105.0) % — $1,2825
Less: )

Equity earnings (losses) .................... 31 - 43.6 © 188 23.6 (23.5) — 65.6

Income (loss) from investments ............. (23.0) — — 1.0 (87.1) — (109.1)
Segment operating income (loss) .............. $ (2368) $ 5422 § 5684 $ 4466 $ 56 $ — 1,326.0
General corporate eXpenses ................... (154.9)
Consolidated operating income ............. L ' i $ 1,171.1
Other financial information: ) '
Additions to long-lived assets ... ............. .. $ 59 § 4202 $ 794.7 $ 1332 $ 47 § — $ 11,3587
Depreciation, depletion & amortization. . ........ $ 149 §$ 2673 $ 2542 $ 1920 $ 116 $ — § 7400 -
2004
Segment revenues: .

External ..........ccoiiiiiiiiii. $ 83462 $1,3450 § (84.0) $2,8447 $§ 94 § — $12,461.3

Internal ........ ... FERPR 912.5 17.3 861.6 37.9 23.4 (1,852.7) -
Total segment TEVENUES . -+« v v vvevarnnnn.. 9,258.7 1,362.3 777.6 2,882.6 328 (1,852.7) 12,4613
Less intercompany interest rate swap loss ....... (13.7) — — — — 13.7 —
Total TEVENUES ... ..o v e i $ 92724 $1,362.3 $ 7716 $2,8826 $ 32.8 $(1,866.4) $12,461.3
Segment profit (loss) ............. ool $ 767 3 5858 $ 2358 $ 5497 § (416) $ — § 1,4064
Less: -

Equity earnings (losses) .................... 3.9 29.2 11.9 C 146 (9.7) — 499

Loss from investments ..................... — (1.0) - — (17.1) (17.4) — (35.5)

Intercompany interest rate swap loss.......... (13.7) — — — — (13.7)
Segment operating income (loss) ............. 8§ 865 $ 5576 § 2239 $ 5522 ¢ (14.5) $ — 1,405.7
General corporate eXpenses ................... ©(119.8)
Consolidated operating income ................ $ 1,285.9
Other financial information:
Additions to long-lived assets.................. $ 1.0 § 3001 $ 4454 $ 913 § 60 $ — § 8438
Depreciation, depletion & amortization. ......... $ 201 $ 2644 § 1923 $ 1784 8 133 8 — § 6685
2003
Segment revenues:

External .............ccoiiiiiiin $12,570.5 $1,344.3 $ (36.3) $2,7402 § 323 § —  $16,651.0

INternal . oo o 622.1 24.0 816.0 4.6 397 (1,546.4) —
Total segment revenues. ...................... 13,192.6  1,368.3 779.7 2,784.8 72.0 (1,546.4) 16,651.0
Less intercompany interest rate swap loss ....... (2.9) — — — — 2.9 —
Total revenues ........oovvninnniviniinnnen. $13,195.5 §$1,368.3 $ 779.7 $2,7848 § 72.0 $(1,549.3) 816,651.0
Segment profit (loss} .............coilLl $ 1351 §$ 5555 $ 401.4 $ 1973 $ (505) $ — $1,2388
Less: .

Equity earnings (losses) .................... (4.9) 15.8 8.9 (.8) 1.3 — 20.3

Income (loss) from investments ............. (2.4) 0.1 — 20.1 (43.1) — (25.3)

Intercompany interest rate swap loss.......... (2.9) — — — — — (2.9)
Segment operating income (loss) .............. $§ 1453 § 5396 § 3925 $ 1780 § 87 $§ — 1,246.7
General corporate expenses ................... (87.0)
Consolidated operating income ................ $ 1,159.7
Other financial information: -
Additions to long-lived assets.................. $ 1.0 § 5174 $ 2415 $ 2550 $ 25 § — $ 11,0174
Depreciation, depletion & amortization. ......... $ 315 § 2746 $ 1739 § 1577 % 197 $ — $ 6574
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The following table reflects total assets and equity method investments by reporting segment.

“Total Assets - " Equity Method Investments
December 31, December 31, December 31, -December 31, December 31, December 31,
2005 ‘ 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
o (Millions) .

Power(1)" ..o, $ 14,989.2 $ 82041 $87329 §$19.2 $ 456 $ 428
Gas Pipeline .............. L. 75810 7,651.8 7,314.3 439.1 769.5 774.4
Exploration & Production(2) .. 8,672.0 5,576.4 5,347.4 58.4 449 - 415
Midstream Gas & Liquids. . ... 4,677.7 4211.7 = 4,050.4 314.2 2733 289.9
Other(3) ............. T 3,929.9 3,584.0 6,928.7 2 113.2 85.1
Eliminations(4) . ............ (10,420.0) (5,248.6) (6,078.2) — — e

. 29,429.8 23,9794 26,295.5 831.1 1,246.5 . 12337

Net assets of discontinued ' : ‘
.operations(5) ........... L 12.8 13.6 726.3 — — ] —

Total assets ................. $ 294426 $23,993.0 $27,021.8 $831.1 $1,246.5 $1,233.7

" (1) The 2005 increase in Power’s total assets is due primarily to an increase in derivative assets as a result of
the impact of changes in commodity prices on existing forward derivative contracts. Power’s derivative
assets are substantially offset by their derivative liabilities.

(2) The 2003 increase in Exploration & Production’s total assets.is due primarily to an increase in derivative
assets as a result of the impact of changes in commodity prices on existing forward derivative contracts.
Exploration. & Production’s derivatives are primarily comprised of intercompany transactions with the
Power segment. . ' :

(3) The 2004 decrease in Other’s total assets is due primarily to cash payments on existing debt.

(4) The 2005 increase in Eliminations is due primarily to an-increase in the intercompany derivative balances.

(5) The 2004 decrease in net assets of discontinued operations is due to the sale of our Canadian straddle
plants during 2004. '
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Summarized quarterly financial data are as follows (millions, except per-share amounts).
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter - Quarter
2005
Revenues..........ooviiivn.... P £2,954.0 $2,871.2  $3,082.3 $3,676.1°
Costs and operating expenses ... ... e 2,390.3 2,491.6 2,826.2 . 3,162.9
Income from continuing operations . ............. 202.2 40.7 5.7 68.8
Income before cumulative effect of change in ‘ ’
accounting principle . ....... ... o L L 201.1 41.3 4.4 68.5
Netincome . ...oovvvrvevnnn... e 201.1 41.3. 44 66.8
Basic earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations ............ 36 .07 .01 12
Income before cumulative effect of change in : o '
accounting principle .. ........ ... . ..l .36 .07 .01 12
Diluted earnings per common share: . s
Income from continuing operations . ........... 34 07 .01 11
“Income before cumulative effect of change in C ‘
accounting principle . . ...... ... ... .l 34 07 .01 11
2004
Revenues............ocoiivviiiiiiiiaiins $3,070.0  $3,051.9 $3,375.2  $2,964.2
Costs and operating expenses . .................. 2,690.9 2,661.4 2,855.9 2,543.5
Income (loss) from continuing "operativons e — (18.5) 16.2 95.5
Net income (loss) ... iinen .. e ;9.9 (18.2) 98.6 73.4
Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .. . ... — (.03) .03 17
Net income (loss) ..o .. .02 (.03) 19 A3
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share: ‘
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... ... — (.03) .03 17
Net income (108S) ... oot i 02 (.03) 19 A3

The sum of earnings per share for the four quarters may not equal the total earnings per share for the

year due to changes in the average number of common shares outstanding and rounding.

Net income for fourth quarter 2005 includes a $20.2 million reduction to the tax provision associated with

an adjustment to deferred income taxes (see Note 5) and the following pre-tax items:

» $68.7 million accrual for litigation contingencies at Power (see Note 4);

+ $38.1 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn at Other (éce Note 3‘)','

* $32.1 million charge related to accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items at

Gas Pipeline (see Note 4);

+ $23 million impairment of our investment in Aux Sable at Power (see Note 3);

+ $5.2 million accrual for contingent refund obligations at Gas Pipeline (see Note 4)..
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Net income for third 'quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

$21 7 m11hon gain on sale of certam natural gas properties at Exploration & Production (see
Note 4);

$14.2 million of income from the reversal of a liability due to resolution of litigation at Gas Pipeline
(see Note 4);

$13.8 million increase in expense related to the settlement of certain insurance coverage issues
associated with ERISA and securities htlgatlon at Other (see Note 4).

Net income for second quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

$49.1 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn at Other (see Note 3):

$17.1 million reduction of expense at Gas Pipeline to correct the overstatement of pension expense in
prior periods (see Note 7);

$13.1 million accrual for Iitigation contingencies at Power (see Note 4);

$8.6 million gain on sale of our remaining interests in ‘Mid- Amenca Pipeline and Seminole Plpehne
at Midstream.

Net income for first quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

$13.1 million of income due to the reversal of certain prior period accruals at Gas Pipeline;

$7.9 million gain on sale of certain natural gas properties at Exploration & Production (see Note 4).

Net income for fourth quarter 2004 includes the following pre-tax items:

*

$93.6 million income from Gulf Liquids insurance arbitration award and related interest income of
$9.6 million at Midstream (see Note 4);

$11.8 million expense related to an environmental accrual for the Augusta refinery facility at Other
(see Note 4);

$16.9 million impairment of -our investment in Discovery Pipeline at Midstream (see Note 3);

$29.5 million costs associated with the FELINE PACS exchange and remarketing at Other.

Ner income for third quarter 2004 includes the following pre-tax items:

$16.5 million reduction of revenue attributable to the second quarter of 2004 as a result of
Midstream’s correction of their revenue recognition methodology related to the Devils Tower
facility;

$155.1 million premiums, fees and expenses related to the third quarter 2004 cash tender offer and
consent solicitations at Other;

$15.7 million impairment of an international cost-based investment, included at Other (see Note 3);

$127.0 million loss from discontinued operations (see Note 2);

. $192.9 million of gams on discontinued operations, net of losses on sales and 1mpa1rments (see

Note 2).
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Net loss for second quarter 2004 includes the following pre-tax items: -

» $9.0 million charge resulting from the write-off of previously capitalized costs on an idled segment of
a pipeline at Gas Pipeline (see Note 4);

$10.1 million benefit from the reversal of a default reserve on good faith negotiations at Power;

$11.3 million expense related to a loss provision regarding an ownership dispute on prior period
production at Exploration & Production (see Note 4);

$10.8 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn at Other (see Note 3);

$16.5 million increase in revenues related to the Devils Tower facility subsequently reversed in third
quarter 2004 due to a revenue recognition methodology correction at Midstream;

$96.8 million premiums, fees and expenses related to the second quarter 2004 cash tender offer at
Other.

Net income for first quarter 2004 includes the following pre-tax items:

$13.0 million charge resulting from the termination of a nonderivative power sales contract at Power;

$6.5 million net unreimbursed Longhorn recapitalization advisory fees at Other (see Note 3);

$8.7 million income from discontinued operations (see Note 2);

$6.9 million of gains on sales of discontinued operations, net of losses on sales and impairments (see
Note 2).
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The following information pertains to our oil and gas producing activities and is presented in accordance
with SFAS No. 69, “Disclosures About Oil and Gas Producing Activities.” The information is required to be
disclosed by geographic region. We have significant oil and gas producing activities primarily in the Rocky
Mountain and Mid-continent areas of the United States. Additionally, we have oil and gas producing activities
in Argentina and Venezuela. However, proved reserves and revenues related to international activities are
approximately 6.2 percent and 4.2 percent, respectively, of our total international and domestic proved reserves

_and revenues. The following information relates only to the oil and gas activities in the United States and

includes the activities of those properties that Qualiﬁcd for reporting as discontinued operations in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Capitalized costs
As of December 31,

2005 2004
, (Millions)
Proved properties .. ... $3,870.5  $3,022.9

Unproved properties. . . ...ttt 503.1 569.7
’ 43736  3,592.6

" Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization and valuation :
PIOVISIONS .. o\ ettt ettt e et e e e (937.4) (688.3)

Net capitalized COSIS .. ..o oottt $3.436.2  $29043

+ Capitalized costs include the cost of equipment and facilities for oil and gas producing activitiés.
These amounts for 2005 and 2004 do not include approximately $1 billion of goodwill related to the
purchase of Barrett Resources Corporation (Barrett) in 2001.

* Proved properties include capitalized costs for oil and gas leaseholds holding proved reserves;
development wells and related equipment and facilities (including uncompleted development well
costs); and successful exploratory wells and related equipment and facilities.

» Unproved properties consist primarily of acreage related to probable/possible reserves acquired
through the Barrett acquisition in 2001 and a property acquisition in 2005. The balance is unproved

exploratory acreage.

Costs incurred

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003

{Millions)
ACQUISIEON . . . .. oo oo $453 $172 $11.3
Exploration........... AP 8.3 4.5 7.1
Development ............... ... ..., P 723.1 419.2 186.8

$776.7  $440.9  $205.2

« Costs incurred include capitalized and expensed items.

* Acquisition costs are as follows: The 2005 costs primarily consist of a land and reserve acquisition in
the Fort Worth basin and an additional land acquisition in the Arkoma basin. The 2004 costs relate
to the Huber-Edwards reserve acquisition in the San Juan Basin, RBS, and additional land
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acquisitions in the Arkoma basin, and Guthrie leasehold acquisition in the Powder River basin. The
2003 costs relates to the Smith, Contra, Tailwind acquisition also in the Arkoma basin at the end of
2003.

» Exploration costs include the costs of geological and geophysical activity, drilling and equipping
" exploratory wells determined to be dry holes, and the cost of retaining undeveloped leaseholds
including lease amortization and impairments.

» Development costs include costs incurred to gain access to and prepare development well locations
for drilling and to drill and equip development wells inclusive of related gathering facilities.

Results of operations
For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Millions)
Revenues:
Oil and gas TEVENUES . ...t in i e $1,072.4  $599.9  $611.9
Other TEVEIUES « « o o v e v v ettt 143.3 137.3 168.8
Total TEVENUES . . ot v ettt e i et e e e 1,215.7 737.2 780.7
Costs: )
Production COSTS . . .. v tv ittt e 230.3 1654 - 138.3
General & administrative .......... . ... . i 79.5 58.3 54.4
Exploration eXpenses ......... ... . .83 4.5 7.1
‘Depreciation, depletion & AMOTHZALON « .+« o v e eeeenen 2447 183.4 170.2
(Gains)/Losses on sales of interests in oil and gas properties . .. (30.8) 0.1  (1348)
Other expenses . ................ e e 141.1 115.2 102.1
Total CostS. ..o e 673.1 5269 .337.3
Results of operations ................. [ 542.6 2103 4434
Provision for income taxes ...... e e (216.9) (81.4) (169.6)

Exploration and production netincome.............. e $ 3257 $1289 $2738

« Results of operations for producing activities ‘consist of all related domestic act1v1t1es within the
Exploration & Production reporting unit, including those operations that qualified for presentation as
discontinued operations within our Consolidated Statement of Operations. Included above are the
pretax results of operations and gains on sales of assets, reported as discontinued operations, of
$60.2 million in 2003. Other expenses in 2005 and 2004 include a $6 million and $16 million gain,
tespectively, on sales of securities associated with a coal seam royalty trust.

» Oil and gas revenues consist primarily of natural'gas predqction sold to the Power subsidiary and
includes the impact of intercompany hedges.

« Other revenues and other expenses consist of activities within the Exploration & Production segment
that are not a direct part of the producing activities. These non-producing activities include
acquisition and disposition of other working interest and royalty-interest gas and the movement of
gas from the wellhead to the tailgate of the respective pldnts for sale to the Power subsidiary or third
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party purchasers. In addition, other revenues include recognition of income from transactions which
transferred certain non-operating benefits to a third party -

» Production costs consist of costs incurred to operate and maintain wells and related equipment and
facilities used in the production of petroleum liquids and natural gas. These costs also include
production taxes other than income taxes and administrative expenses in support of production
activity. Excluded are depreciation, depletion and amortization of capitalized acquisition, exploration
and development costs.

» Exploration costs include the costs of geological and geophysical activity, drilling and equipping
exploratory wells determined to be ‘dry holes, and the cost of retaining undeveloped leaseholds
including lease amortization and impairments.

+ Depreciation, depletion and amortization includes depreciation of support equipment.

Proved reserves
2005 2004 2003

(Bcfe)

Proved reserves at beginning of period ......................0...... 2,986 2,703 2,834
REVISIONS ...\ttt ittt Lo (1) (70) (5)
PUrchases . . ... o 28 24 38
Extensions and discoveries . . ... e 615 521 412

SProduction ... (224) (191) (186)

. Sale of minerals in'place ........... . (11) - (1) (390)

Proved reserves at end of period .......... .. . L ol 3,382 2,986 2,703

Proved developed reserves at end of period .................... L L643 1348 1,165

+ The SEC defines proved oil and gas reserves (Rule 4-10(a) of Regulation S-X) as the estimated
quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which geological and engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty are recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions. Our proved reserves consist of two categories, proved

" developed reserves and proved undeveloped reserves. Proved developed reserves are currently
producing wells and wells awaiting minor sales connection: expenditure, recompletion, additional
perforations or borehole stimulation treatments. Proved undeveloped reserves are those reserves
which are expected to be recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing wells where
a relatively major expenditure is required for recomplenon Proved reserves on undrilled acreage are
limited to those drilling units offsetting productive units that are reasonably certain of production
when drilled or where it can be demonstrated with certainty that there is continuity of production
from the existing productlve formation.

« Natural gas reserves are computed at- 14.73 pounds per square 1nch absolute and 60 degrees
Fahrenheit. Crude oil reserves are insignificant and have been included in the proved reserves on a
“basis of billion cubic feet equivalents (Bcfe).

Standardlzed ‘measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves

The following is based on the estimated quantities of proved reserves and the year-end prices and costs.
The average year end natural gas prices used in the following estimates were $6.95, $5.08, and $5.28 per
mmcfe at December 31, 20035, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Future income tax expenses have been computed
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considering available carry forwards and credits and the appropriate statutory tax rates. The discount rate of
10 percent is as prescribed by SFAS No. 69. Continuation of year-end economic conditions also is assumed.
The calculation is based on estimates of proved reserves, which are revised over time as new data becomes
available. Probable or possible reserves, which may become proved in the future, are not considered. The
calculation also requires assumptions as to the timing of future production of proved reserves, and the timing
and amount of future development and production costs. Of the $2,258 million of future development costs,
$661 million, $727 million and $610 million are estimated to be spent in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Numerous uncertainties are inherent in estimating volumes and the value of proved reserves and in
projecting future production rates and timing of development expenditures. Such reserve estimates are subject
to change as additional information becomes available. The reserves actually recovered and the timing of
production may be substantially different from the reserve estimates.

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ’
‘ At December 31,

2005 2004
. (Millions)

Future cash Inflows ... ..o i $23,510 $15,174
Less: '

Future production COStS . . ...ttt 4,441 3,027

Future development COSIS .. ... ........oiiireeannnnn... e 2,258 1,703

Future income tax provisions ..................... D e 6,128 3,744
Future net cash flows. ... .. . . 10,683 6,700
Less 10 percent annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows .. ...... 5,402 3,553
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ................ $ 5281 . §$ 3,147
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THE WILLIAMS 'COMPANIES, INC.

SUPPLEMENTAL OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURES — (Continued)
~ (Unaudited)

Sources of change in standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

2005 2004 2003
K . . (Millions)
* Standardized measure of dlscounted future net cash ﬂows beginning :
of period.. ... ... . o o O P $ 3,147 - $3,349 $2,272
Changes during the year ' ' _ a o
Sales of oil and gas produced, net of operating COSES + o eeennn, (1,222) (835) (567)
Net change in prices and production costs ..... e 2,358 (306) 2,001
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery, less estimated o ‘ '
fUture CoStS "\ it e 1,310 787 901 -
Development costs incurred dunng VEAr ... L 723 419 © 187
Changes in estimated future development costs .......... L (300) (696) (159)
Purchase of reserves in place, less estimated future costs ... .... 78 29 78
Sales of reserves in place, less estimated future costs .......... (31 (3) (855)
Revisions of previous quantity estimates ..................... (28) (90) (11)
- Accretion of discount . ........... e U e 488 286 341
Net change in income taxes ..................cviiiini... (1,272) 182 (773)
Other ...... S e 300 25 (66)
Net changes. . ... PR AU U 2,134 (202) 1,077
Standardized ‘measure of discounted future net cash flows end of ] ‘

period ... . ... ... . [ e $ 5,281  $3,147  $3,349
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC. -
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

ADDITIONS
Charged to : S ‘
Beginning Cost and Ending
Balance . Expenses Other Deductions Balance
(Millions)
Year ended December 31, 2005:
Allowance for doubtful accounts — . . _
accounts and notes receivable(a) ... .. $ 988 $ 35 $ — $ 15.7(c) 3 86.6
. Price-risk management credit , - B :
reserves(a) ... . 26.4 (2.6)(d) 13.2(e) — 37.0
Processing plant major maintenance ‘ .
accrual(b) ..... ... ... ...l 5T 15 — — 7.2
Year ended December 31, 2004: '
Allowance for doubtful accounts —
accounts and notes receivable(a) ... .. 112.2. ' (.8) - - 12.6(¢c) 98.8
Price-risk management credit o
reserves(a) ... - 398 (12.8) (d) (.6)(e)" — 264
Processing plant major maintenance - , ‘ )
accrual(b) ........ ... ... 4.1 o 16 = — 5.7
Year ended December 31, 2003: ' '
" Allowance for doubtful accounts — .
accounts and notes receivable(a) .. ... 111.8 73 7.9(f) 14.8(c) 1122
Price-risk management credit . Lo : \ , :
reserves(a) ...l 2504 2.6(d) — ©213.2(g). 39.8
Processing plant major maintenance B ' E L
accrual(b) ........ ...l 27 1.4 C— — -4l

(a) Deducted from related assets.

(b) Included in other liabilities and deferred income.

(¢) Represents balances written off, reclassifications, and recoveries.
(d) Included in revenues.

(e) Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss.

(f) Reflects aliowances for accounts receivable charged to costs and expenses for a discontinued opération
whose receivables were not held for sale.

(g) Reflects cumulative effect of change in accoummg prmczple related to EITF 02-3 (see Note 1of Notes to
Consohdated Flnan01al Statements).
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Contfols and Proéedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls‘and procedures
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act) (Disclosure Controls) was
performed as of the end of the period covered by this report. This evaluation was performed under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that these Disclosure Controls are effective at a reasonable assurance level.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our Disclosure Controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the ObJCCUVCS of the control system are
met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the
benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud,
if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments
in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mlstakc

Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design
will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Because. of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. We monitor our Disclosure Controls and make modifications as necessary; our intent in thls regard is
that the Disclosure Controls will be modified as systems change and conditions warrant.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over F1nanc1al Reporting” set forthin Item 8, F1nanc1al
Statements and Supplementary Data.

Fourth Quarter 2005 Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

On October 1, 2005, we completed. the final phase of system implementations which are part .of an
enterprise initiative to move to common enterprise accounting systems. This phase impacted our Exploration
& Production business segment and represented a replacement of the primary accounting systems used to
process, accumulate and summarize accounting information. In addition, the systems implemented also °
replaced previous systems used to manage land lease records and division order interests. As a result, some
processes and related controls were modified to address any changes resulting from the system
implementation.

Other than as described above, there have been no changes in our internal controls over financial
reporting during the fourth quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IT

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information regarding our directors and nominees for director required by Item 401 of Regula-
tion S-K will be presented under the headings “Board of Directors — Board Committees”, “Election of
Directors”, and “Principal Accounting Fees and Services” in our Proxy Statement prepared for the solicitation
of proxies in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 18, 2006 (Proxy
Statement), which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Information regarding our executive officers required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K is presented at the
end of Part I herein and captioned “Executive Officers of the Registrant” as permitted by General
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401 (b) of Regulation S-K.

Information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K will be included under the heading “Compliance
with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934” in our Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated by reference herein.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
and Controller, or persons performing similar functions. The Code of Ethics, together with our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, the charters for each of our board committees, and our Code of Business Conduct
applicable to all employees are available on our Internet website at htp://www.williams.com. We will
provide, free of charge, a copy of our Code of Ethics or any of our other corporate documents listed above
upon written request to our Secretary at Williams, One Williams Center, Suite 4700, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172.
We intend to disclose any amendments to or waivers of the Code of Ethics on behalf of our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, and persons performing similar functions on our Internet website
at http.//www.williams.com under the Investor Relations caption, promptly following the date of any such
amendment or waiver. ' ‘

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K regarding executive compensation will be
presented under the headings “Board of Directors” and “Executive Compensation and Other Information” in
our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the information provided under the headings “Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation”
and “Stockholder Return Performance Presentation” in our Proxy Statement is not incorporated by reference
herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans required by
Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K and the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management
required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K will be presented under the headings “Equity Compensation Stock
Plans” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement,
which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Ttem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information regarding certain relationships and related transactions required by Item 404 of
Regulation S-K will be presented under the heading “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our
Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

~ The information regarding our principal accountant fees and services required by Item 9(e) of
Schedule 14A will be presented under the heading “Principal Accountant Fees and Services” in our Proxy
Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedulea ‘

(a) 1 and 2.
Page
Covered by report of independent auditors:

Consolidated statement of operations for each of the three years ended December 31
2005 e e 83

Consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004 ........... i .. 84
Consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity for each of the three years ended ‘

December 31, 2005 . .ottt 83
Consolidated statement of cash flows for each of the three years ended December 31,

2005 .. e e ..o 86
Notes to consolidated ﬁnancial statements. T P S 87
Schedule for each of the three vears ended December 31 200s:

11 — Valuation and qualifying accounts ........0. ... .. ... e 155

Not covered by report of independent auditors:
Quarterly financial data (unaudited) ....... e e PP 147
- Supplemental oil and gas disclosures (unaudited) ............... P . R &1 1)

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in
amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the mformatmn requrred is included in
the financial statements and notes: thereto

(a) 3 and (b) The exh1b1ts hsted below are filed as part of this annual report

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
No. Descri ptron

3.1* — Restated Certificate of Incorporatron as supplemented (ﬁled as Exh1b1t 3.1 to our Form 10- K filed
March 11, 2005). : ‘ _ .

3.2 — Restated By-laws

4.1* — Form of Senior Debt Indenture between Williams and Bank One Trust company, N.A. (formerly
The First National Bank of Chlcago) as Trustee (filed as Exhlbrt 41 to our Form S- 3 filed
September 8, 1997).

4.2¥ — Form of Floating Rate Senior Note (ﬁled as Exhibit 4.3 to our Form S-3 filed September 8, 1997).

4.3* — Form of Fixed Rate Senior Note (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to our Form S-3 ﬁled September 8, 1997).

4.4% . —Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee dated as of Januvary 17, 2001 (ﬁled as Exhibit 4(j) to our
Form 10-K for the ﬁscal year ended December 31, 2000).

4.5* — Fifth Supplemental Indenture between Williams and Bank One Trust Company, N.A,, as Trustee,
dated as of January 17, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 4(k) to our Form 10-K for the ﬁscal year ended
December 31, 2000).

4.6* — Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated January 14, 2002, between Williams and Bank One Trust

Company, National Association, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K° ﬁled J January 23,
2002).

4.7* — Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated March 19, 2002, between The erhams Companies, Inc. as
Issuer and Bank One Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our
Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2002).
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Exhibit .

No. " Description

4.8% — Form of Senior Debt Indenture between Williams Holdings of Delaware, Inc. and Citibank, N.A.,
as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Williams Holdings of Delaware, Inc.’s our Form 10-Q filed
October 18, 1995).

4.9* — First Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 31, 1999, among Williams Holdings of Delaware,
Inc., Citibank, N.A,, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4(0) to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

4.10* — Senior Indenture dated February 25, 1997, between MAPCO Inc. and Bank One Trust Company,
N.A. (formerly The First National Bank of Chicago), as Trustee (ﬁled as Exhibit 4.4.1 to MAPCO
Inc.’s Amendment No. | to Form S-3 dated February 25, 1997).

4.11* — Supplemental Indenture No. I' dated March 3, 1997, between MAPCO Inc. and Bank One Trust
Company, N.A. (formerly The First National Bank of Chicago), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4 (o)
to MAPCO Inc.’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997).

4.12* — Supplemental Indenture No. 2 dated March-5, 1997, between MAPCO Inc. and Bank One Trust
Company, N.A. (formerly The First National Bank of Chicago), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4(p)
to MAPCO Inc.’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997).

- 4.13* — Supplemental Indenture No. 3 dated March 31, 1998, among MAPCO Inc., Williams Holdmgs of
Delaware, Inc. and Bank One Trust Company, N.A. (formerly The First National Bank of
Chicago), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4(j) to Williams Holdings of Delaware, Inc.’s Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).-

4.14* — Supplemental Indenture No. 4 dated as of July 31, 1999, among Williams Holdings of Delaware,
Inc., Williams and Bank One Trust Company, N.A. (formerly The First National Bank of
Chxcago) as Trustee (filed as Exhrbrt 4(q) to our Form 10- K for the ﬁscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

- 4.15* — Revised Form of Indenture between Barrett Resources Corporation, as Issuer, and Bankers Trust
Company; as Trustee, with respect to Senior Notes including specimen of 7.55% Senior Notes (filed
as Exhibit 4.1 to Barrett Resources Corporation’s Amendment No. 2 to our Registration Statement
on Form S-3 filed February 10, 1997). ‘

4.16% — First Supplemental Indenture dated 2001, between Barrett Resources Corporation, as Issuer, and
Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to our Form 10-Q filed November 13,
2001).

4.17* — Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 2, 2001, among Barrett Resources Corporation,
as Issuer, Resources Acquisition Corp.,” The Williams Companies, Inc. and Bankers Trust
Company, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to.our Form 10-Q filed November 13, 2001).

4.18* — Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 20, 2004 with respect to the Indenture dated as of
February 1, 1997 between Barrett Resources Corporation (predecessor-in-interest to Williams
Production RMT Company) and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (formerly known as

_ ~ Bankers Trust Company), as trustee (filed.as Exhibit 99.2 to our Form 8-K filed May 20, 2004).

4 19* — Form of Note (filed as Exhibit 4.2 and included in Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed January 23,
2002).

4.20% — Purchase Contract Agreement dated January 14, 2002, between Williams and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, as Purchase Contract’ ‘Agent (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to our Form 8-K filed January 23, 2002).

4.21* — Form of Income PACS Certificate. (filed as Exhibit 4.4 and included in Exhibit 4.3 to our Form 8-K
filed January 23, 2002).

4.22% — Pledge Agreement dated January 14 12002, among Williams, Bank, as Purchase Contract Agent
(filed as Exhibit 4.5 to our Form 8-K filed January 23, 2002). »

4.23* — Remarketing Agreement dated January 14, 2002, among Williams, JPMorgan Chase. Bank, as

© " -Purchase Contract Agent, and Merrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith-

~ . Incorpérated, as Remarketing Agent (filed as ExHhibit 4.6 to our Form' 8-K filed January 23, 2002).




Exhibit
No. Description

4.24% — Supplemental Remarketing Agreement dated as of November 4, 2004 by and among Williams,
Merrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporation, as Remarketing Agent,
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Purchase Contract Agent (filed as exhibit 99.1 to our Form 8-K filed
November 9, 2004).

4.25* — Indenture dated March 4, 2003, between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and JP Morgan Chase
Bank, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 10-Q filed May 13, 2003.

4.26* — Indenture dated as of May 28, 2003, by and between The Williams Companies, Inc. and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, as Trustee for the issuance of the 5.50% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures
due 2033 (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2003).

4.27* — Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated September 21, 2004 by and between The Williams
Companies, Inc. and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our
Form 8-K filed September 21, 2004.

4.28* — Senior Indenture, dated as of August 1, 1992, between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and
Continental Bank, N.A., Trustee with regard to Northwest Pipeline’s 9% Debentures, due 2022
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Northwest Pipeline’s Form S-3 filed July 2, 1992).

4.29% — Senior Indenture, dated as of November 30, 1995, between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and
Chemical Bank, Trustee with regard to Northwest Pipeline’s 7.125% Debentures, due 2025 (filed as
Exhibit 4.1 to Northwest Pipeline’s Form S-3 filed September 14, 1995).

4.30* — Senior Indenture, dated as of December 8, 1997, between Northwest Pipeline Corporation and The
Chase Manhattan Bank, Trustee with regard to Northwest Pipeline’s 6.625% Debentures, due 2007
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Northwest Pipeline’s Form S-3 filed September &, 1997).

4.31* — Senior Indenture dated as of July 15, 1996 between Transcontmental Gas Pipe Line Corporation
and Citibank, N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corpora-
tion’s Form S-3 dated April 2, 1996).

4.32* — Senior Indenture dated as of January 16, 1998 between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation
and Citibank, N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corpora-
tion’s Form S-3 dated September &, 1997).

4.33* — Indenture dated as of August 27, 2001 between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation and
Citibank, N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation’s
Form S-4 dated November &, 2001).

4.34* — Indenture dated as of July 3, 2002 between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation and
Citibank, N.A., as Trustee {filed as Exhibit 4.1 to The Williams Companies Inc.’s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

4.35* — Indenture’ dated December 17, 2004 between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line
Corporation’s Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004).

10.1* — The Williams Companies, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan effective as of January 1, 1988 (filed
as Exhibit 10(iii) (c) to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987).

10.2* — First Amendment to The Williams Companies, [nc. Supplemental Retirement Plan effective as of
April 1, 1988 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

10.3* — Second Amendment to The Williams Companies, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan effective as
of January 1, 2002 and January 1, 2003 (ﬁled as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 10-K filed March, 11,
2005).

10.4* — The Williams Companies, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (filed as
Exhibit A to our Proxy Statement dated March 14, 1988).

10.5%* — The Williams Companles Inc. 1990 Stock Plan (filed as Exhlblt A to our Proxy Statement dated
March 12, 1990). -

10.6* — The Williams Companies, Inc. Stock Plan for Non-Officer Employees (filed as Exhibit 10(iii) (g)
to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995).
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Exhibit
_No. Description

10 7* — The Williams Coinpanies, Inc. 1996 Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit A to our Proxy Statement dated
March 27, 1996): .

10.8* — The Williams Companies, Inc. 1996 Stock Plan for Non- employee Directors (ﬁled as Exhibit B to
our Proxy Statement dated March 27, 1996).

10.9* — Indemnification Agreement effective as of August 1, 1986, among Williams, members of the Board
of Directors and certain officers of Williams (ﬁled as Exhlblt 10(111) (e) to our Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31; 1986).

10.10* — The Williams International Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(111) (l) to our Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998). '

10.11* — Form of Stock Option Secured Promissory Note and Pledge Agreement among Williams and
certain employees, officers and non-employee directors (filed as Exhibit 10(iii) (m) to our
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998). -

10.12* — Form of 2004 Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and certaln employees and officers (filed
as Exhibit 10.12 to our Form 10-K filed March 11, 2005)"

10.13* — Form of 2004 Performance-Based Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and executive
officers filed as Exhibit 10.13 to our Form 10-K filed March 11, 2005). ‘

10.14* — Form of Stock Option Agreement among Williams and certain cmployces and officers (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to our Form 8-K filed March 2, 2005).

10.15* — Form of 2005 Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and cért,ain employees and officers (filed
" as Exhibit 99.2 to our Form 8-K filed March 2, 2005).
10.16% — Form of 2005 Performance-Based Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and executive
officers. (filed as Exhibit 99.3 to our Form-8-K filed March 2, 2005).

10.17* — The Williams Companies, Inc. 2001 Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Form S-8 filed
August 1, 2001).
10.18* — The Williams Companies, Inc. 2002 Incentive Plan as_amended and restated effective as of
" January 23, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q filed on August 5, 2004).

10.19* — Form of Change in Control-Severance Agreement between the Company and certain executive
. officers (filed as Exhibit 10.12-to our Form 10-Q filed November 14, 2002).
10.20* — Settlerhent Agreement, by and among the Governor of the State of California and the several other
parties named therein and The Williams- Companies, Inc. and Williams Energy Marketing &
Trading Company dated November- 11, 2002 (filed -as Exhibit 10.79 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 21, 2002).
10.21 — The Williams Companies, Inc. Severance Pay Plan as Amended and Restated Effective October 28,
2003.
10.22 — Amendment to The Williams Compames Inc. Severance Pay Plan dated October 28, 2003.
10.23 — Amendment to The Williams Companies; Inc. Severance Pay Plan dated June 1, 2004.
10.24 — Amendment to The Williams Companies, Inc. Severance Pay Plan dated January 1, 2005.
10.25* — U.S. $500,000,000 Term Loan  Agreement among Williams Production Holdings LLC, Williams
- Production RMT Company, as Borrower, the Several Lenders from time to time parties thereto,
- Lehman Brothers Inc. and Banc of America Securities LL.C as Joint Lead Arrangers, Citigroup
USA, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Co-Syndication Agents, Bank of America, N.A., as
Documentation Agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent dated as of
May 30, 2003. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2003).
10.26* — The First Amendment to the Term Loan Agreement dated February 25, 2004, between Williams
Production Holdings, LLC, Williams Production RMT Company, as Borrower, the several financial

institutions as lenders and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent dated as of
May 30, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).




Exhibit
No. - Description

10.27* — Guarantee and Collateral Agreement made by Williams Production Holdings LLC, Williams
Production RMT Company and certain of its Subsidiaries in favor of Lehman Commercial Paper
Inc. as Administrative Agent dated as of May 30, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 12, 2003).

10.28* — U.S. $1,000,000,000 Credit Agreement dated as of May 3, 2004, among The Williams Companies,
Inc., Northwest Pipeline Corporation, Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation, as Borrowers,
Citicorp USA, Inc., as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, Citibank, N.A. and Bank of
America, N.A., Collateral Agent, Citibank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A., as Issuing Banks, the
banks named therein as Banks, Bank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agent, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc as Co-Documentation Agents,
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC as Joint Lead Arrangers and
Co-Book Runners (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).

10.29% — Letter .of Credit Commitment Increase Agreement dated August 4, 2004, by and among The
Williams Companies, Inc., Citicorp USA in its capacity as Agent under the Credit Agreement
dated as of May 3, 2004 among the Borrower, Northwest Pipeline Corporation, Transcontinental
Gas Pipe Line Corporation, the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Banks and Issuing Banks party
thereto and Citibank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q
_filed November 4, 2004).

10.30* — Revolving Credit Commitment Increase'Agreemcnt dated August 4, 2004, by and among The
Williams Companies, Inc., Citicorp USA in its capacity as Agent under the Credit Agreement
dated as of May 3, 2004 among the Borrower, Northwest Pipeline Corporation, Transcontinental
Gas Pipe Line Corporation, the Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Banks and Issuing Banks party
thereto, the Issuing Banks and Citicorp USA, Inc. (filed as Exhlblt 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed

. November 4, 2004).

10.31* — U.S. $1,275,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Dated as of May 20, 2005 among
The Williams Companies, Inc., Northwest Pipeline Corporation, Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line
- Corporation, Williams Partners L.P., as Borrowers, Citicorp USA, Inc., As Administrative Agent
and Collateral Agent, Citibank, N.A. Bank of America, N.A. as Issuing Banks and.The Banks
Named Herein as Banks (filed as Exhibit 1.1 to our Form 8-K filed May 26, 2005).

10.32¥* — Amendment Agreement dated as of October 19, 2004 among The Williams Companies, Inc.,
Northwest Pipeline Corporation, Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation, as Borrowers, the
banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders that are parties to the Credit Agreement
dated as of May 3, 2004 among the Borrowers, the Banks, Citicorp USA, Inc., as agent and
Citibank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A., as issuers of letters of credit under the Credit
Agreement, the Agent and the Issuing Banks (filed as Exhibit 10.29 to our Form 10-K filed
- March 11, 2005).

10.33* — Western Midstream Security Agreement dated as of May 3, 2004, among Williams Gas Processmg
Company, Williams Field Services Company, Williams Gas Processing — Wamsutter Company as
Grantors, in favor of Citicorp USA, Inc. as Collateral Agents (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our
Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).

10 34* — Pledge Agreement dated as of May 3, 2004, by Williams Field Services Group, Inc. in favor of
Citicorp USA, Inc. as Collateral Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).

10.35% — Western Midstream Guaranty by Williams Gas Processing Company, Williams Field Services
Company, Williams Gas Processing — Wamsutter Company as Guarantors in favor of Citicorp
USA, Inc. as Collateral Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).

10.36* — Pipeline Holdco Guaranty by Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC as Guarantor in favor of
Citicorp USA, Inc. as Collateral Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2004).

10.37* — Amended and Restated U.S. $400,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated April 14, 2004 and
amended. January 20, 2005 among The Williams Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders
named herein, as Initial Lenders , the Initial Issuing Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks
and Citibank, N.A, as Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form §-K filed on January 26, 2005).
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Exhibit
No. Description
10.38* — Amended and Restated U.S. $100,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated April 26, 2004 and
amended January 20, 2005 among The Williams Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders
named herein, as Initial Lenders , the Initial Issuing-Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks
and Citibank, N.A, as Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form §-K filed on January 26, 2005).

10.39* — U.S. $400,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated January 20, 2005 among The Williams
Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders named herein, as Initial Lenders, the Initial
Issuing Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks and Citibank, N.A, as Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 8-K filed on January 26, 2005).

10.40* — U.S. $100,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated January 20, 2005 among The Williams

: Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders named herein, as Initial Lenders, the Initial
Issuing Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks and Citibank, NA as Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to our Form 8-K filed on January 26, 2005).

10.41* — U.S. $500,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated September 20, 2005 among The Williams
Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders named herein, as Initial Lenders, the Initial
Issuing Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks and Citibank, N.A, as Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to.our Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2005).

10.42* — U.S. $200,000,000 Five Year Credit Agreement dated September 20, 2005 among The Williams
Companies, Inc., as Borrower, the Initial Lenders named herein, as Initial Lenders, the Initial
Issuing Banks named herein, as Initial Issuing Banks and Citibank, N.A, as Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2003).
10.43* — New Omnibus Agreement among WEG Acquisitions, L.P., Williams Energy Services, LLC,
Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. and The Williams Companies, Inc: dated as of June 17, 2003
(filed as Exhibit 10.9 to our Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2003).

10.44* — Assumption Agreement dated June 17, 2003 by and between The Williams Companies, Inc. and
WEG Acquisitions, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to our. Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2003).

10.45* — Agreement for the Release of Certain Indemnification Obligations dated as of May 26, 2004 by and
among Magellan Midstream Holdings, L.P., Magellan G.P. LLC and Magellan Midstream
Partners, L.P., on the one hand, and The Williams Companies, In¢., Williams Energy Services,
LLC, Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. and Williams GP LLC, on the other hand (filed as
Exhibit 10.6 to our Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2004). '

10.46* — Sale Agreement Relating to the Sale of the Interest of Williams Energy (Canada) Inc. in the
Cochrane, Empress II and Empress V Straddle Plants dated as of July 8, 2004 between Williams
‘Energy (Canada), Inc. and 1024234 Alberta Ltd. (ﬁled as Exhibit 10.7 to our Form 10-Q filed
August 5, 2004).

10.47* — Master Professional Services Agreement dated as of June 1, 2004, by and between The Williams
Companies, Inc. and International Business Machines Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our
Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2004).

10.48* — Amendment No. | to the Master Professional Services Agreement dated June 1, 2004, by and
between The Williams Companies, Inc. and International Business Machines Corporatlon made as
of June 1, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2004).

10.49* — Form of 2006 Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and certain employees and officers (filed
as Exhibit 99.1 to our Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006).

10.50* — Form of 2006 Stock Option Agreement among Williams and certain employees and officers (filed as
Exhibit 99.2 to our Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006). '

10.51* — Form of 2006 Performance-Based Deferred Stock Agreement among Williams and certain
employees and officers (filed as Exhibit 99.3 to our Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006).

12 — Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividend
_ Requirements.

14*  — Code of Ethics (filed as Exhibit 14 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

20* — Definitive Proxy Statement of Williams for 2006 (to be filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on or before April 10, 2006).
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Exhibit

No. ' Descripﬁon
21 — Subsidiaries of the registrant.
23.1 — Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Ernst & Young LLP.
23.2 — Consent of Independent Petroleum Engineers and Geologists, Netherland, Sewell & Associates,
Inc.
23.3 — Consent of Indepcndent Petroleum Engineers and Geologists, Miller and Lents, LTD.
24 — Power of Attorney together with certified resolution.

31.1 - Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a 14(a) and 15d-14(a) promul-
gated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of
Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 — Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promul-

- gated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of
Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 — Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Each such exhibit has heretofore been ﬁled with the SEC as part of the filing 1nd1cated and i is mcorporated
herein by reference.
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. SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to. be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

"THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
(Registrant)

By: " /s/ BriaN K. SHORE
‘ Brian K. Shore
Attorney-in-fact -~
Date: March 9, 2006 '

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the: registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature . : © -Title . ' - Date
. /s/ STEVEN J. MALCOLM* President, Chief Executive Officer and - March 9, 2006
) Steven J. Malcolm -+ Chairman of the Board (Principal S
Executive Officer)
/s/ DoNALD R. CHAPPEL* Senior Vice President and Chief Financial March 9, 2006
Donald R. Chappel Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Tep T. TIMMERMANS* Controller (Principal Accounting Officer) March 9, 2006

Ted T. Timmermans

/s/ IRL F. ENGELHARDT* Director March 9, 2006
Irl F. Engelhardt

/s/  WILLIAM R. GRANBERRY* Director March 9, 2006
William R. Granberry

/s! WirriaM E. GREEN* Director March 9, 2006
William E. Green

/s/  JuaNiTaA H., HINSHAW* ' Director ' March 9, 2006
Juanita H. Hinshaw :

/s/ W.R. HoweLL* Director March 9, 2006
W.R. Howell
/s/ CHARLES M. LiLLis* Director March 9, 2006

Charles M. Lillis

/s/ GEORGE A. LORCH¥* Director March 9, 2006
George A. Lorch

/s/  WiLLiaM G. LowRIE* : Director March 9, 2006
William G. Lowrie
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Signature Title Date

/s/  FrRank T. MACINNIS* Director March 9, 2006
Frank T. Macinnis

/s/  JANICE D. STONEY* Director March 9, 2006
Janice D. Stoney

/s/ JosepH H. WILLIAMS* Director ‘ March 9, 2006
Joseph H. Williams

*By: /s/ BriaN K. SHORE . March 9, 2006

Brian K. Shore
Attorney-in-fact
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

Stockholders are invited to our annual meeting at 11 a.m.

Central Time on May 18, 2006, in the presentation theater, Williams
Resource Center, One Williams Center, Tulsa, Okla.

Internet
Company information is available at www.williams.com.

Inquiries
To request additional materials, phone (918) 573-4084 or
(800) 600-3782, or access our web site,

Qur investor relations group is available to answer questions
about Williams. Call Richard George or Sharna Reingold at
(918) 573-3679 or (918) 573-2078, respectively, or

(800 600-3782, Direct your written inquiries to investor
relations at our headquarters address below.

Corporate Headnuarters
One Williams Center, Tulsa, 0K 74172
Phone: (918) 573-2000 or toll-free, (800) WILLIAMS

Washington Office
1627 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 900, Washington, D.C. 20006

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

P.0. Box 43069, Providence, Rl 02940-3069

Phone: (781) 575-2879 or toll-free, (877) 498-8861
Hearing impaired: (800) 952-9245

Internet: computershare.com

Send overnight mail to:
Computershare

250 Royall St., Canton, MA 02021
Phone: (781) 575-2879

Contact our transfer agent for information on registered share
accounts, dividend payments or to receive information on our
Direct Stock Purchase Plan.

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP, Box 1529, Tulsa, OK 74101

Certifications

We submitted the certification of Steven J. Malcolm, our

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President, to
the New York Stock Exchange pursuant to NYSE Section 303A.12(a)
onJune 16, 2005,

We also filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 9, 2006, as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, the certificates
of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as required
by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Equal Cpportunity

The Company is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) employer
and does not discriminate in any employer/employee relations based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age,
disability or veteran's status.

Williams Securities
Williams common stock (WMB) is listed on the New York and Pacific
stock exchanges.

The market value on Feb. 28, 2006, of WMB was approximately
$12.8 billion. On that date, 12,510 shareholders of record held
Williams common stock. The company’s comman stock in 2005
traded at an average daily volume of 3.8 mitlion shares.

Williams Common Stock Activity

Williams paid a dividend of one cent per share for the first three
quarters of 2004. A dividend of five cents per share was paid in the
fourth quarter of 2004 and the first two quarters of 2005. A dividend
of seven and one-half cents per share was paid in the last two
quarters of 2005.

WMB AVERAGE DAILY VOLUMES TRADED (thousands of shares)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000 (5 3

12 38 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 23 4 1 2 3 4
WMB PRICE RANGES ($/share) High == Low e

12 3 4 1 2 3 41 2 3 41 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
NOTE: Graph reflects intraday trading prices.

WMB DAILY CLOSING PRICES ($/share)

2005 2004
Quarter High Low . High  Low
1 19.28  15.29 1130 875
2 19.21 16.29 1223 989
3 25.05 19.16 1251 1145
4 2540 1997 1710 1235

© 2006 The Williams Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.




